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County of Lexington

Department of Finance

212 South Lake Drive, Suite 605 = Lexington, South Carolina 29072 = (803) 785-8105
January 16, 2024

To the Members of County Council and Citizens of the County of Lexington, South Carolina:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish at the close of each fiscal
year a complete set of financial statements, presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to this requirement, we
hereby issue the annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR) of the County of Lexington, South
Carolina for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

This report has been prepared by the County's Finance Department, and the responsibility for both
the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures, rests with the County. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material
aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results
of operations of the County as measured by the financial activity of its various funds and account
groups; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding
of the County's financial affairs are included.

The County of Lexington’s financial statements have been audited by The Brittingham Group,
LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the County of Lexington for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2023, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified
opinion that the County of Lexington’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023,
are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as
the first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County of Lexington was part of a broader,
federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies.
The standards governing the Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report
not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s
internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal
controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are
available in the County of Lexington’s Single Audit Report section.
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GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The County of Lexington’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

Lexington County operates under the Council-Administrator form of government with council
members elected for four-year terms from each of nine single-member districts. This report
includes all funds and account groups of Lexington County that are controlled by this governing
body, and are considered to be the "reporting entity." The services provided by this reporting entity,
and therefore reflected in this financial report, include law enforcement, fire and emergency
medical services, sanitation, health and social services, road maintenance, judicial and court
facilities, planning and zoning, general administrative services, and the County Library operations.
Conversely, the other political subdivisions, including the five school districts, two recreation
districts, various commissions and municipalities, are excluded from the Lexington County
reporting entity because each entity has sufficient discretion in the management of its own affairs.
However, the County Treasurer is responsible for collection of property taxes, intergovernmental
and other revenues for the political subdivisions. The year-end balances and results of that
fiduciary responsibility are included as agency funds in the combined financial statements. The
organizational chart that is included in this introductory section illustrates the reporting entity.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The County of Lexington is located in the central portion of South Carolina, adjacent to the capital
city of Columbia. It is one of the fastest growing counties in the state. From 2010 to 2020, the
state's population increased by 10.7 percent, while Lexington County's increased by 12.0 percent.
The county's 2023 population, adjusted from the 2020 census core, is estimated at 308,071 and is
ranked sixth in the state. The county had a per capital income of $55,304 to rank it sixth in that
category in 2021 (the latest year for which statistics are available). Lexington County's June 2023
unemployment rate was 3.00 percent compared to the state unemployment rate of 3.10 percent.

Lexington County issued 4,408 building permits during fiscal year 2022-23. Permits for residential
buildings totaled 1,445 with the buildings valued at $398 million. A total of 90 commercial permits
were issued with the buildings valued at $162 million. Permits issued for new single-family
detached housing for calendar year 2023 is projected to be 1,425. This is a 2.93 percent decrease
from the 1,468 permits that were projected to be issued last calendar year. These economic
conditions indicate there is a slight decline in the economy that affects new home construction.
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and legal databases. The Library was awarded five grants this fiscal
year, two of which improved services to underserved populations by
providing improved technology and outreach services. Two conference
rooms were added to the Main Library to provide meeting and study
space. The Library staff served 120,290 patrons through individualized
research assistance and had 94,738 participated in literacy programs.

The Lexington County Public Library System
consists of the Main Library and nine branches.
The Library has over 100,000 library cardholders
who checked out over 1.6 million items last year.
The Library provides citizens free access to a
multitude of other resources including,
computers, printers, study and meeting rooms.
The Library System continues to expand its
digital collection,
including its ebooks, i ‘
downloadable videos & A

and medical, financial o
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The Main Library has outgrown its programming space and utilized the Ice House Amphitheater
for the Summer Reading Kickoff for the last three years. Several branches have enhanced their
outdoor programming space and local partnerships have expanded square-foot gardens and Free
Little Libraries improving the quality of life throughout the community.

Riverbanks Zoo and Garden — The award-winning
Riverbanks Zoo and Garden is home to more than 2,000
animals from around the world and one of America’s best
public gardens. The lush 170-acre site features dynamic
natural habitat exhibits, scenic river views, spectacular
overlooks, significant historic landmarks and adventurous
attractions for kids and adults of all ages. Riverbanks is
South Carolina’s largest gated tourist attraction, the most
visited zoo in the southeast and consistently ranks as one of
the top zoos in the nation.

Guests visiting Riverbanks will discover an array of wild adventures from an interactive Outback
encounter to a safari through the plains of Africa to a diving expedition on a Pacific coral reef. In
addition, Riverbanks Botanical Garden showcases more the 4,300 species of native and exotic
plants. Hailed by Horticulture magazine as one of 10 gardens that inspire and by HGTV as one of
20 great public gardens across America, Riverbanks Botanical Garden boasts 70 acres of
unparalleled beauty. The Botanical Garden also includes Waterfall Junction, a 3-acre children’s
garden that features multiple water play areas, a dinosaur dig, a network of treehouses, and endless
opportunities for families to engage with nature.

Midlands Technical College — The College
enrolls approximately 12,500 credit students
annually. The College also provides noncredit
professional training to more than 10,000
#° individual’s area businesses annually. Midlands
£ "4 Technical College offers approximately one

8 hundred twenty degree, diploma, and certificate
& programs of study. Through its programs and
services, the College equitably provides higher
education opportunities and strengthens the
economic and social vitality of the community. In
March 2023, the College formally opened the newly constructed Center for Business and
Information Technologies building. The facility will support workforce development for
Lexington, Richland, and Fairfield counties. The four story, 58,245 square foot building features
state of the art equipment and high-tech labs. The construction of the building represents a $30
million capital investment and will be the home to some of the College’s most in-demand
programs to include management, accounting, business administration, and computer science.
Businesses, organizations, and government agencies rely on these MTC programs and other
corporate and continuing educations offerings for developing their employees and workforces.
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Columbia Metropolitan Airport — In 2022,
the Columbia Metropolitan Airport (CAE
hereafter) served more than 1.1 million
passengers and handled more than 144
million pounds of air cargo. Air passenger
and cargo service at CAE is provided by
scheduled airlines, jet freight carriers, two
fixed base operators, and various charter
flights. Air operations are conducted on an
8,600" x 150" runway and an 8,000" x 150'
runway. CAE has over 500+ acres available
for mid to large scale development located within minutes of three major interstates — making it
an ideal location for economic development in the manufacturing, warehousing, and distribution
industries.

CAE remains a major economic driver for South Carolina and the Midlands region. Additionally,
CAE provides roughly 1,900 full-time jobs for the community and has an overall economic
impact of $535 million on the region. Columbia Metropolitan Airport is the premier air travel
provider for South Carolina’s Midlands Region. CAE currently offers 26+ daily nonstop flights
to nine major airports nationwide in eight cities. CAE also has seasonal service to Miami on
American Airlines. For more information on the Columbia Metropolitan Airport, please visit
www.flycae.com.

INDUSTRIES

Department of Economic Development — In conjunction with Central SC Alliance, the State’s
Department of Commerce and local municipalities, Lexington County continues to provide and
promote the development of the existing industry base with our industrial Now Program in addition
to the recruitment of National and International businesses to the County. The Economic
Development staff plays a crucial role in the site selection process for industry prospects, market
research, labor analysis and corporate relocation assistance. The Department is routinely involved
with prospective companies’ initial introduction to the County and to Central South Carolina.

Lexington County Council has an experienced Economic Development Committee that reviews
all business opportunities presented to the county. Collaborating with the Department of
Commerce and Central SC Alliance, we answer the inquiries of businesses that have expressed an
interest in expanding or relocating to Lexington County. Expansions and relocations of new
industries help to manifest a spirit of opportunity for those living in Lexington County and across
Central South Carolina. The key to our success is the continued display of the County’s brand—
industrial now. It is this brand awareness that will enable us to encourage growth in the
communities that Lexington County has enjoyed for the last decade.
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Lexington County is pleased to report the following economic development activity for fiscal year
2022/2023:

ABB: In keeping up with a fast and growing EV market, ABB chose to locate in West
Columbia, SC. The company anticipates a $4 million investment and the creation of 100
jobs. (Attraction — September 26, 2022)

AGP Group: A leading specialty glazing manufacturer, AGP eGlass, is establishing
operations in Lexington County. The company anticipates a $3.3 million investment and
the creation of 35 new jobs for Lexington County. (Attraction — October 11, 2022)

Executive Personal Computers, Inc.: Announced plans to expand with new operations
in Lexington County. The company’s $9.5 million investment will create 133 new jobs.
Founded in 2008, EPC, Inc. is one of the largest information technology asset disposition
(ITAD) providers in the world. EPC, Inc. services organizations by providing premium,
flexible and secure solutions for sustainable information technology disposal. The
company’s services also include secure on-site hard drive shredding, wrap and pack,
receiving, auditing, cleaning, recycling and resale of information technology assets.
Located at 1326 Bush River Road in Columbia, EPC, Inc.’s new 203,000-square-foot
facility will serve as the company’s East Coast hub and accommodate increased
production. (Attraction — November 16, 2022)

Chick-fil-A Supply: A whole-owned subsidiary of Chick-fil-A will be establishing a new
distribution center in Lexington County generating an $80 million investment and creating
165 new jobs for Lexington County. (Attraction - November 21, 2022)

Mattress Warehouse: A leading mattress company, Mattress Warehouse announced they
will be locating their first South Carolina distribution center here in Lexington County. The
new distribution center will create 108 new jobs for Lexington County and generate $18
million in new investment. (Attraction — March 14, 2023)

Given’s, Inc.: Announced they would be locating in the 252,720 square-foot Gateway
Three building generating 38 jobs. (Attraction — March 14, 2023)

Southern Glacier’s Wine & Spirits: Southern Glazier’s is a leading wine and spirit
distribution company that anticipates investing $80 million and creating 509 new jobs for
Lexington County. (Attraction — March 15, 2023)

CEEUS: Cooperative Electric Energy Utility Supply, Inc. serves electric cooperatives,
municipalities, investor-owned utilities, and electrical contractors across South Carolina.
Currently operating in Lexington County, CEEUS has expanded their operations in West
Columbia. The company generated a $52 million investment and created 61 new jobs for
Lexington County. (Expansion - March 21, 2023)
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

Department of Emergency Services - Fiscal Year 2022/2023
Fire Service

Lexington County Fire Service, a Division of the Lexington County Department of Emergency
Services, continually evaluates its programs in an effort to provide cost effective and efficient fire
protection to the citizens of Lexington County. To help accomplish this, the Fire Service maintains
a five-year Strategic Plan outlining the operating, capital and staffing levels currently needed, as
well as identifying future needs of our rapidly growing communities within the County. Fire
Service continues to study and implement a 20-year Capital Improvement Plan for the purpose of
documenting fire station remodeling, fire station relocations, new fire station buildings, fire
apparatus and other capital items. An updated “Resource Allocation Study” depicts all station
infrastructure needs along with projected costs and a 5-year priority.

Personnel and Operating

In FY ’22-°23, Salaries and Wages for Personnel (to include Overtime, Benefits, and VVolunteer
Firefighter Subsistence, et al.) totaled $20,393,392.13.

Larger expenditures managed by the Administrative Division are items such as “Contracted
Maintenance” in the amount of $67,891; Firefighter Medical Screening Physicals (OSHA
Requirement) in the amount of $61,731; Self Contained Breathing Apparatus supplies in the
amount of $28,093; Building Repairs and Maintenance in the amount of $169,780; and Vehicle
Repairs and Maintenance in the amount of $566,135.94. The amounts provided are the amount
expended in the ’22-°23 Fiscal Year.

Capital

Two (2) Service Truck replacements in FY ’22-’23 were approved and purchased for the amount
of $160,950.

Three (3) SUV replacements in FY ’22-°23 were approved and purchased for the amount of
$149,065.

Extrication Equipment replacement (Year 1 of 3) in FY ’22-’23 was approved and purchased for
the amount of $120,278.

Twenty-five (25) Headset replacements in FY ’22-’23 were approved and purchased for the
amount of $38,424.

Seventy-five (75) Rugged Keyboards for MDTs in FY ’22-’23 were approved and purchased for
an amount of $24,593.

Thirty (30) Quick Response Kits in FY ’22-"23 were approved and purchased for the amount of
$172,768.

Twenty (20) Portable Radio replacements in FY ’22-’23 were approved and purchased for the
amount of $129,894.
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Forty-Five (45) Mattress Replacements (Year 1 of 2) in FY ’22-"23 were approved and purchased
for the amount of $55,561.

One (1) Chempro Toxic Gas Detector in FY *22-’23 was approved and purchased in the amount
of $24,562.

Emergency Medical Services

Lexington County Emergency Medical Services, a Division of the Lexington County Department
of Emergency Services, continually evaluates its programs in an effort to provide cost effective
and efficient emergency medical services to the citizens of Lexington County. To help accomplish
this, EMS maintains a five-year Strategic Plan outlining the operating, capital and staffing levels
currently needed, as well as identifying future needs of our rapidly growing communities within
the County. EMS continues to pursue our planned growth in the West Region of Lexington County
with the construction of the West Region Headquarters as well as a Station on North Lake Drive
near Pilgrim Church Road in Lexington.

Personnel and Operating

In FY 23, Salaries and Wages for Personnel (to include Overtime, Benefits, and Volunteer
Firefighter Subsistence, et al.) totaled $12,028,355.

During FY 23, a heavy priority was placed on refocusing the agency on EMERGENCY medical
calls and identifying unique ways to remove the low acuity event from EMS altogether. EMS
spent countless hours developing the specifications for an RFP allowing private, non-emergency
ambulance services to bid for the opportunity to respond to the low acuity call for service. The
RFP was sent out, and the process closed at the end of FY 22. EMS and Procurement are currently
working on contract language to finalize the successful vendor proposal and beginning to shift the
non-emergency calls that come through 9-1-1 over to the contracted provider for non-emergency
services. Once fully implemented, this public/private partnership could transfer as much as 25%
of the EMS call volume to the non-emergency ambulance provider freeing up county EMS
resources to handle the truly life-threatening emergencies in a more timely manner.

Capital

After years of planning and pre-construction activities, EMS purchased the Division’s third set of
SAFER Ambulances. This initiative creates a work environment that is much safer and more
ergonomically fitting for EMS activities. Clinicians cannot be seat belted in current ambulances
and provide care for the patients, however, in the SAFER ambulance, clinicians can be belted up
to 90% of the time spent in the back of the ambulance. As the motor vehicle collision is the highest
occupational injury exposure for EMS workers in Lexington County this program will make our
clinicians much safer. The five ambulances cost $260,000 each for a grand total of $1,300,000 this
fiscal year. EMS continues to maximize the life expectancy of our vehicles through the “repower
program.” This program replaces the chassis of an ambulance, or the engine and drive train of the
quick response vehicle at a fraction of the cost. This allows for an additional one to three years life
expectancy and operation of the vehicle for pennies on the mile compared to replacing the entire
vehicle.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Lexington County management is responsible for developing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or misuse
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

Single Audit

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, Lexington County also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic
evaluation by management and the County's internal audit staff. As a part of Lexington County's
single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, including
that portion related to federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the County
has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

Budgetary Control

Budgetary control is maintained at the department level by the encumbrance of estimated purchase
amounts prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors. Purchase orders which result in an
overrun of departmental balances are not released until additional appropriations are made
available. Encumbrances lapse at year end, but are generally reappropriated in the following fiscal
year for capital items. Debt service expenditures are controlled by bond issuance requirements and
corresponding revenues are set by the County through millage levies on an annual basis. Project
length financial estimates are calculated for capital projects funds.

General Governmental Functions

Assessed valuations of $1,586,855,062 represented an increase in the tax base of 5.31% over the
preceding year's assessed value of $1,506,852,111. Tax levy rates for general governmental funds
remained at 86.173 mills for operations. Debt service remained constant at 2.500. Millage levies
for other political subdivisions, such as schools and municipalities remained fairly constant or have
slightly increased. Total taxes levied for all taxing agencies increased 6.18%, from $705,028,451
to $748,600,611 while the corresponding net tax collections within the fiscal year increased 5.87%,
from $683,343,203 to $723,475,155. The collection percentage for fiscal year 2022-23 was
96.64%. Lexington County's property tax collection percentage has averaged between 96 and 97
percent during the last 10 years with total collections to date over 99%. A typical tax bill for an
owner-occupied residence assessed at $100,000 is charted on the next page. It should be noted that
this tax bill of $1,848.43 does not include any municipal taxes. Of the $1,378.56 billed for school
taxes, $585.84 is provided on behalf of the taxpayer through State Property Tax Relief, an
exemption which applies to ad valorem taxes levied for school operating budgets.
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Typical Residential Tax Bill on a Home Assessed at $100,000 -
Total Tax of $1,848.43 for Fiscal Year 2023
School Tax Portion Includes $585.84 Provided from State Property Tax
Relief

School, $1,378.56

m School
m County Millages
1 Recreation

= Midlands Tech

Riverbanks Zoo

Riverbanks Zoo,
$3.20 County Millages

Midlands Tech, _/ Recreation, $65.11 $384.87
$16.69

Typical County Millage Portion of a Residential Tax Bill on a
Home
Assessed at $100,000 - Taxes of $384.88 for Fiscal Year 2023

County Ordinary,

Fire Operations, $98.23 H Fire Operations

$86.50

M County Ordinary
i Law Enforcement
M Library Operations
7 Indigent Care

. County Notes and Bonds
Solid Waste, $30.18

County Notes and
Bonds, $10.00

Indigent Care, $1.92  »23:68 Law Enforcement,
$134.37

Solid Waste
Library Operations,
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON: GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
REVENUES BY SOURCE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Increase
Current Fiscal Year Prior Fiscal (Decrease)
Percent Year From
Revenue Source Amount of Total Amount FY 2022
Property Taxes $ 132042986 57.78% $ 125462769 6,580.217
State Shared Revenues 14,092 409 6.17% 13,316,220 776,189
Fees, Permits, & Sales 29489011 1291% 37873924  (8,384,913)
County Fines 2,054 881 0.90% 2,091,191 (36,310)
Intergovernmental 41,331,269 18.09% 48,716,911  (7,385,642)
Interest 8,637.572 3.78% 675975 7,961,597
Other 852,994 0.37% 1,387,165 (534,171)
$ 228501122 100.00% $ 229524155 (1,023,033)

State Shared
Revemes
6.17%

Property Taxes

57.78% .
! Fees, Pernmuts, &

Sales
12.91%

County Fines
0.90%

Intergovernmental
18.09%

0.37%
) ’ Interest

3.78%

The schedule above presents a summary of revenues for the primary governmental funds (general,
special revenue, debt service and capital projects) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.
Revenues for general governmental operations totaled $228,501,122 in fiscal year 2022-23, a
decrease of .45 percent from fiscal year 2021-22. Property tax revenues increased $6,580,217 (5.24
percent) and accounted for 57.78 percent of total general governmental revenues.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON: GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Increase
Current Fiscal Year Prior Fiscal ~ (Decreasc)
Percent Year From
Expenditurcs Function Amount of Total Amount FY 2022
General Administrative $ 19494726 924% $ 198188548 (324,128)
General Service 3,804 016 1.85% 4,108,089 (214,073)
Public Works 19,415,133 920% 16,233,063 3,182,070
Public Safety 48,779,485 23.12% 46,482,946 2,296,539
Judicial 16,253,510 1.70% 16,575,179 (321,669)
LawEnforcement 56,073,548 2657% 51,679,631 4,393 917
Boards & Commissions 1,362,919 0.65% 1,087,748 275,171
Health & Human Services 3,394 835 1.61% 3,197,087 197,748
Public Library 85772117 407% 8,618,707 (41,490)
Community Development 5,552,838 2.63% 1,001,411 4551427
Economic Development 1,836,440 087% 8,511,781  (6,675,341)
Capital Outlay 22.239.720 10.54% 15,844 424 6,395 296
Debit Service 4,117,057 1.95% 4,019,717 97,340
$ 210,991 444 100.00% $ 197178637 § 13812807
Public Works P“lf)]iolig?t}'
9.20% =
General Service
Judicial

1.85%
7.70%

General Adninistrative

9.24%
Debt Serviee _——" Law Enforcement
1.95% 26.57%
Capital Outlay Boards & Commissions
10.54% 0.65%

Economic Development
0.87% Health & Human
Services
1.61%

Community
Development Public Library

263% 407%
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Expenditures during fiscal year 2022-23 for general governmental functions are scheduled on the
previous page. The current year's total of $210,991,444 represents 7.01 percent increase over last
year's total of $197,178,637. Law Enforcement expenditures totaled $56,073,548 and accounted
for 26.57 percent of total expenditures. This is largely due to personnel and their associated costs.

General Fund Balance

The balance of the general fund stood at $134,542,374 as of June 30, 2023. However, this included
a nonspendable amount of $1,346,208 and a committed balance of $54,837,035 which leaves an
unassigned balance of $78,359,131.

Cash Management

The management of cash and investments is the responsibility of the County Treasurer. A
negotiated rate of interest is paid daily on cash held in checking accounts. Other investments are
made in the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool, U.S. Government Agency
Securities, and/or Certificates of Deposit. All investments are made in compliance with S.C. Codes
6-5-10 and 12-45-220. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, interest earnings totaled
$10,774,782 for the governmental, proprietary funds and internal service funds as detailed below:

Fund Type Investment Interest

General $5,829,186

Special Revenue 2,316,301

Debt Service 26,193

Capital Projects 465,892 $8,637,572

Enterprise Funds 857,546

Internal Service Funds 1,279,664
10,774,782

Interest on Lease
General 1,058,987

Total $11,833,769

30



Enterprise Operations

Solid Waste Management - In previous years, the Lexington County Solid Waste Management
operations were included within the Public Works Division, but beginning in fiscal year 1990-91,
it was established as a separate department being accounted for as an enterprise fund. With the
increased complexity of solid waste management, County Council needed more accountability to
determine user service charges and tax levy subsidies. This fund accounts for all landfill
construction, operation and maintenance, as well as the operation and maintenance of the eleven
collection and recycling centers located throughout the County, a wood grinding and compost
facility and a municipal solid waste transfer station. Current goals of this operation include
providing long-term solid waste collection, recycling and disposal for County residents.
Operations for the fiscal year included operating revenues of $6,643,902 and operating expenses
of $39,404,713 resulting in an operating loss of $32,760,811. The fund had an increase in its
operating loss of $23,487,347 compared to the prior fiscal year.

Debt Administration
In accordance with State law, Lexington County must maintain its general obligation bonded debt

within a limit of 8 percent of total assessed value of real and personal property. Table 16-A in the
Statistical Section of this ACFR explains this calculation further and presents the following data:

Total Outstanding General Ratio to General Obligation
Obligation Bonded Debt Assessed Value Debt Per Capita
$ 13,800,000 0.87% $44.79

Lexington County's total debt, however, includes more than just its bonded debt, as its entity wide.
As of June 30, 2023, the County's total gross general long-term outstanding debt amounted to
$19,093,376. This consisted of $13,800,000 in general obligation bonds and $5,293,376 in
compensated absences (accrued vacation benefits). There were debt service monies on hand as of
June 30 to pay this debt in the amount of $780,641. Therefore, this leaves the County with a total
net general long-term debt of $18,312,735. Ratios are presented as follows:

Net General Ratio to
Long-term Debt Assessed Value Amount Per Capita
$18,312,735 1.15% $59.44

Lexington County's general obligation bonds continue to be rated highly by the bond-rating
agencies. Most recently, the County received a rate of "Aaa" by Moody's Investors Service and a
rating of "AA+" by Standard & Poor's.
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General Capital Assets

The general capital assets of the County are those capital assets used in the performance of
governmental activities and exclude the capital assets of the enterprise funds. As of June 30, 2023,
the general capital assets of the primary reporting entity amounted to $580,488,947.

Risk Management

The County maintains an employee health insurance plan for all regular employees working at
least thirty hours per week, with individual stop-loss coverage of $300,000 and an aggregate
specific of $50,000. Coverage currently is maintained for workers' compensation claims through
the South Carolina Counties Workers' Compensation Trust (SCCWCT). This fund covers all
medical claims for work-related injuries within an elected $300,000 per occurrence deductible, as
well as providing disability payments for loss of time from work for periods lasting in excess of
seven calendar days. All accidents should be submitted to claims administration within three days
and accidents must be investigated using an effective written program with corrective actions
documented. Driver’s training classes are provided for employees who drive County equipment in
an effort to minimize accident-related losses and all employees who operate a county vehicle are
subject to the County Driving Record Policy.

AWARDS & ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County of Lexington for
its annual comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program
standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one (1) year only. We
believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement Program
requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Preparation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report could not have been accomplished
without the professional and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department
throughout the fiscal year. We sincerely appreciate the efforts of each member of the department
who assisted in and contributed to the preparation of this ACFR. We also would like to thank the
employees of various other County departments for their assistance in compiling this report.

In closing, the Finance Department would like to express its appreciation to the Administrator and

County Council for their support and understanding of the benefits of professional and timely
financial reporting.
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Respectfully submitted,

Randolph C. Poston
Chief Financial Officer

f St

Cecil L. Sturkie
County Administrator

33



P

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

County of Lexington
South Carolina

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2022

Executive Director/CEO

34



L¥0d3¥ TVIONVNI4 TVNNNVY NI ALILN3 ONILYOd3d NI G3aN1ONI
10¥INOD
A¥¥1390N8 YO ANV
AJN0d TV1LHVd 1390N8 ANN4 TY¥3INID ALNNOI NI A3ANTINI
ALIOHLNY 133410
\\\\\\\\\\\\\ e DINYIS —
| 34 ININAO13A30
ALINAWOD
|
ALINDI NI DIHO SNOILDIT3 B VAV 40 !
-YILSYN SILVHLSIOVIN NOLLVHLSIO3Y SINV¥ILIA NOUYDTTIO I swa siI9g
| ONINNYd
i [
|
| nouvznvnoiz
i NOLLYDINNWINOD ININSSISSY
|
i [
i SSINGIUVAIYA SIINYIS
i AONIO¥ING ONINTIHO¥IN
! 7
|
NolvyisiNay || - SIINYIS
! AL34vs dnand NOILYINHOANI
|
|
4
| W%M\M, — INIWIDVNYI
i sty
. 4
|
| Aunoan | v
L i T04INOD | |  saunosa
IVNINY 1 NVINH
|
| S
- ! Shiom — — iNaw3¥ndooud
SILVHLSIOVIN | onand
|
! SIS
| ONIaTINg SINIWLY¥V4Ia
| zww”wwwumy_ i SMOLS WNOLLY¥3dO
! WHINDD
|
i DINYIS
H 13314
SHIV44Y |
| snvyaan i BONVNI
| AN3IWA013A30
| JINONOD3
|
|
[ [ e [ D | vowvuisnwavy | | wnasnw
ALNNOD ALNNOD
| | 1voauv
O¥13W V100 I:
zowwnuw%_nuu ERIEELe) 01440 3040 30140 uwwm“mu mauw%hwo 2IH0 1340 AINYOLLY 1DNNO
SHINSYIYL ALNNOD oL ¥4I
¥ILYM B 110 31v804d SHYID SYINOYOD SY0LI110S M1 YILSIOI sgoLiany
| | ommomvd — Advaan
NIdVHI/OWYI ALNNOD
ONIOV B 234 —
] ANnodxa
ayvog ayvos auvos SNOISSININOD
AYOSINaY 3000 RETRELH zo_\,,.ﬂw_m‘:ﬁg auvos B 5Q¥v08
XVL WOV ONIaTINg SINIHATHD Advyan Q3LNIOddV
|| 03w T T
X371 - HOIY
avvos asvos sowan | | sionoow | | “awomsa || oor || “nows
HLTH WINIW NOISSININOD S1v3ddv
AINNOYXaT ONINOZ ONINNYId ININSSISSY WHIND TN/ X3 ALND X31 SANVEYIAIY WHIND
NOILYO313a NOISSINNOD 39anr 14n0d 4INOHOd yoLpnos J4IY3HS YVHLSIOY ¥oLiany ¥IUNSYIYL TONNOD SO0
IAILVISION YILVM 8 110S 3Lv80ud 40331 ALNNOD L1n2¥Id ALNNOD ALNNOD ALNNOD ALNNOD ALNNOD TR E]

SN3ZILID NOLONIX3140 ALNNOD

35



SN
00l gl 0 [ord 0

ojneag

a|neqqy

| pyey

oloqlren pleydaIsayn J91seouE

4 N

/\ _ WD\M_ : w._snc........
- OHOA «@__

ZZDOQ V_Emso _»‘__:Emmgw
NOLONIXAT YNITOMYO HISON

fe1sayn uoiun

88u02Q

36



Auno)
UOISUIXI|

e ——

epLIojd

sasseyelie ©

elbloan) eweqe|y

BJUEY Q)
euljoien yynos

oHoLEYD @

ybisie @) NQQOL_QO CtOZ

29SSalulUa]
uospIABd-8jiAYSENG)

dey uoneoso

VNITO¥VO HLNOS ‘NOLONIX3T 40 ALNNOD

00y 00¢€ 00c¢ 001 0

37




COUNTY OF LEXINGTON , SOUTH CAROLINA
PRINCIPAL OFFICERS
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23

MEMBERS OF COUNTY COUNCIL

Scotty R. "Scott" Whetstone District 1 Member, County Council
M. Todd Cullum District 9 Member, County Council
Paul Lawrence "Larry" Brigham, Jr. District 2 Member, County Council
Darrell C. Hudson District 3 Vice-Chairman, County Council
Debra B. "Debbie" Summers District 4 Member, County Council
Gene "Bimbo" Jones District 5 Member, County Council
Charlene "Charli" Wesssinger District 6 Member, County Council
Beth A. Carrigg District 7 Chairman, County Council
Glen M. Conwell District 8 Member, County Council
ELECTED OFFICIALS
Christopher J. Harmon Auditor
Lisa M. Comer Clerk of Court
Margaret W. Fisher Coroner
Daniel R. Eckstrom Judge of Probate
Tina R. Guerry Register of Deeds
B. Jay Koon Sheriff
S. Richard Hubbard, III Solicitor
James R. Eckstrom Treasurer
APPOINTED OFFICIALS
Jessica N. Hendrix Clerk of Council
Jeftf M. Anderson County Attorney
Cecil L. Sturkie County Administrator
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Randolph C. Poston
Dana J. Wilkerson
Holland J. Leger
Robbie B. Derrick
Richard W. Dolan
Jeffery L. Brewer
Randall B. Hyatt
Vacant

Chief Financial Officer
Chief Human Resources Officer
Director of Planning/GIS

Director of Community Development

Director of Assessment

Director of Technology Services
Director of Public Works
Director of Emergency Services

Garrett L. Dragano
David L. Eger

Director of Economic Development
Director of Solid Waste Management
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THE BRITTINGHAM GROUP,LLP.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
501 STATE STREET
POST OFFICE BOX 5949
WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29171

PHONE: (803) 739-3090
FAX: (803) 791-0834

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable Chairman and Members
Of The County Council For
County of Lexington, South Carolina

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
County of Lexington, South Carolina (hereafter referred to as the County) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of June 30, 2023,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Library Fund, “C” Funds, and the
American Rescue Plan (SLFRP), for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the County and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 9 to the financial statements, in 2023, the County adopted new accounting
guidance, GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 45 through 53, the Schedule of Changes in the
County’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on Page 134 - 135, the Schedule of
Proportionate Share of Retirement Systems Net Pension Liabilities on Page 136, and the
Schedule of Retirement Systems Contributions on Page 137, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, Schedule of Court, Fines, Assessments, and
Surcharges (per ACT 96), Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
E-911 Fund, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, Schedule of Court, Fines,
Assessments, and Surcharges (per ACT 96), Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance — E-911 Fund, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other
information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 16, 2024, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering County’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

m 6! ﬁz‘ . a,j‘,_ ) é‘-’M‘?C) J--i-—P

West Columbia, South Carolina
January 16, 2024
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The County of Lexington’s discussion and analysis offers readers of the financial statements a
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, the financial statements and the notes
to the financial statements.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for fiscal year 2023 are as follows:

*The assets and deferred outflows of resources $674,100,477 of the County’s primary
government exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources $342,639,458 at June 30, 2023,
net position of $331,461,019 compared to $305,815,519 for fiscal year 2022, increased by
$25,645,500. The net positions in the governmental activities of $313,522,278 compared to
$267,384,141 for fiscal year 2022, increased by $46,138,137. The net positions in the business-type
activities of $17,938,741 compared to $38,431,378 for fiscal year 2022 decreased by $20,492,637.
The net positions is more fully described in the Statement of Activities on page 58.

*At June 30, 2023, the County’s governmental fund balance sheet reported a combined
ending fund balance of $222,622,452 as compared to $189,338,300 for fiscal year 2022 resulting in
an increase of $33,284,152. Of the $222,622,452 fund balance of $109,020,621, is committed funds,
$33,285,912 is assigned for special revenue funds and capital projects and debt services $780,641 are
restricted funds that are mandated by other governments, and $1,346,208 are non-spendable funds
that are inventories and $78,189,070 is available for spending at the discretion of the County. Due to
property taxes which increased by $6,580,217 over prior year, and investment interest which
increased by $7,961,567 over prior year.

* The General Fund reported a fund balance of $134,542,374, which was increase from last
fiscal year by $1,638,166. Of which the unassigned fund balance at June 30, 2023 was $78,359,131
or approximately 51 percent of total fund expenditures.

* The General Fund reported increases in revenue of $1,117,687 under the final budget, and a
decrease in expenditures of $56,945,969 of final budgeted appropriations, $28,890,345 are capital
items that were not purchased during the year and will be carried forward.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County of Lexington’s
basic financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.
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Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.

The focus of the governmental-wide financial statements is on the primary government and includes
governmental and business-type activities. Financial information for three component units is
presented in separate columns in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
These component units are legally separate organizations for which the County may exercise control
and/or may be obligated to provide financial subsidy.

The statement of net positions presents information on all of the County’s assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in net positions may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net positions changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net positions are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flow in future
fiscal periods (uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County of Lexington
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The County’s governmental activities include
general administration, police, fire, roads and bridges, economic development, and judicial services.
The County’s business-type activities include rental properties, solid waste system and airport.
Financial information in the government-wide financial statements distinguishes discretely-presented
internal service funds information for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. County of Lexington,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s
near-term financing requirements.
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Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide reconciliation to facilitate
this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County of Lexington maintains 233 individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Library Fund and C
Funds each of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The County of Lexington adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds.
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance
with the budget.

Proprietary funds - County of Lexington maintains two different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its rental
properties, solid waste system and the Lexington County Airport at Pelion. Internal service funds are
an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s various
functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its insurance fund, workers
compensation fund, risk management fund, and motor pool fund. Because all of these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included
within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Financial statements of proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, but in greater detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
separate information for the Red Bank Crossing (rental properties), County of Lexington Solid Waste
System and the Lexington County Airport at Pelion, which are considered to be major funds of the
County. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewnhere in this report. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on
Exhibits 8, 9 and 10 of this report.

Fiduciary funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. These funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s operations. County of
Lexington has a number of these funds, which are used to account for assets held by the County as
gent of other governmental units. Property taxes and other revenue are collected, temporarily
retained and distributed by the County Treasurer in accordance with Acts of the General Assembly of
South Carolina. Each governmental unit for which an agency fund is maintained is administered by a
governing body independent of the County Council. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements
can be found on Exhibit 11 and 12 of this report.
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Notes to the financial statements — As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as our useful
indicator of a government’s financial position. The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the
County’s governmental activities exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources for the
governmental activities by $313,522,278 at June 30, 2023 and by $267,384,141 at June 30, 2022.
The notes can be found on pages 74 - 131.

By far the largest portion, $195,953,869 or 62.5% which reflects its net investment in capital assets
(land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding within the governmental activities and within the business type
activities largest portion $21,300,321 or 118.74% which reflects its net investments in capital assets.
The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens: consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending.

County of Lexington Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023
Current and other assets $ 329,528,797 $ 357,928,592 $ 26,734,518 $ 28,876,111 $ 356,263,315 $ 386,804,703
Capital assets 207,207,528 210,196,168 22,321,704 21,300,321 229,529,232 231,496,489
Total assets 536,736,325 568,124,760 49,056,222 50,176,432 585,792,547 618,301,192
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred charge on refunding 1,900 1,167 1,900 1,167
Deferred opeb outflows 5,106,634 4,944,182 - - 5,106,634 4,944,182
Deferred pension outflows 38,079,935 49,997,194 651,050 856,742 38,730,985 50,853,936
Total deferred outflows of resources 43,188,469 54,942,543 651,050 856,742 43,839,519 55,799,285
Total assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources 579,924,794 623,067,303 49,707,272 51,033,174 629,632,066 674,100,477
Current liabilities 57,354,779 52,614,630 2,152,976 1,200,700 59,507,755 53,815,330
Non-Current Liablities-
Compensated Absences 2,407,201 2,597,977 47,565 49,583 2,454,766 2,647,560
General Obligation Bonds 13,800,000 10,120,000 - - 13,800,000 10,120,000
Post-Closure Care Cost - - 5,489,586 28,146,625 5,489,586 28,146,625
Lease liability 188,540 147,060 - - 188,540 147,060
Net opeb Liability 9,960,240 9,545,914 - - 9,960,240 9,545,914
Net pension Liability 139,496,398 151,377,080 2,688,490 2,902,807 142,184,888 154,279,887
Total liabilities 223,207,158 226,402,661 10,378,617 32,299,715 233,585,775 258,702,376
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred charge on refunding 415,446 254,927 415,446 254,927
Deferred opeb inflows 4,233,623 3,815,450 - - 4,233,623 3,815,450
Deferred lease inflows 44,565,516 44,079,752 201,262 187,779 44,766,778 44,267,531
Deferred pension inflows 40,118,910 34,992,235 696,015 606,939 40,814,925 35,599,174
Total deferred inflows of resources 89,333,495 83,142,364 897,277 794,718 90,230,772 83,937,082
Total liabilities and Deferred
Outflows of Resources 312,540,653 309,545,025 11,275,894 33,094,433 323,816,547 342,639,458
Net position:
Net investment in
capital assets 189,567,246 195,953,869 22,323,300 21,300,321 211,890,546 217,254,190
Restricted 7,474,187 24,626,170 294,369 88,927 7,768,556 24,715,097
Unrestricted 70,342,708 92,942,239 15,813,709 (3,450,507) 86,156,417 89,491,732
Total net position $ 267,384,141 $ 313,522,278 $ 38,431,378 $ 17,938,741 $ 305,815,519 $ 331,461,019
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The changes in net position displayed below shows the governmental and business-type activities
during the fiscal year. Governmental Activities increased and the Business-type activities decrease in
2023.

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 60227581 $ 71916285 $ 5872521 $ 7,110477 $ 66,100,102 $ 79,026,762
Operating grants & contribution 34,724,543 11,234,265 - 34,724,543 11,234,265
Capital grants & contribution 2,857,639 13,427,517 208,991 99,585 3,066,630 13,527,102
General revenues
Property taxes 125,815,333 131,887,610 11,228,424 11,755,347 137,043,757 143,642,957
Other taxes 414,033 476,432 - - 414,033 476,432
State shared revenues 12,032,435 12,620,822 - - 12,032,435 12,620,822
Gain (loss) on capital asset - - 67,729 (305,024) 67,729 (305,024)
Investment income 1,391,269 10,976,223 83,029 857,546 1,474,298 11,833,769
Total revenues 237,462,833 252,539,154 17,460,694 19,517,931 254,923,527 272,057,085
Expenses
General administrative 44,384,474 42,684,017 - - 44,384,474 42,684,017
General service 4,417,576 3,950,501 - - 4,417,576 3,950,501
Public works 20,910,471 24,591,461 - - 20,910,471 24,591,461
Public safety 46,527,551 45,398,111 - - 46,527,551 45,398,111
Judicial 15,713,357 14,945,936 - - 15,713,357 14,945,936
Law enforcement 49,956,873 54,362,034 - - 49,956,873 54,362,034
Boards and commission 1,372,261 1,639,466 - - 1,372,261 1,639,466
Health and human service 3,336,537 3,530,682 - - 3,336,537 3,530,682
Community development 8,586,223 5,514,684 - - 8,586,223 5,514,684
Economic development 1,811,811 78,521 - - 1,811,811 78,521
Public library 9,241,429 9,148,333 - - 9,241,429 9,148,333
Interest and fiscal charges 669,931 532,271 - 669,931 532,271
Red bank crossing - - 138,473 77,528 138,473 77,528
Soild waste - - 14,648,944 39,404,949 14,648,944 39,404,949
Pelion airport - 675,349 553,091 675,349 553,091
Total expenses 206,928,494 206,376,017 15,462,766 40,035,568 222,391,260 246,411,585

Excess (deficiency) before transfers 30,534,339 46,163,137 1,997,928 (20,517,637) 32,532,267 25,645,500

Transfers (25,000) (25,000) 25,000 25,000

Increase (decrease) in net position 30,509,339 46,138,137 2,022,928 (20,492,637) 32,532,267 25,645,500
Net position - beginning 236,874,802 267,384,141 36,408,450 38,431,378 273,283,252 305,815,519
Net position - ending $ 267,384,141 $ 313522278 $ 38,431,378 $ 17,938,741 $ 305815519 $ 331,461,019

Total revenues as of June 30, 2023 increase by $17,133,558 over the previous fiscal year. Program
revenues for operations decreased by $103,146 over previous year, property revenues showed an
increase by $6,599,200 over previous year, other taxes showed an increase by $62,399 and state
share revenue showed an increase by $588,387 over previous year, investment income increase by
$10,359,471 over previous year, loss on capital assets of $305,024, from a gain of $67,729 in the
previous year.

Operating expenses as of June 30, 2023, increased by $24,020,325 over the same period in the
previous fiscal year.
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Financial Analysis of County of Lexington Funds

As noted earlier, the County of Lexington uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds - The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County. At June 30, 2023, total fund balance
in the general fund was $134,542,374, of which $54,837,035 is committed, $78,359,131 was
unassigned and $1,346,208 non-spendable. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, the total
fund balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out shows percentages of 73.8%. The fund
balance in general fund increased by $1,638,166 during the current fiscal year. This increase is a
result of decreases in capital purchases.

The Library special revenue fund has a total fund balance of $9,283,941, which reflects increase of
$605,846 over the prior year. The increase is the result decreases in operation and capital purchases.

The C fund special revenue fund has a total fund balance of $24,001,971, which reflects an increase
of $8,102,917 over the prior year. The increase is the result in operations in expenditures.

Proprietary funds - The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but with greater detail. At June 30, 2023, total net
position of the Red Bank Crossing amounted to $854,509 as compared to $811,739 at June 30, 2022.
Net changes are the result of a decreases in operating expenses.

Solid Waste System amounted to $8,755,839 as compared to $29,137,996 at June 30, 2022. Net
changes are the result of increase in revenues and an adjustment in post-closure care cost estimates
expense increase due to more capacity in the landfill, resulting in a decrease in net position.

Lexington County Airport at Pelion amounted to $8,328,393 as compared to $8,481,643 at June 30,
2022. Net changes are the results of decreases in revenues.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

A budget to actual statement is provided for the General Fund, Library Fund, and C Funds that are
major funds. Columns for both the original budget adopted for fiscal year 2023 as well as the final
budget are presented. Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were
relatively minor.

* Amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget
ordinance once exact information is available.

*Amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as
Federal and State grants.

*Increase in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.
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Even with these adjustments, actual general fund expenditures were $56,945,969 below final budget
amounts due to unspent capital items of $28,890,345 and saving in personnel and operations of
$28,055,624 that were appropriated. Revenues came in $1,117,687 greater than estimated. This is
due to decreases in property taxes of $1,424,116, fees permits and sales decreased by $962,637 and
other revenues increased by $280,273, increased in state share revenue of $73,337, county fines
decreased by $72,284, intergovernmental revenues decreased by $1,781,872, investment income
increased by $5,004,986 due to the increase in market interest rates.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets - County of Lexington investments in capital assets for its governmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2023 amount to $231,496,489 (net accumulated depreciation). The
investments in capital assets include land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment,

books, and infrastructure. The roads added during the current fiscal year are also included. Major
capital asset events in the fiscal year included the following:

* Ongoing projects to development of the industrial parks (Saxe Gotha Park, Batesburg/Leesville
Park, and Chapin Park) within Lexington County at an estimated cost of $11,158,757.

* Road widening and paving projects were continued at a project cost of $4,665,881 during the fiscal
year.

* West Region Service Center estimated cost $10,592,171, just now getting construction cost of

project.

* Tax Billing Collection System remaining cost of $3,089,999 to be finish fiscal year 23/24.

* Solid Waste Collection Station Renovations at Chapin estimated cost $1,175,000.

* Solid Waste Collection Station Renovations at Riverchase estimated cost $2,244,500.

* Solid Waste Collection Center Augusta Road estimated cost $1,500,000.

* Pelion Airport Runway 18 extension total estimated cost $2,800,000.

* Pelion Airport Taxi ‘A’ Rehabilitation extension total estimated cost $1,139,999.

* Pelion Airport Taxi ‘A’ Extension total estimated cost $79,000.
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Lexington County's Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Total

Governmental Business-type Percentage

Activities Activities Total Change

2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022-2023

Right of use lease,

net of amortization $ 239,982 $ 184,348 $ $ $ 239,982 $ 184,348 (23%)
Land 38,088,874 37,728,028 2,349,460 2,818,745 40,438,334 40,546,773 0%
Buildings 66,373,737 63,575,523 8,523,467 8,265,604 74,897,204 71,841,127 (4%)
Improvements 897,602 968,805 5,951,630 5,389,510 6,849,232 6,358,315 (7%)
Machinery and equipment 7,534,161 8,119,160 4,595,180 3,229,438 12,129,341 11,348,598 (6%)
Office furniture & equip. 5,692,987 5,884,385 5,360 2,309 5,698,347 5,886,694 3%
Vehicles 17,017,369 21,583,101 322,351 783,538 17,339,720 22,366,639 29%
Books 2,799,312 3,150,202 - - 2,799,312 3,150,202 13%
Infrastructure 57,178,110 58,499,038 - - 57,178,110 58,499,038 2%
Construction in progress 11,625,376 10,503,578 574,256 811,177 12,199,632 11,314,755 (7%)
Total $ 207,447510 $ 210,196,168 $ 22,321,704 $ 21,300,321 $ 229,769,214 $ 231,496,489 1%

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in note 7 & 8 on pages 100 - 102.

Long-term debt - At the end of the current fiscal year, the County of Lexington had total bonded
debt outstanding of $13,800,000. The full amount of outstanding debt is backed by the full faith and
of credit by the county.

South Carolina statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government may
issue (without referendum) to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within
that government’s boundaries. The County’s debt limit and debt margin were $125,730,966 and
$111,930,966 respectively in Table 16-A for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

Total
Governmental Business-type Percentage

Activities Activities Total Change
2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022-2023

General obligation bonds $ 17,225,000 $ 13,800,000 $ - $ - $ 17,225,000 $ 13,800,000 (20%)
Total $ 17,225,000 $ 13,800,000 $ - $ - $ 17,225,000 $ 13,800,000 (20%)

The County currently has ratings of AA+ by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors
Service on general obligation bond issues. As of June 30, 2023, the County’s general obligation debt
per capita approximated $44.79.

Additional information on the long-term debt can be found in note 11 on pages 104 - 106.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

* Unemployment rate for County of Lexington is currently 2.8% a year ago. This compares
favorable with the state’s rates.

* On the expenditure side, increases are expected in health insurance premiums, as well as
pension and other employee benefits costs.

These indices were taken into account when adopting the general budget for 2024. Amounts
available for appropriation and transfers in the general fund budget are nearly $182,532,088, a
decrease of $29,459,234 over the final 2023 budget of $211,991,322. Property taxes (benefiting from
increases in assessed valuations and increase in millage) are expected to lead to increases. The
County will use these increases to finance programs along with the use of the unassigned fund
balance.

Budgeted expenditures are expected to rise over the actual 2023 expenditures.

As for the County’s business-type activities, rates increase by the CPI each year for Red Bank
Crossing (rental), Solid Waste System and the Lexington County Airport at Pelion.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general
overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact
Randolph C. Poston, County of Lexington Chief Financial Officer, 212 South Lake Drive,
Lexington, South Carolina 29072.
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Basic Financial Statements
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Exhibit 1

Page 1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 88,028,466 8,860,783 $ 96,889,249
Investments 196,837,944 18,816,751 215,654,695
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectibles):
Property taxes 6,956,548 644,221 7,600,769
Accounts 13,907,480 271,390 14,178,870
Lease 44,329,881 191,093 44,520,974
Due from other governments:
State shared revenue 2,808,791 48,801 2,857,592
State and federal grants 3,392,916 1,500 3,394,416
Other 157,020 77,568 234,588
Interfund receivable 97,208 97,208
Internal balances 66,130 (66,130) -
Inventory 1,346,208 30,134 1,376,342
Total current assets 357,928,592 28,876,111 386,804,703
Capital assets:
Right of use lease, net of accumlated amortization 184,348 - 184,348
Land 37,728,028 2,818,745 40,546,773
Buildings 113,830,542 11,013,903 124,844,445
Improvements other than buildings 3,472,539 11,858,473 15,331,012
Machinery and equipment 30,712,397 9,374,983 40,087,380
Office furniture and equipment 17,175,846 20,227 17,196,073
Vehicles 58,659,605 2,290,590 60,950,195
Books 3,150,202 - 3,150,202
Infrastructure assets 304,978,040 - 304,978,040
Construction in process 10,503,578 811,177 11,314,755
Accumulated depreciation (370,198,957) (16,887,777) (387,086,734)
Total capital assets net of depreciation 210,196,168 21,300,321 231,496,489
Total assets 568,124,760 50,176,432 618,301,192
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred opeb outflows 4,944,182 - 4,944,182
Deferred pension outflows 49,997,194 856,742 50,853,936
Deferred change on refunding outflows 1,167 - 1,167
Total deferred outflows of resources 54,942,543 856,742 55,799,285
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 623,067,303 51,033,174 $ 674,100,477

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 1

Page 2
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
payables $ 16,236,099 $ 1,123,735 17,359,834
Retainage payable 57,288 - 57,288
Customer deposits payable - 4,900 4,900
Due to other governments 656,352 - 656,352
Compensated absences 2,596,232 49,584 2,645,816
Interfund payable 97,208 97,208
Unearned revenue 29,249,972 22,481 29,272,453
Bonds (due within one year) 3,680,000 - 3,680,000
Lease liability 41,479 - 41,479
Total current liabilities 52,614,630 1,200,700 53,815,330
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences due beyond a year 2,597,977 49,583 2,647,560
Closure/post-closure care cost - 28,146,625 28,146,625
Bonds (amounts due beyond one year) 10,120,000 - 10,120,000
Lease liability 147,060 - 147,060
Net opeb liability 9,545,914 - 9,545,914
Net pension liability 151,377,080 2,902,807 154,279,887
Total noncurrent liabilities 173,788,031 31,099,015 204,887,046
Total liabilities 226,402,661 32,299,715 258,702,376
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred change on refunding inflows 254,927 - 254,927
Deferred pension inflows 34,992,235 606,939 35,599,174
Deferred lease inflows 44,079,752 187,779 44,267,531
Deferred opeb inflows 3,815,450 - 3,815,450
Total deferred inflows of resources 83,142,364 794,718 83,937,082
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 309,545,025 33,094,433 342,639,458
NET POSITIONS
Net investment in capital assets 195,953,869 21,300,321 217,254,190
Restricted for:
Debt service 780,641 - 780,641
Capital projects 23,845,529 - 23,845,529
Solid waste - state tire fund - 88,927 88,927
Unrestricted 92,942,239 (3,450,507) 89,491,732
Total net position $ 313,522,278 $ 17,938,741 331,461,019

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 3
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

Nonmajor Total
American Rescue Governmental Governmental
General Library "C" Funds Plan (SLFRP) Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 43990879 $ 1,752,241 $ 4,520,394 $ 17,483,371 $ 15526,865 $ 83,273,750
Investments 85,807,762 7,819,328 19,748,389 9,800,000 38,218,285 161,393,764
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectibles):
Property taxes 6,140,411 502,951 313,186 6,956,548
Accounts 12,112,060 171 1,500,675 13,612,906
Due from other governments:
Federal 21,006 1,864 1,212,449 1,235,319
State 449,195 1,708,402 2,157,597
State share revenue 2,808,791 2,808,791
Other 142,662 14,358 157,020
Due from other funds 119,783 2,019 40,139 161,941
Interfund receivables 653,467 25,000 678,467
Inventory 1,346,208 1,346,208
Total assets $ 153,143,029 $ 10,078,574 $ 24,717,978 $ 27,283,371 $ 58,559,359 §$ 273,782,311
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued
payables $ 10,472,352 $ 348,067 $ 658,719 $ 165,442 $ 2,847,151 $ 14,491,731
Retainage payable 57,288 57,288
Due to other governments 656,352 656,352
Due to other funds 35,455 5,356 55,390 96,201
Interfund payable 581,259 581,259
Unearned revenue 2,090,000 27,117,929 42,043 29,249,972
Total liabilities 13,254,159 353,423 716,007 27,283,371 3,525,843 45,132,803
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 5,346,496 441,210 239,350 6,027,056
Total deferred inflows of resources 5,346,496 441,210 - - 239,350 6,027,056
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 1,346,208 1,346,208
Restricted 780,641 780,641
Assigned 9,283,941 24,001,971 - 33,285,912
Committed 54,837,035 54,183,586 109,020,621
Unassigned 78,359,131 (170,061) 78,189,070
Total fund balance 134,542,374 9,283,941 24,001,971 - 54,794,166 222,622,452
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and
fund balance $ 153,143,029 $ 10078574 $ 24,717978 $ 27,283,371 $ 58559359 $ 273,782,311

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit 4

Total fund balances - Governmental funds

Amount reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of: (includes Internal Service Fund)

Land $ 37,728,028
Buildings and other structures 113,830,542
Improvements other than buildings 3,472,539
Machine and equipment 30,712,397
Office furniture and equipment 17,175,846
Vehicles 58,659,605
Books 3,150,202
Infrastructure assets 304,978,040
Construction in progress 10,503,578
Right of use Assets, net of accumlated amortization 184,348
Accumulated depreciation (370,198,957)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore,
are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds:

Property taxes
Right of lease receivable

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such

as insurance, workers compensation, risk management, and motor pool, to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net position.

Long-term bonded debt and some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of: (includes Internal Service Fund)

General obligation debt (13,800,000)
Lease liability (188,539)
Deferred outflows - charge on bond refunding 1,167
Deferred inflows - charge on bond refunding (254,927)
OPEB liability (9,545,914)
Pension liability (151,377,080)
Deferred outflows - pension 49,997,194
Deferred inflows - pension (34,992,235)
Deferred outflows - opeb 4,944,182
Deferred inflows - opeb (3,815,450)
Deferred inflows - lease (44,079,752)
Compensated absences (5,194,209)

$ 222,622,452

210,196,168

6,027,056

44,329,881

38,652,284

(208,305,563)

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit 5

Revenues:
Property taxes
State shared revenues
Fees, permits, and sales
County fines
Intergovernmental revenues
Interest (net of increase (decrease))
in the fair value of investments
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General administrative
General services
Public works
Public safety
Judicial
Law enforcement
Boards & commissions
Health and human services
Library
Community development
Economic develpoment
Capital outlay:
General administrative
General services
Public works
Public safety
Judicial
Law enforcement
Boards & commissions
Health and human services
Library
Community development
Economic develpoment
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of land
State grant
Miscellaneous revenue
Transfer in
Transfer out

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Nonmajor Total

American Rescue Governmental Governmental

General Library "C" Funds Plan (SLFRP) Funds Funds
$ 116,986,839 $ 9,259,011 $ $ $ 5,797,136 $ 132,042,986
12,006,699 661,694 1,424,016 14,092,409
25,132,422 24,202 4,332,387 29,489,011
1,664,587 81,093 309,201 2,054,881
4,049,057 43,388 16,548,780 6,796,875 13,893,169 41,331,269
5,829,186 314,003 775,405 1,718,978 8,637,572
607,425 1,221 3,153 241,195 852,994
166,276,215 10,384,612 17,327,338 6,796,875 27,716,082 228,501,122
15,936,635 42,172 1,155,601 2,360,318 19,494,726
3,739,896 154,120 3,894,016
9,773,890 9,208,099 433,144 19,415,133
44,322,881 2,618,870 1,837,734 48,779,485
11,836,469 541,787 3,875,254 16,253,510
49,134,940 1,416,833 5,521,775 56,073,548
1,336,091 26,828 1,362,919
1,735,868 40,458 1,618,509 3,394,835
8,194,822 382,395 8,577,217

26,839 5,525,999 5,552,838

1,836,440 1,836,440

1,447,239 305,243 1,752,482
458,494 458,494
2,055,382 44,640 2,100,022
7,744,438 471,597 8,216,035
430,934 22,195 453,129
4,917,159 695,702 5,612,861
117,561 117,561
57,476 57,476
1,583,944 1,583,944

8,151 8,151

1,879,565 1,879,565

3,425,000 3,425,000

690,742 690,742

1,315 1,315

155,045,353 9,778,766 9,250,271 6,796,875 30,120,179 210,991,444
11,230,862 605,846 8,077,067 - (2,404,097) 17,509,678
3,152,599 3,152,599

436,875 436,875

12,210,000 12,210,000

17,708,204 4,629 31,906 10,362,806 28,107,545
(27,300,900) (4,629) (6,056) (820,960) (28,132,545)
(9,592,696) - 25,850 - 25,341,320 15,774,474
1,638,166 605,846 8,102,917 - 22,937,223 33,284,152
132,904,208 8,678,095 15,899,054 31,856,943 189,338,300
$ 134,542,374 $ 9,283,941 $ 24,001,971 $ - $ 54,794,166 $ 222,622,452

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 6
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Net change in fund balances - total government funds $ 33,284,152

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because: (excludes Internal Service Fund)

Capital outlay $ 23,001,756
Amortization expense (55,634)
Depreciation expense (17,224,560) 5,721,562

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide resources an not reported
as revenues in the fund 344,751

The proceeds from the disposal of capital assets are reported as revenues in the governmental
funds. The cost of the capital assets are removed from the capital assets account on the
statement of net position and is offset against the proceeds from the sale of capital assets
resulting in gain or loss on disposal of capital assets on the statement of activities

Loss on disposal of capital assets (2,958,170)

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after County's
fiscal year ends, they are not considers as "available"” revenues in the governmental funds

Property taxes (155,376)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as insurance, workers compensation, risk management, and
motor pool to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal
service funds is reported with governmental activities. 811,153

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds. But the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement
of net position. In the current year, these amounts consisted of:

Bond principal retirement 3,425,000
Lease liabilities 53,179

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

Interest and fiscal charges 159,786

Change in compensated absences (378,060)

Change in net opeb liability 670,047

Change in net pension liability 5,160,115 5,611,888
Change in net position of government activities $ 46,138,137

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

Exhibit 7
Page 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenues:

Property taxes

State shared revenues

Fees, permits, and sales

County fines

Intergovernmental revenues

Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the fair value
of investments)

Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General administrative
General services

Public works

Public safety

Judicial

Law enforcement
Boards and commissions
Health and human

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer in

Transfer out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 117,932,345 $ 118,410,955 $ 116,986,839 $ (1,424,116)
11,933,361 11,933,362 12,006,699 73,337
25,940,544 26,095,059 25,132,422 (962,637)
1,736,871 1,736,871 1,664,587 (72,284)
4,617,430 5,830,929 4,049,057 (1,781,872)
824,200 824,200 5,829,186 5,004,986
185,045 327,152 607,425 280,273
163,169,796 165,158,528 166,276,215 1,117,687
20,889,178 47,673,446 17,383,874 30,289,572
4,498,018 4,855,372 4,198,390 656,982
12,712,603 14,757,177 11,829,272 2,927,905
50,396,078 62,043,049 52,067,319 9,975,730
12,936,484 12,723,551 12,267,403 456,148
57,831,828 66,615,795 54,052,099 12,563,696
1,325,919 1,536,680 1,453,652 83,028
1,865,737 1,786,252 1,793,344 (7,092)
162,455,845 211,991,322 155,045,353 56,945,969
713,951 (46,832,794) 11,230,862 58,063,656
443,763 446,712 17,708,204 17,261,492
(4,312,091) (18,406,188) (27,300,900) (8,894,712)
(3,868,328) (17,959,476) (9,592,696) 8,366,780
(3,154,377) (64,792,270) 1,638,166 66,430,436

132,904,208 132,904,208 132,904,208 -
$ 129,749,831 $  68,111938 $ 134,542,374 $ 66,430,436

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

LIBRARY FUND

Exhibit 7
Page 2

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenues:

Property taxes

State shared revenues

Fees, permits, and sales

County fines

Intergovernmental revenue

Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the fair value
of investments)

Other revenues

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in
Transfer out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing

sources over (under) expenditures and other
financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 9,300,930 $ 9,300,930 $ 9,259,011 $ (41,919)
587,982 661,694 661,694 -
35,377 35,377 24,202 (11,175)
52,258 52,258 81,093 28,835
1,368 46,394 43,388 (3,006)
21,416 21,416 314,003 292,587
1,100 1,100 1,221 121
10,000,431 10,119,169 10,384,612 265,443
7,211,976 7,211,976 6,831,607 380,369
1,557,924 2,570,925 1,363,215 1,207,710
1,230,531 3,264,917 1,583,944 1,680,973
10,000,431 13,047,818 9,778,766 3,269,052
- (2,928,649) 605,846 3,534,495
4,629 4,629 -
(4,629) (4,629) -
- (2,928,649) 605,846 3,534,495
8,678,095 8,678,095 8,678,095 -
$ 8,678,095 $ 5,749,446 $ 9,283,941 $ 3,534,495

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 7
Page 3
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
'C' FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenues $ 6,193,150 $ 17,377,707 $ 16,548,780 $ (828,927)
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the fair value
of investments) 75,000 75,000 775,405 700,405
Other 1,400 3,153 1,753
Total revenues 6,268,150 17,454,107 17,327,338 (126,769)
Expenditures:
General administrative
Personnel 20,196 20,196 16,167 4,029
Operating 20,161 82,891 26,005 56,886
Capital outlay 8,500 15,588 15,588
Public works
Personnel 135,409 135,409 57,096 78,313
Operating 6,115,242 37,492,093 9,151,003 28,341,090
Total expenditures 6,299,508 37,746,177 9,250,271 28,495,906
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (31,358) (20,292,070) 8,077,067 (28,369,137)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 25,850 31,906 31,906 -
Transfer out (6,056) (6,056) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 25,850 25,850 25,850 -
Excess of revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and uses (5,508) (20,266,220) 8,102,917 (28,369,137)
Fund balance, beginning of year 15,899,054 15,899,054 15,899,054 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 15,893,546 $ (4,367,166) $ 24,001,971 $ (28,369,137)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (SLFRP)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit 7
Page 4

Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General administrative
General services
Public works
Public safety
Judicial
Law enforcement
Boards & commissions
Health and human services
Library
Community development
Non-departmental

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ $ 6,796,875 $ 6,796,875
- - 6,796,875 6,796,875
1,155,601 1,155,601 0
154,120 154,120 0
433,144 433,144 0
9,712,421 2,618,870 (7,093,551)
541,787 541,787 0
1,416,833 1,416,833 0
26,828 26,828 0
40,458 40,458 0
382,395 382,395 0
26,839 26,839 0
15,691,188 (15,691,188)
- 29,581,614 6,796,875 (15,691,188)
- (29,581,614) - (29,581,614)

(29,581,614)

(29,581,614)

$

(29,581,614) $

(29,581,614)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

66



Exhibit 8

Page 1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023
Business-type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Red Bank Solid Waste Pelion Service
Crossing Management Airport Total Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 98,046 $ 8,686,951 $ 75,786 $ 8,860,783 $ 4,754,716
Investments 421,130 15,075,295 3,320,326 18,816,751 35,444,180
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectable):
Property taxes 644,221 644,221
Accounts 1,079 269,803 508 271,390 294,574
Leases 191,093 191,093
Due from other funds 30,056 30,056 2,403
Due from state shared revenue 48,801 48,801
Due from other agencies 1,500 77,568 79,068
Inventory - aviation fuel 30,134 30,134
Total current assets 520,255 24,947,720 3,504,322 28,972,297 40,495,873
Non-current assets:
Capital assets
Land 2,628,629 190,116 2,818,745
Buildings 546,070 9,634,022 833,811 11,013,903
Improvements 51,345 5,423,833 6,383,295 11,858,473
Machinery and equipment 9,161,971 213,012 9,374,983
Office furniture and equipment 20,227 20,227
Vehicles 2,290,590 2,290,590 279,764
Construction in progress 172,510 638,667 811,177
Total capital assets 597,415 29,331,782 8,258,901 38,188,098 279,764
Less: accumulated depreciation (252,034) (13,207,972) (3,427,771) (16,887,777) (242,863)
Total non-current assets 345,381 16,123,810 4,831,130 21,300,321 36,901
Total assets 865,636 41,071,530 8,335,452 50,272,618 40,532,774
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred pension outflows 856,742 856,742 66,775

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 865,636 ¢ 41,928,272 § 8,335,452 ¢ 51,129,360 $ 40,599,549

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 8

Page 2
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023
Business-type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Red Bank Solid Waste Pelion Service
Crossing Management Airport Total Funds
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable 6,227 $ 1,073,556 $ 5,684 1,085,467 $ 558,996
Accrued salaries 28,775 28,775 1,964
Compensated absences 49,584 49,584 1,746
Accrued payroll fringes 9,190 9,190 567
Accrued sales tax 21 282 303
Unearned revenue 21,388 1,093 22,481
Insurance claims due - 1,182,841
Due to other funds 96,186 96,186 2,013
Customer deposits payable 4,900 4,900
Interfund payable - 97,208
Total current liabilities (payable from current assets) 11,127 1,278,700 7,059 1,296,886 1,845,335
Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences due beyond a year 49,583 49,583
Closure/post-closure care cost payable 28,146,625 28,146,625
Net pension liability 2,902,807 2,902,807 361,578
Total non-current liabilities - 31,099,015 - 31,099,015 361,578
Total liabilities 11,127 32,377,715 7,059 32,395,901 2,206,913
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension inflows 606,939 606,939 28,433
Deferred lease inflows 187,779 187,779
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 11,127 33,172,433 7,059 33,190,619 2,235,346
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 345,381 16,123,810 4,831,130 21,300,321 36,901
Restricted per state mandate (tires) 88,927 88,927
Unrestricted 509,128 (7,456,898) 3,497,263 (3,450,507) 38,327,302
Total net position 854,509 $ 8,755,839 $ 8,328,393 17,938,741 $ 38,364,203

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 9
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Business-type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Red Bank Solid Waste Pelion Service
Crossing Management Airport Total Funds
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 103,685 $ 6,643,902 $ 133,293  $ 6,880,880 $ 22,651
Employer contributions - 17,362,046
Employee contributions - 3,758,222
Other premiums and reimbursements - 2,380,129
Total operating revenues 103,685 6,643,902 133,293 6,880,880 23,523,048
Operating expenses:
Personnel 2,371,022 2,371,022 103,267
Operating 57,851 35,241,838 122,477 35,422,166 23,873,559
Depreciation 19,677 1,791,853 430,614 2,242,144 14,733
Total operating expenses 77,528 39,404,713 553,091 40,035,332 23,991,559
Operating income (loss) 26,157 (32,760,811) (419,798) (33,154,452) (468,511)
Non-operating revenues:
Property taxes 11,755,347 11,755,347
Local government - tires 178,802 178,802
DHEC/SW management grants 22,017 22,017
Miscellaneous revenue 18,795 32,000 50,795
Interest income (Net of increase (decrease)
in the fair value of investments) 16,613 708,953 131,980 857,546 1,279,664
Over/Short (236) (236)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of capital assets (305,024) (305,024)

Total nonoperating revenues : 16,613 12,378,654 163,980 12,559,247 1,279,664
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 42,770 (20,382,157) (255,818) (20,595,205) 811,153
Capital contributions 77,568 77,568
Transfers in 150,000 25,000 175,000 158,071
Transfers out (150,000) (150,000) (158,071)

Total transfers - - 102,568 102,568 -
Change in net position 42,770 (20,382,157) (153,250) (20,492,637) 811,153
Net position, beginning of year 811,739 29,137,996 8,481,643 38,431,378 37,553,050
Net position, end of year $ 854,509 $ 8,755,839 $ 8328393 $ 17,938,741 $ 38,364,203

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Page 1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Red Bank Solid Waste Pelion Service
Crossing Management Airport Total Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users $ 102,606 $ 6,599,948 $ 132,785 $ 6835339 $ 6,274,229
Cash received from interfund services provided & used - 17,581,290
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (114,985) (13,389,523) (158,476) (13,662,984) (25,118,379)
Cash payments to employees for services (2,429,657) (2,429,657)
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities (12,379) (9,219,232) (25,691) (9,257,302) (1,262,860)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from taxes 11,775,874 11,775,874
Operating grants received 36,032 36,032
Federal funds (FAA) received 152,388 152,388
State shared revenue 170,223 170,223
Miscellaneous revenue 3,045 3,045
Transfer in 25,000 25,000 158,071
Transfer out - (158,071)
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities: - 11,985,174 177,388 12,162,562 -
Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,907,348) (201,688) (2,109,036)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 583,250 583,250
Net cash (used) by capital and
related financing activities - (1,324,098) (201,688) (1,525,786) -
Cash flows from investing activities:
Receipt of interest (Net increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) 16,613 707,235 131,980 855,828 1,279,664
Sale of investments 198,937 198,937 -
Purchase of investments (16,613) (685,499) (151,981) (854,093) (4,422,293)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities - 220,673 (20,001) 200,672 (3,142,629)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (12,379) 1,662,517 (69,992) 1,580,146 (4,405,489)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 110,425 7,024,434 145,778 7,280,637 9,160,205
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ 98,046 $ 8,686,951 $ 75786 $ 8,860,783 $ 4,754,716

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 10

Page 2
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Red Bank Solid Waste Pelion Service
Crossing Management Airport Total Funds
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 26,157 $ (32,760,811) $ (419,798) $ (33,154,452) $ (468,511)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 19,677 1,791,853 430,614 2,242,144 14,733
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (1,079) (13,898) (508) (15,485) 235,942
(Increase) decrease in pension outflow (205,692) (205,692) (8,199)
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries/fringes 13,251 13,251
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 214,317 214,317 8,617
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (30,056) (30,056) (679)
(Increase) decrease in inventory 11,619 11,619
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (57,134) (849,687) (47,374) (954,195) (11,530)
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (9,015) (244) (9,259)
Increase (decrease) in insurance claims due - (1,127,934)
Increase (decrease) in interfund payable - 97,208
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 62,598 62,598 1,048
Increase (decrease) in pension inflow (89,076) (89,076) (3,555)
Increase (decrease) in accrued sales tax (55) (55)
Increase (decrease) in long term payables 22,657,039 22,657,039
Total adjustments (38,536) 23,541,579 394,107 23,897,150 (794,349)
Net cash (used) by operating activities $ (12,379) $ (9,219,232) $ (25,691) $ (9,257,302) $  (1,262,860)
Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Contributions of capital assets $ - 8 - 8 - 3 - $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit 11

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Property taxes receivable
Due from other government - agencies

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other - agencies
Due to taxing units

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted for individuals, organizations, and other governments

Total net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Custodial
Funds

40,673,584
300,194,489
30,009,196
1,079,735

371,957,004

301,269
340,409,709

340,710,978

31,246,026

$

31,246,026




COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit 12

ADDITIONS
Taxes
Fines and fees
Inmate funds collected

Interest (net of increase (decrease))
in fair market value of investments

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Taxes and fees to other governments
Finds and fees disbursed
Inmate funds disbursed
Public defender's funds disbursed

Total deductions

Change in fiduciary net position

Net position, beginning of year,

Net position, end of year
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$

Totals

1,700,462,456
43,530,703
1,402,672

13,315,947

1,758,711,778

1,713,118,444
38,563,958
1,358,482
48,931

1,753,089,815

5,621,963

25,624,063

31,246,026




County of Lexington, South Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the County of Lexington, South Carolina have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government
units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

A. Reporting Entity

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements represents
the County of Lexington (the primary government) and its potential component units. The
primary government includes all funds and entities for which the County is considered to be
financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the government's operations and so data from these units are combined with
data of the primary government. Each discretely presented component unit, on the other hand,
is reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize it is legally
separate from the government.

Excluded from the reporting entity:
Lexington County Recreation District and Irmo/Chapin Recreation District

Both recreation districts provide services and recreational facilities for the County citizens
within special service districts chartered by the South Carolina Legislature. The County
Legislative Delegation appoints the members of the two boards who govern their respective
district activities. The boards approve contracts, designate management, hold title to all assets,
select their own independent auditors, and determine the use of the facilities. Although the
County Council reviews the annual budgets for each recreation district, they have no
responsibility for any funding deficits nor do they control the disposition of surplus funds. The
County has no involvement in the fiscal management of either commission. The County
Council does approve the property tax levy for their general operating budgets and/or bonded
debt; however state statute establishes a minimum tax levy. Also, a material amount of
operating revenues is in the form of user fees and state and federal grants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Lexington Medical Center

The Lexington Medical Center is a hospital complex established on land titled to Lexington
County. The Hospital provides medical services to the County's residents as well as persons
outside the geographic boundaries of the County. A twenty-one member Health Services Board
designates management of the Hospital; twenty members of this board are appointed by the
Lexington County council. The board independently reviews, approves, and revises the
Hospital's budget and the board has the sole responsibility for financing deficits and operating
deficiencies, and for disposition of surplus funds. The board designates management, selects its
own auditors, and exercises control over use of facilities and determination of services provided.
The Hospital's operations are financed through user fees, state and federal funds. The County
has no control or involvement in the Hospital's fiscal management. The land is a part of the
reporting entity.

Richland/Lexington Riverbanks Park, Columbia Metropolitan Airport, Midlands
Technical College and Lexington School Districts One, Two, Three, Four, and Five

These potential component units have separate elected or appointed boards and provide services
for the County citizens as well as the general public. These potential component units are
excluded from the County's reporting entity because the County does not have the ability to
exercise influence over their daily operations, approve budgets, or designate management.
Conversely, these boards are responsible for funding deficits, have control over the use of
surplus funds, determine user fees, hold title to all assets, select their own independent auditors,
sign contracts as the contracting authority, and exercise control over use of facilities and
determination of services provided. The County Treasurer collects taxes for these units as
represented in the County's agency funds, although a substantial portion of their revenue is
federal and state funds and user fees.

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting
Measurement Focus

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide statements, consisting of net position and the statement of activities
display information about the County as a whole. These statements include the financial
activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from the statements that distinguish between those
activities of the county that are governmental and those that are considered business-type
activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
significantly on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment.

Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The fund financial statements are, in substance, very similar to the financial statements
presented in the previous financial reporting model. Emphasis here is on the major funds in
either the governmental or business-type categories. Non-major funds are summarized into a
single column. The County reports the following major governmental funds: General Fund,
Library Fund, “C” Funds, American Rescue Plan, and for the Business Type Activities are Red
Bank Crossing Rental Properties, Solid Waste Funds and the Lexington County Airport at
Pelion.

Internal service funds of a government are presented, in summary form, as part of the
proprietary fund financial statements. Since the principal users of the internal services are the
County’s governmental activities, financial statements of internal service funds are consolidated
into the governmental column when presented at the government-wide level. The cost of these
services is allocated to the appropriate functional activity. When appropriate, surplus or deficits
in the internal service funds are allocated back to the various users within the entity-wide
Statement of Activities.

The County’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statement by type. Since, by
definition, these assets are being held for the benefit of third parties and cannot be used to
address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the
government-wide statements.

The focus of the entity-wide financial statements under the new reporting model is to present
the County as a whole. The focus of the Fund Financial Statements is on the major individual
funds of the governmental and business-type categories, as well as the fiduciary funds.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the County at this
more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on
major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. Internal service funds are combined and the totals
are presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund statements. Fiduciary funds
are reported by type.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Fund Accounting

The County uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a
fiscal and accounting entity with a self balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of
funds: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for the government's general government activities.
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when they are "measurable and available™). "Measurable" means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and "available™ means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all
revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-term debt
which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments
which are recognized when obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest and special assessments are susceptible to
accrual. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year end on behalf of the government are
also recognized as revenue. Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when
cash is received by the government and are recognized as revenue at that time. Entitlement and
shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures
have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and
“available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenue also arises when
resources are received by the County before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant money is
received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both
revenue recognition criteria are met or when the County has a legal claim to the resources, the
liability for the unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

77



Notes to the Financial Statements

The County reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources

of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds — Library. This fund is used to account for the operations of the libraries
and related activities.

Special Revenue Funds — ““C” Funds. This fund is used to account for the operations of road
paving and repairs and other related activities.

Special Revenue Funds — American Rescue Plan. This fund is used to account for the response
or mitigate the public health emergency related to the Covid-19 emergency and other related
activities.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in
financial position and cash flows. They are accounted for on the flow of economic resources
measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, accrual basis
of accounting is utilized, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund type operating statements present
increases (i.e. revenue) and decreases (i.e. expenses) in net positions by distinguishing
operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund’s ongoing operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and
internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on all capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business or where the board has decided that the determination of
revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management
accountability. The County maintains three Enterprise Funds which provides rental service,
solid waste service and the airport at Pelion.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:
Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or
agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The

County’s internal service funds report on self-insurance programs, worker’s compensation,
risk management, and motor pool services.

Fiduciary Funds

GAAP states that fiduciary funds should be used “to report assets held in a trustee or agency
capacity for others and which therefore cannot be used to support the government’s own
programs. Fiduciary funds include pension and other employee benefit trust funds, investment
trust funds, private-purpose trust funds and custodial funds. The key distinction between trust
funds and custodial funds is that trust funds normally are subject to a “trust agreement that
affects the degree of management involvement and the length of time that the resources are
held.”

Custodial funds are used to account for situations where the government’s role is simply
custodial, such as the receipts, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to
individuals, private organizations or other governments. The County uses custodial funds to
account for taxes collected on behalf of other governmental units. It is common practice for
separately levied taxes to be billed and collected by a single government when multiple local
governments have the power to levy taxes on the same property. Property taxes are collected,
temporarily retained and distributed by the County Treasurer in accordance with Acts of the
General Assembly of South Carolina. Each governmental unit for which an custodial fund is
maintained is administered by a governing body independent of the County Council. The
County’s only fiduciary funds are custodial funds for taxing units and escrow funds for
respective programs. Fiduciary funds are omitted from the County’s government-wide
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Measurement Focus
Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the County are
included on the Statement of Net Position.

Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus, and only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on
the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
reports on the sources and uses of current financial resources. This approach differs from the
manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are
prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include reconciliations with brief
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and
the statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow
of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statement of net positions. The statement of
changes in fund net positions presents increases and decreases in net positions. The statement
of cash flows provides information about how the County finances and meets the cash flow
needs of its proprietary activities.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are reported in the financial records on the
financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual
basis accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the
accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a
modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are
measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within
the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlement and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitlement and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year
when use is first permitted, matching requirements in which the County must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the
resources are provided to the County on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both

measurable and available at year-end: delinquent taxes, grants, interest, fees and charges for
services.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied. Grants received before eligibility requirements are met are recorded as
unearned revenue. In governmental fund financial statements reports unavailable revenues as
deferred inflows of resources rather than as unearned revenue, receivables that will not be
collected within the available period are reported as unearned revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, other receivables that will not be collected within
the available period have been reported as unearned revenue.
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Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of
cost, such as depreciation are not recognized in the governmental funds.

C. Cash and Investments (see note 3)

The county's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. All short-term cash surpluses are maintained in a cash and investment pool and
allocated to each fund based on month-end deposit and investment balances.

South Carolina statutes authorize Lexington County to invest in obligations of the U.S.
Government and agencies thereof, general obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of
its political subdivisions, banks and savings and loan associations to the extent they are
secured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The County can also hold cash in
certificates of deposit where the certificates are collaterally secured by the preceding securities
held in a third party arrangement.

Investments are stated at amortized cost or fair value. It is the policy of the County to hold
investments to maturity. The following investments are reported at fair value: participating
interest-earning investments contracts that have a remaining maturity at time of acquisition of
more than one year; and debt securities. The investments in the 2a-7-like external investment
pool are determined by the pool’s share price, which is the same as the value of the pool.
Money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a
remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized cost.

The County invests through the SC Local Government Investment Pool, which was
established by the State Treasurer pursuant to South Carolina law. The pool is a 2a-7-like pool
that is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment
company. The pool has a formal policy that it will operate in a manner consistent with the
SEC’s Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The pool is included as an
investment trust fund in the State of South Carolina Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
and is subject to the audit procedures of the State Auditor.
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D. Inventories and Prepaid Items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.
Certain payments to venders reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

E. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for
their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet, because their use is
limited by applicable bond covenants. The "revenue bond construction” account is used to
report those proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction.
The "revenue bond current debt service" account is used to segregate resources accumulated
for debt service payments over the next twelve months. The "revenue bond future debt
service™ account is used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies
in the revenue bond current debt service account. The "revenue bond renewal and
replacement” account is used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies or
to fund asset renewals and replacements.

F. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported
in the governmental-wide statements and applicable proprietary fund financial statements.
Capital assets that are used for governmental activities are only capitalized in the government-
wide statements and fully expended in the government funds. The County has established
capitalization thresholds for capital assets of $2,500. Capital assets are stated at acquisition
cost or, if donated, at estimated acquisition value at the time of donation. In some instances,
capital asset historical costs were not available; therefore, the costs of these assets at the dates
of acquisitions have been estimated. Expenditures materially extending the life of capital
assets are capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated over their useful life, using the straight-
line depreciation method.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable.

Public domain (“infrastructure™) capital assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters,
streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, sewer systems, and lighting systems are capitalized.
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Depreciation of buildings, equipment and vehicles in the proprietary fund types are computed
using the straight-line method. A summary of the estimated useful lives is as follows:

Buildings 20 to 50 years
Vehicles 410 5 years

Furniture and Equipment 7 to 15 years
Machinery and Equipment 3 to 20 years
Infrastructure 10 to 50 years

G. Compensated Absences

County employees earn annual leave, based upon years of service, at the rates of 10, 15, or 20
days per year with the maximum accumulation being 45 days. Further, under no
circumstances will employees be paid in excess of their maximum authorized accumulation in
the case of termination.

Vested or accumulated vacation leave is not accrued in governmental funds as Lexington
County intends to fund such costs from future operations, i.e. from assets not representing
expendable available resources at year end. Based on a last-in, first-out (LIFO) flow
assumption for the use of compensated absences, amounts of vested or accumulated vacation
leave are reported in the government-wide statement. Vested or accumulated vacation leave of
proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits are
accrued. Inaccordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 43, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for non-vesting
accumulation rights to receive sick pay benefits.

H. Short-term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Governmental funds during the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between
individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are
classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet. Short-term
interfund loans are classified as "interfund receivables or payables". Within the government-
wide financial statement internal balances are eliminated along with the interfund receivables
and payables between funds.

I. Long-term Obligations

In the Government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligation are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds. Bond issuance costs are reported as expenses in the year the debt is issued.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued and premiums on the issue are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

J. Deferred outflows/inflows of revenues

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will also report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element. Deferred Outflows
of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to future periods and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.

In additional to liabilities, the statement of net assets will also report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future periods and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Deferred charge on current refunding on the 2013 bond
A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of the
refunded debt and its reacquisition price, this amount is deferred and amortized over the
shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

Deferred lease inflows from lease receipts are reported in the governmental-wide Statement of
Net Positions. The County reports deferred inflows from lease receipts, and amortized into the
lease revenue over the remaining life of the lease.

Pensions and Other Post-Employment Benefits

Pensions
For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and the South
Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS) and additions to/deductions from
SCRS and PORS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by SCRS or PORS. For this purpose, benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Therefore, benefits
and administrative expenses are recognized when due and payable. Investments are
reported at fair value.
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K. Net Position and Fund Balance

In the government-wide financial statements, the difference between the County’s total assets
and total liabilities represents net position. Net position for both governmental funds and
proprietary fund types displays three components — net investment in capital assets;
restricted(distinguished between major categories of restrictions); and unrestricted.
Unrestricted net position represent the net position available for future operations.

Net position flow assumption:

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position
and unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied.

Fund balance flow assumption:

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed,
assigned and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.
In governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. The “not in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be
converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid amounts. It also includes the long-
term amounts of loans and notes receivable, as well as property acquired for resale.

Restricted fund balance

The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are either restricted externally
by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or restricted
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the County’s highest level of
decision-making authority. The governing council is the highest level of decision-making
authority for the government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the
fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance
remains in place until a similar action is taken to remove or revise the limitation
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Assigned fund balance

The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the
County’s intent to be used for specific purposes but are not restricted or committed. The
authority for making an assignment is not required to be the County’s highest level of
decision-making authority and as such, the nature of the actions necessary to remove or
modify an assignment does not require the County’s highest level of authority. Assigned fund
balance amounts in the County’s financial statements represent amount approved by County
Council to be transferred and spent after year end. In the special revenue fund, assigned fund
balances represent amounts to be spent for specific purposes.

Unassigned fund balance

The unassigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are not reported as
nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned. The General Fund is the only fund that may
report a positive unassigned fund balance amount. However, in governmental funds, other
than the General Fund, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance if
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed
or assigned to those purposes.

L. Interfund Transactions

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide
statements are reported in the same manner as general revenues. Exchange transactions
between funds are reported as revenue in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in the
purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for
repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other
financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating revenues/expenses in
proprietary funds. On the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting, repayments from
funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them
are not presented on the financial statements.

M. Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying financial
statements in order to provide an understanding in the County's financial position and
operations. However, comparative data have not been presented in all statements because
their inclusion would make certain statements unduly complex and difficult to understand.
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N. Budgets

Budgets, which are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles, are annually appropriated for the general fund. The County has various special

revenue funds. The ones budgeted are shown below.

Library

“C” Funds

Drug Court

Victim Witness Program

Community Juvenile Arbitration
Solicitor’s Forfeiture Funds (Narcotics)
Solicitor’s State Funds

Pretrial Intervention

Worthless Check Unit

Alcohol Education Program

Broker Disclosure Penalty

Title IV-D DSS Process Server
Multi-Jurisdictional Narcotics Task Force
Emergency Solutions Grants

Violence Against Women Act

Victims of Crime Act

Violent Crime Reduction Unit Grant
Forfeiture Funds (Narcotics)

Inmate Services

School Resource Officer & Crossing Guard Ct.

Civil Process Server

Off Duty Program

Clerk of Court Title I\VV-D DSS Child Support
Urban Entitlement Community Development
Home Program

Emergency Solutions Grants

American Rescue Plan (SLFRP)
DHEC/EMS Grant-In-Aid

Economic Development
Accommodations Tax

Tourism Development Fee
Temporary Alcohol Beverage Licenses
Mini-bottle Tax

Indigent Care Program

Clerk of Court Professional Bond Fees
Emergency Telephone System E-911
Dominion Energy Support Fund
Public Defender

Victim’s Bill of Rights

Campus Parking

Personnel / Employee Committee
Delinquent Tax Collection

Grants Administration

Pass-Thru Grants

American Rescue Plan (SLFRP)

The Council has granted the County Administrator the authority to approve budgetary line
item transfers as needed throughout the year without regard to amount. Any supplemental
appropriations necessary throughout the year must be authorized by Council. All annual

appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
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Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting - under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation - is utilized in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end
are canceled; therefore these commitments must be re-appropriated in the subsequent year.

O. Capital Contributions

The County received donations of land, right of way, road and bridges and other
infrastructure. The County accounts for these contributions under GASB Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for NonExchange Transactions.

Note 2 - Legal Compliance

Budgets

All agencies of the County of Lexington submit requests for appropriation to the County's
administration so that a proposed budget may be formulated. The budget is prepared by fund,
function and activity, and includes information on the past year, current year estimates and
requested appropriations for the next fiscal year.

Before June 30, the proposed budget is presented to County Council for review. Council holds
three readings and a public hearing and may change or delete any budget recommendation
before they give final approval to the legal budget ordinance.

The County Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments or
between departments. Revisions that alter total expenditures of a fund must be approved by
County Councill.

Budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all funds
of the County; however, legal budgets are adopted only for General Fund and 45 Special
Revenue Funds listed under Note 1 section N. Budgets.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Individual Departments
Expenditures exceeded appropriations for the following departments for the fiscal year as

follows:
General Fund:
Social Services $ 8,896
Health Departmental $ 22,805
Vector Control $ 1,626

Special Revenue Fund:
MiniBottle Tax $ 395,155
Accommodation Tax $ 36,411
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The above expenditures were properly authorized, but were recognized too late within the fiscal
year to revise the budget ordinance.

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments

As of June 30, 2023, the County of Lexington had the following investments:

Weighted Average

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Years)
State Treasurer's investment pool $ 487,288,142 0.25
FHLB 13,920,801 0.58
FNMA 1,992,434 0.58
FHLMC 12,647,807 1.13
Total Fair Value $ 515,849,184

Interest rate risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the County manages its
exposure to declines in fair value by limiting the weighted average maturity of its
investment portfolio to short periods of time.

Credit risk. State Statute (SC Code Section 12-45-220) outlines acceptable investment
policy and limits the level of risk that may be accepted by a governmental entity. Lexington
County’s internal investment policy as documented by the County Treasurer’s office is
more restrictive than the prescribed state statute. Investments are limited to investments in
the State Treasurer’s investment pool, and / or investments in the debt securities of
Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE); also known as agency securities. The State
Treasurer’s investment pool is not rated, but generally, investments in the State Treasurer’s
investment pool are collateralized by debt securities in corporate obligations, state or
political subdivision obligations of investment grade or higher quality and in federal agency
securities. Investments in the debt securities of GSE’s, while authorized by congress are not
obligations of the US government, and therefore, are not guaranteed by the US
Government. These securities are issued by privately owned companies and carry AAA
ratings.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The concentration of credit risk is limited as regards to
investment in the State Treasurer’s investment pool via allocation of investments over a
broad range of securities. Similarly, investments in GSE debt securities are allocated across
multiple federal agencies including: the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
(FHLMC); the Governmental National Mortgage Association (GNMA).

90



Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 4 -

Custodial credit risk-deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a
bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be returned to it. It is the policy of the County
to obtain adequate collateralization on all deposits that exceed FDIC insurance coverage.
As of June 30, 2023, the county had cash-on hand of $2,900; and cash deposits in demand,
savings, money market and certificate of deposit accounts equal to $137,559,933. Of the
deposit amounts all the deposit amounts were covered by FDIC insurance or were properly
collateralized in accordance with state law.

Custodial credit risk-investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counter party, the government will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. As of June 30,
2023, all investments in agency securities, as noted above, are book entry and held by third
parties in the County’s name. All investments in the State Treasurer’s investment pool are
collateralized by underlying securities held by third party financial institutions for the
investment pool.

Property Taxation and Assessment

Effective November 30, 1977, Article X, Section 1 of the Constitution requires equal and
uniform assessments of property throughout the State for the following classes of property
and at the following ratios:

(1) Real and personal property owned by or leased to manufacturers, utilities and
mining operations and used in the conduct of such business - 10.5% of fair market value;

(2) Real and personal property owned by or leased to companies primarily engaged
in transportation for hire of persons or property and used in the conduct of such business -
9.5% of fair market value;

(3) Legal residence and not more than five contiguous acres - 4% of fair market
value (if the property owner makes proper application and qualifies);

(4) Agricultural real property used for such purposes owned by individuals and
certain corporations - 4% of use value (if the property owner makes proper application and
qualifies);

(5) Agricultural property and timberlands belonging to corporations having more
than 10 share-holders - 6% of use value (if property owner makes proper application and
qualifies);

(6) All other real property - 6% of fair market value;

(7) All other personal property - 10.5% of fair market value.
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Prior to the ratification of the present Article X of the Constitution, the General Assembly
of the State of South Carolina, during its 1975 session, enacted Act 208 which requires all

counties within the State to initiate an equalization program during calendar year 1975 to
insure that all taxable properties are assessed on a uniform basis and to insure that all
taxable properties are appraised at current market values. The property classification and
assessment ratios provided by Act 208 are similar to those contained in Article X. Prior to
the enactment of Act 208, there was little or no uniformity in the assessment of property in
South Carolina and the appraised value of taxable properties in many counties had become
outdated.

The County is required to reassess all property in 5 year cycles, beginning with the 2010
reassessment project with subsequent programs following in 2015, 2020, 2025, etc.
Following a complete reassessment, subsequent additions to the property tax roll must be
appraised based on the market value at the time of the last reassessment. The most recent
reassessment of all taxable property in the County was completed as of December 31, 2020.

South Carolina code of laws 12-37-251(E): “In the year of reassessment the millage rate for
all real and personal property must not exceed the rollback millage, except that the rollback
millage may be increased by the percentage increase in the consumer price index for the
year immediately preceding the year of reassessment.”

Rollback millage is calculated by dividing the prior year property tax revenue by the
adjusted total assessed value applicable in the values derived from a county wide
equalization and reassessment program are implemented. The amount of assessed value
must be adjusted by deducting assessment added for property or improvements not
previously taxed for new construction and for renovation of existing structures.

Act 208 provides that upon completion of the reassessment program, the increase in total ad
valorem taxes for any county or any other political subdivision of the State shall not exceed
1% of the prior year total ad valorem tax of such county or political subdivision if such
increase is caused by the reassessment program. The Act provides further, however, that the
counties and other political subdivisions of the State are not prohibited from increasing ad
valorem taxes as a result of assessments for property or improvements not previously taxed,
for new construction, nor are they prohibited from increasing the millage on all taxable
property for the purpose of providing increased or new services or for providing debt service
on future or then outstanding bonded indebtedness.
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The County Assessor maintains appraisals and assessments of real property and mobile
homes located within the County and certify the results to the County Auditor. The County
Auditor appraises and assesses all motor vehicles, marine equipment, business personal
property, and airplanes. The South Carolina Department of Revenue furnishes guides for use
by the County in the assessment of automobiles, automotive equipment, and certain other
classes of property and directly assesses the real and personal property of public utilities,
manufacturers, and business equipment.

Property taxes are levied on real and personal properties owned on the preceding December
31 of each County fiscal year ended June 30. Liens attach to the property at the time the
taxes are levied. These taxes are due without penalty through January 15. Penalties are added
to taxes depending on the date paid as follows:

January 16 through February 1 - 3% of tax
February 2 through March 16 - 10% of tax
March 17 and thereafter - 15% of tax plus collection cost

Current year real and personal taxes go into execution on March 17. The levy date for motor
vehicle taxes is the first day of the month in which the motor vehicle license expires. These
taxes are due by the last day of the same month. Property tax revenues are recognized when
due or past due and collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (defined
as sixty days) to pay liabilities of the current period. An allowance is provided for an
estimated amount of taxes billed which may ultimately prove to be un-collectible. Deferred
revenue (property taxes) for governmental funds represents that portion of delinquent
property taxes which is deemed not available to pay current expenditures.

Agency funds, however, are purely custodial in nature (i.e., assets equal liabilities) and thus
do not focus on the measurement of operations. Therefore, since agency funds have no
operations per se, no unavailable revenues (property taxes) are reported.

Property taxes receivable for the County of Lexington and the related allowance for un-
collectible accounts at June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Library Governmental
Special Special Debt Activities Business
General Revenue Revenue Service Sub Type
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Activities Total

Property taxes
receivable $ 7,665445 $ 625419 $§ 57,772 $ 324685 $ 8673321 $ 800,713 $ 9,474,034

Allowance for
uncollectible 1,525,034 122,468 10,688 58,583 1,716,773 156,492 1,873,265

Net property taxes
receivable  $§ 6,140,411 $ 502,951 $ 47,084 $ 266,102 $ 6,956,548 $ 644221 $ 7,600,769

In addition to the information above, Custodial total net property taxes receivable of
$30,009,196 are stated on Exhibit 11 page 72. Total of all property taxes receivable are
$37,609,965 for County of Lexington.
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The County's property tax recognition criteria define the "due date™ as the day before any
penalties arise from the non-payment of property taxes.

Note 5 — Interfund Receivables and Payable

Individual fund interfund assets/liabilities balances as of June 30, 2023, related to the primary

government were as follows:

A. Due To/ From Other Funds:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ASSET LIABILITY
Due from Due to

General $ 119,783 $ 35,455

Library 2,019 5,356

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 40,075 55,390

Capital Project Funds 64

Motor Pool 2,403 2,013
__ 164344 98,214_

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Solid Waste 30,056 96,186

TOTAL $ 194,400 $ 194,400

When goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenses occur, transactions are recorded and

payments between funds are made.

B. Interfund Receivable / Payable:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ASSET LIABILITY
Interfund Interfund
Receivable Payable
General $ 653,467 $ -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 25,000 581,259
Motor Pool - 97,208
TOTAL $ 678,467 $ 678,467

The County’s General Fund made advances of $678,467 to Non-major Governmental Funds and Motor Pool.
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Note 6 - Leases Receivable

The primary objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of information
about governments' leasing activities. This statement establishes a single model for lease accounting
based on the principle that leases are financings of the right-to-use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset,
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. For
additional information, refer to the disclosures below.

Governmental Activities:

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 1146 month lease as Lessor for the use of
Land - Lexington County. An initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of $44,846,495. As
of 06/30/2023, the value of the lease receivable is $44,154,697. The lessee is required to make
annual variable fixed in substance principal and interest payments of $1,200,000. The lease has an
interest rate of 2.425%. The Land estimated useful life was 0 months as of the contract
commencement. The value of the deferred inflow of resources as of 06/30/2023 was $43,907,302,
and Lexington County recognized lease revenue of $469,597 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 3
extension option(s), each for 180 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into a 152 month lease as Lessor for the use of
Building - 500 Charlie Rast Road. An initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of
$204,785. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the lease receivable is $175,184. The lessee is required to
make monthly fixed payments of $1,500. The lease has an interest rate of 1.733%. The Buildings
estimated useful life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. The value of the deferred
inflow of resources as of 06/30/2023 was $172,450, and Lexington County recognized lease revenue
of $16,167 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 2 extension option(s), each for 60 months.

Business Activities:

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into a 191 month lease as Lessor for the use of Land -
321 Landfill Driving Range. An initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of $214,744. As
of 06/30/2023, the value of the lease receivable is $191,093. The lessee is required to make monthly
fixed payments of $1,300. The lease has an interest rate of 1.942%. The Land estimated useful life
was 0 months as of the contract commencement. The value of the deferred inflow of resources as of
06/30/2023 was $187,779, and Lexington County recognized lease revenue of $13,482 during the
fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 120 months.
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Principal and Interest Expected to Maturity

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Principal Payments Interest Payments Total Payments
2024 $ 144,332 $ 1,073,668 $ 1,218,000
2025 147,730 1,070,270 1,218,000
2026 151,208 1,066,792 1,218,000
2027 154,769 1,063,231 1,218,000
2028 158,415 1,059,585 1,218,000

2029 - 2033 849,855 5,240,145 6,090,000

2034 - 2038 873,941 5,138,059 6,012,000

2039 - 2043 971,732 5,028,268 6,000,000

2044 - 2048 1,095,409 4,904,591 6,000,000

2049 - 2053 1,234,828 4,765,172 6,000,000

2054 - 2058 1,391,990 4,608,010 6,000,000

2059 - 2063 1,569,156 4,430,844 6,000,000

2064 - 2068 1,768,870 4,231,130 6,000,000

2069 - 2073 1,994,003 4,005,997 6,000,000

2074 - 2078 2,247,790 3,752,210 6,000,000

2079 - 2083 2,533,877 3,466,123 6,000,000

2084 - 2088 2,856,376 3,143,624 6,000,000

2089 - 2093 3,219,921 2,780,079 6,000,000

2094 - 2098 3,629,737 2,370,263 6,000,000

2099 - 2103 4,091,711 1,908,289 6,000,000

2104 - 2108 4,612,484 1,387,516 6,000,000

2109 - 2113 5,199,538 800,462 6,000,000

2114 - 2117 3,432,209 167,791 3,600,000

$44,329,881 $67,462,119 $111,792,000
Business-Type Activities

Fiscal Year Principal Payments Interest Payments Total Payments
2024 $ 11,995 $ 3,605 $ 15,600
2025 12,230 3,370 15,600
2026 12,470 3,130 15,600
2027 12,714 2,886 15,600
2028 12,964 2,636 15,600

2029 - 2033 68,729 9,271 78,000

2034 - 2038 59,991 2,409 62,400

$191,093 $ 27,307 $ 218,400
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Regulated Leases Receivable:

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 101. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $509. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$3,000 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 114. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $187. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$1,068 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 116. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $187. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$1,068 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 108. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $187. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$1,068 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 208. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $187. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$1,068 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 212. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $187. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$1,068 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.
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On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 216. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $187. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$1,068 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 301. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$990 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 302. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$990 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 304. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$990 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 305. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$990 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 306. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$990 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.
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On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 307. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$990 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 308. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$990 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 309. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$990 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into an 18 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the
use of Hangar - Unit No 310. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$0. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease revenue of
$990 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 1 extension option(s), each for 12 months.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into a 30 month Regulated lease as Lessor for the use
of Hangar - Unit No 303. As of 06/30/2023, the value of the expected future minimum receipts is
$1,041. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $174. The Buildings estimated
useful life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. Lexington County recognized lease
revenue of $1,980 during the fiscal year.

Future Minimum Expected Receipts until Maturity

Business-Type Activities
Fiscal Year Future Minimum Expected Receipts
2024 $990
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Note 7 - Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets, including internal fund capital assets, excluding assets
reflected in the proprietary funds, follows:

July 1, 2022 June 30, 2023
Balance Additions Deletions Transfer Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being
depreciated
Land $ 38,088,874 $ - $ 360,846 $ - 37,728,028
Construction in
progress 11,625,376 3,852,233 1,145,753 (3,828,278) 10,503,578
Books 2,799,312 1,019,572 668,682 - 3,150,202
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 52,513,562 4,871,805 2,175,281 (3,828,278) 51,381,808
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 113,733,123 97,419 - - 113,830,542
Improvements other
than buildings 3,284,877 187,662 - - 3,472,539
Machinery and
equipment 27,804,010 3,074,750 166,363 - 30,712,397
Office furniture and
equipment 16,197,788 1,621,353 643,295 - 17,175,846
Vehicles 51,298,846 8,992,688 1,631,929 - 58,659,605
Infrastructure 298,192,279 4,156,079 1,198,596 3,828,278 304,978,040
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 510,510,923 18,129,951 3,640,183 3,828,278 528,828,969
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings 47,359,386 2,895,633 - - 50,255,019
Improvements other
than buildings 2,387,275 116,459 - - 2,503,734
Machinery and
equipment 20,269,849 2,466,046 142,658 - 22,593,237
Office furniture and
equipment 10,504,801 1,423,355 636,695 - 11,291,461
Vehicles 34,281,477 4,191,222 1,396,195 - 37,076,504
Infrastructure 241,014,169 6,146,579 681,746 - 246,479,002
Total accumulated
depreciation 355,816,957 17,239,294 2,857,294 - 370,198,957
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 154,693,966 890,657 782,889 3,828,278 158,630,012
Governmental activity
capital assets, net $ 207,207,528 $ 5,762,462 $ 2,958,170 $ - 210,011,820

See Note 8 for information relative to right-to-use leased capital assets.
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A summary of proprietary fund type capital assets at June 30, 2023 follows:

Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not being
depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings

Improvements other
than buildings

Machinery and
equipment

Office furniture and
equipment

Vehicles

Total capital assets, being

depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Improvements other

than buildings
Machinery and
equipment
Office furniture and
equipment
Vehicles

Total accumulated

depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Business-type activity
capital assets, net

July 1, 2022 June 30, 2023
Balance Additions Deletions Transfers Balance
2,349,460 $ 469,285 $ - $ - 8% 2,818,745
574,256 269,198 32,277 - 811,177
2,923,716 738,483 32,277 - 3,629,922
10,963,203 50,700 - - 11,013,903
11,731,973 126,500 - 11,858,473
10,416,705 511,748 1,553,470 - 9,374,983
20,227 - - - 20,227
1,612,197 713,882 35,489 - 2,290,590
34,744,305 1,402,830 1,588,959 - 34,558,176
2,439,737 308,562 - 2,748,299
5,780,343 688,620 - 6,468,963
5,821,525 990,216 666,196 - 6,145,545
14,865 3,053 - 17,918
1,289,847 251,694 34,489 - 1,507,052
15,346,317 2,242,145 700,685 - 16,887,777
19,397,988 (839,315) 888,274 - 17,670,399
22,321,704 $ (100,832) $ 920,551 $ - 3 21,300,321

Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General Administration
General Services

Public Works
Public Safety
Judicial

Law Enforcement
Boards & Commissions

Health & Human Services

Library

Total depreciation expense governmental activities

101

$ 945,178
289,812
7,952,619
3,499,280
534,023
2,908,558
353,181
214,110
542,533

$ 17,239,294



Notes to the Financial Statements

Construction in progress is composed of the following at June 30, 2023:

Government Activities:
Industrial Parks

Tax Billing Collection System
West Region Service Center
Saxe Gotha SRS
Infrastructure - Roads

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:

Solid Waste:
Augusta Road Collection Center
Chapin Renovation
Riverchase Relocation

Pelion Airport:
Runway 18 Extension
Taxiway 'A' Rehabilitation
Taxiway 'A' Extension

Total Business-Type Activities

Note 8 - Leases

Total Project Cost

Cost to 06-30-23

Cost to Complete

4,708,257 4,216,353 491,904
3,089,999 1,943,980 1,146,019
10,592,171 351,964 10,240,207
6,450,500 112,000 6,338,500
4,665,881 3,879,281 786,600

$ 29,506,808 $ 10,503,578 $ 19,003,230
1,500,000 13,510 1,486,490
1,175,000 100,500 1,074,500
2,244,500 58,500 2,186,000
2,800,000 395,697 2,404,303
1,139,999 167,956 972,043

79,000 75,014 3,986

$ 8,938,499 $ 811,177 $ 8,127,322

A summary of lease asset activity for the County for the year ended June 30, 2023 is as follows:

July 1, 2022 June 30, 2023
Balance Additions Deletions Transfers Balance

Governmental Activities
Lease assets:

Buildings 179,728 $ - $ - $ $ 179,728

Equipment 98,442 - - 98,442
Total 278,170 - - 278,170
Less accumulated amortization for:

Buildings 35,946 35,946 - 71,892

Equipment 2,242 19,688 - 21,930
Total accumulated amortization 38,188 55,634 - 93,822
Total lease assets, net 239,982 $ 55,634 $ - $ $ 184,348
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Note 9 — Subscriptions

For the year ended 6/30/2023, the financial statements include the adoption of GASB Statement No.
96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. The primary objective of this
statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of information about governments'
subscription activities. This statement establishes a single model for subscription accounting based
on the principle that leases are financings of the right-to-use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, the County is required to recognize a subscription liability and an intangible right-to-use
subscription asset. The County did not have any subscriptions that were reportable under SBITA.

Note 10 - Risk Management

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government carries
commercial insurance. Paid claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the County’s
insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

The County of Lexington maintains an employee health insurance plan for all full-time employees.
Premiums are paid into the Employee Insurance Internal Service Fund, and are available to pay
claims, excess loss, co-insurance premiums, and administrative costs. During fiscal year 2023 total
expenses were $ 21,552,131. An excess coverage insurance policy (stop-loss insurance) covers
individual claims in excess of $350,000. Interfund premiums are based primarily upon the claims
experience of the Employee Insurance Internal Service Fund and are reported as interfund services
provided and used interfund transactions. Liabilities include an amount for claims incurred but not
reported (IBNRs). The accrual of claim liability incurred but not paid at year end is based on a
60-day analysis of claims subsequent to June 30, 2023. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past year are as follows:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year $ 2,310,775 $ 1,782,461 $ 1,269,271
Incurred claims (including IBNRs) 16,402,410 19,640,703 17,423,065
Claim payments (17,530,344) (19,112,389) (16,909,875)

Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year $1,182,841 $ 2,310,775 $ 1,782,461
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Note 11 - Long-term Debt

A. Summary of Changes in Long-term Debt

Long-term Long-term Amount
Debt as of Debt as of Due in
07/01/22 Additions Retired 06/30/23 One Year
I. Governmental Activities
Long-term debt:
Governmental Fund:
General Obligation Bonds $ 17,225,000 $ - $ (3,425,000) $ 13,800,000 $ 3,680,000
Compensated Absences 4,814,403 5,192,463 (4,814,403) 5,192,463 2,596,232
Net pension Liability 139,143,437 11,872,065 - 151,015,502 -
Net opeb Liability 9,960,240 - (414,326) 9,545,914 -
Lease Liability 241,718 - (53,179) 188,539 41,479

Internal Service Fund:

Compensated Absences - 1,746 - 1,746
Net pension Liability 352,961 8,617 - 361,578
Total Governmental Activities
long-term debt $ 171,737,759 $ 17,074,891 $ (8,706,908) $ 180,105,742 $ 6,317,711
1. Business-type Activities
Long-term debt:
Compensated Absences $ 95,129 $ 99,167 $ (95,129) $ 99,167 $ 47,564
Closure/post-closure cost 5,489,586 22,657,039 - 28,146,625 -
Net pension Liability 2,688,490 214,317 - 2,902,807
Total Business-type Activities
long-term debt 8,273,205 22,970,523 (95,129) 31,148,599 47,564
Total Primary Governmental
Activities $ 180,010,964 $ 40,045,414 $ (8,802,037) $ 211,254,341 $ 6,365,275

B. General Obligation Bonds

The County has issued General Obligation Bonds to fund the Building programs and for
Economic Development Projects of the County and other governmental organizations. The
County has assumed complete liability for the retirement of these obligations. Principal
payments on all bonds are due annually and interest is due semi-annually. The bonds are
generally subject to early redemption after specified dates in reverse order of maturity at
premiums of up to 3 1/2 percent.

The South Carolina Constitution limits local unit borrowing power to 8 percent of its assessed
property value. The limitation excludes bonded indebtedness existing prior to November 30,
1977 (date of the Constitutional amendment), and certain special levies assessed on properties
located in an area receiving special benefits and other prescribed indebtedness approved by the
voters. County bonds issued subsequent to November 30, 1977 (and legally applicable to the
debt limit) had an outstanding total of $13,800,000 on June 30, 2023. Based on the December
31, 2022, adjusted property valuation of $1,571,637,072, the legal debt limit is $125,730,966
leaving a legal debt margin as of June 30, 2023 of $111,930,966.
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General obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:

$12,200,000 Lexington County General Obligation Bond $ 7,740,000
Proceeds to: Courthouse & Campus Plan Construction
(Advance Refunding of 3-26-20)
Annual Installments of $60,000 to $2,755,000 through 02-01-28
Interest Rate: 1.30%

$24,885,000 Lexington County General Obligation Bond 6,060,000
Proceeds to: County Industrial Parks, 911 Communication Center
(Saxe Gotha Advance Refunding of 12-01-2006)
Annual Installments of $1,090,000 to $1,630,000 through 02-01-28
Interest Rate: 1.99%

Total General Obligation Bonds Payable $13,800,000

Prior Year Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, advance refunding resulted in book losses that are being amortized over the remaining
life of either the bonds that were defeased on the refunded bonds, whichever had the shortest
remaining life. The unamortized loss at June 30, 2023, is shown as a deferral outflow of resources on
the statement of net position. Amortization expense of $733 has been included in the interest
expense for the year ended June 30, 2023. And the unamortized discount on the refunding shown as
a deferral inflow of resources on the statement of net position. Amortization expense of $160,519
has been included in interest expense for the year ended June 30, 2023.

At the closing of the Bonds, the County’s outstanding general obligation debt chargeable against the
County’s debt limit prescribed by Constitution as described above will equal the sum of $13,800,000.

Closure/Post-closure care cost increased by $22,657,039 reflecting new estimates on the capacity
increase of the site and from the engineers (sampling & review) monthly charges, inspections,
maintenance.

C. Leases Payables

For the year ended 6/30/2023, the financial statements include the adoption of GASB Statement No.
87, Leases. The primary objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of
information about governments' leasing activities. This statement establishes a single model for lease
accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.
Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use
lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.
For additional information, refer to the disclosures below.

On 07/01/2021, Lexington County, SC entered into a 60 month lease as Lessee for the use of Suites
D & E of The Shops at Gilbert. An initial lease liability was recorded in the amount of $179,728. As
of 06/30/2023, the value of the lease liability is $112,143. Lexington County is required to make
monthly fixed payments of $3,420. The lease has an interest rate of 0.98%. The Buildings estimated
useful life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. The value of the right to use asset as of

105



Notes to the Financial Statements

06/30/2023 of $179,728 with accumulated amortization of $71,891 is included with Buildings on the
Lease Class activities table found below. Lexington County has 4 extension option(s), each for 12
months.

On 05/20/2022, Lexington County, SC entered into a 60 month lease as Lessee for the use of Konica
Minolta - 415 Ball Park Rd. An initial lease liability was recorded in the amount of $98,442. As of
06/30/2023, the value of the lease liability is $76,396. Lexington County is required to make monthly
fixed payments of $1,743. The lease has an interest rate of 2.489%. The Equipment estimated useful
life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. The value of the right to use asset as of
06/30/2023 of $98,442 with accumulated amortization of $21,931 is included with Equipment on the
Lease Class activities table found below.

Amount of Lease Assets by Major Classes of Underlying Asset

As of Fiscal Year-end

Asset Class Lease Asset Value Accumulated Amortization
Buildings $ 179,728 $71,891
Equipment 98,442 21,931
Total Leases $ 278,170 $93,822

Principal and Interest Requirements to Maturity

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Principal Payments Interest Payments Total Payments
2024 $ 55,099 $2,621 $ 57,720
2025 57,081 1,779 58,860
2026 59,126 910 60,036
2027 17,233 197 17,430

$188,539 $ 5,507 $194,046

D. Future Debt Service Requirements

Annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt and interest (excluding accrued vacation
benefits outstanding as of June 30, 2023 and payable in the fiscal year indicated, are summarized
as follows:

General Obligation Bonds

Principal Interest
2024 $ 3,680,000 $ 541,992
2025 3,935,000 391,487
2026 3,400,000 227,188
2027 1,370,000 88,950
2028 1,415,000 45,250

Total $ 13,800,000 $1,294,867
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E. Compensated Absences

Each of the funds listed below have typically been used in prior periods to liquidate
compensated absences.

Governmental Activities:

General Fund $ 5,194,209

Business-Type Activities:

Enterprise Fund 99,167
$ 5,293,376

Note 11 — Transfers

Transfers in and out between various funds are as follows:

Transfer in:

General Fund $17,708,204
Library 4,629
‘C’ Funds 31,906
Non-major Special Revenue Fund 4,137,024
Debt Service Fund 3,074
Capital Project Funds 6,222,708

Enterprise Funds
Solid Waste 150,000
Internal Service Funds 158,071
Total Governmental Fund Types 28,415,616

Enterprise Funds:
Pelion Airport 25,000
Total $28,440,616

Transfer Out:

General Fund $27,300,900
Library 4,629
‘C’ Funds 6,056
Non-major Special Revenue Fund 815,576
Capital Project Funds 5,384

Enterprise Funds
Solid Waste 150,000
Internal Service Fund 158,071
Total Governmental Fund Types $28,440,616

Transfers are used to move grant portions and operating funds for each governmental fund type. Each
of the transfers cancels out each other on the primary statement of activities. The $25,000 transfer
between the primary and business-type activities is shown on the statement of activities.
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Note 13 - Deficit Fund Balances or Net Positions

A. Special Revenue Funds:

Homeland Security Grants $ (141,272)
Grants Administration $ (4,211)
Vitim Witness Program $ (69)
Civil Processing Server $ (24,371)
Coroner Grant $ (207)

B. Internal Service Funds:
Risk Management $ (9,971)

The Special Revenue Funds and Internal Service Fund deficits resulted from the accrued liabilities as
of June 30, 2023. The county has funded this activity on the basis of cash flow requirements, and
any deficits are covered by adjustment of matching funds. These funds are based on reimbursement
process.

Note 14 - Closure and Post-closure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require that Lexington County place a final cover on its
landfill when closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill
site for thirty years after closure. In addition to operating expenses related to current activities of
the landfill, an expense provision and related liability are being recognized in the Solid Waste
Enterprise Fund based on the future closure and post-closure care costs that will be incurred
near or after the date the landfill no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill
closure and post-closure care costs is based on the actual cost for the landfill’s final cover.

The estimated liability for landfill closure and post-closure care costs has a balance of
$28,146,625 as of June 30, 2023. Landfills are closed to MSW waste. The landfill has the
capacity of 4,366,545 tons to receive C&D waste and has used 1,357,209 tons as of June 30,
2023.

Lexington County is required by state and federal laws to make annual contributions to finance
closure and post-closure care. The County intends to fund the liability from cash and cash
equivalents at June 30, 2023, to be held for these purposes. It is anticipated that future inflation
costs will be financed in part from earnings on these annual contributions. However, if earnings
are inadequate or additional post-closure care requirements are determined (due to changes in
technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example), these costs may need to be covered
by charges to future landfill users, taxpayers, or both.
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Note 15 - Condensed Proprietary Fund Information

The County has three enterprise funds: Red Bank Crossing (rental properties), Solid Waste
(convenience stations & landfill) and Lexington County Airport at Pelion. These funds are
intended to be self-supporting through user fees charged to the public for services but are
subsidized with property taxes. Information for the year ended June 30, 2023, is presented

below.
Red Bank
_Crossing.
Operating revenues $ 103,685
Property tax revenues -
Local government — tires -
Operating grants -
Depreciation expense 19,677
Operating income (loss) 26,157
Change in net position 42,770
Increase (decrease) in property,
Plant, and equipment -
Net working capital 509,128
Total assets 865,636
Close/post-closure care
Cost payable -
Pension Liability -
Total net position $ 854,509

Solid
Waste

$ 6,643,902
11,755,347
178,802
22,017
1,791,853
(32,760,811)
(20,382,157)

318,389
23,669,020
41,071,530

28,146,625
2,902,807
$ 8,755,839

Note 16 — Deferred Inflows of Resources/Unearned Revenues

Pelion
Airport Total
$133,293 $6,880,880
- 11,755,347
- 178,802
- 22,017
430,614 2,242,144
(419,798) (33,154,452)
(153,250) (20,492,637)
201,688 520,077
3,497,263 27,675,411
8,335,452 50,272,618
- 28,146,625
- 2,902,807
$8,328,393 $17,938,741

The balance in deferred inflows of resources on the governmental fund financial statements and
unearned revenues on the government-wide statements at year-end is composed of the following

elements:

Governmental Funds

Deferred

Inflows of

Resources
Unavailable revenue property taxes net (General) $ 5,346,496
Unavailable revenue property taxes net (Special) 441,210
Unavailable revenue property taxes net (Debt) 239,350
Unearned revenue (General) -
Unearned revenue (Special Revenue)
TOTAL $ 6,027,056
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Note 17 — Pension Plan

South Carolina Retirement System

Substantially all employees of the County are covered by a retirement plan through the South
Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Retirement Benefits Division of the South Carolina Public Employee
Benefit Authority (PEBA), a public employee retirement system. The PEBA has the authority
to establish and amend benefits and funding policy. Generally, all full-time or part-time
equivalent State employees in a permanent position are required to participate in and contribute
to the SCRS as a condition of employment unless exempted by law as provided in Section 9-1-
480 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, or are eligible and elect to participate in
the State Optional Retirement Program (ORP). The SCRS plan provides life-time monthly
retirement annuity benefits to eligible members as well as disability, survivor options, annual
benefit adjustments, death benefits, and incidental death benefits to eligible employees and
retired members.

The Retirement Division (Division) maintains five independent defined benefit plans and
issues its own publicly available Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) which
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The ACFR is available
online at www.retirement.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by writing to the South Carolina
Public Employee Benefit Authority, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, South Carolina 29223.

Under the SCRS, Class Il members are eligible for a full service retirement annuity upon
reaching age 65 or completion of 28 years of credited service regardless of age. Employees
who first became members of the System after June 30, 2012 are considered Class 11l members
and are eligible for a full service retirement annuity upon reaching age 65 or upon meeting the
rule of the 90 requirement (i.e., the members age plus the years of service add up to a total of at
least 90). The benefit formula for full benefits effective since July 1, 1989 for the SCRS is 1.82
percent of an employee’s average final compensation (AFC) multiplied by the number of years
of credited service. For Class Il members, AFC is the average annual earnable compensation
during 12 consecutive quarters and includes an amount for up to 45 days termination pay at
retirement for unused annual leave. For Class 11l members, AFC is the average annual earnable
compensation during 20 consecutive quarters and termination pay for unused annual leave at
retirement is not included. Early retirement options with reduced benefits are available as early
as age 55 for Class Il members and age 60 for Class 11l members. Class Il members are vested
for a deferred annuity after five years of earned service. Class Il members are vested for a
deferred annuity after eight years of earned service. Members qualify for a survivor’s benefit
upon completion of 15 years of credited service (five years effective January 1, 2002).

Disability annuity benefits are available to Class Il members if they have permanent incapacity
to perform regular duties of the member’s job and they have at least 5 years of earned service
(this requirement does not apply if the disability is a result of a job related injury). Class 111
members can apply for disability annuity benefits provided they have a permanent incapacity to
perform the regular duties of the member’s job and they have a minimum of eight years of
credited service. Members of SCRS have to be approved for disability benefits from the Social

Security Administration in order to be eligible for SCRS disability retirement benefits.
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An incidental death benefit equal to an employee’s annual rate of compensation is payable
upon the death of an active employee with a minimum of one year of credited service or to a
working retired contributing member. There is no service requirement for death resulting from
actual performance of duties for an active member. For eligible retired members, a lump-sum
payment is made to the retiree’s beneficiary of up to $6,000 based on years of service at
retirement. TERI participants and retired contributing members are eligible for the increased
death benefit equal to their annual salary in lieu of the standard retired member benefit.

Effective July 1, 2022, employees participating in the SCRS were required to contribute 9.00% of
all earnable compensation. The employer contribution rate for SCRS was 17.56%. Included in the
total SCRS employer contribution rate is a base retirement contribution of 17.41% and 0.15%
contribution rate for the incidental death program. The County’s contributions for the years ended
June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Employer Contribution Rate Employer Contributions
Year Ended Incidental Incidental
June 30, Base Death Total Base Death Total
2023 17.41% 0.15%  17.56% $ 7,898,764 $ 71,228 $ 7,969,992
2022 16.41% 0.15%  16.56% 6,715,996 64,756 6,780,752
2021 15.41% 0.15%  15.56% 6,612,334 64,365 6,676,699

Police Officers Retirement System

The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS) is a cost-sharing multiple
employer defined benefit public employee retirement system. Generally, all full-time
employees whose principal duties are the preservation of public order or the protection or
prevention and control of property destruction by fire are required to participate in and
contribute to PORS as a condition of employment. This plan provides lifetime monthly annuity
benefits as well as disability, survivor benefits and incidental benefits to eligible employees
and retirees. In addition, participating employers in the PORS contribute to the accidental death
fund which provides annuity benefits to beneficiaries of police officers and firemen killed in
the actual performance of their duties. These benefits are independent of any other retirement
benefits available to the beneficiary.

Under the PORS, Class Il members are eligible for a full service retirement annuity upon
reaching age 55 or completion of 25 years of credited service regardless of age. Class Il
members are eligible for a full service retirement annuity upon reaching age 55 or 27 years of
credited service. The benefit formula for full benefits effective since July 1, 1989 for the SCRS
is 2.14 percent of an employee’s average final compensation (AFC) multiplied by the number
of years of credited service. For Class Il members, AFC is the average annual compensation
during 12 consecutive quarters and includes an amount for up to 45 days termination pay for
unused annual leave. For Class 11l members, AFC is the average annual earnable compensation
during 20 consecutive quarters and termination pay for unused annual leave at retirement is not
included. PORS does not have an early retirement option. Class Il members are vested for a
deferred annuity after five years of earned service. Class Il members are vested for a deferred
annuity after eight years of earned service. Members qualify for a survivor’s benefit upon
completion of 15 years of credited service (five years effective January 1, 2002).
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Effective July 1, 2021, employees participating in the PORS were required to contribute 9.75%
of all earnable compensation. The employer contribution rate for PORS was 20.24%. Included
in the total PORS employer contribution rate is a base retirement contribution of 19.84%, a
0.20% contribution rate for the incidental death benefit program, and a 0.20% contribution rate
for the accidental death benefit program. The County’s contributions for the years ended June 30,
2023, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Employer Contribution Rate Employer Contributions
Year Ended Incidental Accidental Incidental ~ Accidental
June 30, Base Death Death Total Base Death Death Total
2023 19.84% 0.20% 020% 2024% $ 7686794 $ 80617 $ 80617 $ 7,848028
2022 18.84% 0.20% 020%  19.24% 6,290,221 70,070 70,070 6,430,361
2021 17.84% 0.20% 020%  18.24% 6,259,465 70,174 70,174 6,399,813

As an alternative to membership in the SCRS, newly hired employees of the Fund may elect to
participate in the State Optional Retirement Program (ORP), a defined contribution retirement
plan. The County did not have any employees participating in the ORP during the 2023, 2022 or
2021 fiscal years.

Article X, Section 16, of the South Carolina Constitution requires that all State-operated
retirement systems be funded on a sound actuarial basis. Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws of 1976, as amended, prescribes requirements relating to membership, benefit, and
employee/employer contributions for each retirement system. Employee and employer
contribution rates to SCRS and PORS are actuarially determined.

At June 30, 2023, the County reported $87,887,523 and $66,392,364 for its proportionate share
of the net pension liabilities of SCRS and PORS, respectively. The net pension liability of the
SCRS defined benefit pension plan was determined based on the July 1, 2022 actuarial
valuations, using membership data as of July 1, 2022, projected forward to June 30, 2022, and
financial information of the pension trust funds as of June 30, 2022, using generally accepted
actuarial procedures. The County’s portion of the net pension liability was based on the County’s
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating entities.
At June 30, 2023, the Commission’s SCRS proportion was 0.362540% and its PORS proportion
was 2.213832%. For the year end of June 30, 2023 the County recognized pension gain of
$2,091,134 and $1,840,103 for SCRS and PORS, respectively.
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At June 30, 2023 the state reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Resources SCRS PORS
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 763578 $ 1,113,930
Assumption changes 2,818,759 2,764,684
Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings 12,929,484 14,406,617
Differences between employer contributions and proportionate share 191,350 47514
Contributions made from measurement date to June 30, 2020 7,969,992 7,848,028

Total deferred outflow of resources $ 24673163 $ 26,180,773

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 383011 $ 1,312,466
Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings 12,793,944 14,206,129
Differences between employer contributions and proportionate share 3,265,837 3,637,787
Total deferredinflows of resources $ 16,442,792 $ 19,156,382
Net deferred outflows/(inflows) $ 8230371 $ 7,024,391

Deferred outflows of $7,969,992 and $7,848,028 for SCRS and PORS, respectively, reported
as resources related to pensions resulting from County contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as follows:

Year ended June 30, SCRS PORS Net
2024 $ 648,448 $  (29,963) $ 618,485
2025 205,037 (255,092) (50,055)
2026 (2,885,156) (3,119,239) (6,004,395)
2027 2,292,050 2,580,657 4,872,707

$ 260,379 $ (823,637) $ (563,258)
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The total pension liabilities was rolled-forward from the valuation date of July 1, 2021 to the
plans’ fiscal year end, June 30, 2022, using generally accepted actuarial principles. The following
table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate the total
pension liability as of June 30, 2022.

SCRS PORS
Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal

Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate or Return 7.00% 7.00%
Projected Salary Increases 3.0% to 11.0% 3.5% to 10.5%
Inflation Rate 2.25% 2.25%
Benefit Adjustments Lesser of 1% or $500  Lesser of 1% or $500

South Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial experience study be completed at least once
in each five-year period. An experience report on the Systems was most recently issued as of July
1, 2019.

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’s job category and
gender. This base mortality assumptions, the 2020 Public Retirees of South Carolina
Mortality table (2020 PRSC), was developed using the System’s mortality experience. These
base rates are adjusted for future improvement in mortality using 80% of Scale UMP
projected from the year 2020. Assumptions used in the determination of the June 30, 2020
TPL for SCRS and PORS are as follows:

Former Job Class

Males

Females

Educators

General Employees and
Members of the General

2020 PRSC Males
Multiplied by 95%

2020 PRSC Males
Multiplied by 97%

2020 PRSC Females
Multiplied by 94%

2020 PRSC Females
Multiplied by 107%

Assembly

2020 PRSC Females
Multiplied by 107%

2020 PRSC Males
Multiplied by 127%

Public Safety and Firefighters

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for actuarial purposes is based
upon the 20-year capital market assumptions. The actuarial long-term expected rates of return
represent assumptions developed using an arithmetic building block approach, primarily based on
consensus expectations and market based inputs. Expected returns are net of investment fees.

For actuarial purposes, the long-term expected rate of return, along with the expected inflation
rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation adopted at the beginning of the 2022 fiscal year.
The long-term expected rate of return is produced by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target allocation percentage and adding expected inflation and is summarized in the
table below. For actuarial purposes, the 7.00 percent assumed annual investment rate of return
used in the calculation of the total pension liability includes a 4.75 percent real rate of return and
a 2.25 percent inflation component.
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Policy Expected Arithmetic Long Term Expected
Allocatio/Exposure Target Real Rate of Return Portfolio Real Rate of Return

Public Equity 46.0% 6.79% 3.12%
Bonds 26.0% (0.35)% (0.09)%
Private Equity 9.0% 8.75% 0.79%
Public Debt 7.0% 6.00% 0.42%
Real Assets 12.0%

Real Estate 9.0% 4.12% 0.37%

Infrastructure 3.0% 5.88% 0.18%
Total Expected Real Return 100% 4.79%
Inflation for Actuarial Puposes 2.25%
Total Expected Nominal Return 7.04%

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the funding policy
specified in the South Carolina State Code of Laws will remain unchanged in future years. Based
on those assumptions, the plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

The following table represents the County’s proportionate share of the SCRS and PORS net
pension liabilities as of June 30, 2022, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00 percent, as
well as what the Commission’s respective net pension liabilities would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate of 1.00 percent lower (6.00 percent) or 1.00 percent higher (8.00
percent) than the current rate.

1% Current 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
Plan 6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
SCRS $ 112,682,620 $ 87,887,523 $ 67,273,580
PORS $ 92,580,149 $ 66,392,364 $ 44,955,191

Note 18 - Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees a State sponsored deferred compensation plan (created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457) available through the South Carolina State
Treasurer's Office. The plan, available to all County employees, permits them to defer a portion of
their salary until future years. In effect, the employee temporarily loses access to the resources in
exchange for the right to defer federal taxes. The deferred compensation cannot be withdrawn by
employees until termination, retirement, death, disability, or an approved hardship.

Empower (under state contract) is the program administrator of the 457 plan, as well as the other
available 401K plan. The choice of deferred compensation option(s) is selected by the participant.
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Note 19 - Post Employment Health Care Benefits

Effective July 1, 2009, Lexington County significantly modified its Post Employment Health Plan.
At that time, the benefit structure for a substantial number of active participants was modified, and
thereafter those participants received benefits under the terms of a new plan (referred to as the “2009
Plan”). Certain active employees and retirees who met age and service requirements as of July 1,
2009 were “grandfathered” under the old plan (referred to as the “1995 Plan”) and are provided
benefits pursuant to that arrangement. Details of the eligibility and benefit provisions for the 1995
Plan are set forth below.

1995 Plan Description

The County provides a single-employer defined benefit healthcare medical & dental insurance
coverage (“the 1995 A & B Plan”) for employees retiring under the South Carolina Retirement
systems and for employees terminating their employment with the County after having worked for
the County for 10 years with the last 5 years being consecutive. As amended on October 28, 2008,
the eligibility requirements change from 10 years with last 5 being consecutive to 20 years
consecutive of county services. Employees retiring with reduced retirement benefits or disability
after 10 years of County service, pay COBRA rates. The plan design for former employees covered
under the plan is the same as for active employees. Coverage terminates if other insurance is
acquired through participants or spouses employment or upon Medicare eligibility.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of participants and the County are established and may be amended by
the County Council. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing
requirements. The County has elected not to fund the plan and will utilized healthcare benefits on as
pay as you go basis for plan.

The following summarizes the membership of the plan as of June 30, 2023, the valuation date:

Number
Active participants 0
Retired participants 24

Total participants 24
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Change in OPEB Liability

Change in OPEB liability from June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023 is shown below in a table.

Total OPEB Liability

Balance as of June 30, 2022 $ 1,759,786
Service cost -
Interest on net obligation 58,578
Change of benefit terms -
Differences between expected and actual experience 395,858
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (9,310)
Benefit payments and implicit subsidy Fulfillment (740,445)
Net changes (295,319)
Balance as of June 30, 2023 $ 1,464,467

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Key actuarial assumptions and methods that were used for the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation are
set forth below. As indicated below, many of these actuarial assumptions are the same as those used
for the July 1, 2021 Actuarial Valuation of the South Carolina Retirement System, the July 1, 2021
Actuarial Valuation of the Police Officers Retirement System, and the June 30, 2021 State of South
Carolina PEBA Retiree Health Care Plan Actuarial Valuation pursuant to GASB 74.

Actuarial Cost Method — Entry Age Normal, level percent of pay.

Discount Rate — 3.86%.

Inflation Rate — 2.25% per year

Salary Increases — None. As of the valuation date, all participants are retired.

SCRS Mortality Rates — The 2021 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality Table for Males and
the 2021 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality Table for Females, projection table from the

year 2021 and with a 97% multiplier for males and a 107% multiplier for females was assumed. Only
the post-retirement rates are shown because all of the members of the 1995 Plan are inactive.

PORS Mortality Rates — The 2021 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality Table for Males and
the 2021 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality Table for Females, projection table from the
year 2021 and with a 127% multiplier for males and a 107% multiplier for females was assumed.
Only the post-retirement rates are shown because all of the members of the 1995 Plan are inactive.
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Per Capita Claims Cost (PCCC) — NA. Coverage is provided under the self-insured Blue Cross
Blue Shield (BCBS) of South Carolina Gold Option. Premium equivalents and required retiree
contributions were provided by BCBS for the group.

Medical Trends — Initial rate of 6.00% declining to an ultimate rate of 4.00% after 14 years.

Other Information:

Notes — Pursuant to GASB 75, for unfunded plans the discount rate should be a yield or index rate
for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average AA/Aa credit rating as
of the measurement date. The Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO index is often cited as an appropriate
benchmark. That index was 3.86% on June 30, 2023. A discount rate of 3.69% was used at the prior
measurement date.

County of Lexington for the 1995 plan OPEB liability of $ 1,464,467 was measured as of June 30,

2023 and the OPEB liability was determined by a biennial actuarial valuation of the plan, as of June
30, 2023, using the following key actuarial assumptions and other inputs:

Sensitivity Analysis:

The following presents the total OPEB liability as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Health Care Cost Trend Rate Sensitivity

1% Current Trend 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 1,415946 $ 1,464,467 $ 1,515,444

The following presents the total OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 2.86%, as well
as what the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower (3.86%) or 1-percentage point higher (4.86%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate Sensitivity

1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(2.86%) (3.86%) (4.86%)

Total OPEB liability $ 1,523,605 $ 1,464,467 $ 1,409,601
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Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience  $ - $
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Total $ - %

Pursuant to GASB 75, because all participants are inactive any gains or losses and/or assumption
changes are recognized immediately. Therefore, the deferred inflows and outflows are $0.

2009 Plan Description

Effective July 1, 2009, Lexington County significantly modified its Post Employment Health Plan.
At that time, the benefit structure for a substantial number of active participants was modified, and
thereafter those participants received benefits under the terms of a new plan (referred to as the “2009
Plan”). Details of the eligibility and benefit provisions of the 2009 Plan are set forth. It’s provides a
single-employer defined benefit plan. Eligibility for the 2009 Plan requires full retirement under
SCRS (at least age 65 or 28 years of service) or PORS (at least age 55 or 25 years of service) and 25
years of service with Lexington County. Under the plan’s grandfather clause, employees with 10
years of service with the County as of October, 1, 2008 are eligible for benefits once they reach age
55, and after completing 15 years of service.

The benefit allows coverage under the County Health Insurance until Medicare eligibility. Spouse
benefit coverage is also available when the retiree becomes Medicare eligible up to five years from
the date of retirement or until spouse becomes Medicare eligible. The County replaced the County
paid medical coverage with a retiree healthcare reimbursement arrangement (RHRA) for employees
who retire from the County. All other participants in the RHRA are based on the applicable age-rated
premiums. Retirees may request reimbursements for premiums until reimbursement credits are
depleted.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of participants and the County are established and may be amended by
the County Council. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing
requirements. The County has elected not to fund the plan and will utilized healthcare benefits on as
pay as you go basis for plan.

119



Notes to the Financial Statements

The following summarizes the membership of the plan as of June 30, 2023, the valuation date:

Number
Active participants 1,320
Retired participants 32
Total participants 1,352

Change in OPEB Liability

Change in OPEB liability from June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023 is shown below in a table.

Total OPEB Liability

Balance as of June 30, 2022 $ 8,200,454
Service cost 258,662
Interest on net obligation 292,267
Change of benefit terms -
Differences between expected and actual experience 524,310
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (110,071)
Benefit payments and implicit subsidy Fulfillment (1,084,175)
Net changes (119,007)
Balance as of June 30, 2023 $ 8,081,447

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Key actuarial assumptions and methods that were used for the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation are
set forth below. As indicated below, many of these actuarial assumptions are the same as those used
for the July 1, 2021 Actuarial Valuation of the South Carolina Retirement System, the July 1, 2021
Actuarial Valuation of the Police Officers Retirement System, and the June 30, 2021 State of South
Carolina PEBA Retiree Health Care Plan Actuarial Valuation pursuant to GASB 74.

Actuarial Cost Method — Entry Age Normal

Discount Rate — 3.86%.

Inflation Rate — 2.25% per year

Salary Increases — 3.00%

SCRS Mortality Rates — The 2021 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality Table for Males and
the 2021 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality Table for Females, projection table from the

year 2021 and with a 97% multiplier for males and a 107% multiplier for females was assumed. Only
the post-retirement rates are shown because all of the members of the 1995 Plan are inactive.
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PORS Mortality Rates — The 2021 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality Table for Males and
the 2021 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality Table for Females, projection table from the
year 2021 and with a 97% multiplier for males and a 107% multiplier for females was assumed. Only
the post-retirement rates are shown because all of the members of the 1995 Plan are inactive.

Per Capita Claims Cost (PCCC) — NA. Coverage is provided under the self-insured Blue Cross
Blue Shield (BCBS) of South Carolina Gold Option. Premium equivalents and required retiree
contributions were provided by BCBS for the group.

Health Reimbursement Arrangement — Healthcare is provided to retirees, their spouses and
dependents through a self-insured arrangement maintained by Lexington County, South Carolina.
For each premium equivalent reimbursement, a retired participant’s RHRA account is reduced, once
the RHRA account is depleted, reimbursements will cease. Hoe ever, the participant may continue
coverage under the terms of the plan. RHRA account values at retirement are bases on service.

Medical Trends — Initial rate of 6.00% declining to an ultimate rate of 4.00% after 14 years.

Participation — It is assumed that 65% of eligible retirees will elect to receive coverage upon
retirement.

Other Information:

Notes — Pursuant to GASB 75, for unfunded plans the discount rate should be a yield or index rate
for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average AA/Aa credit rating as
of the measurement date. The Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO index is often cited as an appropriate
benchmark. That index was 3.86% on June 30, 2023. A discount rate of 3.69% was used at the prior
measurement date.

County of Lexington for the 2009 plan OPEB liability of $ 8,081,447 was measured as of June 30,

2023 and the OPEB liability was determined by a biennial actuarial valuation of the plan, as of June
30, 2023, using the following key actuarial assumptions and other inputs:

Sensitivity Analysis:

The following presents the total OPEB liability as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Health Care Cost Trend Rate Sensitivity

1% Current Tread 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

Total OPEB liability $ 7,968,388 $ 8,081,447 $ 8,194,506
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The following presents the total OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 2.86%, as well
as what the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower (3.86%) or 1-percentage point higher (4.86%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate Sensitivity

1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(2.86%) (3.86%) (4.86%)
Total OPEB liability $ 8,752,021 $ 8,081,447 $ 7,465,277

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience  $ 4,186,803 $ (1,168,397)
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 757,379 (2,647,053)
Total $ 4944182 $ (3,815,450)

Collective amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense in future years as follows:

Outflows Inflows Net Deferred
Year Ended June 30 of Resources of Resources Outflows/(Inflows)
2024 $ 686,762 $ (528,244) $ 158,518
2025 686,762 (528,244) 158,518
2026 686,762 (528,244) 158,518
2027 686,762 (528,244) 158,518
2028 686,762 (522,643) 164,119
Thereafter 1,510,372 (1,179,831) 330,541
Total $ 4944182 $ (3,815,450) $ 1,128,732

County of Lexington reserves funds to cover 1995 Plan and 2009 Plan under Internal Service Fund
Post-Employment that is part of the Governmental Activities. As of June 30, 2023 the Post-Insurance
fund has a fund balance of $20,915,539.

Note 20 - Net Positions Restricted

The government-wide statement of net position reports $24,715,097 of restricted net positions.

Debt service $ 780,641
Capital projects 23,845,529
Solid Waste — state tire fund 88,927
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Note 21- Tax Abatement Disclosures

The County provides tax abatements under seven programs: Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Program (FILOT),
Special Source Revenue Credit Program (SSRC), Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue
Credit Program (FILOT + SSRC), Infrastructure Program (IP), Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure
Program (FILOT + IP), Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program (SSRC + IP), and
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC +
IP).

1. The Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Program (FILOT) offers individual incentive packages by abating
property taxes to attract new business to the County and to retain current businesses. The
FILOT program was established by the SC Code Title 12, Chapter 44 and Title 4, Chapter
12. Generally, for taxpayers to be approved for this program they must agree to invest the
statutory minimum (A higher amount may be negotiated) the investment period. The
investment period begins on the day in which the property described in the agreement is
entered into service and ends at an agreed upon point in time. Once the investment period
begins, the taxpayer will receive a reduction of assessed value, reduction in millage rate and
elimination of (or reduction in) the number of times the millage rates change for the property
over the length of the agreement. Repayments of any savings in property taxes are required
by state law if the taxpayer fails to maintain the conditions set forth in the agreement. Other
recapture provisions may be negotiated on a case by case basis.

2. The Special Source Revenue Credit Program (SSRC) offers individual incentive packages by
abating property taxes to attract new business to the County and to retain current businesses.
The SSRC program was established by the SC Code Sections 4-29-68, 4-1-170, and 12-44-
70. Generally, for taxpayers to be approved for this program they must agree to incur costs of
designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding improved or unimproved real
estate or personal property used in the operation of a manufacturing or commercial
enterprise, infrastructure servicing the project, or certain aircraft within the investment
period. The investment period begins on the day in which the property described in the
agreement is entered into service and ends at an agreed upon point in time. Once the
investment period begins, the taxpayer will receive a specified percentage refund of their
property taxes for the property included in the agreement within 30 days of their property tax
payment. If the taxpayer fails to maintain conditions set forth in the agreement, state law
requires that the taxpayer pay two additional years of property tax if the SSRC was received
on personal property. Other recapture provisions may be negotiated on a case by case basis.

3. Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit Program (FILOT + SSRC) offers
individual incentive packages by offering a combination of benefits described in the FILOT
program and SSRC program descriptions above. See FILOT program and SSRC program
descriptions for further details.
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4.

Infrastructure Program (IP) offers individual incentive packages to attract new business to the
County by offering one or more of the following: (1) abating property taxes through
infrastructure credits or reimbursement of infrastructure spending to the County (2) giving
infrastructure grants (3) giving infrastructure owned by the County. The IP program was
established by the SC Code Sections 12-44-50(B) and 12-44-70. Generally, for taxpayers to
be approved for this program they must agree to incur costs of designing, acquiring,
constructing, improving, or expanding improved or unimproved real estate or personal
property used in the operation of a manufacturing or commercial enterprise, infrastructure
servicing the project, or certain aircraft within the investment period. The investment period
begins on the day in which the property described in the agreement is entered into service and
ends at an agreed upon point in time. Generally, the taxpayer agrees to invest the statutory
minimum and a job creation minimum within the investment period. Once the investment
period begins, the taxpayer will receive one or more of the following benefits: (1) a specified
percentage refund of their property taxes for the property included in the agreement within 30
days of their property tax payment for amount of years negotiated in the agreement. (2)
infrastructure paid for by the County as negotiated in the agreement. The County is then
reimbursed for the infrastructure purchased through taxpayer property tax payments. Once
the County is reimbursed, the remaining property tax payments are allocated based on
millage needs. (3) an infrastructure grant for an amount negotiated in the agreement. (4)
infrastructure owned by the County is given to the taxpayer without reimbursement required.
If the taxpayer fails to maintain conditions set forth in the agreement, the taxpayer will be
required to (1) reimburse the County for any tax savings, infrastructure grants, or
infrastructure purchased as well as interest based on the negotiated percentage in the
agreement beginning on the day that the taxpayer does not meet the qualifications or
obligations or the agreement. Other recapture provisions may be negotiated on a case by case
basis.

Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) offers individual incentive
packages by offering a combination of benefits described in the FILOT program and IP
program descriptions above. See FILOT program and IP program descriptions for further
details.

The Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program (SSRC + IP) offers
individual incentive packages by offering a combination of benefits described in the SSRC
program and IP program descriptions above. See SSRC program and IP program descriptions
for further details.

Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program (FILOT +
SSRC + IP) offers individual incentive packages by offering a combination of benefits
described in the FILOT program, SSRC program and IP program descriptions above. See
FILOT program, SSRC program and IP program descriptions for further details.
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County of Lexington property tax revenues were reduced by $9,965,223 under agreements entered
into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County $569,187
of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the school district. See chart
below for further details:

Information relevant to the disclosure of those programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 is as
follows:

Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount

Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 546,687 $ 39,461
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
Program (FILOT + SSRC) 2,913,601 41,480
Infrastructure Program (IP) -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) 530,269 46,675
Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program
(SSRC +IP)
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and
Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 5,974,666 441,570

$ 9,965,223 $ 569,187

Governmental Entity Disclosures

School District One’s property tax revenues were reduced by $13,620,613 under agreements entered
into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County
$1,131,620 of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the school district.
See the chart below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 567,303 $ 32,396
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
Program (FILOT + SSRC) 1,134,894 126,709
Infrastructure Program (IP) -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) 117,813 (3,233)
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and
Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 11,800,603 975,748
$ 13,620,613 $ 1,131,620
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School District Two’s property tax revenues were reduced by $10,278,827 under agreements entered
into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County $199,742
of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the school district. See the chart
below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 687,607 $ 10,219
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
Program (FILOT + SSRC) 5,543,222 16,012
Infrastructure Program (IP)
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) 1,045,469 45,522
Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program
(SSRC + IP)
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and
Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 3,002,529 127,989
$ 10,278,827 $ 199,742

School District Three’s property tax revenues were reduced by $217,684 under agreements entered
into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County $6,748
of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the school district. See the chart
below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ - $ -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
Program (FILOT + SSRC) 109,839 6,748
Infrastructure Program (IP) - -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP)
Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program
(SSRC + IP) - -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and
Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 107,845 -
$ 217,684 $ 6,748

School District Four’s property tax revenues were reduced by $956,799 under agreements entered
into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County $42,293
of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the school district. See the chart
below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) 274,878 42,293
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit 681,921
$ 956,799 $ 42,293
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School District Five’s property tax revenues were reduced by $1,537,192 under agreements entered
into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County $122,043
of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the school district. See the chart
below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 61,009 $ 33,023
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) 672,896 89,020
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and 803,287

Lexington Recreation Commission’s property tax revenues were reduced by $1,616,689 under
agreements entered into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed
the County $85,307 of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the
Commission. See the chart below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 85,931 $ 4,818
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
Program (FILOT + SSRC) 559,739 7,261
Infrastructure Program (IP) -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) 60,354 3,850
Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program
(SSRC + IP) -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and
Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 910,665 69,378
$ 1,616,689 $ 85,307

Irmo Chapin Recreation Commission’s property tax revenues were reduced by $99,132 under
agreements entered into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed
the County $7,915 of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the
Commission. See the chart below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 3,956 $ 2,142
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
Program (FILOT + SSRC)
Infrastructure Program (IP) -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) 43,081 5,773
Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program
(SSRC + IP) -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and
Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 52,095 -
$ 99,132 $ 7,915
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Midlands Technical College’s property tax revenues were reduced by $464,494 under agreements
entered into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County
$24,606 of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the Technical College.
See the chart below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 24,954 $ 1,914
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
Program (FILOT + SSRC) 158,191 1,961
Infrastructure Program (IP) -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) 27,880 2,536
Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program
(SSRC + IP) - -
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and
Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 253,469 18,195
$ 464,494 $ 24,606

Riverbanks Zoo’s property tax revenues were reduced by $128,177 under agreements entered into by
the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County $8,181 of these
property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the Zoo. See the chart below for further
details:

Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount

Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 6,300 $ 444

Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit Program

(FILOT + SSRC) 29,015 453

Infrastructure Program (IP) -

Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) 4,485 417

Special Source Revenue Credit and Infrastructure Program

(SSRC + IP)

Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and

Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 88,377 6,867
$ 128,177 $ 8,181

City of Cayce’s property tax revenues were reduced by $1,130,961 under agreements entered into by
the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County $3,535 of these
property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the City. See the chart below for further
details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
1,130,961 3,535
Program (FILOT + SSRC)
$ 1,130,961 $ 3,535
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Town of Lexington’s property tax revenues were reduced by $30,773 under agreements entered into
by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County $(623) of
these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the Town. See the chart below for
further details:

Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Leiue of Tax and Source Revenue Credit Program (FILOT +SSRC) 19,292
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP) 11,481 (623)
$ 30,773 $ (623)

Town of Pelion’s property tax revenues were reduced by $9,781 under agreements entered into by
the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County $5,419 of these
property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the Town. See the chart below for further
details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
9,781 5,419
Program (FILOT + SSRC)
$ 9,781 $ 5419

Town of Batesburg-Leesville’s property tax revenues were reduced by $37,848 under agreements
entered into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed the County
$2,325 of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the Town. See the chart
below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
37,848 2,325
Program (FILOT + SSRC)
$ 37,848 $ 2,325
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District Five-Fire FD Department’s property tax revenues were reduced by $71,964 under
agreements entered into by the County as of June 30, 2023. The State of South Carolina reimbursed
the County $7,098 of these property tax revenues, which the County disbursed back to the Fire
Department. See the chart below for further details:

Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 3,548 $ 1,920

Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP)
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and

Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 68,416 5178
$ 71,964 $ 7,098

District Five-Fire FW Department’s property tax revenues were reduced by $16,944 under
agreements entered into by the County as of June 30, 2023. See the chart below for further details:

Amount of Taxes State of South Carolina
Abated during the Revenue Reimbursement
Tax Abatement Program Fiscal Year Amount
Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax and Infrastructure Program (FILOT + IP)
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and
Infrastructure Program (FILOT + SSRC + IP) 16,944
$ 16,944 $

Note 22 - Commitments and Contingencies

Leases - The majority of the County's lease agreements are relatively minor commitments
(generally for office machines and landfill equipment) and are cancelable within one year as
required by state law.

Federal and state grants programs - Funds received from federal and state grants and programs
are often subject to expenditure for designated purposes only and are subject to audit by various
federal and state agencies. The County can be required to replace any funds not used for the
purposes required by the grants.

Contingencies - There is a continuing possibility that the medical care for pre-trial detainees in
the Lexington County Jail the County has a contract with the medical care provider for medical
services to inmates. The County may be responsible for any medical care treatment beyond the
medical services provided within the jail.

Contingencies - There is a continuing possibility that the County will be called upon to pay for

expert defense costs and attorney fees for death penalty cases that are tried in Lexington County.
Presently, the State has a fund that pays for such matters.
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Contingencies - Lexington County has the potential further costs to repair old drainage lines and
other storm water related costs and to repair bridges throughout Lexington County.

Contingencies — Lexington County has the possible need to add to its detention center/jail space
in the future that will be a significant cost to Lexington County.

Contingencies — County has threatened and pending inverse condemnation cases as a result of a
180 day moratorium ordinance that Lexington County Council approved that affected the
approval of new residential subdivisions and apartments that could have a financial impact on
Lexington County.

Contingencies — New requirements under GASB 45 that require the County to have certain
funds set aside for its post-employment health insurance benefits. The County has reviewed its
policy and made some changes in its post-employment health insurance benefits.

Note 23 - Economic Dependency

The County of Lexington collects property taxes from five taxpayers whose assessed valuation
represents 10.88 percent of the total assessed valuation (excluding vehicles) of the County.

Percent of Assessed

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation
Dominion Energy Utilities 6.90%
Michelin North America Tire Manufacturer 1.47%
SCANA Services Utilities .719%
Mid-Carolina Electric Co-op Utilities .65%
Shaw Industries Nylon Production 42%

Note 24— Subsequent Events

The Council has evaluated all events subsequent to the basic financial statements for year
ended June 30, 2023 through January 16, 2024, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. In December 2019, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus
(COVID-19) originated in China and has since spread to other countries, including the U.S. on
March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. It is
anticipated that these impacts will continue for some time. There has been no immediate
impact to County of Lexington at this time. But could have an impact in the potential future.
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Page 1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY'S (1995 Plan)
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

1995 1995 1995 1995 1995 1995

Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost at end of year $ - - - -3 - 8 -
Interest 58,578 29,316 34,170 59,414 69,775 74,531
Difference between expected and actual 395,858 781,939 317,487 38,593 78,615 -
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (9,310) (105,513) (2,993) 81,593 88,169 (26,086)
Benefit payments and implicit and other (740,445) (416,184) (568,184) (336,185) (386,375) (266,006)
Net change in total OPEB liability (295,319) 289,558 (219,520) (156,585) (149,816) (217,561)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,759,786 1,470,228 1,689,748 1,846,333 1,996,149 2,213,710
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 1,464,467 1,759,786 1,470,228 1,689,748 $ 1,846333 $ 1,996,149
Covered-employee payroll - (1995 plan) $ - - - -3 - 8 -
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll - (1995 plan) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed

as it becomes available.
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Page 2
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY'S (2009 Plan)
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009

Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost at end of year $ 258,662 468,461 $ 477,339 $ 364,141 $ 249,784 $ 240,478
Interest 292,267 161,891 185,862 261,604 317,226 296,800
Difference between expected and actual 524,310 4,474,326 (708,334) 374,692 (1,058,875) -
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (110,071)  (3,213,057) 15,190 820,364 325,479 (135,045)
Benefit payments and implicit and other (1,084,175)  (1,371,082) (958,778) (878,434) (608,791) (379,221)
Net change in total OPEB liability (119,007) 520,539 (988,721) 942,367 (775,177) 23,012
Total OPEB liability - beginning 8,200,454 7,679,915 8,668,636 7,726,269 8,501,446 8,478,434
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 8,081,447 8,200,454 $ 7679915 $ 8668636 $ 7726269 $ 8,501,446
Covered-employee payroll - (2009 plan) $ 70,971,445 70,971,445 $ 57,259,603 $ 56,558,727 $ 56,558,727 $ 62,676,416
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll - (2009 plan) 11.39% 11.55% 13.41% 15.33% 13.66% 13.63%

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed

as it becomes available.
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Governmental Funds

Lexington County
Fire & EMS Stations

+ Rescue Squad
Yk Fire Station

A Fire & EMS Station
@ EMS Station

":'J-““".' R, Map Published By: Lexington Counly g
7 Y Department of Planning & GIS

¥ View Maps Online: www.lex-co.com
Link: GIS Property Mapping
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General Fund

The general fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with the County which are
not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Exhibit A-1

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Property taxes
Accounts
Due from other governments:
State shared revenue
Federal
Other
Due from other funds:
Special revenue
Enterprise fund
Internal service fund
Interfund receivables
Inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities:
Accounts payables and accrued payables
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds:
Special revenue
Enterprise fund
Internal service fund

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances
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2023 2022
$ 43,990,879 $ 37,677,634
85,807,762 87,403,859
6,140,411 6,355,251
12,112,060 13,131,509
2,808,791 2,747,755
21,006 23,106
142,662 160,503
43,499 19,377
74,271 33,387
2,013 965
653,467 926,017
1,346,208 1,355,585
$ 153,143,029 $ 149,834,948
$ 10,472,352 $ 8,545,573
656,352 757,446
2,090,000 2,145,000
10,031 251
23,021 -
2,403 1,506
13,254,159 11,449,776
5,346,496 5,480,964
5,346,496 5,480,964
1,346,208 1,355,585
54,837,035 61,722,198
78,359,131 69,826,425
134,542,374 132,904,208
$ 153,143,029 $ 149,834,948




COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

Exhibit A-2

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Revenue:
Property taxes
State shared revenues
Fees, permits, and sales
County fines
Intergovernmental revenues
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments
Other

Total revenue

Expenditures:

Current:
General administrative
General services
Public works
Public safety
Judicial
Law enforcement
Boards and commissions
Health and human services

Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in
Transfer out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

2023 2022
$ 116,986,839 $ 111,194,474
12,006,699 11,486,376
25,132,422 31,959,492
1,664,587 1,684,444
4,049,057 3,255,743
5,829,186 523,957
607,425 416,120
166,276,215 160,520,606
15,936,635 15,518,161
3,739,896 3,704,884
9,773,890 10,042,999
44,322,881 40,112,556
11,836,469 11,335,849
49,134,940 42,636,871
1,336,001 1,023,052
1,735,868 1,606,183
17,228,683 11,667,464
155,045,353 137,648,019
11,230,862 22,872,587
17,708,204 14,797,016
(27,300,900) (5,794,319)
(9,592,696) 9,002,697
1,638,166 31,875,284
132,904,208 101,028,924

$ 134,542,374 $ 132,904,208
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit A-3
Page 1

Property taxes:
Current taxes - general
Current taxes - fire service
Current taxes - law enforcement
Delinquent taxes - general
Delinquent taxes - fire service
Delinquent taxes - law enforcement

Total taxes

State shared revenues:
Accommodations tax
Aid to subdivisions
Total state shared revenues

Fees, permits, and sales:
Animal control - fees
Ambulance fees
Fire protection charges - f/s
Fire permits fees - f/s
Vehicle decal issuance fees
Cable T.V. franchise fees
Video service franchise fees
Worthless check fees
Clerk of court fees
General sessions court fees
Family court fees
Probate court fees
Coroner fees
Passport fees
RD recording fees
County recording fees
State recording fees
RD miscellaneous
Museum fees
Transportation network co. (TNC)
Posting/escheatable property charges
Building permits
Mobile home permits
Mobile home registration fees
Copy sales
Copy sales - l/e
Subdivision regulation fees
Stormwater mgmt/sediment ctrl fees
Map and book sales - planning & development
Zoning ordinance fees - planning & development
Landscape ordinance fees - planning & development
Sign and map sales - public works
Sign sales - f/s
Funeral escort fees - I/e

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
38,484,409 $ 38,484,409 37,508,164 $ (976,245)
25,155,408 25,614,879 25,600,935 (13,944)
51,497,528 51,497,528 51,043,983 (453,545)
1,005,000 1,005,000 971,210 (33,790)
575,000 594,139 588,777 (5,362)
1,215,000 1,215,000 1,273,770 58,770
117,932,345 118,410,955 116,986,839 (1,424,116)
40,750 40,750 47,571 6,821
11,892,612 11,892,612 11,959,128 66,516
11,933,362 11,933,362 12,006,699 73,337
45,000 45,000 37,948 (7,052)
13,391,243 13,452,243 11,898,736 (1,553,507)
55,000 55,000 52,953 (2,047)
25,000 25,000 76,562 51,562
230,000 230,000 244,926 14,926
1,975,000 1,975,000 1,759,943 (215,057)
330,486 330,486 225,264 (105,222)
7,072 7,072 7,298 226
250,000 250,000 262,574 12,574
18,000 18,000 13,222 (4,778)
375,000 375,000 361,643 (13,357)
578,292 578,292 740,967 162,675
100,000 100,000 95,430 (4,570)
14,000 14,000 17,255 3,255
1,127,200 1,127,200 841,117 (286,083)
2,600,000 2,600,000 2,948,549 348,549
170,000 170,000 209,177 39,177
1,000 1,000 (1,357) (2,357)
4,300 4,300 4,786 486
32,000 32,000 51,562 19,562
- - 235,230 235,230
2,100,000 2,100,000 2,512,611 412,611
5,670 5,670 5,745 75
8,150 8,150 8,525 375
53,300 53,300 54,329 1,029
13,894 13,894 13,477 (417)
60,000 60,000 72,790 12,790
1,902,374 1,902,374 1,811,217 (91,157)
3,500 3,500 3,450 (50)
215,000 215,000 181,316 (33,684)
48,000 48,000 31,985 (16,015)
3,141 3,141 7,013 3,872
6,000 6,000 5,140 (860)
19,200 19,200 18,800 (400)
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit A-3

Page 2

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fees, permits, and sales (continued):
Vending machine sales 2,500 2,500 - (2,500)
Vending machine sales - I/e 2,764 2,764 2,236 (528)
Fingerprinting fees - I/e 9,060 9,060 9,910 850
Concealed weapons class fees - I/e - - 5 5
Auction sales/equipment sales 19,500 20,265 97,762 77,497
Auction sales/equipment sales - f/s 5,000 97,750 102,850 5,100
Auction sales/equipment sales - I/e 107,448 107,448 68,011 (39,437)
Miscellaneous 27,450 27,450 41,465 14,015
Total fees, permits, and sales 25,940,544 26,095,059 25,132,422 (962,637)
County fines:
Sheriff's fines 2,980 2,980 1,590 (1,390)
Sex offender registry fee 21,066 21,066 23,230 2,164
Family court fines 11,500 11,500 11,027 (473)
Circuit court fines 28,000 28,000 18,802 (9,198)
Bond escheatment 40,500 40,500 25,961 (14,539)
Master-in-equity fines 255,000 255,000 209,723 (45,277)
Central traffic court fines 670,000 670,000 590,150 (79,850)
Criminal domestic violence court 7,000 7,000 7,313 313
Magistrates' courts fines 691,825 691,825 764,010 72,185
Pollution control fines - state (DHEC) 5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
Hazmat incident fines - f/s 4,000 4,000 12,781 8,781
Total county fines 1,736,871 1,736,871 1,664,587 (72,284)
Intergovernmental revenues:
Rent 1,518,000 1,518,000 1,273,000 (245,000)
DSS / operating reimbursements 46,000 46,000 49,795 3,795
Registration election operating reimbursements 388,873 388,873 165,874 (222,999)
Salary supplements 14,189 54,464 54,654 190
DSS (Child support) state 20,750 20,750 15,884 (4,866)
Indirect cost reimbursement 20,000 20,000 20,395 395
Federal prisoner reimbursement 2,405,391 2,405,391 1,245,818 (1,159,573)
MS4 municipal portion 55,000 55,000 72,500 17,500
Outside agency (admin. Cost) 14,000 14,000 34,925 20,925
State grants and reimbursements - 3,000 5,500 2,500
State grants and reimbursements - f/s - 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
Federal grants and reimbursements - f/s 15,015 170,224 5,000 (165,224)
Federal grants and reimbursements - I/e 120,212 135,227 105,712 (29,515)
Total intergovernmental revenues 4,617,430 5,830,929 4,049,057 (1,781,872)
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit A-3
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Other revenues:

Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments

Insurance recovery claims
Insurance recovery claims - I/e
GM warranty work
Unclaim property
Gifts and donations
Gifts and donations - f/s
Sale of scrap metal
Municipal tax billings
TIF Excess
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous - f/s
Miscellaneous - I/e

Total other revenues

Total revenues

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

824,200 824,200 5,829,186 5,004,986

- 6,583 7,800 1,217
20,595 20,595 - (20,595)
5,000 5,000 - (5,000)

- - 3,980 3,980
10,000 129,310 120,505 (8,805)

500 1,490 1,490 -

- - 2,768 2,768

114,000 114,000 117,820 3,820

- - 200,187 200,187

34,950 34,962 118,657 83,695

- 15,212 16,807 1,595

- - 17,411 17,411

1,009,245 1,151,352 6,436,611 5,285,259

$ 163,169,797 $ 165,158,528 $ 166,276,215 $ 1,117,687
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures:
General Administrative Division
County Council
Personnel $ 494,899 $ 480,476 $ 480,474 $ 2
Operating 1,434,203 1,441,775 1,440,954 821
Capital outlay 280,957 280,116 7,488 272,628
2,210,059 2,202,367 1,928,916 273,451
County Administrator
Personnel 721,836 784,880 784,876 4
Operating 43,883 38,205 37,594 611
Capital outlay 5,335 6,027 5,784 243
771,054 829,112 828,254 858
County Attorney
Operating 298,114 387,998 387,997 1
298,114 387,998 387,997 1
Finance
Personnel 746,769 795,130 795,126 4
Operating 229,361 238,223 238,087 136
Capital outlay 4,347 4,447 3,245 1,202
980,477 1,037,800 1,036,458 1,342
Procurement Services
Personnel 438,669 448,858 448,855 3
Operating 60,902 54,563 54,255 308
Capital outlay 350 2,977 1,687 1,290
499,921 506,398 504,797 1,601
Central Stores
Personnel 335,753 335,540 335,537 3
Operating 69,866 74,380 73,866 514
Capital outlay 20,949 22,853 22,699 154
426,568 432,773 432,102 671
Human Resources
Personnel 642,024 590,438 590,434 4
Operating 163,273 167,591 158,548 9,043
Capital outlay 10,249 12,364 10,168 2,196
815,546 770,393 759,150 11,243
Planning and GIS
Personnel 638,691 651,182 651,179 3
Operating 83,798 77,150 71,187 5,963
Capital outlay 253,605 256,279 252,852 3,427
976,094 984,611 975,218 9,393
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Expenditures:
General Administrative Division (continued)
Community Development

Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Land Development
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Treasurer
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Auditor
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Assessor
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Register of Deeds
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Technology Services

Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
2,053,244 1,986,731 1,986,729 2
346,614 389,568 212,145 177,423
294,092 323,567 35,234 288,333
2,693,950 2,699,866 2,234,108 465,758
825,083 772,733 772,731 2
207,973 772,398 173,411 598,987
23,500 35,123 13,761 21,362
1,056,556 1,580,254 959,903 620,351
772,997 789,370 789,368 2
329,345 405,040 403,775 1,265
9,550 6,650 2,340 4,310
1,111,892 1,201,060 1,195,483 5,577
887,074 876,674 876,672 2
141,556 104,379 102,481 1,898
4,712 39,350 4,302 35,048
1,033,342 1,020,403 983,455 36,948
2,103,711 2,060,676 2,060,672 4
243,190 201,290 197,664 3,626
93,130 205,728 136,743 68,985
2,440,031 2,467,694 2,395,079 72,615
555,273 526,601 526,597 4
153,377 148,470 146,650 1,820
63,457 178,566 31,946 146,620
772,107 853,637 705,193 148,444
1,410,802 1,013,259 1,013,257 2
1,250,018 1,130,104 1,116,094 14,010
1,290,516 1,358,719 917,194 441,525
3,951,336 3,502,082 3,046,545 455,537
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit A-4
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Expenditures:

General Administrative Division (continued)

Microfilming
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Non-Departmental
Operating Expenditures
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Total General Administrative Division
Personnel
Operating

Total current
Capital outlay

General Services Division
Building Services
Personnel
Operating

Capital outlay

Fleet Services
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Total General Services Division
Personnel
Operating

Total current
Capital outlay

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
157,290 140,264 140,262 2
40,336 39,765 38,442 1,323
1,933 1,895 1,634 261
199,559 181,924 180,338 1,586
1,978,019 6,578,543 240,000 6,338,543
(1,325,447) 9,930,686 (1,409,284) 11,339,970
- 10,505,845 162 10,505,683
652,572 27,015,074 (1,169,122) 28,184,196
14,762,134 18,831,355 12,492,769 6,338,586
3,770,362 15,601,585 3,443,866 12,157,719
18,532,496 34,432,940 15,936,635 18,496,305
2,356,682 13,240,506 1,447,239 11,793,267

20,889,178 $ 47,673,446

17,383,874 $ 30,289,572

1,934,354 $ 1,808,809 1,808,805 $ 4
510,014 510,276 451,995 58,281
532,326 998,160 439,284 558,876

2,976,694 3,317,245 2,700,084 617,161

1,294,517 1,272,125 1,272,122 3
208,528 221,319 206,974 14,345

18,279 44,683 19,210 25,473

1,521,324 1,538,127 1,498,306 39,821

3,228,871 3,080,934 3,080,927 7
718,542 731,595 658,969 72,626

3,947,413 3,812,529 3,739,896 72,633
550,605 1,042,843 458,494 584,349

4,498,018 $ 4,855,372 4,198,390 $ 656,982
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
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Exhibit A-4
Page 4

Expenditures:
Public Works Division
Administration
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Transportation
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Total Public Works Division
Personnel
Operating

Total current
Capital outlay

Public Safety Division
Administration
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Emergency Preparedness
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Animal Control
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
1,563,229 $ 1,358,243 $ 1,358,241 $ 2
182,875 111,320 106,237 5,083
122,580 129,984 23,485 106,499
1,868,684 1,599,547 1,487,963 111,584
5,268,213 4,711,495 4,711,491 4
3,583,443 4,879,604 3,597,921 1,281,683
1,992,263 3,566,531 2,031,897 1,534,634
10,843,919 13,157,630 10,341,309 2,816,321
6,831,442 6,069,738 6,069,732 6
3,766,318 4,990,924 3,704,158 1,286,766
10,597,760 11,060,662 9,773,890 1,286,772
2,114,843 3,696,515 2,055,382 1,641,133
12,712,603 $ 14,757,177  $ 11,829,272 $ 2,927,905
41917 % 43920 $ 43918 $ 2
58,211 32,858 32,123 735
500 145,300 77,300 68,000
100,628 222,078 153,341 68,737
152,406 123,931 123,929 2
76,062 75,021 60,724 14,297
500 148,788 110,206 38,582
228,968 347,740 294,859 52,881
1,157,912 1,202,376 1,202,372 4
435,650 380,873 337,712 43,161
207,636 230,760 39,524 191,236
1,801,198 1,814,009 1,579,608 234,401
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures:
Public Safety Division (continued)
Communications
Personnel 3,821,039 2,781,265 2,781,262 3
Operating 101,563 86,828 86,600 228
3,922,602 2,868,093 2,867,862 231
Emergency Medical Service
Personnel 13,953,269 13,269,653 13,258,304 11,349
Operating 2,583,559 3,145,830 3,128,670 17,160
Capital outlay 1,984,946 7,236,906 2,724,837 4,512,069
18,521,774 23,652,389 19,111,811 4,540,578
Fire Service
Personnel 19,140,539 20,395,874 20,395,867 7
Operating 2,620,986 3,013,215 2,871,400 141,815
Capital outlay 4,059,383 9,729,651 4,792,571 4,937,080
25,820,908 33,138,740 28,059,838 5,078,902
Total Public Safety Division
Personnel 38,267,082 37,817,019 37,805,652 11,367
Operating 5,876,031 6,734,625 6,517,229 217,396
Total current 44,143,113 44,551,644 44,322,881 228,763
Capital outlay 6,252,965 17,491,405 7,744,438 9,746,967

$ 50,396,078 $ 62,043,049 $ 52,067,319 $ 9,975,730

Judicial Division
Clerk of Court

Personnel $ 1,515,627 $ 1,441,280 $ 1,441,201 $ 79
Operating 577,418 580,649 557,530 23,119
Capital outlay 180,756 201,783 15,572 186,211

2,273,801 2,223,712 2,014,303 209,409

Circuit Solicitor

Personnel 3,043,151 2,931,111 2,931,108 3
Operating 568,577 614,939 551,126 63,813
Capital outlay 146,334 141,920 141,233 687

3,758,062 3,687,970 3,623,467 64,503

Circuit Court Services
Operating 226,895 260,845 260,840 5

226,895 260,845 260,840 5
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Expenditures:
Judicial Division (continued)
Coroner
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Probate Court
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Master-in-Equity
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Court Services - Magistrate
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Judicial Case Management System
Operating

Other Judicial Services
Operating

Total Judicial Division
Personnel
Operating

Total current
Capital outlay

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
885,231 838,679 838,676 3
681,870 646,965 574,218 72,747
135,628 268,666 170,059 98,607
1,702,729 1,754,310 1,582,953 171,357
903,284 845,861 845,858 3
94,559 89,005 91,221 (2,216)
5,887 8,066 4,463 3,603
1,003,730 942,932 941,542 1,390
413,691 426,429 426,427 2
23,870 23,024 22,971 53
4,234 3,337 3,336 1
441,795 452,790 452,734 56
2,645,477 2,501,913 2,501,907 6
681,973 635,129 632,510 2,619
38,141 101,197 96,271 4,926
3,365,591 3,238,239 3,230,688 7,551
83,699 83,699 82,131 1,568
83,699 83,699 82,131 1,568
80,182 79,054 78,745 309
80,182 79,054 78,745 309
9,406,461 8,985,273 8,985,177 96
3,019,043 3,013,309 2,851,292 162,017
12,425,504 11,998,582 11,836,469 162,113
510,980 724,969 430,934 294,035
12,936,484 $ 12,723,551 $ 12,267,403 456,148

152



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit A-4
Page 7

Expenditures:
Law Enforcement Division
Sheriff - Administration

Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Operations
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Security Services
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Code Enforcement
Personnel
Operating

Jail Operations
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Non-Departmental
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Total Law Enforcement Division

Personnel
Operating

Total current

Capital outlay

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
4825359 $ 5,168,088 5,168,073 $ 15
3,248,897 2,337,724 2,315,298 22,426
799,287 2,017,278 1,087,855 929,423
8,873,543 9,523,090 8,571,226 951,864
20,558,245 23,222,448 23,134,862 87,586
3,326,544 3,397,046 3,241,022 156,024
1,975,785 3,240,909 2,661,342 579,567
25,860,574 29,860,403 29,037,226 823,177
176,247 237,437 237,434 3
6,185 5,485 5,451 34
182,432 242,922 242,885 37
274,780 212,612 212,610 2
7,731 7,731 7,643 88
282,511 220,343 220,253 90
8,263,828 6,880,974 6,880,970 4
6,831,097 6,749,324 6,695,424 53,900
1,209,077 2,819,346 1,167,962 1,651,384
16,304,002 16,449,644 14,744,356 1,705,288
5,728,764 7,304,450 1,236,126 6,068,324
100,002 1,514,943 27 1,514,916
500,000 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
6,328,766 10,319,393 1,236,153 9,083,240
39,827,223 43,026,009 36,870,075 6,155,934
13,520,456 14,012,253 12,264,865 1,747,388
53,347,679 57,038,262 49,134,940 7,903,322
4,484,149 9,577,533 4,917,159 4,660,374
57,831,828 $ 66,615,795 54,052,099 $ 12,563,696

153



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit A-4
Page 8

Expenditures:
Boards and Commissions Division
Legislative Delegation
Personnel
Operating

Registration and Elections
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Other Commissions
Operating

Total Boards and Commissions Division
Personnel
Operating

Total current
Capital outlay

Health and Human Services Division
Health Department
Operating

Social Services
Operating

Veterans' Affairs
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
47,727  $ 49,340 49338 §$ 2
17,860 15,360 14,193 1,167
65,587 64,700 63,531 1,169
432,096 456,137 456,133 4
681,308 711,848 778,505 (66,657)
92,654 265,921 117,561 148,360
1,206,058 1,433,906 1,352,199 81,707
54,274 38,074 37,922 152
54,274 38,074 37,922 152
479,823 505,477 505,471 6
753,442 765,282 830,620 (65,338)
1,233,265 1,270,759 1,336,091 (65,332)
92,654 265,921 117,561 148,360
1,325919 $ 1,536,680 1,453,652 $ 83,028
345916 $ 322,466 345271 $ (22,805)
345,916 322,466 345,271 (22,805)
326,429 320,953 329,849 (8,896)
326,429 320,953 329,849 (8,896)
363,489 343,064 343,062 2
47,160 40,393 37,560 2,833
8,522 7,718 7,488 230
419,171 391,175 388,110 3,065
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit A-4
Page 9

Expenditures:
Health and Human Services Division (continued)
Museum
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Vector Control
Personnel
Operating
Capital outlay

Soil & Water Conservation
Personnel
Operating

Other Health and Human Services
Operating

Total Health and Human Services Division
Personnel
Operating

Total current
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures:
Personnel
Operating

Total current
Capital outlay

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
246,847 235,451 235,448 3
30,738 32,213 31,124 1,089
34,959 71,618 49,988 21,630
312,544 339,282 316,560 22,722
123,559 86,837 86,835 2
17,185 12,509 14,137 (1,628)
500 - - -
141,244 99,346 100,972 (1,626)
126,248 118,145 118,127 18
2,179 2,179 1,749 430
128,427 120,324 119,876 448
192,006 192,706 192,706 -
192,006 192,706 192,706 -
860,143 783,497 783,472 25
961,613 923,419 952,396 (28,977)
1,821,756 1,706,916 1,735,868 (28,952)
43,981 79,336 57,476 21,860
$ 1,865,737 $ 1,786,252 $ 1,793,344 % (7,092)
$ 113,663,179 $ 119,099,302 $ 106,593,275 $ 12,506,027
32,385,807 46,772,992 31,223,395 15,549,597
146,048,986 165,872,294 137,816,670 28,055,624
16,406,859 46,119,028 17,228,683 28,890,345
$ 162,455,845 $ 211,991,322 $ 155,045,353 $ 56,945,969
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Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are established to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted by
statute or regulations for particular purposes.

Major Programs

Library Funds — This fund has been determined to be a Major Fund. As a component unit, the Lexington
County Library funds are combined and reported as a special revenue fund of the reporting entity. All financial
resources of the library, such as property taxes, fines, fees, intergovernmental revenue, lottery proceeds and
donations are recorded in this fund as well as operational expenditures for each branch library.

“C” Funds — This fund has been determined to be a Major Fund. Funds are generated through gas taxes
collected by the State Treasurer and CTC donor county distribution under authority of South Carolina Code of
Laws (12-27-400) and are restricted for the improvement of roads and other transportation projects within the
County of Lexington. Funds are also used as matching funds for federal grants for highway enhancement and
beautification projects.

American Rescue Plan (SLFRP) — This fund has been determined to be a Major Fund. The American
Rescue Plan is part of the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery program legislation to help the
economy recover from the COVID-19 pandemic. These funds will be received directly from the
Department of the U.S. Treasury.

Non-Major Programs

Economic Development Program — Funds are received for the purpose of creating employment opportunities
and other economic development activity within the county.

Economic Development CCED Grants — The South Carolina Department of Commerce, through the SC
Coordinating Council for Economic Development (CCED), awards grants to promote the coordination of
economic development efforts by those state agencies involved in the recruitment of new business and the
expansion of current enterprises throughout the state.

Economic Development Project Fund — This fund is used for any projects that need to be done within the
three County industrial/Technology Parks.

Accommodations Tax — Funds are generated by a tax on the rental charges for accommodations to transients

mandated by South Carolina Code of Laws (6-1-530) to be used exclusively for the purposes of providing
funding for tourism development activities within the county.
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Tourism Development Fee — Funds are generated from a local 3% accommodations tax permitted under
South Carolina Code of Laws (6-1-570) and county (Ordinance 96-21). Funds are to be expended for the
purpose of investigating the feasibility and construction of public meeting facilities and/or other enhancements
to services used by tourist and convention delegates.

Temporary Alcohol Beverage License Fee — Funds are generated from the sale of (24 hour) permits under
South Carolina Code of Laws (61-6-2010) to bona fide nonprofit organizations and licensed business
establishments for the possession, sale, and consumption of alcoholic beverages. Expenditures are restricted
for capital improvements to tourism-related buildings, beaches, historic properties, and drainage systems; for
festivals and youth mentor programs; and for land to be used by the public for recreational purposes.

Minibottle Tax — Funds are generated from a tax on minibottles mandated by South Carolina Code of Laws
(12-33-245) and distributed to the counties to be used for educational purposes relating to the use of alcoholic
liquors and for the rehabilitation of alcoholics and drug addicts.

Indigent Care Program — Funds are generated by the county through a tax assessment mandated by South
Carolina Code of Laws (44-6-146), Medically Indigent Assistance Act, and forwarded to the Tax Commission
for distribution to hospitals in payment of indigent patients’ medical expenses.

Circuit Solicitor’s Programs — Separate funds are established to account for state revenue sharing to the
Solicitor’s 11th Circuit for programs such as the Drug Court, DUI Prosecution, Victim Witness Program,
Community Juvenile Arbitration Program, Solicitor’s Narcotics Forfeiture, State Funds, Pre-Trial Intervention
Program, Worthless Check Program, Alcohol Education Program, Broker Disclosure Penalty, and Solicitors
Restricted State. Separate funds are established to account for federal awards for judicial programs such as the
Truancy Alternative Program and the Domestic Violence Victim Service Provider.

Law Enforcement Programs — Separate funds are established to account for federal awards for the
enforcement of laws and support of programs such as Enhanced DUI Enforcement, 11% Circuit Law
Enforcement Network, Drug Parcel Interdiction Unit, Violence Against Women Act (VAWA), Victims of
Crime Act (VOCA), Child and Vulnerable Adult Abuse Investigator, Crime Reduction Unit, School Resource
Officer, Multi Crime Scene Investigation, Highway Safety Enhanced DUI Enforcement, Incident Management
Team, Impaired Driving Countermeasures, Coronavirus Prevention Grant, and Justice Assistance Grants. Other
funds account for the revenue and expenditures of the Inmate Services at the jail, the contracted School
Resource Officers and School Crossing Guards in the school districts, the Multijurisdictional Narcotics Task
Force, the Narcotics Forfeiture Fund, Civil Process Server, Alcohol Enforcement Team, Off Duty Program,
Body Cameras, Palmetto Pride, Title IV-D Process Server, Drug Lab Chemist, Project Life Server Grant and
Water Recreation Resource Tax.
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Other Designated Programs — Separate funds are established to account for federal awards for Homeland
Security Grants and the Citizens Corps Grant; for state awards from DHEC for EMS Grant-in-Aid and Duke
Endowment Grant for enhancement of ambulance services, and from State Budget and Control Board for
special community projects; a private award from Dominion Energy for the emergency disaster preparedness
program, an award from Firehouse Subs, and the Uplift Lexington Community Paramedic Grant. Other funds
account for the revenue/expenditures of the Rural Development Act, Clerk of Court Professional bond fees,
Public Defender, rental of parking spaces, revenues designated to the Employee Committee to be used for
employee morale activities, county appropriated funds for the administrative expenses to manage state and
federal grants, and funds from Municipalities in the County to cover the cost the judges time spent in presiding
over Municipal Courts.

HUD Urban Entitlement Community Development Programs — These are federal entitlement allocations
awarded to Lexington County through the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development to
provide sewer, water, and any other projects/services which will benefit the low to moderate urban
communities in Lexington County. The funding streams are for Community Development Block Grant, Home
Program, Emergency Solutions Grant, Community Development Block Grant — Disaster Recovery, Community
Development Block Grant — Mitigation, COVID-19 Community Development Block Grant and COVID-19
Emergency Solutions Grant. A five-year plan has been developed to accomplish these projects.

Title IV-D DSS Child Support (Clerk of Court and Law Enforcement) — The SC Department of
Social Services provides to the county federal awards in the form of transaction reimbursements (based on
unit cost), incentive payments (percentage of child support payments collected), service of process
payments (unit cost for serving papers), and reimbursement of county DSS administrative expenses. The
federal funds are restricted for activities related to the establishment, collection, and enforcement of child
support obligations.

Emergency Telephone System 911 — Funds are generated through a 911 tariff and CMRS cell phone fees
under authority of South Carolina Code of Laws (23-47-40, 23-47-65) and are restricted for costs
necessary for establishing and maintaining the county 911 offices and communications system.

Victims Bill-of-Rights — Funds are generated by assessments and surcharges paid by violators of the law,
as mandated by the South Carolina Code of Laws (14-1-206), Act 141, and Victims Bill-of-Rights.
Expenditures are restricted to the enhancement of services to victims of crimes as set forth in South
Carolina Code of Laws (16-3-1500 through 16-3-1560).

Delinquent Tax Collections — Funds are generated by the imposition of charges on delinquent tax
remittances under authority of South Carolina Code of Laws (12-51-40) and must be used for personnel,
operating, and capital expenses incurred in the collection of delinquent taxes by the Treasurer’s office.
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Exhibit B-3
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
MAJOR FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LIBRARY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Property taxes $ 9,300,930 $ 9,300,930 $ 9,259,011 $ (41,919)
State shared revenue 587,982 661,694 661,694 -
Fees, permits, and sales 35,377 35,377 24,202 (11,175)
County fines 52,258 52,258 81,093 28,835
Intergovernmental revenues 1,368 46,394 43,388 (3,006)
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) 21,416 21,416 314,003 292,587
Other 1,100 1,100 1,221 121
Total revenue 10,000,431 10,119,169 10,384,612 265,443
Expenditures:
Library
Personnel 7,211,976 7,211,976 6,831,607 380,369
Operating 1,557,924 2,570,925 1,363,215 1,207,710
Capital outlay 1,230,531 3,264,917 1,583,944 1,680,973
Total expenditures 10,000,431 13,047,818 9,778,766 3,269,052
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures - (2,928,649) 605,846 3,534,495
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 4,629 4,629 -
Transfers out (4,629) (4,629) -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses - (2,928,649) 605,846 3,534,495
Fund balance, beginning of year 8,678,095 8,678,095 8,678,095 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 8,678,095 $ 5,749,446 $ 9,283,941 $ 3,534,495
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Exhibit B-6
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
MAIJOR FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - SCHEDULE "C" FUND PROGRAMS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ 6,193,150 $ 17,377,707 16,548,780 $ (828,927)
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) 75,000 75,000 775,405 700,405
Other - 1,400 3,153 1,753
Total revenue 6,268,150 17,454,107 17,327,338 (126,769)
Expenditures:
General administrative
Personnel 20,196 20,196 16,167 4,029
Operating 20,161 82,891 26,005 56,886
Capital outlay 8,500 15,588 - 15,588
Public works
Personnel 135,409 135,409 57,096 78,313
Operating 6,115,242 37,492,093 9,151,003 28,341,090
Total expenditures 6,299,508 37,746,177 9,250,271 28,495,906
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (31,358) (20,292,070) 8,077,067 (28,369,137)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 25,850 31,906 31,906 -
Transfer out (6,056) (6,056)
Total other financing sources (uses) 25,850 25,850 25,850 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing (5,508) (20,266,220) 8,102,917 (28,369,137)
Fund balance, beginning of year 15,899,054 15,899,054 15,899,054 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 15,893,546 $ (4,367,166) $ 24,001,971 $ (28,369,137)

167



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
MAJOR FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (SLFRP)

SUMMARIZED BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2023

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022)

Exhibit B-7

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Accounts payable and accrued
payables
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities, fund balance,
and other credits
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2023 2022
17,483,371 8,914,815
9,800,000 25,000,000
27,283,371 33,914,815
165,442 11
27,117,929 33,914,804
27,283,371 33,914,815
27,283,371 33,914,815




COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (SLFRP)
SUMMARIZED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

MAJOR FUND

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022)

Exhibit B-8

Revenue:
Intergovernmental revenues

Total revenue

Expenditures:
General administrative
General services
Public works
Public safety
Judicial
Law enforcement
Boards & commissions
Health & human services
Community & economic development
Library

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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2023 2022
6,796,875 24,113,881
6,796,875 24,113,881
1,155,601 1,421,160
154,120 403,215
433,144 1,073,862
2,618,870 4,728,739
541,787 1,294,291
1,416,833 4,141,205
26,828 64,696
40,458 91,844
26,839 56,718
382,395 838,151
6,796,875 14,113,881
- 10,000,000

(10,000,000)

(10,000,000)




COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
MAIJOR FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (SLFRP)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-9

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ -3 -3 6,796,875 $ 6,796,875
Total revenue - - 6,796,875 6,796,875
Expenditures:
General administrative - 1,155,601 1,155,601 -
General services - 154,120 154,120 -
Public works - 433,144 433,144 -
Public safety - 9,712,421 2,618,870 7,093,551
Judicial - 541,787 541,787 -
Law enforcement - 1,416,833 1,416,833 -
Boards & commissions - 26,828 26,828 -
Health & human services - 40,458 40,458 -
Community & economic development - 26,839 26,839 -
Library - 382,395 382,395 -
Non-departmental - 15,691,188 - 15,691,188
Total expenditures - 29,581,614 6,796,875 22,784,739
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures - (29,581,614) - (29,581,614)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing - (29,581,614) - (29,581,614)
Fund balance, beginning of year - - - -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $  (29,581,614) $ - $  (29,581,614)
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Nonmajor Funds
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Exhibit B-10
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022)

Totals
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental Funds
Revenue Service Projects June 30,
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,389,442 $ 220,448 $ 3,916,975 $ 15,526,865 $ 4,836,588
Investments 17,628,214 533,441 20,056,630 38,218,285 25,270,572
Receivables:
Property taxes 47,084 266,102 313,186 329,723
Accounts 1,500,675 1,500,675 1,449,200
Due from other governments:
Federal 1,212,449 1,212,449 1,540,811
State 1,708,402 1,708,402 1,810,581
Other 14,358 14,358 12,262
Due from other funds:
General fund 9,145 9,145 251
Special revenue fund 16,050 64 16,114 113,897
Enterprise fund 14,880 14,880 -
Interfund receivable 25,000 25,000 -
Total assets $ 33,565,699 $ 1,019,991 $ 23,973,669 $ 58559,359 $ 35,363,885
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
payables $ 2,719,011 $ $ 128,140 $ 2,847,151 $ 2,205,962
Retainage payable - 154,793
Due to other funds:
General fund 39,276 39,276 17,534
Special revenue fund 16,114 16,114 113,897
Internal service fund - 18
Interfund payable 581,259 581,259 720,381
Unearned revenue 42,043 42,043 43,831
Total liabilities 3,397,703 - 128,140 3,525,843 3,256,416
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 239,350 239,350 250,526
Total deferred inflows of resources - 239,350 - 239,350 250,526
Fund balances:
Restricted 780,641 780,641 786,905
Committed 30,338,057 23,845,529 54,183,586 31,251,154
Unassigned (170,061) (170,061) (181,116)
Total fund balance 30,167,996 780,641 23,845,529 54,794,166 31,856,943
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balance $ 33,565,699 $ 1,019,991 $ 23,973,669 $ 58,559,359 $ 35,363,885
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022)

Exhibit B-11

Revenue:

Property taxes

State share revenue

Fees, permits, and sales

County fines

Intergovernmental

Interest (net of increase (decrease)
in the fair value of investments)

Other

Total revenue

Expenditures:

General administrative

General services

Public safety

Judicial

Law enforcement

Health & human services

Community development

Economic development
Capital outlay:

General administrative

Public works

Public safety

Judicial

Law enforcement

Community development

Economic development
Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital asset
Sale of land
State grant
Miscellaneous revenue
Transfer in
Transfer out

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures and uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Totals
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental Funds
Revenue Service Projects June 30,
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022
$ 1,716,106 $ 4,081,526 $ (496) $ 5,797,136 $ 5,455,100
1,424,016 1,424,016 1,239,333
4,332,387 4,332,387 5,891,773
309,201 309,201 330,145
13,893,169 13,893,169 14,793,352
1,226,893 26,193 465,892 1,718,978 81,109
241,195 241,195 933,639
23,142,967 4,107,719 465,396 27,716,082 28,724,451
2,360,318 2,360,318 2,848,047
- (10)
1,837,734 1,837,734 1,641,651
3,873,310 1,944 3,875,254 3,945,039
5,521,775 5,521,775 4,901,555
1,618,509 1,618,509 1,499,060
5,525,999 5,525,999 8,561,989
1,836,440 1,836,440 1,001,411
305,243 305,243 3,749
44,640 44,640 314,218
471,597 471,597 354,899
22,195 22,195 38,236
695,702 695,702 301,334
8,151 8,151 5,864
57,238 1,822,327 1,879,565 1,765,509
3,425,000 3,425,000 3,190,000
690,742 690,742 828,442
1,315 1,315 1,275
23,828,968 4,117,057 2,174,154 30,120,179 31,202,268
(686,001) (9,338) (1,708,758) (2,404,097) (2,477,817)
- 4,800,000
3,152,599 3,152,599 -
436,875 436,875 -
12,210,000 12,210,000 -
4,137,024 3,074 6,222,708 10,362,806 7,056,097
(815,576) (5,384) (820,960) (6,109,644)
6,474,047 3,074 18,864,199 25,341,320 5,746,453
5,788,046 (6,264) 17,155,441 22,937,223 3,268,636
24,379,950 786,905 6,690,088 31,856,943 28,588,307
$ 30,167,996 $ 780,641 $ 23,845529 $ 54,794,166 $ 31,856,943

173



26C'18€' L $ 669'G9S'€E $  T1SC'LS9 $ 96G°/9T $ 968'€SE'.L § L60'96T'8 $ 6Tv'cc0'S $ €TL'vec'T $ 20L'W90'T $ 80S'C69 $ 9€L'8.T $ GSp'T $ 8eG'TGE  $ 9ST'ZvL'9  $ 000'00L §$ ¢€9'20C'T $ Sddue[eq puny pue s321nosal
O SMOJJUI pa.iajap ‘salfiqel| [e1oL
0S6'6.E'7C 966'L9T'0€ 620'€v9 €61'29T  E€E'9TE'L EVS'LeT'L  €26'€65Y 2ET'186 8IT'€20'T 1€ 9€.'8.1T 00€ 0TT'02C 9ST'L¥L'9 - 260'89T'T adueleq puny [e1oL
(cze'esT) (T90°0LT) (069'svT)  (TL€%2) paudisseun
2.8'€95'vC 1G0'8EE'0E 620'€v9 £67'29T €E€'9TE"L €€C'ELT'L ¥62'819'Y CET'/86 8TT'€20'T 1€ 9€.'8LT 00e 0TT'022 9GT'LvL'9 260'89T'T paubissy
:$80UB[R] PUNS
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - $32IN0S31 JO SMOJUI PaLI3Jap [E10 |
- - saxe] Auadoud - anusnal a|qejreneun
S304N0S3H 40 SMO14NI d3dd343a
Zre'100'e €0L'L6E'E eyt €0T'S €95'L€ ¥55'890'T  96v'8ZY 18G°L€2 ¥85'TY L1Y'269 - GST'T 8CV'TET - 000°002 0rS'6€
T€8'EY £v0°CY 65y ¥85'TY anusAal paulesun
18€'02L 6G2'18S £19'88¢ 165'€8 §90'60¢C a|qeAed punyaiu)
8T - puny 891AJ8S [eualu]
L68'ETT yIT'9T 0S0'9T 9 puny anuanal [e1oads
¥ES'LT 9.2'6¢ 1929 €T¢ 8y 0S0'G €192 SeL 0ct puny [eisus
1spuny Jay1o 03 ang
189'60T'Z  $ TI0'6TLC § SSv'2 $ 068'v $ STIG'/E $ 118'85. $ e€vI'8T1E  § T18L'LC $ $ LI1'269 $ $ SST'T $ 8CV'IET B $ 000'00L $ 9SE'6E $ sa|qeded
paniade pue ajqeAed sJUN0JIY
ALINO3 ANN4 ANV S3LLINIVIT
26C'T8E'Lc  $ 669'G9S'€E $  TSC'LS9  $ 965'L9T $ 968'€SE'L $ L60'96T'8 $ 61v'2c0'S $ €TL'VCZ'T $ 20L'¥90'T $ 80S'T69 $ 9EL'8.T  $ GSY'T $ 8€S'TSE $ 9ST'ZPL'9 § 00000L $ 2€9'20C'T $ S)asSe [e10L
- 000'52 000'52 31qeA180a punyIsil
- 088'%T 088'%T ESIIBIUE]
L68'ETT 050'9T 050'9T anusnal fe1oads
16¢ SYT'6 €L 88¢ 165'8 14 14 puny [eisus
'spuny Jay1o woy ang
292t 8GE'YT 85E'WT 1y10
185'0T8'T 20%'80L'T Lvv'29 0.5'82. 659'GS 11%'269 6172'69T alels
TT8'0vS'T 6v7'21C'T 286'856 L9¥'€Se |elapa4
sjuswuIanoB Jaylo woy ang
00Z'6Y%'T §29'005'T €56'T ¥29'vTE 199'258 0Ze'TLT 196'95T 0sT'e SIUN022Y
2L6'8y ¥80'Lv 8859 96V saxe} Auadold
:(sa1qnoajj0oun Joy
S3OUBMO][E JO 13U) S3|qeAIaday
692'8L0'6T v12'829'LT L02'v0T we'LyT  9TT'Se8'e 826'252'S  V9E'60V'T €L2'912 £85'6€8 vLL'E6 LST'T GLT'€89'E 962'GS0'T SjuswIseAUl
6v5'92€'E $ crv'68E'TT $  vWO'ESS  $ TL6'E  $ 9ST'WIC'e § GEL'CSO'T $ L2Z'9ev'T $ 2L9'0LL § TES'8LT B TIE $ ¢18'18 $ 86T $ 682'28T § 186'€90't $ 000°00L $ S6L'TST $ SjuafeAINba ysed pue ysed
2202 £20¢C SU0123]10D pung 116-3 (gr-guaipxa  ~ (ranawxa  (rT-auqua wreiboid Xe | 994 994 Xe | s108f01d SjueI9 weiboid S13SSVY
Xel sybry wayshs UO B|IEIap SB)  UO Pa|IRIaP SE)  UO PajIelap se) ared anog 8suadIT yswdojanag suonep Juswdojans@ juswdojaneg juswdolansg
“0€ aung jusnbuleg jo g auoydaja L sweiboid sweibold sweibold usbipul A abesanag wsuno g -OWWO022Y  JJWOU0YT  JIWOU0dT  OIWOou0d]
JofewuoN SWNOIA Aouabiow3g pareubisa@  luswiadiojul  SJ0MDI0S 10409
s[el0| 1BY10 Me] unauD Arelodwia |

¢T-g Hqiux3

(2202 ‘0€ INNC A3ANT YVIA HO4 STVLOL IAILVHVANOD HLIM)

€202 '0€ ANNC
133HS 30NV 1VE ONINIGNOD
SANN4 INNIAIY TVIO3dS
VNITOYVI HLNOS ‘NOLONIX3 140 ALNNOD

174



0S6'6LEYT $ 966'L91°0E §  6T0°€Y9  § €6vTOl  § €EEIIECL § €YSLTIL $§ €T6'EOSY  $ TEILS6 $ 8II'€TO’l  § 1€ $ 9EL'8LL § 00€ § o1r'ozc $ 9SILYL9 $ - $ T60'891°1
6TT'161°1T 0S6°6LE YT YLI'SYE Y0L'961 195°L00°L T80°9€¥°9 66V TTTY Y0E'65H 1€7°918 e €96°0L1 TT6°081 016°9T1 YET'ETS'E 000°0S SEI'PLS
1TL881°¢ 9Y0°'88L'S SS8°L6T (112¥¢) TLL'S0E 19169 yTr'iLe 8T8°LTS L89°90T - SLLL (@z9'os1) 00T°€6 TT6'ETT'E (000°08) LS6°€6T
LSY'LLS'E LYOYLY9 (FET°601) - - 9zE116 PEL'STTT 88STLI - - OLT°€S) - - 60L°920°€ - 000°00€°T
@sy1r8) (OLS'ST8) (FET°601) (889°¢y) (8LETOT) OLT€S) (00Z'821)
606817t YTO'LEL'Y P10°SEE ] PEL'STT'L 996°€LT 01€T 000°00€°T
- 66S°TSIE 66S°TSTE
(9€L°88¢€) (100°989) 686907 (T1T%¢€) TLL'80E (S98°612) (01€+S8) 0vTSSE £89°90C - 61609 (2z9°0S1) 002°€6 €ITL6L (000°05) (€0°900°1)
€TI'EP1'ST 896'8T8°€CT 7867198 LOLOTE 995°660°C 0vS'8SL'8 LT8'ES0'9 L8YELS PSEETY SS1°566 000°0T T10°9%0°T 199°6€€ - 000°0SL 8L9°001°T
PEET0€ T0L°S69 T0L'S69
9€T8¢ $61°TT 9€€61 658°C
668VS€E L6S 1LY 80S°8S€ 680°€TT
S6L'LS 8ETLS 000°€y 8ETYI
¥98°S 1S1°8 1S1°8
6YL'E -
090°66%°1 60S°819°T $SE'ET9 SS1°666
$S5° 106 SLLITS'S 059°€91 STI8SE'S
€PSLT6E 0T€°€L8E LSO'LYT STT'SS8T 8T0°1L8
1$9°1%9°1 YEL'LES'] 8S0°IPL1 9L9°96
T1+°100°T 0rF'9€8°1 000°0SL 0vr980°T
686°195°8 666°STS'S 666°STS'S
(o1n -
LY0'8¥8°T 81€°09€°T 786198 ¥90°L6 000°0T 110°9%0°1 199°6€€
L8EYSLYT L96THI'ET 1LS'89T°T 96%°9LT 8EE'80FT SL9BES'S LIS661°S LTI'6TTT 170°0€8 SS1°566 676°08 68€°568 198°8Ch €ITL6T 000°00L S€9'76
6£9°€€6 S61°1¥T 0sy 089°0tC 9
166°09 €68°97C'1 819°6LE 6609 008°5$T ¥10°91¢C 061°€6 T 150°6T 669°¢ 979 €1T'L61 WEYE
TseteoLyl 691°€68°€1 16881 6€9°€50°8 €EEIP6'E 90€PLI'T 000°00L
SPI0€E 10Z°60€ 90S°1ST SEI'8T 095°6C
€LL168'S LSETEEY S19°€e 8€5°TS1°T TesT 658°1€1°1 0201 0ST'LL €9LV68
€EC6ETT 910°¥TH'1 SS1°566 198°8h
PS1°608°1 $ 901°9IL°T §  888°¥S8  § $ $ $ $ 066°008 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 8TT09
70T €20T SUONI[[0D) pung 1164 (61-9 Haryxy (L1-g nquyxg (S1-¢ mquyxg WeIso1 XeJ, 30 o] 39, XeJ, s109[014 SyueIn) WeIs01
xe[ sySry wayskg o pafeIap se) U0 pafeIop st) ) amog oSeronag juowdojoasq suonep juowdojoad@  Judwdooasg  Judwdofaasg
0¢ ounf juenburjoq Jjong suoydapo], swerSorq swesSord sweiSorg Juagipuy U [0Yo9[y WSLNOo |, -OWIWIOOY QMO0 QIWOU0dT JIIOU0dT
JofewuoN SWOIA Kouagrowy pareusdisoq JUSWADIOJUY $,10JI21[0S dwa ],
s[el0, 1410 me umnox)

$ 1894 JO pud ‘doue[eq pun,y

1894 Jo SuruurSeq ‘dduefeq punj

sasn Suroueuly Joyj0
pue saxmipuadxo (1opun) 1040
$901n0s Suroueuly IOYJ0

PUE SONUSARI JO (KOURIOIAP) SS0XT

(sasn) sa01n0s
Suroueuyy 1010 €10 ],
no sIdysueI],
ul s1gjsuel],
Ppue[ Jo s[es
:(sasn) $20In0s Surouruy JYIQ

sammpuadxd 1040
SONUIAII JO (KOUSIOOP) SSOIXT

samypuadxa [ejo],

JUSWDIONUD MET
[erorpnf
Kyoyes onqng
Juawdo[aAdp druouodq
JuowdoaAdp Ayunwio))
SIOIAIDS [RIDUSD)
QAIENSIUTWPE [2IOUID)
:Kepyno [ende)
SOIAIAS UBWINY % YI[EIH
JUSWAOIOJUS MET
[erpng
Kyoyes aqng
Juawdo[aAdp druoU0dT
yuawdojeasp Ayunuro))
SOOIAIDS [RIOUID)
SANRLSIUIWPE [BIUSD)
:somyipuadxg

QNUAAJI [BIO],

Q0
(S)udUIISIAUL JO dN[BA JTRJ oY) Ul

(9SB2I109P) 2SBAIOUI JO JU) ISAIU]

[BIUSIUIdA0S 1)U

sauy Auno)

sa[es pue ‘spuniad 539

ANUDIAI paIeys eI§

$ soxey Ajradorg
1ONUAAY

e1-gnquuxy

(220T ‘0€ ANNI AAANT YVAA YO STY.LOL HAILVIVANOD HLIM)
€20T “0€ ANNI AIANT YVAA TVOSId dHL 404
HONVIVE ANNA NI SEONVHO ANV ‘SHINLIANAIXH ‘SANNIATY 40 LNFWHLV.LS ONINIFNOD
SANNA ANNTATY TVIOAdS

VNITO¥VD HLNOS ‘NOLONIXAT A0 ALNNOD

175



€ILYTTT SLL'66S $ ¥T9'L8 $ 6T § sesIT § LIT'6€E $ €09°1L1 $ 91L°S81 $ 9€8°101 $ osror $9 $ 001 § T6SH9 10%
TE1°L86 6TS°L6S 186°SL - TITIe - 0sT'1 91L°681 $68°86 (69) 9 65 7559 10%
TE1°L86 6TS°L6S 186°SL TITIe 0sT1 91L°s81 $68°86 (69) 9 65 7559 10%
186°L€T 9WTT €701 6T €Ce LIT'6E €SE0LL - 16T STTo1 - 14 - -
$90°60C 76T L9SSE 61L°691 LOV'L 0T
SEL €51 wy 011
18L°LT 9WTT $ 0TI $ $ oLt § 0sse § Iy $ $ 1€8C § 8SLT $ $ 1c
€ILYTTT SLL'66S $ ¥T9'L8 $ 6T § sesIeT § LiT'6€E $ €09°1L1 $ 91L°S81 $ 9€8°101 § 9s1°01 $9 $ 001 § 759 10%
000°6T 000°6T
8vl 8vl
659°SS (414 L1T'6€ 0sT°1 000°S1
196951 00S°1 SOTSH1 951°01 001
€LT91T ¥9€°68 S€8°66 YLO'SE
TLYOLL SLL'66S § 09T $ § s€0°0T $ $ $ 188°%8 § LIS $ $9 $ § Tss9 10%
(C1-g nqmxg Sspun 2Je1s Keudq weIso1g punj punj spunj punj JueID W51y UONNJASOIJ JueID JueID JueID
UO paZLIBWWNS SE) paLISaY 2INSO[OSI] uoneonpyg PREle) UONUAAINUL RN QIMIQLI0] uoneniqry SSQUN A na uno) SnIq  90IAIDS WINOIA weiSorg
sweidoid sIoNoros 10)101[0S 101 [oyody SSO[UHOM [emaig s, Jojo1oS SOI0JIEN aquaAnf wrorA Ad QAIBUINY
nnomn) [eo], s,Jojo10S Ayunuwiwo)) 10)101[0S Koueni],

SNPAID 12YI0 pue
“2our[eq puny ‘SonIqer] el L

Qoue[Eq pUNJ [RIO],

paudissy
:s20UB[Rq puUN |

sanqer| (2101

9]qeed pungrojuy
anuaAal [e1oadg
puny [e1ouan)
:spuny IaYjo o} (g
sojqeded
pon1ooe pue ojqeded sjunodoy

ALINOF ANNA ANV SHILITIEVIT

BECNAENY

9[qBAId221 punjId)u]
anuaAdl [e10adg
puny [e1ouan)

Spuny JaYjo woy ang
BEN

:SJUOWILIDA0T JAYI0 WOl ancy
SJUN02DY

:(sa[quoajooun

10J SIOUBMO[[E JO JoU) SI[BAIIY

SJUSUNSIAU]
SJUS[EAIND? Ysed pue yse)

SLASSV

¥1-d 1qiyxg

€20C ‘0€ ANNT

LHFHS dONVIVE AdZIIVINANS
SINVIDOUd SAOLIDITOS LINDYID - SANNA INNFATT TVIOAdS

VNITO¥VD HLNOS ‘NOLONIXAT 0 ALNNOD

176



TEI'L86 $  6TSL6S $ 18$°SL $ - $ TITIC $ - $ 0ST'1 § 91,781 $ $68°86 $ (69) $ 9 $ 6 § TSS9 $ 107
POE6SH - 081°LLI - SES0l - - €LTT91 9967201 L) 9 (€9) 7559 107
8T8°LTS 6T§°L6S (66°101) - LLY01 - 0sT°1 34474 (1L9°€) L01 - 6 - -
88S°TLI - - - - €Iv'Ts (8LETOT) - 885796 09921 - S0 - -
(8LETOT) (8LETOT)
996°€LT €IS 88596 099°7C1 S0¢
0rT'Sse 6TS°L6S (66S°T01) - LL901 (€17°29) 879°201 €PYET (6ST°001) (€55pT1) - (€10) - -
L88°EL8 1LYT SLYLO01 T6T €26C 009°€61 8LI'TEC - €79 191 TLYELT - €69 - -
658°CT S79 vETT
870°1L8 981 SLYLO1 76T €26 009°€61 8LITET 607651 TLYELL €69
LTI6TT T 000009 9L0°9 T6T 009°€T L8TTYL 908°€EE €rbeC ¥8ET9 61687 - oty - -
IPTIL 9L0°9 18L°¢ P8E°L
90E LT 000009 76T L8I°TY1 9THOE 79961 00009 61687
095°6T 095°6T
0z0Y1 $ $ $ $ 009°€l $ $ $ $ $ $ $ oty $ $
(c1-g nquuxg spun,j ajels Jeuad [ pun | pun,| pun,| pun,| uoneniqry wersold uonndISoIJ 1oy el el
UO PIZLIBWIWNS SE) ALy 2InSo[IsI] uoneanpyg Pptlle) UOHUDAIU] AeIg QINJIYIO ] JquaAng SSOUN M na Sniq QOIAIOS WIOIA wesSorg
swerSold s J0YDI0S Jo)01j08 jolg [0Yoory SSIYMOA [eLnold BRUIGI VN SON0JIBN Aunuwo)) wmdIA Ad QANRUIAN Y
nnoII) [e10], s J0Jd10g J0)191[0S Koueniy,

$ 1894 JO pus ‘doue[eq pun,j

1ea4 Jo SuruurSaq ‘oouefeq pun |

sasn Suroueury JOYI0 pue
sarmpuadxa (Jopun) 1040 $90mMo0s Suroueury
J9U10 pUB SINUIAJI JO (KOUSIDLAP) SSAIXE]

(sasn) $201n0s Juroueury JAY0 [eI0],

N0 SIAJSuLL],
ur SIJSuRL],
:(sasn) sa0nos Suroueuyy YO

samjipuodxa 1940
SONUAAI JO (KOUSIDLIP) SSAIXF

sarmypuadxa [ejo,

[erorpng
Kepno [ende)
[erorpng
:samyipuadxg

ANUAARI [0,

SJUDUISIAUT JO IN[BA J1BJ ) U
(35Ba103p) dSBAIOUL JO JU) ISAIU]
[EIUDUILIdA0S Id}U]
souyy Kjuno)
$ so[es pue ‘syuned ‘s90,q
NULARY

ST-gnquxg

€20C 0€ ANNI AIANT YVHA TVOISId HL 404
HONVIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD ANV ‘STINLIANIXT ‘SHOINIATY 40 LNFWHLY.LS AZIIVINNNS
SINVIDOUd SAOLIDITOS LINDYID - SANNA INNFATT TVIOAdS

VNITO¥VD HLNOS ‘NOLONIXAT 0 ALNNOD

177



6TE6S1 $ T6l°1€E $ ¥10°6S $ €0L $ - $ $€0°081 $ 118671 § St¥LE $ L8I°SI $ TL6'Ee $ S88°601  $ 6SLY $ ovl'ely  $ SNPAID J2Y10 pue
‘doue[eq puny ‘SanIfIqeI] [BI0 ],
STYT 9T°S ¥10°6S ¥ - SLS'8LI 995°6T1 SHrLE L8T°ST TL6'EE S88°601 el or161y Qdue[eq puny [e10],

pougisseun)

ST 9TS #10°6S laq4 SLS'8LI 995°6T1 SHhLE L8I'ST TL6'EE S88°601 el orI61Y pousissy
:sddue[eq punyg
LLO'SET 0£6°ST - (54 - 6SY'1 YTy - - - - SIF'E - sanIIqel| [0,
65t SONUIAJY pauaedun)
06€°1T LLL'TT SI'E a[qeAed pungrojuy

onuoaAdl [eroedg

L8ST (134 puny [e1oudn
spunj Iayjo 03 ang

L8Y°ETT $ 99 $ $ $ $ 6SP°T $ 908°c $ $ $ $ $ $ $ so[qeded
poniode pue djqeked sjunoody

ALINOA ANNA ANV SALLITIAVIT
6TE6S1 $ T6l'1€E $ ¥10°6S $ €0L $ - $ $€0°081 $ 118671 § St¥LE $ L8I°SI $ TL6'Ee $ S88°601  § 6SLY $ ovl'ely  $ $19SSE [10],

asudioyug

onuoAdY [e1oadg

0CT puny [eIouan
‘spunj Iayjo woly ang

IST°E Bl

066971 T61°1¢€ 0L691 6SLYy [e1opaq
“mHGOEEu\yow Jayjo wogy ang

6€€°TI SHUN0IDY

:(sa1qno9rooun

10J SOOUBMO[[B JO JoU) SI[QRAIOONY
£68°0S 020°9¢ €LTSTE SJUSUSIAU]
$ $ 1718 $ €0L $ § ¥€0°081 $ 129°TIl § SvbLe $ L8I°SI § TL6'EE $ $98°€L $ $ 91L°06 $ syuaeamba yses pue yse)

JIELS) SAINSLIULIIUNOY) wed ], JueID) ‘Juy wed], XeJ, wei3old juein) nun 10130 1201130 210 JI0MION JOAIS SLASSY

qe1 Suiaug JUSWIDIOJU apug JuoweSeue $30IN0SIY Amqg 10V USWIOA TOTOIPIdUL 20IN0SY Q0INOSAY ysel JuduIddIoJUg $S9001J
3niqg paaredu] [oY091y opowifed JuapIdU| UoIBAIONY 3o Jsuredy 9018 SnuiQg [ooyos Il O10oIBN me| ad-Al oL
dSHS Ioepm QOUSJOIA Awopeoy SIPPIN 1A TOID) YIT |
ei139[[0) Al  poOMYDY
€202 ‘0€ ANNS
LA9HS 9ONVIVE AHZIVININNS
SINVIDOYd INAWADYOANT MVT - SANNA HNNFHATY TVIOAdS
VNITOIVD HLNOS ‘NOLONIXAT 40 ALNNOD
| 98ed

91-€ Haryxa

178



61¥°720°S $ 9CI'6 8€0°61 $ - 869°000°T $ TSOTIS'T  § 9€¥'L99 $ €LTT $ S0L6T $ S089 $ eyl $ PLS'LE $ TTYIET  $ L6611 S SNPAID J2Y10 pue
‘doue[eq puny ‘saniIqer| [e1o],
€T6°€6S" Y - 96S°L1 (1LEYD) 956°TS8 €78°0SL°1 1€8°%99 - YOL'ST ¥0€°9 [44541 €98°LE T1z9ce L6611 Qoue[eq puny [e10],
(1LEYD) (1LEYD) poudisseun
Y6T'819F 965°L1 956°T58 €78°0SL°T 1€8799 $0LST #0€°9 (44841 €98°LE TIToce L6611 pousissy
:so0uB[Rq pUng
96v'8TH 9716 W'l 1LEYT LYl 62T 19 S09°C €LT1 100 10S - 11 019°S - sanIqel| 0],
65y SONUAADI POUIBAU()
155°€8 9TI‘6 TL6'TT €LTT 865°C a[qeAed punyroyuy
- onuoaAal [erdadg
£VE°9T LT 10$ #50°1 puny [e1ouan
:spuny 194jo 03 an
448383 $ 'l $ 66€°1 086'SCT  § 6TT19 $ $09C $ S €or'l $ $ $ 11 $ 955y $ $ so[qeded
poniode pue djqeked sjunoody
ALINOA ANNA ANV SALLITIAVIT
61¥°720°S $ 9CI'6 8€0°61 $ - 869°000°T $ TSOTIS'T  $ 9€¥'L99 $ €LTT $ S0L6T $ S089 $ eyl $ PLS'LE $ TTYIET  $ L6611 $ $19SSE [10],
088F1 088°%1 ostdiopuy
- onuoAdY [e1oadg
165°8 SSP'S 9T 991 $0€ puny [e1ousn
:Spuny 1910 WwoJj ang
0LS'8TL 61+°STL aeIg
LIY'EST W'l €LT1 S0L'6T 9€1°IT [e1opa]
“muﬁoEE®>ow .—uﬁﬁo Eo@ anqg
0TE1LI 9716 Ss8'6rl SHUNOIDY
:(saqnoayjooun
10J SOOUBMO[[B JO JoU) SI[QRAIOONY
Y9€°60t°C SOE°605°T €L8°L8Y SJUSUISAAU]
LTTIEY'T $ 96S°L1 S Pro'vST  $ T68°TS1 $ €95°6L1 S $ $ 6SEY $ eyl $ 80L°LE $ T8E0IT  $ L6611 S SJuR[EAIMbD Ysed pue yse)
(z1-9g nquyxg uo JueID) jueIn) FEYNEN $J0BIU0D) pung spunyj sjuein) JueID) juein) sjueID) juein) JIITATS) seowe) S1ASSY
pazLewwns se) JOABSIJIT UONUIAIJ $82001g SI201JO SAIAIRS SAINJIJI0] QouR)SISSY nun 10)e3nsoAu]  -oolojug [Nd  uoneSnseAuf Y Apog
sweidold 100(o1g SIIIARUOIO)) [IALD 0IN0SY Jrewu] SOI10JIBN donsnf uononNpay asnqy Inpy pasueyuyg QUADG WD) i) jo
JUSWIIOJUF Jooyos Eliiinig) d[qeIdunA JSEIEN NN SWIOTA
MET [BIO, JUS[OIA % PIUD AemySiy
€202 ‘0€ ANNS
LA9HS ONVIVE AIZIIVININNS
SINVIDOYd INAWNADYOANT MVT - SANNA HNNHATY TVIOAdS
VNITOYVO HLNOS ‘NOLONIXAT A0 ALNNOD
7 98ed

91-g nqiyxyq

179



TSTYT $ T9TS $ ¥10°6S S ¥¥C $ - $ - $ SLS'SLI $ 995°sTI S ShbLE S L8I'ST $ TL6EE $ $88°601 S PPeET $ ovI‘ely $ Te0A JO pud ‘d0uE[Eq U

- 08S LOO'LS T 919°L) (8S¥°7) 11S€LT €8L°6C1 Shi'LE T08°S1 809°¢H 911°86 SIE 1ST°T6€ 1ea£ Jo Suruurgaq ‘souefeq punyg

STV 89y L00°T - 919°L 8SH'T ¥90°S L17'y) - (s19) (9€9°6) 69L°11 620°1 688°9C sasn Suroueuly 1330 pue
saIIpuadxa (19pun) J9A0 S29IN0S Furoueuly
JOU)0 PUB SANUAI JO (AQUIDIJIP) SSAIXY

SP8'Er - - - 919°L 8SHT - L81¥S - - - - - - (s9s1) 5201108 FULOURUL I1IYIO [B)0L
SP8°EY 919°L 8SHT L8TYS UL SIoJSueL],
:(sosn) s901n0s Furoueuly IO
(€65°61) [£5kE L00°T - - - ¥90°S (¥0v°8S) - (519) (9€9%6) 69L°11 620°1 688°9C saxmpuadxa 1940
SONUOAQI JO (KoUdI01Jop) SSA0XT
8SETLI 6T1°09 - - - - 8LY'6L ¥6LT0T - S19 969°0€ 00L°0T 66T°9 - soimpuodxo [ejo,
01C 1€l JUSWIADIOJUD MB]
:Kepino Teyde))
8Y1°TY 67109 8LV 6L ¥6LT0T S19 969°0€ 00L°0T 66T°9 JUSTHI2I0JUS MET]
:sormipuadxg
S9LTST 11169 L00°T - - - S8 06E Y1 - - 090°1C 69Y°TT 8TE'L 688°9C OnUAAdI[BI0],
L00T 12H1 1€8°C1 S)USUNSAAUL JO dnfeA Iley )
ur (9SBAI09P) ASBAIIUI JO JU) )SAIA)U]
S9LTST 111°69 06€ 7Pl 090°12 8¥0°1¢C 8TEL 8501 [B)USWIUIDA0T10U]
sauyy Ajuno)
N $ $ $ $ $ TwS'v8 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ sa[es pue ‘sjuiad ‘5o
1ONUAAY
JSIWRYD)  SAINSBAULIAIUNOY) wea], Jueln) ‘Jug wea ], XeJ, weIgold jueIn nun 1901JO 12011J0O 9010 SI0MION JEYSEN
qe Suiauqg JUSWII0J U apug JudwageuRy S90IN0SAY Ang 10V USWO A uonoIpIAIU| 90IN0SY 90IN0SY yse], JUAWII0J U $590014
Sniqg paareduy [04ody opowed juaprouf [IUTENGEN | 3o jsuredy [901ed Sniqg [V [N 21021BN me a-Al 9piL
dSHS orem QOURJOIA Awdpeoy SIPPIN DA INSID Y |

JeIdo[[o) Aein  poomydadg

€20 ‘0€ ANNI AIANT VA TVISId HL JOd
HONVTIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD ANV ‘STINLIANAXH ‘SHNNTATY 40 INHNALV.LS AIZIIVININNS
SINVIOOUd LNFNTDEOANT MVT - SANNA HANFATY TVIOAdS
VNITOYVO HLNOS ‘NOLONIXAT 40 ALNNOD
1 oSeq
L1-g1quxg

180



€26'€6SY  § - $ 96S°L1 $ (1LE%D) $ 956°TS8 $ €T8°0SL'T $ 1€8%99 $ - $ ¥0L'ST $ ¥0€9 $ TTIYl $ €98°LE § TI1T'9e $ L6611 $ 18aK JO pud ‘ddue[eq pung

66V TTTY - [§)) YELTT YES'6LY Y99°LLY'T SET'0€9 - yTTic Y0€'9 Tyl 6vE€°6E 85t°T0T 88T'1 Te0A JO SuruuIsoq ‘ooue[eq pung

YTHILE - L6SLT (S01°9€) (8L5°97) 6S1°€LT 96S°¥€ - 08ty - - (98%°1) vSLET 60L°01 sosn Juroueuly 10Y10 pue
soImipuadxos (19pun) I9A0 $90IM0S SurourUI}
I0YJ0 PUB SONUALI JO (AOUSIIIIP) SSOIXT

YEL'STTT - TISYT - LYE1E6 - - - 90L'81 - - - €90°€H1 - (sosn) $00IN0S BUIDURULY 1OYIO [€)0],

YEL'STT'T TISYT LYETE6 90L'8T €90°€H1 ul sIoysuel]
:(sosn) s901n0s Furoueuly IO

(11€%58) - (S16°9) (S01°9€) (926°L56) 6S1°€LT 965 1€ - 9TTrD) - - (98%°1) (60€°611) 60L°01 somyipuadxa 1040
SONUAAJI JO (KOUSI01Jop) SS90XT
LT8'€S0'9 vL9°91 TEL'0SE L9TY9 €0S°9¥T’E 68%°1€8 $SE08 169%L 8LI0TI - - 9841 €IS°TIE 1LS°T0¥ somy1puadxa [e30],
T0L°S69 S08°9 SLETHE 066°681 LY8T SLY'TT JUSLUADIOJUS MET
:Kepyno Teyde)
STI'8SE'S 698°6 LSE8 LITY9 €15°950°¢ Tr9°8C8 6L8LS 169%L 8LIOTI 98+l €I5°TIE 1LS°T0¥ JUSLADIOJUS MET
:sormpuadxg
LIS'661°S vL9°91 LIS'EVE T91°8C 8LS'88T°T 879 V0T 056411 169%L 756°S6 - - - Y07 €61 08TTIY ONUOAJI [B)0,
061°€6 LT 859°LS 9rT61 SJUSUISIAUL JO AN[LA I18J )
ur (9SBAI0dP) ASBAIIUI JO JU) JSAIA)U]
€EE9P6°E yL991 LIS EE 8L588T°T LLE'S6 169°7L 756°S6 Y0T'€61 08TTIY [EIUAWIUIdA0T 1)U
SE1'8T SEI'8T sauy Ayuno)
658 IEI'T  $ $ S $ $ 066'9v0°T $ LTE $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ safes pue ‘spuuad ‘s9,]
1ONUAAY
£1-9 1qIyxyg uo jueiD) Juein) FRINEN $10B1U0D) pung spunyj sjueID) JueiD) jueiD) sjueID jueiD) Jueln) serowe)
)IZLIBWWINS SB)  IOABSIJIT UONUIAJI] $890014 Rikhiiife) SIDIAIDG SOINIIQJIO] J0UR)SISSY Jjun J01e8nsaAu]  doIoJug [N uUonesSnsaAuf 1V Apog
swerdord 100l01g SNIIARUOIOD) [IA1D 2IN0SY drewuu] $O11021BN onsnf uononpay asnqy Inpy pasuryus QU0 dWILI) awi) Jo
JudWddIO U [ooyos Eliihig} J[qeIdUNA Kyayeg A SWIOIA
MeT [eI0L JUSJOIA % PIluD Aemysiy

181

€20 ‘0€ ANNI AIANT VA TVISId HL JOd
HONVTIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD ANV ‘STINLIANAXH ‘SHNNTATY 40 INHNALV.LS AIZIIVININNS
SINVIOOUd LNFNTDEOANT MVT - SANNA HANFATY TVIOAdS
VNITOYVO HLNOS ‘NOLONIXAT 40 ALNNOD
7 9o8eq
L1-g1quxg



182

8L1'S $ SEI'IL 1LS°EL § SE8'8Y0T  $ 60€89 $ 1S9°011 $ SPL'969 S PELLT $ 9TT'8TIL $ - 6C8°T6LT  $ SJPaId 1010 pue
‘doue[eq puny ‘sanIIqer| [e10],
(L0D) 761°69 @LT1rD) 908°TH0°T - - $S9°S1L - 6¥€'8LE - 678°98L°1 Qoueeq puny [ej0,

(L0D) @LT1rD) pausisseun)

#6169 908°TH0°C $S9°GIL 6¥E8LE 6T8°98L°1 pousissy
:sdduefeq punyg
G8¢e'g 1761 P8YIT 6209 60£°89 1S9°011 (606°81) YELLT LLS'6YE - 0009 SonI[Iqel] (810,
901°L TLO'6LL 798°6C r61Y d1qeAed punjiojuy

Omono— ANUIAJT ﬁﬁoomm

1761 243 puny [e19u25)
spunj 19310 03 N

6LT1 $ 1LL'SE 6209 $ Lpp'8¢ $ LSH901 $ $(606'81)  $ ¥ELLT $ espieee 0009 $ sojqeAed
panidoe pue ojqeded s)unodoy

ALINOT ANNA ANV SHLLITIVIT
8L1'S $ SEI'IL 1LS°EL § SE88F0T  $ 60€89 $ 1S9°011 $ $ SPL'969 S PELLT $ 9TT8TL $ - $ 6I8°T6LT  $ SJosse [eJ0,

0S0°91 anuoAal [eroadg

punj [BIdUAD)
Spunj I9yjo woij ang

L¥¥09 aelg

r18°ce 1LS°€L 65T°TS 159°011 10781 YELLT L¥8°0T [e19pa
SJUSWIUIIAO0T ISYJO WoIJ an(g

8L1'8 98t vLE 08T°LST SJUN0DY

:(sa1qno9yjooun

10J SIOUBMO[[E JO JoU) SI[RAIIONY
1LTSILT 0L6'0€L1 SIUGUIISIAU]
§ 1TeLe $ § LIT€LT $ $ $ $ €6t $ $ 850%0€  $ $ 66005 $ $ 65819 $ sjuo[eAmba Ysed pue yse)

uern A.HMNUV sjueID) ﬁommﬂm :—vgmo_o\/oﬂ jueln) ﬁSﬁ.&MﬁSZ \A.—®>000M ﬁﬁm ANISAY E.ewo‘ﬁm jueIin) :—vgmo_o\/oﬂ ehateliitii(vg) ny SILASSV

19U010D) JuRIlD) A1mosg PIIYD Aunuruo) suonnjos -Dddn 1995881 UBDLIOUIY QuIoy suonn[os Ayununuo)) 109fo01g Juowdojonsg
diop pue[owoy A-AI 9L juawdpnuyg KouoSrowrg -Dddn QwioH KouaSiowyg juowepnuyg  juswdoraasq Jeany
suaznI) 1D Jo D ueqin 61-AIAOD ueqin SIUWOU0dY
61-AIAOD
£20T ‘0€ ANNS
LA9HS dONVIVE A4ZIVININNS
SINVIDOUd AALYNOISHA YFHLO - SANNA ANNAATYE TVIOAdS
VNITOIVD HLNOS ‘NOLONIXAT 40 ALNNOD
[ a3eq

81-4 nqiyxyg



L60°961'8  $ €8LFE $ 800°SS1 $ - $ 7586 $ €TT6IT § 0656791 § LOTHL  $ T6SEST S 89601 § 601°T $ €LSHT $ - $ T¢I $ SIPIId 1oY10 pue
‘doue[eq puny ‘sanIIqel| [e10],

€PSLTIL €8L°YE 800°SS1 (11z'Y) 758°6 €TT611 $66°06S°1 LSLTL T6S'€S1 LYESTI 601°1 €LSYT - €1 Qdue[eq puny [ej0,
(069°S¥1) (1Y) pausisseun)
€ETELTL €8L°vE 800°SST 7586 €TT611 $66°065°1 L8LTL T6S°€ST LYEIT 601°1 €LSYT 1€l pousissy

:soouR[Eq PUN,]

$S5°890°1 - - 11Ty - - S65°8¢ 0Tyl - 129°cC - - - - sonriqel] [0
£79°88T 09%°C S66°61 s1queAed punyojuy
05091 anuaAal [eroadg
050°S $89°1 180°1 punj [BISUID
:spunj Iay30 03 ang
118'8sL  § $ $ ISL1 $ $ $ 1169€¢ $ 0Tyl $ $ Svs'l $ $ $ $ $ sajqeked

panidoe pue ojqeded s)unosoy

ALINOF ANNJ ANV SHLLITIEVIT

L60961°8 $§  €8LYVE $ 800°SS1 $ - $ 7586 $ €Il $ 06S°679°T  $ LOTWHL $ T6S'EST  $ 896°0¥1  § 601°T § €LSHT $ - $ 1€l $ SJOSSE [B10 ],
0S0°91 anuoAal [eroadg
88¢C 88T punj [e1ouon)
spunj Iayjo woiy ang
LyY'T9 000C RUN
786856 [e19pag
ISJUSWILIOAOS JOY)O WOy ang
L99°TS8 8T ¥9S 10789 0€8°C 089071 SIuNod2dYy

:(so1qno9jooun
10J S9OUBMOI[E JO JoU) SIA[QRAIIY

876°TST'S SSH'68 1S¥°S L98°09 60S°STS°1 808°9C L6586 SjusumsaAu]
SELTSO'T  § €8LYE $ €65°69 $ $ €SIy $ TOL'LS $ 089°€E $ 66€°LY $ $91°CS $ $ 601°1 $ €LSYT $ $ I€1 $ sjue[eAmba Ysed pue yse)
(Z1-9 NqIyXd uo pIeog MIIAJY  SHUSWAAITY unwpy 2P0 pungj Iopusje(g pung S99 ueln 4D jueIn) pry-ur-juein JueIn) weI3o1 SLASSY
paziiewwins se) Ajjered piyd /SIuRID) sjueIn) 9oKkojdwg Sunpreq a1qng yoddng puog uoj3UIXO]  JUSWMOPUT SOOIAIOS sqng ERINEIN
sweido1g I2U0I0D) niyg-ssed [ouuosId g sndure) UOIUIWO(]  [RUOISSAJOIJ yidn ang KouoSrowrg asnoyaIrj [emaig
pareudiso( Jospey OdHA DdHd
12O [e0L

€20 ‘0€ ANNS
LHFHS ONVIVE A4ZIIVININNS
SINVIDOUd A4 LVNDISHA YHH.LO - SANNA HNNIATY TVIOddS
VNITOEVD HLNOS ‘NOIONIXAT A0 ALNNOD
7 9%ed

81-4 nqiyxyg

183



(L02) $ ¥61°69 $ (CLT1PD) $ 908'Th0T  $ - $ - $ - $ 1 - $ ¥S9SIL $ - $ 6ve8LE - $ 6T898L'T 183K JO pud ‘d0UE[Eq Pun{
- (119°7¢) [CEET) 6018181 - - - I T08°L69 - 9150 - 128°660°C 183A JO SuruuIsoq ‘voue[eq pung
(202) S08°101 9¢) L6E'Y61 - - - - - TS8LI - (£96'92) - (z66°21€) S9SN FuroueUly 10 pue
soImpuadxo (I9pun) I9A0 $90IM0S JurouRUI
I0UJ0 PUB SINUALI JO (KOUIDIIP) SSO9XT
- - - - - - - - - 000°6€ - 8LE'6Y - (889°€2h) (sosn) $00IN0S BULDURULY 1OYIO [2)0],
(889°€zh) N0 s1ysuel],
000°6€ 8LE6Y UL SIoJSueL],
:(sosn) sa01n0s Furoueuly YO
(L0D) SO8°T0T (9¢) L6EV61 - - - - - (8F1°17) - (S¥€9L) - 969°011 soImIpuodxo 10A0
SONUAAJI JO (KOUSIOOp) SSA0XT
S8€'8 €95°1 LO9EL 9TI'ElE SEL'9ES 870°0SS 99LVLOT ¥60°12C 1€5°50T 609°T6€ 987°00T 101°€S€ET - 000°€Y soInyipuadxa [e1o
[erorpng
116°L9 Kiges onang
OOOhmAv HEOEQO~O>01 oruouody
1ST°8 JuowdoroAdp Ayunuruo))
:Kepno Teyde)
S8€°8 9TI'E1E [erorpnf
£95°1 969°S Ayoges orqng
SEL'9ES 870°0SS 99LVLOT ¥60°12C 1€5°50T 609°T6€ 987°00 0S6VET Juawdojoadp Ayunuiwod)
QATIRIISIUTWIPE [RIOUID)
:sarmipuadxyg
8L1°8 89€°€01 1LS°€L €7S°L0S SEL'9ES 820°0SS 99L¥LOT ¥60°12C 1€6°50C 19v°1L€ 987°00C 9SL9LTT - 969°€S1 ANUIAJI [BI0],
000°SL LYo
¥99°L9 008°€ L9S°1 969°8L S)USUNSAAUL JO dnjeA Iley )
ul (9SB2I0IP) ASLAIOUT JAU) JSAINU]
8L1°8 89€°€01 1LS°EL 65865 SEL9ES 820°0SS 99L¥LOT ¥60°12C 1€5°50C 199°L9€ 982°00C 681°SLT'T [B)USWILIDA0T10)U]
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ so[es pue ‘spuad ‘s9,]
[ONUAAYY
Jueln [(REP)) sjueln) 1oddng juawdojareq Jueln uonesnIN K19A000y ue[J dnosAY wergold Jueln juowdo[aad@  doIoWIIO) 1oV
19U010D) jueln £)1moag PIIYD Ayunwwo) suonnjog -Dddn 1998881 UBOLIdWY QWoH suonn[og Ayunuao)) 100lo1g juswdojareq
diop pue[owoH a-Al oL JuawIUY KouaZrowy -Ddad Qwoy KouaGrowry juswapnuyg  judwdolaad( Jerny
suaziiy HD JoNIRD ueqin 61-dIAOD ueqin Snuouody
61-AIAOD
€202 ‘0€ ANNI AIANT IVAA TVOSId dHL 404
HONVIVE ANNJ NI STONVHD ANV ‘STINLIANTdXH ‘SHNNTATY 40 INIWNALVLS AIZIIVININNS
SINVIDOYd AALVNOISHA YFHLO - SANNA ANNTATI TVIOAdS
VNITO¥VD HLNOS ‘NOLONIXHT 40 ALNNOD
1 o8eg

61-4 naryxg

184



185

EYS'LTI'L  § €8LFE $ 800°SST $ (11T%) S66°06S°1 LSLTL LYESIT $ - $ 1€l Te0A JO pud ‘d0UE[Eq pun{
T80°9€t°9 - 9oL 6Y1 659°1 1€€°€L6 $68°9S €8T 1L €18°0€ 1€l TeaA JO SuruuIsoq ‘oouE[eq pung
19%°169 €8L°VE 9T’s (0L8°9) ¥99°L19 T68°S1 ¥90°LY (€18°0¢) - oSN ulouBUY IoY)0 pue
soImIpuadxo (19pun) I9A0 $90IM0S JurourUI}
I0YJ0 PUE SONUALI JO (KOUIIIIP) SSOIXT
9ZE116 - - 9¥8°06 06L°SST'T - - - - (sosn) $00IN0S BUIDURULY 10YIO [2)0],
(889°€zh) N0 s1ysuel]
PI0°SEE’T 9¥8°06 06L°SST'T Ul SIojsueL],
:(sosn) s901n0s Furoueuly IO
(€ot'€T0) €8L°7€ 79T (91£°96) (9T1°8¢€9) T68°S1 ¥90°LYy (€18°0€) - somyipuadxa 1040
SONUAAJI JO (KoUSI0Oop) SSO0XT
0bS'8SL'S - TTT'L8T ¥90°L6 809%9€°C 991°01 919°¢€6 €18°0€ - somypuadxa [e10],
9€€°61 yEv'61 [erorpng
680°€T1 ¥8T1 180°€T €18°0€ Kiages onqng
000°€H Juowdo[oAdp STIOU0dTq
IST°8 Juowidoroadp Ayrununo))
:Kepno Teyide)
STT'SS8T TTT'L8T YLI'SYET [erorpnf
9L996 7888 S€5°08 Ayayes onqng
666°STS‘S Juowdoroadp Ayununuo))
¥90°L6 ¥90°L6 SANjenSIUNUpE [eIoUsD
:sormipuadxg
§L9°8€S°8 €8L°%€ v8Y°T61 8¥€ T87°9T8°1 850°9C 089°0v1 - - oNUIADI [BIO
089°0vC 000°ST 089°0v1 1RO
y10°91T €61°¢ 149 €81°cS 8S0°1 SIUSUNSIAUL JO nfeA Iref )
ul (95B2109P) 2SLAIOUT JAU) JSAIAU]
6£9°€50'8 £8Lv¢E 167681 66T ELL'T [BJUAIUISAOT 1)U
The8T $ $ $ so[es pue ‘sputiad ‘sag,]
1ONUAAY
S1-9 NQIYXH U0 pIeog MIIAIY SIUSWARITY ‘uupy 19pudjoqg pun, Juein 4O jueln weigold
yozLreuruns se)  Ajjeie piy) /siueIn) sjueID) anqng j10ddng u0)3urxa sqng ERIVNEIN
sweigolq 12U010) iy -sseq uorunuoc yudn asnoyaIr] [renaid
pareudisag
1L2YIQ [B10],
€202 ‘0€ ANNI AIANT IVAA TVOSId dHL 404
HONVIVE ANNJ NI STONVHD ANV ‘STINLIANTdXH ‘SHNNTATY 40 INIWNALVLS AIZIIVININNS
SINVIDO0YUd A4LVNDISHA YdHLO - SANNA HNONFAHY TVIOddS
VNITO¥VD HLNOS ‘NOLONIXHT 40 ALNNOD
7z a3eq

61-4 naryxg



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-20

Revenue:
Property taxes
State shared revenue
Fees, permits, and sales
County fines
Intergovernmental

Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments)

Other
Total revenue

Expenditures:
General Administrative
General Services
Community Development
Economic Development
Public Safety
Judicial
Law Enforcement
Health & Human Services
Capital
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (budgeted funds)

To record excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures for non-budgeted funds
Budget entity differences:

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Economic Development
Community Development
Public Safety
Judicial
Law Enforcement
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of land
Transfers in
Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Postive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,614910 $ 1,716,106 $ 101,196
899,250 1,424,016 524,766
4,874,486 4,332,387 (542,099)
257,312 309,201 51,889
9,910,087 8,691,389 (1,218,698)
34,178 948,977 914,799
26,000 25,515 (485)
17,616,223 17,447,591 (168,632)
3,182,644 2,360,318 822,326
10,000 - 10,000
6,715,031 2,937,845 3,777,186
1,790,783 1,086,440 704,343
4,654,985 1,749,940 2,905,045
5,810,587 3,863,079 1,947,508
6,935,413 4,886,614 2,048,799
1,223,354 1,618,509 (395,155)
1,134,226 619,063 515,163
31,457,023 19,121,808 12,335,215
(13,840,800) (1,674,217) 12,166,583
4,204,894 4,056,283 (148,611)
(434,238) (263,688) 170,550
$ (10,070,144) 2,118,378 $ 12,188,522
5,201,780
277,916
215,680
5,695,376
750,000
2,588,154
87,794
10,231
635,161
635,820
4,707,160
988,216
3,152,599
80,741
(551,888)
5,788,046
24,379,950

S__ 3016799
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Exhibit B-21
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - DRUG COURT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales $ 300 $ 420 $ 120
Total revenue 300 420 120
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel 66,604 - 66,604
Operating 5,585 633 4,952
Capital 75 - 75
Total expenditures 72,264 633 71,631
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (71,964) (213) 71,751
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 71,386 305 (71,081)
Total other financing sources (uses) 71,386 305 (71,081)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses (578) 92 670
Fund balance, beginning of year (33) (33) -
Fund balance, end of year $ (611) $ 59 $ 670
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Exhibit B-22
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - VICTIM WITNESS PROGRAM
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ 48,919 $ 48,919 $ -
Total revenue 48,919 48,919 -
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel 171,271 172,675 (1,404)
Operating 2,359 797 1,562
Total expenditures 173,630 173,472 158
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (124,711) (124,553) 158
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 135,914 124,660 (11,254)
Total other financing sources (uses) 135,914 124,660 (11,254)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses 11,203 107 (11,096)
Fund balance, beginning of year (176) (176) -
Fund balance, end of year $ 11,027 $ (69) § (11,096)
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - COMMUNITY JUVENILE ARBITRATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-23

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel
Operating
Capital

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ -
30 1,384 1,354
60,030 61,384 1,354
151,721 152,040 (319)
10,151 7,369 2,782
2,258 2,234 24
164,130 161,643 2,487
(104,100) (100,259) 3,841
96,588 96,588 -
96,588 96,588 -
(7,512) (3,671) 3,841
102,566 102,566 -
$ 95,054 $ 98,895 $ 3,841
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Exhibit B-24
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - SOLICITOR'S FORFEITURE FUNDS (NARCOTICS)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ 10,000 $ 19,662 $ 9,662
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) 100 3,781 3,681
Total revenue 10,100 23,443 13,343
Expenditures:
Judicial
Operating 154,827 - 154,827
Total expenditures 154,827 - 154,827
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (144,727) 23,443 168,170
Fund balance, beginning of year 162,273 162,273 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 17,546 $ 185,716 $ 168,170
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - SOLICITOR'S STATE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-25

Revenue:
County fines
Intergovernmental

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel
Operating
Capital

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 5,000 $ 29,560 $ 24,560
667,395 304,246 (363,149)
672,395 333,806 (338,589)
582,516 219,460 363,056
30,977 11,718 19,259
300 - 300
613,793 231,178 382,615
58,602 102,628 44,026
(271,928) (101,378) 170,550
(271,928) (101,378) 170,550
(213,326) 1,250 214,576
$ (213,326) $ 1,250 $ 214,576
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Exhibit B-26
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PRETRIAL INTERVENTION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ 126,500 $ 141,187 $ 14,687
Total revenue 126,500 141,187 14,687
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel 188,467 190,664 (2,197)
Operating 6,676 2,936 3,740
Capital 100 - 100
Total expenditures 195,243 193,600 1,643
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (68,743) (52,413) 16,330
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 68,743 52,413 (16,330)
Total other financing sources (uses) 68,743 52,413 (16,330)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses - - -

Fund balance, beginning of year - - -

Fund balance, end of year $ - $ -8 -
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - WORTHLESS CHECK UNIT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-27

Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel
Operating
Capital

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer in
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 11,530 $ 13,600 $ 2,070
11,530 13,600 2,070
71,768 - 71,768
12,118 2,923 9,195
75 - 75
83,961 2,923 81,038
(72,431) 10,677 83,108
71,885 - (71,885)
71,885 - (71,885)
(546) 10,677 11,223
10,535 10,535 -
$ 9,989 $ 21212 $ 11,223

193



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - ALCOHOL EDUCATION PROGRAM
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-28

Revenue:
Intergovernmental

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Judicial
Operating
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 677 292 (385)
677 292 (385)
677 292 385
677 292 385
$ - - -
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Exhibit B-29
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - BROKER DISCLOSURE PENALTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) $ 250 $ 6,076 $ 5,826
Total revenue 250 6,076 5,826
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel - 107,675 (107,675)
Operating 177,100 - 177,100
Total expenditures 177,100 107,675 69,425
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (176,850) (101,599) 75,251
Fund balance, beginning of year 177,180 177,180 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 330 $ 75,581 $ 75,251
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - TITLE IV-D DSS PROCESS SERVER
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-30

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Law Enforcement

Operating
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 14,304 $ 14,058 (2406)
- 12,831 12,831
14,304 26,889 12,585
302,339 - 302,339
302,339 - 302,339
(288,035) 26,889 314,924
392,251 392,251 -
$ 104,216 $ 419,140 314,924
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL NARCOTICS TASK FORCE

Exhibit B-31

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Law Enforcement

Operating

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 12,246 $ 21,048 8,802
- 1,421 1,421
12,246 22,469 10,223
56,690 10,700 45,990
56,690 10,700 45,990
(44,444) 11,769 56,213
98,116 98,116 -
$ 53,672 $ 109,885 56,213
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Exhibit B-32

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Intergovernmental

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Law Enforcement

Personnel
Operating

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 149,015 $ 144,390 $ (4,625)
149,015 144,390 (4,625)
184,363 196,297 (11,934)
29,348 6,497 22,851
213,711 202,794 10,917
(64,696) (58,404) 6,292
54,187 54,187 -
54,187 54,187 -
(10,509) (4,217) 6,292
129,783 129,783 -
$ 119,274 $ 125,566 $ 6,292
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - VICTIMS OF CRIME ACT

Exhibit B-33

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ 223,238 $ 193,204 (30,034)
Total revenue 223,238 193,204 (30,034)
Expenditures:
Law Enforcement
Personnel 294,457 294,356 101
Operating 133,706 18,157 115,549
Capital 3,000 - 3,000
Total expenditures 431,163 312,513 118,650
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (207,925) (119,309) 88,616
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 143,063 143,063 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 143,063 143,063 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses (64,862) 23,754 88,616
Fund balance, beginning of year 202,458 202,458 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 137,596 $ 226,212 88,616
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - VIOLENT CRIME REDUCTION UNIT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-34

Revenue:
Intergovernmental

Total revenue
Expenditures:

Law Enforcement
Personnel
Operating
Capital

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 126,477 $ 95952 $ (30,525)
126,477 95,952 (30,525)
96,310 102,011 (5,701)
29,721 8,167 21,554
3,000 - 3,000
129,031 110,178 18,853
(2,554) (14,226) (11,672)
18,706 18,706 -
18,706 18,706 -
16,152 4,480 (11,672)
21,224 21,224 -
$ 37,376 $ 25,704 $ (11,672)

200



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - FORFEITURE FUNDS (NARCOTICS)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-35

Revenue:
Fees, permits, and sales
Intergovernmental
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Law Enforcement

Operating
Capital

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 100 $ 327 227
155,363 95,377 (59,986)
- 19,246 19,246
155,463 114,950 (40,513)
353,137 57,879 295,258
50,823 22,475 28,348
403,960 80,354 323,606
(248,497) 34,596 283,093
630,235 630,235 -
$ 381,738 $ 664,831 283,093
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - INMATE SERVICES

Exhibit B-36

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales

Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the

fair value of investments)

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Law Enforcement

Personnel
Operating
Capital
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,087,489 $ 1,046,990 (40,499)
- 57,658 57,658
1,087,489 1,104,648 17,159
92,816 110,892 (18,076)
1,078,686 717,750 360,936
19,009 2,847 16,162
1,190,511 831,489 359,022
(103,022) 273,159 376,181
1,477,664 1,477,664 -
$ 1,374,642 $ 1,750,823 376,181
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Exhibit B-37

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER AND CROSSING GUARD CONTRACTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue

Expenditures:

Law Enforcement
Personnel
Operating
Capital

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 2,994,728 $ 2,288,578 $ (706,150)
2,994,728 2,288,578 (706,150)
3,138,591 2,791,217 347,374
816,191 265,296 550,895
329,820 189,990 139,830
4,284,602 3,246,503 1,038,099
(1,289,874) (957,925) 331,949
908,166 931,347 23,181
908,166 931,347 23,181
(381,708) (26,578) 355,130
879,534 879,534 -
$ 497,826 $ 852,956 $ 355,130
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Exhibit B-38
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CIVIL PROCESS SERVER
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
County Fines $ 20,610 $ 28,135 § 7,525
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) - 27 27
Total revenue 20,610 28,162 7,552
Expenditures:
Law Enforcement
Personnel 59,362 64,020 (4,658)
Operating 12,076 247 11,829
Total expenditures 71,438 64,267 7,171
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (50,828) (36,105) 14,723
Fund balance, beginning of year 11,734 11,734 -
Fund balance, end of year $ (39,094) $ (24,371) $ 14,723
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - OFF DUTY PROGRAM

Exhibit B-39

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Law Enforcement
Personnel

Operating
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 96,120 $ 84,542 (11,578)
96,120 84,542 (11,578)
74,494 78,809 (4,315)
28,334 669 27,665
102,828 79,478 23,350
(6,708) 5,064 11,772
173,511 173,511 -
$ 166,803 $ 178,575 11,772
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Exhibit B-40
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - URBAN ENTITLEMENT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ 1,899,887 $ 2,275,189 $ 375,302
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) - 1,567 1,567
Total revenue 1,899,887 2,276,756 376,869
Expenditures:
Community Development
Personnel 298,167 260,302 37,865
Operating 143,360 46,351 97,009
Non-Operating 3,827,836 2,038,297 1,789,539
Capital 8,716 8,151 565
Total expenditures 4,278,079 2,353,101 1,924,978
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,378,192) (76,345) 2,301,847
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 49,378 49,378 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 49,378 49,378 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses (2,328,814) (26,967) 2,301,847
Fund balance, beginning of year 405,316 405,316 -
Fund balance, end of year $ (1,923,498) $ 378,349 $ 2,301,847
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - HOME PROGRAM

Exhibit B-41

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Community Development
Personnel

Non-Operating

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 749,927 $ 367,661 (382,266)
- 3,800 3,800
749,927 371,461 (378,466)
61,556 48,709 12,847
2,098,484 343,900 1,754,584
2,160,040 392,609 1,767,431
(1,410,113) (21,148) 1,388,965
39,000 39,000 -
39,000 39,000 -
(1,371,113) 17,852 1,388,965
697,802 697,802 -
$ (673,311) $ 715,654 -
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Exhibit B-42
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ 159,160 $ 200,286 $ 41,126
Total revenue 159,160 200,286 41,126
Expenditures:
Community Development
Non-Operating 285,628 200,286 85,342
Total expenditures 285,628 200,286 85,342
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (126,468) - 126,468

Fund balance, beginning of year - - -

Fund balance, end of year $ (126,468) $ - S -
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CLERK OF COURT TITLE IV-D CHILD SUPPORT

Exhibit B-43

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel
Operating
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 580,000 439,859 (140,141)
7,500 67,664 60,164
587,500 507,523 (79,977)
453,890 301,189 152,701
7,162 11,937 (4,775)
461,052 313,126 147,926
126,448 194,397 67,949
1,848,409 1,848,409 -
$ 1,974,857 2,042,806 67,949
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - DHEC/EMS GRANT-IN-AID
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-44

Revenue:
Intergovernmental

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Public Safety

Operating
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 21,344 $ - (21,344)
21,344 - (21,344)
22,586 - 22,586
22,586 - 22,586
(1,242) - 1,242
1,242 - (1,242)
1,242 - (1,242)
24,573 24,573 _
$ 24,573 $ 24,573 -
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Exhibit B-45
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Property Taxes $ -3 60,228 $ 60,228
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) 1,000 34,342 33,342
Other - 65
Total revenue 1,000 94,635 93,570
Expenditures:
Economic Development
Personnel 302,036 242,542 59,494
Operating 891,922 666,898 225,024
Non-Operating 419,825 - 419,825
Contributions 177,000 177,000 -
Capital 65,705 14,238 51,467
Total expenditures 1,856,488 1,100,678 755,810
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,855,488) (1,006,043) 849,380
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 1,300,000 1,300,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,300,000 1,300,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses (555,488) 293,957 849,445

Fund balance, beginning of year 874,135 874,135 -

Fund balance, end of year $ 318,647 $ 1,168,092 $ 849,445
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - ACCOMMODATIONS TAX
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-46

Revenue:
State Shared Revenue
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:
General Administrative
Contributions
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 299,250 428,861 129,611
299,250 428,861 129,611
299,250 335,661 (36,411)
299,250 335,661 (36,411)
- 93,200 93,200
126,910 126,910 -
$ 126,910 220,110 93,200
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Exhibit B-47

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - TOURISM DEVELOPMENT FEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales

Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the

fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:
General Administrative
Contributions
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,600,000 $ 894,763 $ (705,237)
130 626 496
1,600,130 895,389 (704,741)
1,600,130 1,046,011 554,119
1,600,130 1,046,011 554,119
- (150,622) (150,622)
150,922 150,922 -
$ 150,922 $ 300 $ (150,622)
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - TEMPORARY ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE FEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-48

Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:
General Administrative
Contributions

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 75,000 $ 77,250 $ 2,250
250 3,699 3,449
75,250 80,949 5,699
20,000 20,000 -
20,000 20,000 -
55,250 60,949 5,699
(53,176) (53,176) -
(53,176) (53,176) -
2,074 7,773 5,699
170,963 170,963 -
$ 173,037 $ 178,736 $ 5,699

214



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - MINIBOTTLE TAX

Exhibit B-49

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
State Shared Revenue

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Health & Human Services
Contributions
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 600,000 $ 995,155 395,155
600,000 995,155 395,155
600,000 995,155 (395,155)
600,000 995,155 (395,155)
31 31 -
$ 31 $ 31 -
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - INDIGENT CARE PROGRAM
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-50

Revenue:
Property Taxes
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Health & Human Services

Contributions
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 814,910 800,990 (13,920)

500 29,051 28,551
815,410 830,041 14,631
623,354 623,354 -
623,354 623,354 -
192,056 206,687 14,631
816,431 816,431 -
$ 1,008,487 1,023,118 14,631
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Exhibit B-51
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CLERK OF COURT PROFESSIONAL BOND FEES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales $ 12,500 $ 12,240 $ (260)
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) 300 3,889 3,589
Total revenue 12,800 16,129 3,329
Expenditures:
Judicial
Operating 90,390 1,318 89,072
Capital 1,500 (98) 1,598
Total expenditures 91,890 1,220 90,670
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (79,090) 14,909 93,999
Fund balance, beginning of year 138,683 138,683 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 59,593 $ 153,592 $ 93,999
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM E-911
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-52

Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales

Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the

fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Public Safety
Personnel
Operating
Capital
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,962,000 $ 2,152,538 190,538
20,000 255,800 235,800
1,982,000 2,408,338 426,338
489,858 514,262 (24,404)
4,085,655 1,226,796 2,858,859
541,954 358,508 183,446
5,117,467 2,099,566 3,017,901
(3,135,467) 308,772 3,444,239
7,007,561 7,007,561 -
$ 3,872,094 $ 7,316,333 3,444,239

218



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - DOMINION ENERGY SUPPORT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-53

Revenue:
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)
Other

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Public Safety

Operating
Capital
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - $ 1,058 1,058
25,000 25,000 -
25,000 26,058 1,058
56,886 8,882 48,004
5,885 1,284 4,601
62,771 10,166 52,605
(37,771) 15,892 53,663
56,895 56,895 -
$ 19,124 $ 72,787 53,663
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PUBLIC DEFENDER

Exhibit B-54

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel
Operating
Capital

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,704,361 $ 1,773,299 68,938
100 53,183 53,083
1,704,461 1,826,482 122,021
2,744,870 2,038,408 706,462
518,008 306,766 211,242
25,306 19,434 5,872
3,288,184 2,364,608 923,576
(1,583,723) (538,126) 1,045,597
1,155,790 1,155,790 -
1,155,790 1,155,790 -
(427,933) 617,664 1,045,597
973,331 973,331 -
$ 545398 $ 1,590,995 1,045,597
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Exhibit B-55
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - VICTIMS' BILL-OF-RIGHTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
County Fines $ 231,702 $ 251,506 $ 19,804
Intergovernmental 21,113 18,891 (2,222)
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) 1,000 6,099 5,099
Total revenue 253,815 276,496 22,681
Expenditures:
Judicial
Personnel 169,018 139,156 29,862
Operating 8,999 7,901 1,098
Law Enforcement
Personnel 145,850 161,080 (15,230)
Operating 8,942 2,570 6,372
Total expenditures 332,809 310,707 22,102
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (78,994) (34,211) 44,783
Fund balance, beginning of year 196,704 196,704 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 117,710 $ 162,493 $ -
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CAMPUS PARKING

Exhibit B-56

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:
General Services
Operating
Capital
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 15,897 $ 13,590 (2,307)
2,000 2,401 401
17,897 15,991 (1,906)
10,000 - 10,000
73,500 - 73,500
83,500 - 83,500
(65,603) 15,991 81,594
103,232 103,232 -
$ 37,629 $ 119,223 81,594
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PERSONNEL/EMPLOYEE COMMITTEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-57

Revenue:
Fees, Permits, and Sales
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue

Expenditures:
General Administrative

Non-Operating

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 3,550 2,512 (1,038)
8 215 207
3,558 2,727 (831)
3,558 - 3,558
3,558 - 3,558
- 2,727 2,727
7,125 7,125 -
$ 7,125 9,852 2,727
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Exhibit B-58
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - DELINQUENT TAX COLLECTION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Property Taxes $ 800,000 $ 854,888 § 54,888
Fees, Permits, and Sales 10,000 33,615 23,615
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) 1,000 379,618 378,618
Other 1,000 450 (550)
Total revenue 812,000 1,268,571 456,571
Expenditures:
General Administrative
Personnel 485,823 445,226 40,597
Operating 560,394 416,356 144,038
Capital 3,100 - 3,100
Total expenditures 1,049,317 861,582 187,735
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (237,317) 406,989 644,306
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer out (109,134) (109,134) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (109,134) (109,134) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses (346,451) 297,855 644,306
Fund balance, beginning of year 345,174 345,174 -
Fund balance, end of year $ (1,277) $ 643,029 $ 1,288,612
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - GRANTS ADMINISTRATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Exhibit B-59

Revenue:
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)

Total revenue
Expenditures:

General Administrative
Personnel
Operating
Capital

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 10 $ 348 § 338
10 348 338
92,526 94,864 (2,338)
4,749 2,200 2,549
100 - 100
97,375 97,064 311
(97,365) (96,716) 649
90,846 90,846 -
90,846 90,846 -
(6,519) (5,870) 649
1,659 1,659 -
$ (4,860) $ 4,211) $ 649
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Exhibit B-60
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PASS-THRU GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ 185,433 $ 189,291 $ 3,858
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments) - 3,193 3,193
Total revenue 185,433 192,484 7,051
Expenditures:
General administration
Operating 116,214 - 116,214
Judicial
Personnel 185,433 187,222 (1,789)
Total expenditures 301,647 187,222 114,425
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (116,214) 5,262 121,476
Fund balance, beginning of year 149,746 149,746 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 33,532 $ 155,008 $ 121,476
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Debt Service Funds

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general
obligation bond principal and interest from governmental resources when the County is obligated in
some manner for the payment.

The County, in order to separately account for debt service on the basis of the use of the proceeds
and to maintain an accurate accounting, has segregated its debt service fund into numerous sub-
funds. These sub-funds record the financial resources received and used in their respective portion of
general long-term debt applicable to the sub-fund described below.

County Bond Fund — To account for resources used for reduction of Lexington County General
Obligation Bonds - proceeds used for general county buildings and equipment.

Stonebridge Drive Special Assessment Bond Fund — To account for resources used for reduction
of Lexington County General Obligation Bond - proceeds used in the construction and paving of
Stonebridge Drive.

Isle of Pines Bond Fund — To account for resources used for reduction of Lexington County
General Obligation Bond - proceeds used in the construction water and sewer lines.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022)

Exhibit C-1

Stonebridge Totals
Drive Nonmajor
County Assessment Isle of Pines June 30,
Bonds Bonds Bonds 2023 2022
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 218,224 $ 355 $ 1,869 $ 220,448 $ 330,985
Investments 533,415 26 533,441 426,191
Receivable (net of allowances for
uncollectibles):
Property taxes 264,504 1,598 - 266,102 280,255
Total assets $ 1,016,143 $ 1,979 $ 1,869 $ 1,019,991 $ 1,037,431
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes $ 237,752 $ 1,598 $ -3 239,350 $ 250,526
Total deferred inflows of resources 237,752 1,598 - 239,350 250,526
Fund Balance
Restricted 778,391 381 1,869 780,641 786,905
Total fund balance 778,391 381 1,869 780,641 786,905
Total deferred inflows of reources
and fund balance $ 1,016,143 $ 1979 $ 1,869 $ 1,019,991 $ 1,037,431
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Exhibit C-2

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue:
Property taxes
Interest

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Principal
Interest
Other
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over (under) expenditures
and uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Stonebridge Totals

Drive Nonmajor

County Assessment Isle of Pines June 30,

Bonds Bonds Bonds 2023 2022

$ 4,081,526 $ $ $ 4,081,526 $ 4,002,103
26,191 2 26,193 1,384
4,107,717 2 - 4,107,719 4,003,487
3,425,000 3,425,000 3,190,000
690,742 690,742 828,442
1,315 1,315 1,275
4,117,057 - - 4,117,057 4,019,717
(9,340) 2 - (9,338) (16,230)
3,074 3,074 -
3,074 - - 3,074 -
(6,266) 2 - (6,264) (16,230)
784,657 379 1,869 786,905 803,135
$ 778,391 $ 381 $ 1869 $ 780,641 $ 786,905
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Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

Farmers Market Project — This fund is used in the development of the new Farmers Market.
Contribution from General Fund resources are used to finance this project.

Public Works Bridge Construction — This fund is used in the development of a replacement plan
for all County owned bridges. Contribution from General Fund resources are used to finance this
project.

Saxe Gotha Industrial Park — This fund is used to account for the development of the Industrial
Park. Contributions from Economic Development Fund and SRS resources will be used to finance
this project.

Coroner’s Office Building Project — This fund is used in the development and construction of a
new Coroner’s operation center. Contributions from the county’s General Fund resources are used to
finance this project.

Batesburg/Leesville Industrial Park — This fund is used to account for the development of the
Industrial Park. Contributions from Economic Development Fund and SRS resources will be used to
finance this project.

Tax Billing/Collection System — This fund is used to account for a new tax billing system for the
county. Contributions from General Fund resources are used to finance this project.

West Region Service Center Project — This fund is used to account for the development and
construction of a new Fire Service and EMS Service Center. Contributions from the county’s
General Fund resources are used to finance this project.

Station 34/North Lake Center — This fund is used to account for the development and construction
of a new Fire Service and EMS Service Center. Contributions from the county’s General Fund

resources are used to finance this project.

Chapin Industrial Park — This fund is used to account for the development of the Industrial Park.
Contributions from the county’s General Fund resources and from SRS.
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Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds

Lexington County
Solid Waste Management

A Landfil
. Convenience Stations
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Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the County’s council is that the costs of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or where County’s council has decided that periodic determination of
net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

Red Bank Crossing — Rental properties operations and maintenance are covered through rental fees
on spaces for business, therefore, this information is recorded as an Enterprise Fund.

Lexington County Solid Waste Management — Prior to fiscal year 1990-91, Solid Waste was
included within the Public Works Division in the general fund. With the growing complexity of solid
waste management, County Council needed more accounting information to determine user service
charges and tax levy subsidies, therefore, this information is recorded as an Enterprise Fund. This
accounts for all landfill construction, operations, and maintenance; as well as the operation of the
convenience stations located throughout the County of Lexington.

Pelion Airport — Airport operations and maintenance are covered through rental fees on spaces for
planes, therefore, this information is recorded as an Enterprise Fund.
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Exhibit E-1

Page 1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
ASSETS Red Bank Solid Pelion
Crossing Waste Airport 2023 2022
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 98,046 $ 8,686,951 $ 75,786  $ 8,860,783 $ 7,280,637
Investments 421,130 15,075,295 3,320,326 18,816,751 18,161,595
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Property taxes 644,221 644,221 664,748
Accounts 1,079 269,803 508 271,390 255,905
Leases 191,093 191,093 202,858
Due from other funds:
General fund 23,021 23,021 -
Enterprise fund 7,035 7,035
Due from state shared revenue 48,801 48,801 40,222
Due from DHEC 1,500 1,500 -
Due from other agencies 77,568 77,568 120,388
Inventory - aviation fuel 30,134 30,134 41,753
Total current assets 520,255 24,947,720 3,504,322 28,972,297 26,768,106
Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Land 2,628,629 190,116 2,818,745 2,349,460
Buildings 546,070 9,634,022 833,811 11,013,903 10,963,203
Improvements 51,345 5,423,833 6,383,295 11,858,473 11,731,973
Machinery and equipment 9,161,971 213,012 9,374,983 10,416,705
Office furniture and equipment 20,227 20,227 20,227
Vehicles 2,290,590 2,290,590 1,612,197
Construction in progress 172,510 638,667 811,177 574,256
597,415 29,331,782 8,258,901 38,188,098 37,668,021
Less: accumulated depreciation (252,034) (13,207,972) (3,427,771) (16,887,777) (15,346,317)
Total non-current assets 345,381 16,123,810 4,831,130 21,300,321 22,321,704
Total assets 865,636 41,071,530 8,335,452 50,272,618 49,089,810
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred pension outflows 856,742 856,742 651,050
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 865,636 $ 41928272 $ 8,335452 $§ 51,129,360 $ 49,740,860
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Exhibit E-1

Page 2
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
LIABILITIES Red Bank Solid Pelion
Crossing Waste Airport 2023 2022
Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable 6,227 $ 1,073,556 $ 5684  $ 1,085,467 $ 1,986,679
Airport capital projects payable - 51,992
Accrued salaries 28,775 28,775 21,973
Compensated absences 49,584 49,584 47,564
Accrued payroll fringes 9,190 9,190 6,779
Accrued sales tax 21 282 303 1,349
Unearned revenue 21,388 1,093 22,481 31,740
Due to other funds:
General fund 74,271 74,271 33,387
Special revenue fund 14,880 14,880 -
Enterprise fund 7,035 7,035 -
Internal service fund - 201
Customer deposits payable 4,900 4,900 4,900
Total current liabilities (payable from current assets) 11,127 1,278,700 7,059 1,296,886 2,186,564
Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences due beyond a year 49,583 49,583 47,565
Closure/post-closure care cost payable 28,146,625 28,146,625 5,489,586
Net pension liability 2,902,807 2,902,807 2,688,490
Total non-current liabilities - 31,099,015 - 31,099,015 8,225,641
Total liabilities 11,127 32,377,715 7,059 32,395,901 10,412,205
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension inflows 606,939 606,939 696,015
Deferred lease inflows 187,779 187,779 201,262
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 11,127 33,172,433 7,059 33,190,619 11,309,482
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 345,381 16,123,810 4,831,130 21,300,321 22,323,300
Restricted per state mandate (tires) 88,927 88,927 294,369
Unrestricted 509,128 (7,456,898) 3,497,263 (3,450,507) 15,813,709
Total net position 854,509 $ 8,755,839 $ 8,328,393 § 17,938,741 $§ 38,431,378
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Exhibit E-2

Page 1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
Red Bank Solid Pelion
Crossing Waste Airport 2023 2022
Operating revenues:
Landfill fees $ 5,618,332 § 5,618,332 § 4,078,464
Garbage franchise fees 185,153 185,153 175,446
Recycling fees 798,937 798,937 1,019,348
Compost sales 23,010 23,010 75,221
Compost bin sales 2,730 2,730 -
Rental income & fees 103,685 13,718 54,774 172,177 170,996
Mulch sales 1,797 1,797 13,596
Credit report fees 225 225 225
Aviation fuel sales 78,519 78,519 133,693
Total operating revenues 103,685 6,643,902 133,293 6,880,880 5,666,989
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 1,695,581 1,695,581 1,567,714
Payroll fringes 675,441 675,441 512,159
Contracted maintenance 260,293 260,293 318,463
Landscaping & ground maintenance 18,557 18,557 18,557
Cost of sales & services 77,322 77,322 132,915
Contracted services 9,295,740 7,267 9,303,007 8,305,310
Water and other beverage services 1,954 1,954 2,089.00
Towing 675 675 -
E-waste recycling 56,352 56,352 66,868
Garbage pickup service 2,369 2,369 2,369
Parking lot sweeping 7,242 7,242 6,480
Professional services 275,966 275,966 247,424
Accounting and auditing services 5,000 5,000 5,000
Infectious disease services 567 567 324
Advertising 8,272 8,272 17,876
Legal services 6,950 6,950 7,345
Landfill monitoring 183,000 183,000 176,000
Closure/postclosure care cost 22,657,039 22,657,039 (341,208)
Technical currency & support 16,221 16,221 15,138
Outside printing 2,275 2,275 79
Office supplies 2,167 2,167 2,232
Duplicating 1,994 1,994 1,891
Operating supplies 227,486 3,483 230,969 211,282
Sign materials - 310
Public education supplies - 3,990
Closure operating supplies 126,825 126,825 36,826
Safety supplies 1,454 1,454 -
Building repairs and maintenance 3,840 191,925 2,154 197,919 249,225
Generator repairs and maintenance 2,872 2,872 945
Heavy and small equipment repairs 420,794 420,794 146,651
Small equipment repairs & maintenance 18,052 136 18,188 20,515.00
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 1,378 1,378 17,046
Fuel site repairs and maintenance 35,544 880 36,424 6,872
Equipment rental 2,986 2,986 193
Building insurance 998 6,483 4,404 11,885 12,743
Vehicle insurance 10,455 10,455 12,652
Comprehensive insurance 61,790 61,790 63,165
General tort liability insurance 14,880 14,880 13,990
Data processing equipment insurance 160 160 160
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 45,487 1,427 46,914 45,380
Postage 584 584 556
Conference, meeting & training 9,237 867 10,104 9,595

240



Exhibit E-2

Page 2
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
Red Bank Solid Pelion
Crossing Waste Airport 2022 2021
Utilities $ $ 159,875 $ 9,685 $ 169,560 $ 158,468
Gas, fuel, and oil 369,460 369,460 297,212
Small equipment fuel 193 193 881.00
Uniforms 17,455 17,455 13,502
Licenses and permits 1,180 175 1,355 1,515
Outside personnel and inmate labor 698,857 698,857 694,720
Depreciation 19,677 1,791,853 430,614 2,242,144 2,279,531
Keep America Beautiful 33,000 33,000 27,500
Claims & judgments 500 500 296
Property taxes 24,845 2,423 14,677 41,945 41,716
Small tools and minor equipment 6,038 6,038 30,125
Total operating expenses 77,528 39,404,713 553,091 40,035,332 15,462,587
Operating income (loss) 26,157 (32,760,811) (419,798) (33,154,452) (9,795,598)
Nonoperating revenues
Property taxes 11,755,347 11,755,347 11,228,424
Over/short (236) (236) (179)
Local government - tires 178,802 178,802 164,341
DHEC/SW Mgt. grant 22,017 22,017 37,478
Interest income 16,613 708,953 131,980 857,546 83,029
Miscellaneous revenue 18,795 32,000 50,795 41,191
Sale of capital assets (loss) (305,024) (305,024) 67,729
Total nonoperating revenues 16,613 12,378,654 163,980 12,559,247 11,622,013
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 42,770 (20,382,157) (255,818) (20,595,205) 1,826,415
Capital contributions 77,568 77,568 171,513
Transfers in 150,000 25,000 175,000 290,453
Transfers out (150,000) (150,000) (265,453)
Total capital contributions and transfers - - 102,568 102,568 196,513
Change in net position 42,770 (20,382,157) (153,250) (20,492,637) 2,022,928
Net position, beginning of year 811,739 29,137,996 8,481,643 38,431,378 36,408,450
Net position, end of year $ 854,509 $ 8,755,839 $ 8,328,393 $ 17,938,741 $ 38,431,378
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Exhibit E-3

Page 1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
Red Bank Solid Pelion
Crossing Waste Airport 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers 102,606 $ 6,599,948 $ 132,785  $ 6,835,339 § 5,871,056
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (114,985) (13,389,523) (158,476) (13,662,984)  (11,181,106)
Cash payments to employees for services (2,429,657) (2,429,657) (2,221,948)
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities (12,379) (9,219,232) (25,691) (9,257,302) (7,531,998)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from taxes 11,775,874 11,775,874 11,163,700
Operating grants received 36,032 36,032 90,038
Federal funds (FFA) received 152,388 152,388 104,154
Miscellaneous revenue 3,045 3,045 407
Transfer in 25,000 25,000 25,163
Transfer out - (163)
State shared revenue 170,223 170,223 168,847
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities: - 11,985,174 177,388 12,162,562 11,552,146
Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,907,348) (201,688) (2,109,036) (1,279,897)
Proceeds from sale of equipment 583,250 583,250 143,040
Net cash used for capital and
related financing activities - (1,324,098) (201,688) (1,525,786) (1,136,857)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Receipt of interest 16,613 707,235 131,980 855,828 81,433
Sale of investments 198,937 198,937 3,360,095
Purchase of investments (16,613) (685,499) (151,981) (854,093) 49,054
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities - 220,673 (20,001) 200,672 3,490,582
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (12,379) 1,662,517 (69,992) 1,580,146 6,373,873
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 110,425 7,024,434 145,778 7,280,637 906,764
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 98,046 $ 8,686,951 §$ 75,786 $ 8,860,783 $ 7,280,637

242



Exhibit E-3

Page 2
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
Red Bank Solid Pelion
Crossing Waste Airport 2023 2022
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 26,157 $ (32,760,811) $ (419,798) $ (33,154,452) $  (9,795,598)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 19,677 1,791,853 430,614 2,242,144 2,279,531
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (1,079) (13,898) (508) (15,485) 166,591
(Increase) decrease in interfund receivable - 30,515
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (30,056) (30,056) 6,961
(Increase) decrease in pension outflow (205,692) (205,692) (122,867)
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 214,317 214,317 (683,068)
(Increase) decrease in inventory 11,619 11,619 (13,356)
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries/fringes 13,251 13,251 22,847
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (57,134) (849,687) (47,374) (954,195) 269,698
Increase (decrease) in unearend revenue (9,015) (244) (9,259) 25,891
Increase (decrease) in interfund payable - (30,515)
Increase (decrease) in accrued sales tax (55) (55) 76
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 62,598 62,598 11,491
Increase (decrease) in pension inflow (89,076) (89,076) 641,013
Increase (decrease) in long term payables 22,657,039 22,657,039 (341,208)
Total adjustments (38,536) 23,541,579 394,107 23,897,150 2,263,600
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (12,379) § _ (9,219,232) § (25,691) $ (9,257,302) $ _ (7,531,998)
Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Contributions of capital assets $ $ $ $ - $ 81,125
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - RED BANK CROSSING RENTAL PROPERTIES

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Exhibit E-4

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments
Accounts receivable

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets
Buildings
Improvements
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

Customer deposits payable

Total current liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

2023 2022

$ 98,046 $ 110,425
421,130 404,517

1,079 -

520,255 514,942
546,070 546,070

51,345 51,345
(252,034) (232,357)
345,381 365,058
865,636 880,000

6,227 63,361

4,900 4,900

11,127 68,261

345,381 365,058

509,128 446,681

$ 854,509 $ 811,739
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - RED BANK CROSSING RENTAL PROPERTIES
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Exhibit E-5

Operating revenues:
Rental income

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Landscaping & ground maintenance
Garbage pickup service
Parking lot sweeping
Building repairs & maintenance
Building insurance
Depreciation
Property taxes
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues:
Interest income

Total nonoperating revenues
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Transfers in

Total capital contributions and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

2023 2022
$ 103,685 $ 106,935
103,685 106,935
18,557 18,557
2,369 2,369
7,242 6,480
3,840 65,622
998 998
19,677 19,677
24,845 24,770
77,528 138,473
26,157 (31,538)
16,613 1,346
16,613 1,346
42,770 (30,192)
42,770 (30,192)
811,739 841,931
$ 854,509 $ 811,739
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Exhibit E-6

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - RED BANK CROSSING RENTAL PROPERTIES
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 102,606 ¢ 109,035
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (114,985) (58,018)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (12,379) 51,017
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 16,613 1,346
Purchase of investments (16,613) (1,346)
Net cash provided by investing activities - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (12,379) 51,017
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 110,425 59,408
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 08,046 ¢ 110,425
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 26,157 ¢ (31,538)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 19,677 19,677
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (1,079) 2,100
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (57,134) 60,778
Total adjustments (38,536) 82,555
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (12,379) ¢ 51,017
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
ASSETS Solid DHEC
Waste Tires Grants 2023 2022
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8653812 % 5,438 $ 27,701 $ 8,686,951 $ 7,024,434
Investments 15,019,288 56,007 15,075,295 14,588,733
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Property taxes 644,221 644,221 664,748
Accounts 269,803 269,803 255,905
Leases 191,093 191,093 202,858
Due from other funds - -
General fund 23,021 23,021 -
Enterprise fund 750 6,285 7,035 -
Due from state shared revenue 48,801 48,801 40,222
Due from DHEC 1,500 1,500 -
Total current assets 24,801,988 116,531 29,201 24,947,720 22,776,900
Non-current assets:
Capital assets
Land 2,628,629 2,628,629 2,159,344
Buildings 9,634,022 9,634,022 9,583,322
Improvements 5,343,236 80,597 5,423,833 5,297,333
Machinery and equipment 9,103,120 58,851 9,161,971 10,203,693
Office furniture and equipment 20,227 20,227 20,227
Vehicles 2,290,590 2,290,590 1,612,197
Construction in progress 172,510 172,510 137,277
29,192,334 139,448 29,331,782 29,013,393
Less: accumulated depreciation (13,099,741) (108,231) (13,207,972)  (12,116,803)
Total non-current assets 16,092,593 31,217 - 16,123,810 16,896,590
Total assets 40,894,581 147,748 29,201 41,071,530 39,673,490
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred pension outflows 856,742 856,742 651,050
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 41,751,323 $ 147,748 $ 29,201 $ 41,928,272 $ 40,324,540
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
LIABILITIES Solid DHEC
Waste Tires Grants 2023 2022
Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable $ 1045952 $ 27,604 $ $ 1073556 $ 1,923,243
Accrued salaries 28,456 319 28,775 21,973
Compensated absences 49,584 49,584 47,564
Accrued payroll fringes 9,074 116 9,190 6,779
Accrued sales tax 21 21 76
Unearned Revenue 21,388 21,388 30,403
Due to other funds:
General fund 74,271 74,271 33,387
Special Revenue fund 14,880 14,880 -
Enterprise fund 6,285 750 7,035 -
Internal service fund - 201
Total current liabilities (payable from current assets) 1,228,523 27,604 22,573 1,278,700 2,063,626
Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences due beyond a year 49,583 49,583 47,565
Closure/post-closure care cost payable 28,146,625 28,146,625 5,489,586
Net pension liability 2,902,807 2,902,807 2,688,490
Total non-current liabilities 31,099,015 - - 31,099,015 8,225,641
Total liabilities 32,327,538 27,604 22,573 32,377,715 10,289,267
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension inflows 606,939 606,939 696,015
Deferred lease inflows 187,779 187,779 201,262
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 33,122,256 27,604 22,573 33,172,433 11,186,544
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 16,092,593 31,217 16,123,810 16,898,186
Restricted per state mandate (tires) 88,927 88,927 294,369
Unrestricted (7,463,526) 6,628 (7,456,898) 11,945,441
Total net position $ 8,629,067 $ 120,144 $ 6,628 $ 8,755,839 $ 29,137,996
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
Solid DHEC
Waste Tires Grants 2023 2022
Operating revenues:
Landfill fees $ 5,618,332 $ $ 5,618,332 $ 4,078,464
Garbage franchise fees 185,153 185,153 175,446
Recycling fees 798,937 798,937 1,019,348
Compost sales 23,010 23,010 75,221
Compost bin sales 2,730 2,730 -
Mulch sales 1,797 1,797 13,001
Rental income & lease agreements 13,718 13,718 13,596
Credit report fees 225 225 225
Total operating revenues 6,641,172 - 2,730 6,643,902 5,375,301
Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages 1,688,940 6,641 1,695,581 1,567,714
Payroll fringes 673,082 2,359 675,441 512,159
Contracted maintenance 260,293 260,293 318,463
Contracted services 8,905,434 390,306 9,295,740 8,300,300
Water and other beverage service 1,954 1,954 2,089
Towing 675 675 -
E-waste recycling 56,352 56,352 66,868
Professional services 275,966 275,966 247,424
Accounting and auditing services 5,000 5,000 5,000
Infectious disease services 567 567 324
Advertising 3,472 4,800 8,272 17,876
Legal services 6,950 6,950 7,345
Landfill monitoring 183,000 183,000 176,000
Closure/postclosure care cost 22,657,039 22,657,039 (341,208)
Technical currency & support 16,221 16,221 15,138
Outside printing - 2,275 2,275 79
Office supplies 2,167 2,167 2,232
Duplicating 1,994 1,994 1,891
Operating supplies 206,419 21,067 227,486 211,200
Public Education - 3,990
Closure operating supplies 126,825 126,825 36,826
Sign materials - - 310
Safety supplies 1,454 1,454 -
Building repairs and maintenance 191,925 191,925 180,447
Generator repairs and maintenance 2,872 2,872 945
Heavy and small equipment repairs 420,794 420,794 146,651
Small equipment repais & maintenance 18,052 18,052 15,130
Fuel site repairs and maintenance 1,378 1,378 4,299
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 35,544 35,544 17,046
Equipment rental 2,986 2,986 193
Building insurance 6,483 6,483 7,341
Vehicle insurance 10,455 10,455 12,652
Comprehensive insurance 61,790 61,790 63,165
General tort liability insurance 14,880 14,880 13,990
Data processing equipment insurance 160 160 160
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 45,487 45,487 43,953
Postage 584 584 556
Conference and meeting expenses 7,737 1,500 9,237 9,555
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
Solid DHEC
Waste Tires Grants 2023 2022
Utilities 159,875 159,875 150,924
Gas, fuel, and oil 369,460 369,460 297,212
Small Equipment Fuel 193 193 881
Uniforms 17,455 17,455 13,502
Licenses and permits 1,180 1,180 1,415
Outside personnel and inmate labor 698,857 698,857 694,720
Depreciation 1,783,326 8,527 1,791,853 1,761,737
Keep America Beautiful 33,000 33,000 27,500
Claims & judgments 500 500 296
Property taxes 2,423 2,423 2,350
Small tools and minor equipment 6,038 6,038 30,125
Total operating expenses 38,967,238 398,833 38,642 39,404,713 14,648,765
Operating loss (32,326,066) (398,833) (35,912) (32,760,811) (9,273,464)
Nonoperating revenues

Property taxes 11,755,347 11,755,347 11,228,424
Cash over/Short (236) (236) (179)
Local government - tires 178,802 178,802 164,341
DHEC/SW Mgt. grant 22,017 22,017 37,478
Interest income 702,891 6,062 708,953 70,678
Miscellaneous revenue 3,280 15,515 18,795 11,191
Sale of capital assets (loss) (293,851) (11,173) (305,024) 67,729
Total nonoperating revenues 12,167,431 173,691 37,532 12,378,654 11,579,662
Income before contributions and transfers (20,158,635) (225,142) 1,620 (20,382,157) 2,306,198
Capital contributions - 81,125
Transfers in 150,000 150,000 265,453
Transfers out (150,000) (150,000) (265,453)
Total capital contributions and transfers - - - - 81,125
Change in net position (20,158,635) (225,142) 1,620 (20,382,157) 2,387,323
Net position, beginning of year 28,787,702 345,286 5,008 29,137,996 26,750,673
Net position, end of year $ 8,629,067 $ 120,144 $ 6,628 $ 8,755,839 $ 29,137,996

250



Exhibit E-9

Page 1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
Solid DHEC
Waste Tires Grants 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 6,603503 $ (6,285) $ 2730 $ 6599948 $ 5,577,193
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (12,956,275) (386,776) (46,472) (13,389,523) (10,960,284)
Cash payments to employees for services (2,429,657) (2,429,657) (2,221,948)
Net cash used by operating activities (8,782,429) (393,061) (43,742) (9,219,232) (7,605,039)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from taxes 11,775,874 11,775,874 11,163,700
Operating grants received 36,032 36,032 90,038
Miscellaneous revenue 3,045 3,045 407
Transfer in - 163
Transfer out - (163)
State shared revenue 170,223 170,223 168,847
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities: 11,778,919 170,223 36,032 11,985,174 11,422,992
Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,907,348) (1,907,348) (943,907)
Proceeds from sale of equipment 583,250 583,250 143,040
Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities (1,324,098) - - (1,324,098) (800,867)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 701,173 6,062 707,235 69,082
Proceeds from sale of investments 198,937 198,937 3,172,446
Purchase of investments (685,499) (685,499) 49,054
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 15,674 204,999 - 220,673 3,290,582
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,688,066 (17,839) (7,710) 1,662,517 6,307,668
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6,965,746 23,277 35,411 7,024,434 716,766
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ 8653812 $ 5438 $ 27701 $ 8,686,951 $ 7,024,434
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
Totals
Solid DHEC
Waste Tires Grants 2023 2022
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Operating loss $ (32,326,066) $ (398,833) $ (35,912) $ (32,760,811) $ (9,273,464)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,783,326 8,527 1,791,853 1,761,737
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (13,898) (13,898) 164,416
(Increase) decrease in interfund receivable - 30,515
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (23,771) (6,285) (30,056) 6,961
(Increase) decrease in pension outflow (205,692) (205,692) (122,867)
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 214,317 214,317 (683,068)
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries/fringes 12,816 435 13,251 22,847
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (853,217) 3,530 (849,687) 181,045
Increase (decrease) in interfund payable - (30,515)
Increase (decrease) in accrued sales tax (55) (55) 76
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 61,848 750 62,598 11,491
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (9,015) (9,015) 25,982
Increase (decrease) in pension inflow (89,076) (89,076) 641,013
Increase (decrease) in long term payables 22,657,039 22,657,039 (341,208)
Total adjustments 23,543,637 5,772 (7,830) 23,541,579 1,668,425
Net cash used by operating activities $ (8,782,429) $ (393,061) $ (43,742) $ (9,219,232) $ (7,605,039)
Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Contributions of capital assets from solid waste grants $ - $ -3 - $ - $ 81,125
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
2023 2022
Administrative:
Salaries and wages $ 240,668 $ 229,712
Payroll fringes 78,800 61,205
Contracted services 35,766 35,675
Advertising 1,642 2,203
Legal services 630 7,345
Technical Curreny & Support 14,621 13,538
Office supplies 777 561
Duplicating 261 142
Operating supplies 415 2,017
Sign materials - 310
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 1,533 40
Building insurance 2,029 2,029
Vehicle insurance 615 615
General tort liability insurance 1,104 995
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 17,477 17,547
Postage 89 2
Conference and meeting expenses 3,608 1,244
Subscription, dues, and books 1,109 944
Personal mileage reimbursement 1,263 1,079
Motor pool reimbursement 174 201
Utilities 7,961 7,872
Gas, fuel, and oil 932 803
Uniforms & Clothing 449 466
Depreciation 1,235 1,235
Keep America Beautiful 33,000 27,500
Small tools and minor equipment - 3,022
Total administrative 446,158 418,302
Accounting:

Salaries and wages 174,644 166,415
Overtime 1,406 174
Part time 77,082 63,969
Payroll fringes 104,364 60,366
Professional services 962 989
Accounting & auditing services 5,000 5,000
Technical currency & support 1,600 1,600
Office supplies 1,334 1,469
Duplicating 1,403 1,417
Operating supplies 3,621 2,407
Safety supplies 1,454 -
General tort liability insurance 294 322
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Page 2
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
2023 2022
Accounting continued:
Data processing equip. insurance $ 160 $ 160
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 2,024 1,988
Postage 494 554
Personal mileage reimbursement 84 73
Uniforms and clothing 324 411
Depreciation 755 821
Small tools and minor equipment 515 2,418
Total accounting 377,520 310,553
Convenience stations:
Salaries and wages 81,980 77,013
Overtime 3,227 757
Part time 181,589 190,731
Payroll fringes 82,370 64,536
Contracted maintenance 180 522
Contracted services 1,897,991 1,894,636
Water and other beverage service 1,276 1,301
Towing services 220 -
Infectious disease 81 162
Advertising & publicity 1,830 -
Office supplies 56 42
Duplicating 123 97
Operating supplies 27,412 22,750
Building repairs and maintenance 110,830 126,989
Heavy equipment repairs 28,900 23,709
Small equipment fuel 80 23
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 2,218 6,465
Building insurance 3,106 3,106
Vehicle insurance 1,230 1,845
Comprehensive insurance 518 518
General tort liability insurance 1,358 1,293
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 7,410 7,244
Conference and meeting expenses 405 300
Utilities 91,191 87,588
Gas, fuel, and oil 10,922 10,553
Uniforms and clothing 3,590 2,886
Licenses & permits 175 -
Outside personnel 698,857 694,720
Depreciation 402,238 390,752
Claims & judgments 250 46
Small tools and minor equipment 1,045 6,444
Total convenience stations 3,642,658 3,617,028
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Page 3
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
2023 2022
Landfill operations:
Salaries and wages $ 359,240 $ 326,045
Overtime 6,343 6,239
Payroll fringes 175,283 142,763
Contracted maintenance 210,025 270,915
Contracted services 306,994 99,726
Professional services 86,527 61,707
Infectious disease - 162
Legal services 6,320 -
Landfill monitor - Batesburg 65,500 63,500
Landfill monitor - Edmund 71,500 68,500
Landfill monitor - Chapin 46,000 44,000
Closure/postclosure care costs 22,657,039 (341,208)
Office supplies - 77
Duplicating 30 27
Operating supplies 164,343 156,838
Closure operating supplies 126,825 36,826
Building repairs and maintenance 8,250 31,716
Generator repairs & maintenance 2,872 945
Heavy equipment repairs 239,094 23,431
Small equipment repair 1,581 553
Fuel site repairs 1,378 4,299
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 20,838 2,116
Equipment rental 1,585 -
Vehicle insurance 4,920 5,535
Comprehensive insurance 54,093 55,317
General tort liability insurance 6,540 6,228
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 7,677 7,827
Conference and meeting expenses 1,095 1,164
Subscription, dues, and books - 750
Utilities 14,561 15,974
Gas, fuel, and oil 277,274 213,173
Small equipment fuel 193 500
Uniforms and clothing 3,853 4,069
License and permits 85 250
Depreciation 822,769 771,710
Claims and judgments - 250
Small tools and minor equipment 2,084 647
Total landfill operations 25,752,711 2,082,571
321 Reclamation/closeout:

Contracted services 57,884 46,619
Professional services 188,849 185,227
Duplicating 2 5
Utilities 22,229 20,266
Licenses & permits 815 1,065
Depreciation 784 784
Property taxes 2,423 2,350
Total reclamation/closeout 272,986 256,316
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
2023 2022
Transfer station:
Salaries and wages $ 189,094 $ 181,048
Overtime 2,652 2,425
Payroll fringes 88,718 74,232
Contracted maintenance 50,088 47,026
Contracted services 6,427,107 5,828,985
Water and other beverage service 679 788
Professional services 125 -
Office supplies - 83
Duplicating 38 45
Operating supplies 1,533 1,083
Building repairs and maintenance 72,845 21,742
Heavy equipment repairs 152,180 96,976
Equipment rental 1,401 193
Building insurance 1,348 2,206
Comprehensive insurance 5,309 5,506
General tort liability insurance 1,243 1,183
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 3,532 3,554
Conference and meeting expenses - 100
Utilities 23,933 19,224
Gas, fuel, and oil 28,508 32,490
Uniforms and clothing 2,452 1,348
Licenses & permits 105 100
Depreciation 451,076 480,977
Small tools and minor equipment 75 12,750
Total transfer station 7,504,041 6,814,064
Recycling:
Salaries & wages 28,217 24,321
Part time 171,376 147,917
Payroll fringes 61,678 42,274
Contracted services 179,054 155,185
Towing services 380 -
E-waste recycling 56,352 66,868
Infectious disease services 486 -
Duplicating 136 158
Operating supplies 6,761 6,069
Heavy equipment repairs & maintenance 621 2,535
Small equipment repairs & maintenance 16,390 14,554
Vehicle repairs & maintenance 8,755 6,718
Vehicle insurance 1,845 2,812
Comprehensive insurance 1,207 1,161
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
2023 2022
Recycling continued:
General tort liability $ 711 $ 677
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 3,426 2,906
Gas, fuel & oil 37,230 26,861
Uniforms & clothing 3,823 3,498
Depreciation 85,703 84,266
Claims & judgements 250 -
Small tools & minor equipment 2,320 58
Total recycling 666,721 588,838
Litter Control:
Salaries & wages 55,424 51,519
Overtime 527 -
Payroll fringes 38,023 34,618
Operating supplies 1,965 1,480
Vehicle repairs & maintenance 603 888
Vehicle Insurance 615 615
Comprehensive Insurance 176 176
General tort liability 356 339
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 790 789
Gas, fuel & oil 4,553 5,737
Uniforms & clothing 774 824
Depreciation 3,850 6,365
Total litter control 107,656 103,350
Code Enforcement:
Salaries & wages 114,179 98,918
Overtime 1,293 510
Payroll fringes 43,845 32,164
Contracted services 140 15
Towing services 75 -
Operating supplies 369 129
Vehicle repairs & maintenance 1,598 818
Vehicle insurance 1,230 1,230
Comprehensive insurance 487 487
General tort liability 3,274 2,953
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 3,151 2,098
Conference meeting & training - 695
Gas, fuel, & aiil 10,041 7,977
Uniforms & clothing 2,189 -
Depreciation 14,916 14,916
Small tools & minor equipment - 140
Total Code Enforcement 196,787 163,050
Solid Waste - Tires:
Contracted services - tire disposal 390,306 231,961
Depreciation 8,527 9,910
Total solid waste tires 398,833 241,871
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SOLID WASTE
COMBINING SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)
2023 2022
Solid Waste/DHEC Grants:

Part time 6,641 -
Payroll fringes 2,359 -
Contract Services - 7,000
Advertising & publicity 4,800 15,674
Outside Printing 2,275 79
Operating supplies 21,067 18,428
Public education supplies - 3,990
Conference and meeting expense 1,500 3,005
Small Tools - 4,646
Total solid waste DHEC grants 38,642 52,822
Total operating expenses by department $ 39,404,713 $ 14,648,765
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash - treasurer $ 8,653,812 6,965,746
Investments 15,019,288 14,333,789
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Property taxes 644,221 664,748
Accounts 269,803 255,905
Lease 191,093 202,858
Due from other funds
General fund 23,021 -
Enterprise fund 750 -
Total current assets 24,801,988 22,423,046
Non-current assets:
Capital assets
Land 2,628,629 2,159,344
Buildings 9,634,022 9,583,322
Improvements 5,343,236 5,216,736
Machinery and equipment 9,103,120 10,091,746
Office furniture and equipment 20,227 20,227
Vehicles 2,290,590 1,612,197
Construction in progress 172,510 137,277
29,192,334 28,820,849

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred pension outflows

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

(13,099,741)

(11,975,176)

16,092,593 16,845,673
40,894,581 39,268,719
856,742 651,050

$ 41,751,323 39,919,769
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
2023 2022
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable $ 1,045,952 1,899,169
Accrued salaries 28,456 21,973
Compensated absences 49,584 47,564
Accrued FICA 2,042 1,574
Accrued SCRS 4,901 3,563
Accrued PORS 436 340
Accrued workers compensation 1,695 1,302
Accrued sales tax 21 76
Due to other funds:
General fund 74,271 33,387
Special revenue fund 14,880 -
Enterprise fund 6,285 -
Internal service fund - 201
Total current liabilities 1,228,523 2,009,149
Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences due beyond a year 49,583 47,565
Closure/post-closure care cost payable 28,146,625 5,489,586
Net pension liability 2,902,807 2,688,490
Total non-current liabilities 31,099,015 8,225,641
Total liabilities 32,327,538 10,234,790
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension inflows 606,939 696,015
Deferred lease inflows 187,779 201,262
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 33,122,256 11,132,067
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 16,092,593 16,847,269
Unrestricted (7,463,526) 11,940,433
Total net position $ 8,629,067 28,787,702
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE

Exhibit E-12
Page 1

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Operating revenues:

Landfill fees

Garbage franchise fees

Recycling fees

Compost Sales

Mulch sales

Rental income & lease agreements
Credit report fees

Total landfill revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Payroll fringes
Contracted maintenance
Contracted services
Water and other beverage service
Towing service
E-waste recycling
Professional services
Accounting and auditing services
Infectious disease services
Advertising - publicity
Legal services
Landfill monitoring
Closure/postclosure care cost
Technical currency and support
Office supplies
Duplicating
Operating supplies
Safety supplies
Closure operating supplies
Sign materials
Building repairs and maintenance
Generator repairs and maintenance
Heavy equipment repairs & maintenance
Small equipment repairs & maintenance
Fuel site repairs and maintenance
Vehicle repairs and maintenance
Equipment rental
Building insurance
Vehicle insurance
Comprehensive insurance
General tort liability insurance
Data processing equipment insurance

2023 2022
5618332 § 4,078,464
185,153 175,446
798,937 1,019,348
23,010 72,131
1,797 13,001
13,718 13,596
225 225
6,641,172 5,372,211
1,688,940 1,567,714
673,082 512,159
260,293 318,463
8,905,434 8,061,339
1,954 2,089
675 -
56,352 66,868
275,966 247,424
5,000 5,000
567 324
3,472 2,202
6,950 7,345
183,000 176,000
22,657,039 (341,208)
16,221 15,138
2,167 2,232
1,994 1,891
206,419 192,772
1,454 -
126,825 36,826
- 310
191,925 180,447
2,872 945
420,794 146,651
18,052 15,130
1,378 4,299
35,544 17,046
2,986 193
6,483 7,341
10,455 12,652
61,790 63,165
14,880 13,990
160 160



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Exhibit E-12
Page 2

2023 2022
Operating expenses con't:
Telephone, long distance, and other communication charges 45,487 43,953
Postage 584 556
Transportation and education 7,737 6,550
Utilities 159,875 150,924
Gas, fuel, and oil 369,460 297,212
Small Equipment Fuel 193 881
Uniforms and clothing 17,455 13,502
Licenses and permits 1,180 1,415
Outside personnel and inmate labor 698,857 694,720
Depreciation 1,783,326 1,751,827
Keep America Beautiful 33,000 27,500
Claims & judgments 500 296
Property taxes 2,423 2,350
Small tools and minor equipment 6,038 25,479
Total operating expenses 38,967,238 14,354,072
Operating loss (32,326,066) (8,981,861)
Nonoperating revenues
Property taxes 11,755,347 11,228,424
Cash over/short (236) (179)
Interest income 702,891 69,731
Miscellaneous revenues 3,280 586
Sale of capital assets (loss) (293,851) 67,729
Total nonoperating revenues 12,167,431 11,366,291
Income before contributions and transfers (20,158,635) 2,384,430
Capital contributions - 81,125
Transfers in 150,000 265,290
Transfers out (150,000) (265,453)
Total capital contributions and transfers - 80,962
Change in net position (20,158,635) 2,465,392
Net position, beginning of year 28,787,702 26,322,310
Net position, end of year $ 8,629,067 § 28,787,702
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 6,603,503 $ 5,574,103
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (12,956,275)  (10,674,209)
Cash payments to employees for services (2,429,657) (2,221,948)
Net cash used by operating activities (8,782,429) (7,322,054)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from taxes 11,775,874 11,163,700
Miscellaneous revenues 3,045 407
Transfer out - (163)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 11,778,919 11,163,944
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,907,348) (943,907)
Proceeds from sale of equipment 583,250 143,040
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (1,324,098) (800,867)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 701,173 68,135
Sale of investments - 3,172,446
Purchase of investments (685,499) -
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 15,674 3,240,581
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,688,066 6,281,604
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,965,746 684,142
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 8,653,812 § 6,965,746
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
2023 2022
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by
operating activities:
Net operating loss § (32,326,066) $  (8,981,861)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used
by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,783,326 1,751,827
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (13,898) 164,416
(Increase) decrease in interfund receivable - 30,515
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (23,771) 6,961
(Increase) decrease in pension outflow (205,692) (122,867)
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 214,317 (683,068)
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries/fringes 12,816 22,847
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (853,217) 177,804
Increase (decrease) in accrued sales tax (55) 76
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 61,848 11,491
Increase (decrease) in pension inflow (89,076) 641,013
Increase (decrease) in long term payables 22,657,039 (341,208)
Total adjustments 23,543,637 1,659,807
Net cash used by operating activities $  (8,782,429) §  (7,322,054)
Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Contributions of capital assets from solid waste grants $ - $ 81,125
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Exhibit E-14
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE/TIRES
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,438 § 23,277
Investments 56,007 254,944
Due from other funds:
Enterprise fund 6,285
Due from state shared revenue 48,801 40,222
Total current assets 116,531 318,443
Non-current assets:
Capital assets
Improvements 80,597 80,597
Machinery and equipment 58,851 111,947
139,448 192,544
Less: accumulated depreciation (108,231) (141,627)
Total non-current assets 31,217 50,917
Total assets 147,748 369,360
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable 27,604 24,074
Total liabilities 27,604 24,074
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 31,217 50,917
Restricted per state mandate (tires) 88,927 294,369
Total net position $ 120,144 $ 345,286
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE/TIRES

Exhibit E-15

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Operating expenses:
Contracted services (tire disposal)
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues:
Local government - tires
Interest income
Sale of capital assets (loss)
Total nonoperating revenues
Loss before contributions and transfers
Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

266

2023 2022
390,306 $ 231,961
8,527 9,910
398,833 241,871
(398,833) (241,871)
178,802 164,341
6,062 947
(11,173) -
173,691 165,288
(225,142) (76,583)
(225,142) (76,583)
345,286 421,869
120,144 $ 345,286




Exhibit E-16
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE/TIRES
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers (6,285) -
(386,776) $ (228,195)

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services $
Net cash used by operating activities (393,061) (228,195)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State share revenue 170,223 168,847
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 170,223 168,847
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 6,062 947
Sale of investments 198,937 49,054
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 204,999 50,001
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (17,839) (9,347)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 23,277 32,624
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 5,438 $ 23,277
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by
operating activities:
Net operating loss $ (398,833) $ (241,871)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used
by operating activities:
Depreciation 8,527 9,910
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (6,285) -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 3,530 3,766
Total adjustments 5,772 13,676
Net cash used by operating activities $ (393,061) $ (228,195)
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Exhibit E-17
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE/DHEC GRANTS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,701 $ 35,411
Due from DHEC 1,500 -
Total assets 29,201 35,411
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accrued salaries 319 -
Accrued payroll fringes 116 -
Unearned revenue 21,388 30,403
Due to other funds:
Enterprise fund 750 -
Total liabilities 22,573 30,403
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 6,628 5,008
Total net position $ 6,628 $ 5,008
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Exhibit E-18
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE/DHEC GRANTS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Operating revenues:
Compost bin sales $ 2,730 $ 3,090
Total operating revenues 2,730 3,090
Operating expenses:
Part time 6,641
Payroll fringes 2,359
Contracted Services 7,000
Advertising & publicity 4,800 15,674
Outside printing 2,275 79
Operating supplies 21,067 18,428
Public education supplies 3,990
Conference and meeting expense 1,500 3,005
Small Tools & Equipment 4,646
Total operating expenses 38,642 52,822
Operating loss (35,912) (49,732)
Nonoperating revenues:
DHEC/SW mgt. grant 22,017 37,478
Miscellaneous revenue 15,515 10,605
Total nonoperating revenues 37,532 48,083
Loss before transfers 1,620 (1,649)
Transfers in - 163
Change in net position 1,620 (1,486)
Net position, beginning of year 5,008 6,494
Net position, end of year $ 6,628 $ 5,008
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Exhibit E-19

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE/DHEC GRANTS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Net cash used by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating grants received
Transfers in
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by
operating activities:

Net operating loss

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and fringes
Increase (decrease) in interfund payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued sales tax
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds

Total adjustments

Net cash used by operating activities

2023 2022
$ 2,730 $ 3,090
(46,472) (57,880)
(43,742) (54,790)
36,032 90,038
163
36,032 90,201
(7,710) 35,411
35,411 .
$ 27,701 $ 35,411
$ (35,912) $ (49,732)
435 (525)
(30,515)
(9,015) 25,982
750
(7,830) (5,058)
$ (43,742) $ (54,790)
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - PELION AIRPORT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Exhibit E-20

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Due from Federal Grant
Inventory - aviation fuel

Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Capital assets
Land
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & equipment
Construction in progress
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Airport capital projects payable
Accrued sales tax

Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

2023 2022
$ 75,786 $ 145,778
3,320,326 3,168,345
508 -

77,568 120,388
30,134 41,753
3,504,322 3,476,264
190,116 190,116
833,811 833,811
6,383,295 6,383,295
213,012 213,012
638,667 436,979
8,258,901 8,057,213
(3,427,771)  (2,997,157)
4,831,130 5,060,056
8,335,452 8,536,320
5,684 75

- 51,992

282 1,273

1,093 1337

7,059 54,677
4,831,130 5,060,056
3,497,263 3,421,587

$ 8328393 $ 8,481,643
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - PELION AIRPORT
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Exhibit E-21

Operating revenues:
Rental income
Aviation fuel sales

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Cost of sales and services
Contracted services
Operating supplies
Building repairs & maintenance
Small equipment repairs & maintenance
Fuel site repairs & maintenance
Building insurance
Telephone
WAN Service Charges
Conference & Meeting
Subscriptions, dues & books
Utilities
Licenses & permits
Property taxes
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue
Interest income
Total nonoperating revenues

Loss before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in

Total capital contributions and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

2023 2022
$ 54,774 $ 51,060
78,519 133,693
133,293 184,753
77,322 132,915
7,267 5,010
3,483 82
2,154 3,156
136 5,385

880 2,573
4,404 4,404
228 228
1,199 1,199
827 -

40 40
9,685 7,544
175 100
14,677 14,596
430,614 498,117
553,091 675,349
(419,798) (490,596)
32,000 30,000
131,980 11,005
163,980 41,005
(255,818) (449,591)
77,568 90,388
25,000 25,000
102,568 115,388
(153,250) (334,203)
8,481,643 8,815,846
$ 8328393 $ 8,481,643
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - PELION AIRPORT
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 132,785 § 184,828
Cash payments to suppliers and employees (158,476) (162,804)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (25,691) 22,024
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Federal funds (FAA) received 152,388 104,154
Transfer in 25,000 25,000
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 177,388 129,154
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (201,688) (335,990)
Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities (201,688) (335,990)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 131,980 11,005
Sale of investments - 188,995
Purchase of investments (151,981) -
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (20,001) 200,000
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (69,992) 15,188
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 145,778 130,590
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 75,786 $ 145,778
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUND - PELION AIRPORT
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
2023 2022
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (419,798) $ (490,596)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Depreciation 430,614 498,117
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (508) 75
Decrease (increase) in inventory 11,619 (13,356)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (47,374) 27,875
(Decrease) increase in unearned revenue (244) 91)
Total adjustments 394,107 512,620
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (25,691) $ 22,024
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Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or service provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the government units, on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Employee Insurance — This fund is used to account for the accumulation of insurance premiums,
and the payments of employee health insurance claims, life insurance premiums, and associated
administrative costs.

Post-Employee Insurance — This fund is used to account for the accumulation of insurance
employer contributions, the reimbursement of premiums of employee health insurance, and
associated administrative costs for the defined contribution plan.

Worker’s Compensation — This fund is used to account for the accumulation of employer
contributions and the payments of worker’s compensation insurance claims, insurance premiums,

and safety management services.

Risk Management — This fund is used to account for the expenses incurred by personnel in
overseeing incidents and minimizing risks for the County.

Motor Pool — This fund is used to account for the rental of motor vehicles by other departments and
the related costs of those vehicles.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)

Exhibit F-1

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable

Due from other funds:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Enterprise funds

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Vehicles

Total capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred pension outflows

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Compensated absences
Accrued employer contributions
Insurance claims due
Due to other funds:
General fund
Interfund payable

Total current liabilities (payable from current assets)

Total liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Net pension liability

Total non-current liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension inflows

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

Totals
Employee Post Employment Workers Risk Motor
Insurance Insurance Compensation ~ Management Pool 2023 2022
$ 3,102,777 $ 1,525,659 $ 101,008 $ 25272 $§ 4,754,716 $ 9,160,205
6,304,600 17,812,762 10,234,150 216,711 875,957 35,444,180 31,021,887
247,952 46,622 294,574 530,516
2,403 2,403 1,506
18
201
6,552,552 20,915,539 11,806,431 317,719 903,632 40,495,873 40,714,333
279,764 279,764 279,763
- - - - 279,764 279,764 279,763
- - - - (242,863) (242,863) (228,130)
- - - - 36,901 36,901 51,633
6,552,552 20,915,539 11,806,431 317,719 940,533 40,532,774 40,765,966
66,775 66,775 58,576
6,552,552 20,915,539 11,806,431 384,494 940,533 40,599,549 40,824,542
22,930 529,879 177 6,010 558,996 573,620
1,964 1,964 925
1,746 1,746 -
567 567 258
1,182,841 1,182,841 2,310,775
2,013 2,013 965
97,208 97,208 -
1,302,979 - 529,879 4,454 8,023 1,845,335 2,886,543
1,302,979 - 529,879 4,454 8,023 1,845,335 2,886,543
361,578 361,578 352,961
- - - 361,578 - 361,578 352,961
28,433 28,433 31,988
1,302,979 - 529,879 394,465 8,023 2,235,346 3,271,492
36,901 36,901 51,633
5,249,573 20,915,539 11,276,552 (9,971) 895,609 38,327,302 37,501,417
5,249,573 § 20,915,539 § 11,276,552 ' $ 9,971) $ 932,510 § 38,364,203 $ 37,553,050
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)

Exhibit F-2

Operating revenues:
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Other premiums
Cobra premiums
Employer subsidy - post employment
Employee life insurance
Employee dental insurance
Pharmaceuticals rebate
Insurance reimbursements
Stop-loss insurance
Workers comp reimbursement
Charges for sales and services
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Payroll fringes
Towing
Office supplies
Duplicating
Operating supplies
Safety supplies
Building repairs and maintenance
Small equipment repairs and maintenance
Building insurance
General tort liability insurance
Surety bonds
Communication charges
Postage
Conference & meeting expense
Subscriptions, dues & books
Motor pool reimbursement
Utilities
Health screening
Medical services
Actuarial services
Pharmaceuticals
Telephone
WAN services charges
Background history screening
Driver history screening
Drug testing services
Workers comp insurance claims
SC workers compensation taxes
Workers comp insurance premiums
Vehicle repairs and maintenance
Vehicle insurance
GPS monitoring charges
Gas, fuel, and oil
Medical insurance claims
Dental insurance claims
Administration cost
Compliance testing
Online benefit system
Life insurance premium
Stop - loss insurance premium
Pharmacy claims
Insurance reimbursement to employee
Health care reform fees
Wellness program incentvies
Depreciation
Small tools & minor equipment

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments

Sale of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Transfer in
Transfer out

Total contributions and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Totals
Employee  Post Employment =~ Workers Risk Motor
Insurance Insurance Compensation _Management Pool 2023 2022
$ 13,427,663 $ 263,287 $ 3,431,096 $ $ $ 17,122,046 $ 16,427,688
3,302,798 3,302,798 3,581,287
466,691 466,691 579,949
18,677 18,677 29,202
240,000 240,000 205,350
184,642 184,642 207,076
270,782 270,782 285,654
1,046,725 1,046,725 1,013,555
50,243 50,243 124,823
797,793 797,793 594,429
- 48,121
22,651 22,651 23,518
19,806,014 263,287 3,431,096 - 22,651 23,523,048 23,120,652
71,851 71,851 63,985
31,416 31,416 24,925
406 406 442
399 399 96
499 499 -
2,426 2,426 832
1,605 1,605 -
156 156 -
364 50 414 414
170 170 161
1,725 1,725 4,635
2 2 13
193 193 4,945
1,113 1,113 720
- 97
4,418 145 4,563 4,277
21,437 21,437 23,260
1,483,530 1,483,530 1,437,978
13,417 13,417 12,118
47,045 47,045 40,865
3,165 3,165 3,613
1,393 1,393 963
25,537 25,537 23,434
3,640 3,640 3,826
28,686 28,686 21,752
1,357,858 1,357,858 923,314
74,724 74,724 -
795,724 795,724 724,555
10,629 10,629 2,043
7,380 7,380 7,380
2,236 2,236 2,120
7,085 7,085 5,675
12,222,901 12,222,901 13,431,094
283,406 283,406 1,299,717
786,432 786,432 717,313
2,331 2,331 2,983
33,052 33,052 32,950
382,422 382,422 370,642
728,660 728,660 716,862
5,024,037 5,024,037 4,381,578
395,365 395,365 479,543
6,513 6,513 17,871
110,638 110,638 101,776
14,733 14,733 18,606
645 645 926
21,156,766 395,365 2,289,901 107,464 42,063 23,991,559 24,910,299
(1,350,752) (132,078) 1,141,195 (107,464) (19,412) (468,511) (1,789,647)
245,038 635,264 356,607 8,200 34,555 1,279,664 95,680
- 28,423
245,038 635,264 356,607 8,200 34,555 1,279,664 124,103
(1,105,714) 503,186 1,497,802 (99,264) 15,143 811,153 (1,665,544)
158,071 158,071 155,421
(158,071) (158,071) (155,421)
- - (158,071) 158,071 - - -
(1,105,714) 503,186 1,339,731 58,807 15,143 811,153 (1,665,544)
6,355,287 20,412,353 9,936,821 (68,778) 917,367 37,553,050 39,218,594
$ 5,249,573 §  200915,539 § 11,276,552 § (9.971) $_ 932,510 38,364,203 $_ 37,553,050
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022)

Exhibit F-3

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from interfund services provided & used
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfer in
Transfer out
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities:

Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of equipment

Net cash used for capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Receipt of interest (net increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)
Purchase of investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in pension outflow
Decrease (increase) in net pension liability
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in insurance claims due
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in interfund payable
Increase (decrease) in pension inflow

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Totals
Employee Post Employment ~ Workers Risk Motor
Insurance Insurance Compensation Management Pool 2023 2022
6,274,229 $ $ $ $ $ 6,274,229 $ 6,201,357
13,764,871 263,287 3,531,160 21,972 17,581,290 16,692,632
(22,294,284) (395,365) (2,301,040) (107,427) (20,263) (25,118,379) (23,912,920)
(2,255,184) (132,078) 1,230,120 (107,427) 1,709 (1,262,860) (1,018,931)
158,071 158,071 155,421
(158,071) (158,071) (155,421)
- - (158,071) 158,071 - - -
- (38,947)
- 28,423
- - - - - - (10,524)
245,038 635,264 356,607 8,200 34,555 1,279,664 95,680
807,961 (4,268,333) (819,166) (108,200) (34,555) (4,422,293) 3,358,771
1,052,999 (3,633,069) (462,559) (100,000) - (3,142,629) 3,454,451
(1,202,185) (3,765,147) 609,490 (49,356) 1,709 (4,405,489) 2,424,996
1,202,185 6,867,924 916,169 150,364 23,563 9,160,205 6,735,209
0 $ 3,102,777 $ 1,525,659 § 101,008 $ 25272 $ 4,754,716 $ 9,160,205
(1,350,752) $ (132,078) $ 1,141,195 § (107,464) $ (19.412) $ (468,511) $ _ (1,789,647)
14,733 14,733 18,606
135,878 100,064 235,942 (226,771)
(8,199) (8,199) (5,237)
8,617 8,617 (28,743)
(679) (679) 108
(9,584) (11,139) 3,183 6,010 (11,530) 457,685
(1,127,934) (1,127,934) 528,314
) 1,057 1,048 694
97,208 97,208 -
(3,555) (3,555) 26,060
(904,432) - 88,925 37 21,121 (794,349) 770,716
(2,255,184) $ (132,078) $ 1,230,120 $ (107,427) $ 1,709 $  (1,262,860) $  (1,018,931)
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Exhibit F-4
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
EMPLOYEE INSURANCE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ - § 1,202,185
Investments 6,304,600 7,112,561
Accounts receivable 247,952 383,830
Total assets 6,552,552 8,698,576
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 22,930 32,514
Interfund payable 97,208 -
Insurance claims due 1,182,841 2,310,775
Total liabilities 1,302,979 2,343,289
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 5,249,573 6,355,287
Total net position $ 5249573 § 6,355,287
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
EMPLOYEE INSURANCE

Exhibit F-5

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Operating revenues:
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Other premiums
Cobra premiums
Employer subsidy - post employment
Employee life insurance
Employee dental insurance
Pharmaceuticals rebate
Insurance reimbursements
Stop-loss insurance

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Health screening services
Medical services
Actuarial services
Pharmaceuticals
Building repairs and maintenance
Building insurance
Telephone
WAN service charges
Utilities - auxiliary admin buidling
Life insurance premium
Stop-loss insurance premiums
AdvancePCS prescription claims
Health care reform fees
Medical insurance claims
Dental insurance claims
Medical administration costs
Dental administration costs
HRA/HSA administration costs
Cobra administration costs
Compliance testing
Online benefit system
Wellness program incentives
Small tools and minor equipment

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment interest (net decrease in the
fair value of investments)
Total nonoperating revenues
Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

2023 2022
$ 13,427,663 $ 12,760,066
3,302,798 3,581,287
466,691 579,949
18,677 29,202
240,000 205,350
184,642 207,076
270,782 285,654
1,046,725 1,013,555
50,243 124,823
797,793 594,429
19,806,014 19,381,391
21,437 23,260
1,483,530 1,437,978
13,417 12,118
47,045 40,865
1,605 0
364 364
3,165 3,613
1,393 963
4,418 3,914
382,422 370,642
728,660 716,862
5,024,037 4,381,578
6,513 17,871
12,222,901 13,431,094
283,406 1,299,717
687,004 613,752
28,137 28,507
55,382 60,347
15,909 14,707
2,331 2,983
33,052 32,950
110,638 101,776
- 771
21,156,766 22,596,632
(1,350,752)  (3,215,241)
245,038 21,830
245,038 21,830
(1,105,714  (3,193,411)
6,355,287 9,548,698
$ 5249573 $ 6355287
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
EMPLOYEE INSURANCE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Exhibit F-6

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from users
Cash received from interfund services provided & used
Cash paid to insurance suppliers and employees
Net cash used by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments (net decrease in the
fair value of investments)
Purchase of investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Operating (loss)

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in interfund payable
Increase (decrease) in insurance claims due

Total adjustments

Net cash used by operating activities
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2023 2022

$ 6274229 $ 6,201,357

13,764,871 12,965,416
(22,294,284)  (22,044,602)

(2,255,184)  (2,877,829)

245,038 21,830
807,961 2,428,170
1,052,999 2,450,000
(1,202,185) (427,829)
1,202,185 1,630,014

$ - $ 1,202,185

$ (1,350,752) $  (3,215,241)

135,878 (214,618)
(9,584) 23,716
97,208 -

(1,127,934) 528,314
(904,432) 337,412

$ (2,255,184) $ (2,877,829)




Exhibit F-7
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
POST EMPLOYMENT INSURANCE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,102,777 $ 6,867,924
Investments 17,812,762 13,544,429
Total assets 20,915,539 20,412,353
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Total liabilities - -
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 20,915,539 20,412,353
Total net position $ 20915539 § 20,412,353
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Exhibit F-8
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
POST EMPLOYMENT INSURANCE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Operating revenues:
Employer contributions $ 263,287 $ 689,734
Total operating revenues 263,287 689,734
Operating expenses:
Insurance reimbursement to employee 395,365 479,543
Total operating expenses 395,365 479,543
Operating income (132,078) 210,191
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment interest 635,264 40,804
Total nonoperating revenues 635,264 40,804
Change in net position 503,186 250,995
Net position, beginning of year 20,412,353 20,161,358
Net position, end of year $ 20915539 $§ 20,412,353
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
POST EMPLOYMENT INSURANCE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Exhibit F-9

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from interfund services provided & used $ 263,287 $ 689,734
Cash paid to insurance suppliers and employees (395,365) (479,543)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (132,078) 210,191
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 635,264 40,804
Purchase (sale) of investments (4,268,333) 1,963,568
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (3,633,069) 2,004,372
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,765,147) 2,214,563
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,867,924 4,653,361
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 3,102,777 $ 6,867,924
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (132,078) $ 210,191
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Total adjustments - -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (132,078) $ 210,191
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Exhibit F-10
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
WORKERS COMPENSATION
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,525,659 $ 916,169
Investments 10,234,150 9,414,984
Accounts receivable 46,622 146,686
Total assets 11,806,431 10,477,839
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 529,879 541,018
Total liabilities 529,879 541,018
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 11,276,552 9,936,821
Total net position $ 11,276,552 § 9,936,821
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
WORKERS COMPENSATION

Exhibit F-11

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Operating revenues:
Employer contributions
Workers comp reimbursement

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Background history screening
Driver history screening
Drug testing services
Safety supplies
Postage
Conference, meeting & training
Subscriptions, dues, and books
Workers compensation insurance claims
SC workers compensation taxes
Workers compensation insurance premiums

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Nonoperating revenues:

Investment interest (net increase in the
fair value of investments)

Total nonoperating revenues
Income before contributions and transfers
Transfer out
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

2023 2022
$ 3,431,096 $ 2,977,888
- 48,121

3,431,096 3,026,009
25,537 23,434

3,640 3,826

28,686 21,752

2,426 832

193 2,017

1,113 -
1,357,858 923,314
74,724 -
795,724 724,555
2,289,901 1,699,730
1,141,195 1,326,279
356,607 29,886
356,607 29,886
1,497,802 1,356,165
(158,071) (155,421)
1,339,731 1,200,744
9,936,821 8,736,077

$ 11276552 $ 9,936,821
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Exhibit F-12

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
WORKERS COMPENSATION
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from interfund services provided & used $ 3,531,160 $ 3,013,856
Cash paid to insurance suppliers and employees (2,301,040) (1,261,130)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,230,120 1,752,726
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfer out (158,071) (155,421)
Net cash used by noncapital financing activities (158,071) (155,421)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments (net increase in the
fair value of investments) 356,607 29,886
Purchase of investments (819,166) (1,029,806)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (462,559) (999,920)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 609,490 597,385
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 916,169 318,784
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,525,659 $ 916,169
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income $ 1,141,195 § 1,326,279
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 100,064 (12,153)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (11,139) 438,600
Total adjustments 88,925 426,447
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,230,120 § 1,752,726
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
RISK MANAGEMENT
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Exhibit F-13

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Total current assets
Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred pension outflows

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Compensated absences due within one year
Accrued employer contributions
Due to other funds
General fund

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Net pension liability

Total non-current liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension inflows

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

Total net position

2023 2022
$ 101,008 150,364
216,711 108,511
317,719 258,875

66,775 58,576
384,494 317,451

177 88

1,964 925

1,746 -

567 258

- 9

4,454 1,280

361,578 352,961
361,578 352,961
28,433 31,988
394,465 386,229
(9,971) (68,778)
$ (9,971) $ (68,778)
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
RISK MANAGEMENT

Exhibit F-14

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Operating revenues:

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Payroll fringes
Office supplies
Duplicating
Operating supplies
Small equipment & repairs
Building insurance
General tort liability insurance
Communication charges
Postage
Conference & meeting
Subscriptions, dues & books
Motor pool reimbursement
Utilities
Small tools & minor equipment

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues:
Investment interest

Total nonoperating revenues
Loss before contributions and transfers
Transfers in
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of the year

Net position, end of year

2023 2022
$ - $ -
71,851 63,985

31,416 24,925

406 442

399 96

499 -

156 -

50 50

170 161

1,725 4,635

2 13

; 2,928

- 720

- 97

145 363

645 155

107,464 98,570
(107,464) (98,570)
8,200 361

8,200 361
(99,264) (98,209)
158,071 155,421
58,807 57,212
(68,778) (125,990)

$ 9,971) $ (68,778)
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Exhibit F-15

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
RISK MANAGEMENT
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash paid to suppliers and employees $ (107,427) $ (109,762)
Net cash (used) by operating activities (107,427) (109,762)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfer in 158,071 155,421
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 158,071 155,421
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 8,200 361
Purchase of investments (108,200) (361)
Net cash used by investing activities (100,000) -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (49,356) 45,659
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 150,364 104,705
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 101,008 $ 150,364
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used
by operating activities:
Operating loss $ (107,464) $ (98,570)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in pension outflow (8,199) (5,237)
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 8,617 (28,743)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 3,183 (3,280)
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds ) 8
Increase (decrease) in pension inflow (3,555) 26,060
Total adjustments 37 (11,192)
Net cash used by operating activities $ (107,427) $ (109,762)
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
MOTOR POOL
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Exhibit F-16

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Due from other funds:
General fund
Special revenue fund
Enterprise fund

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Vehicles

Less: accumulated depreciation

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds:
General fund

Total current liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

2023 2022

$ 25,272 $ 23,563
875,957 841,402

2,403 1,506

18

201

903,632 866,690
279,764 279,763
(242,863) (228,130)
36,901 51,633
940,533 918,323

6,010 -

2,013 956

8,023 956

36,901 51,633
895,609 865,734

$ 932,510 $ 917,367
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
MOTOR POOL

Exhibit F-17

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Operating revenues:
Motor fees

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Vehicle repairs and maintenance
Vehicle insurance
GPS monitoring charges
Gas, fuel, and oil
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment interest
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total nonoperating revenues
Income before contributions and transfers
Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year
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$

2023 2022
22,651 $ 23,518
22,651 23,518
10,629 2,043

7,380 7,380
2,236 2,120
7,085 5,675
14,733 18,606
42,063 35,824
(19,412) (12,306)
34,555 2,799
- 28,423
34,555 31,222
15,143 18,916
15,143 18,916
917,367 898,451
932,510 $ 917,367




Exhibit F-18

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
MOTOR POOL
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from interfund services provided & used $ 21,972 $ 23,626
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (20,263) (17,883)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,709 5,743
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets - (38,947)
Proceeds from sale of equipment - 28,423
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities - (10,524)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Receipt of interest 34,555 2,799
Purchase of investments (34,555) (2,800)
Net cash used by investing activities - (1)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,709 (4,782)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 23,563 28,345
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 25272 $ 23,563
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (19,412) $ (12,306)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 14,733 18,606
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds (679) 108
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 6,010 (1,351)
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 1,057 686
Total adjustments 21,121 18,049
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,709 $ 5,743
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Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Fiduciary Funds —

Custodial Funds — There are eleven different funds established to account for custodial
funds net position by the County for the respective programs.

Taxing Entities — There are thirty-eight different funds established to account for taxing
entries for property taxes handled by the County Treasurer on behalf of the respective taxing
entities. These include various funds for school districts, municipalities, and other taxing
authorities.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES TAXING ENTITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022)

Exhibit G-3

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent
Investments

Property taxes receivable
Due from other agencies

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to taxing units

Total liabilities

298

2023 2022

22,673,348 36,735,713
286,802,100 256,672,499
30,009,196 31,840,989
925,065 835,427
340,409,709 326,084,628
340,409,709 326,084,628
340,409,709 326,084,628




Exhibit G-4

Page 1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
Lexington School District 1
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,113,320 699,628,806 703,925,641 2,816,485
Investments 96,824,556 78,059,078 96,824,556 78,059,078
Property taxes receivable 13,829,884 24,551,523 25,655,461 12,725,946
$ 117,767,760 802,239,407 826,405,658 93,601,509
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 117,767,760 802,239,407 826,405,658 93,601,509
Lexington School District 2
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,854,502 238,075,472 238,713,327 1,216,647
Investments 35,488,585 27,659,858 35,488,585 27,659,858
Property taxes receivable 5,894,514 10,412,034 11,017,906 5,288,642
$ 43,237,601 276,147,364 285,219,818 34,165,147
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 43,237,601 276,147,364 285,219,818 34,165,147
Lexington School District 3
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 330,879 158,983,060 158,955,925 358,014
Investments 36,827,654 45,221,423 36,827,655 45,221,422
Property taxes receivable 1,025,934 1,765,326 1,840,796 950,464
$ 38,184,467 205,969,809 197,624,376 46,529,900
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 38,184,467 205,969,809 197,624,376 46,529,900
Lexington School District 4
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 554,184 75,881,103 75,993,370 441,917
Investments 2,989,722 4,230,061 2,989,722 4,230,061
Property taxes receivable 1,505,926 2,798,840 2,859,312 1,445,454
$ 5,049,832 82,910,004 81,842,404 6,117,432
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 5,049,832 82,910,004 81,842,404 6,117,432
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Exhibit G-4

Lexington School District 5

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Property taxes receivable

LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit

Town of Batesburg-Leesville

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable

LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit

City of Cayce
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable

LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit

Town of Chapin
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable

LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit

Page 2
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
$ 4,722,946 $ 406,094,278 $ 408,590,088 $ 2,227,136
73,106,396 102,923,446 73,106,394 102,923,448
6,184,421 12,000,038 11,825,819 6,358,640
$ 84,013,763 $ 521,017,762 $ 493,522,301 $ 111,509,224
$ 84,013,763 $ 521,017,762 $ 493,522,301 $ 111,509,224
$ - $ 2,127,772 $ 2,127,772 $ -
125,972 203,531 231,860 97,643
$ 125972 $ 2,331,303 $ 2,359,632 $ 97,643
$ 125972 $ 2,331,303 $ 2,359,632 $ 97,643
$ 125972 $ 2,331,303 $ 2,359,632 $ 97,643
$ - 8 6,147,870 $ 6,147,870 $ -
201,033 383,517 379,323 205,227
$ 201,033 $ 6,531,387 $ 6,527,193 $ 205,227
$ 201,033 $ 6,531,387 $ 6,527,193 $ 205,227
$ 201,033 $ 6,531,387 $ 6,527,193 $ 205,227
$ - $ 222,551 $ 222,551 $ -
22,066 36,523 39,091 19,498
$ 22,066 $ 259,074 $ 261,642 $ 19,498
$ 22,066 $ 259,074 $ 261,642 $ 19,498
$ 22,066 $ 259,074 $ 261,642 $ 19,498
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Exhibit G-4

Town of Gilbert

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable

LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit

Town of Lexington

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable

LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit

Town of Pelion

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable

LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit

Town of Summit

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable

LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit

Page 3
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
$ - 8 16,539 $ 16,539 $ -
1,015 1,857 1,945 927
$ 1,015 $ 18,396 $ 18,484 $ 927
$ 1,015 $ 18,396 $ 18,484 $ 927
$ 1,015 $ 18,396 $ 18,484 $ 927
$ - $ 5,805,919 §$ 5,805,919 $ -
159,996 332,956 316,090 176,862
$ 159,996 $ 6,138,875 §$ 6,122,009 $ 176,862
$ 159,996 $ 6,138,875 §$ 6,122,009 $ 176,862
$ 159,996 $ 6,138,875 $ 6,122,009 $ 176,862
$ - 8 58,350 $ 58,350 $ -
2,316 4,382 4,247 2,451
$ 2,316 $ 62,732 $ 62,597 $ 2,451
$ 2,316 $ 62,732 $ 62,597 $ 2,451
$ 2316 % 62,732 $ 62,597 $ 2,451
$ - $ 6,783 §$ 6,783 $ -
171 460 310 321
$ 171§ 7,243  § 7,093 $ 321
$ 171§ 7,243  $ 7093 $ 321
$ 171 $ 7,243 $ 7,093 $ 321
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Exhibit G-4

Page 4
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
Town of Swansea
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 256,067 256,067 -
Property taxes receivable 20,963 43,384 39,705 24,642
3$ 20,963 299,451 295,772 24,642
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 20,963 299,451 295,772 24,642
City of West Columbia
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 9,546,433 9,546,433 -
Property taxes receivable 461,946 861,540 877,708 445,778
3$ 461,946 10,407,973 10,424,141 445,778
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 461,946 10,407,973 10,424,141 445,778
Town of Irmo
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 470,093 470,093 -
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ - 470,093 470,093 -
Town of Springdale
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 752,008 752,008 -
Property taxes receivable 46,582 80,517 83,596 43,503
3$ 46,582 832,525 835,604 43,503
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 46,582 832,525 835,604 43,503
City of Columbia
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 2,528,078 2,528,078 -
Property taxes receivable 115,025 225,735 226,735 114,025
$ 115,025 2,753,813 2,754,813 114,025
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 115,025 2,753,813 2,754,813 114,025
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Page 5
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
Tax Fund (Clearing)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ (6,247,907) $ 670,989,618 $ 675,371,418 $  (10,629,707)
Investments 7,012,560 11,350,001 7,012,560 11,350,001
$ 764,653 $ 682,339,619 $ 682,383,978 $ 720,294
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 764,653 $ 682,339,619 $ 682,383,978 $ 720,294
3$ 764,653 $ 682,339,619 $ 682,383,978 $ 720,294
Lexington Recreation Support Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 15,483,009 $ 15,483,009 $ -
Property taxes receivable 824,715 1,476,285 1,549,588 751,412
$ 824,715 $ 16,959,294 $ 17,032,597 $ 751,412
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 824,715 $ 16,959,294 $ 17,032,597 $ 751,412
Lexington Recreation Bond Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 333232 3 4,484,624 $ 4,596,830 $ 221,026
Investments 300,773 2,678,846 300,773 2,678,846
Property taxes receivable 242,294 433,721 454,591 221,424
3$ 876,299 3 7,597,191 $ 5,352,194 $ 3,121,296
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 876,299 $ 7,597,191 $ 5,352,194 $ 3,121,296
Irmo/Chapin Recreation Support Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 5,184,966 $ 5,184,966 $ -
Property taxes receivable 407,315 512,444 649,829 269,930
$ 407,315 $ 5,697,410 $ 5,834,795 $ 269,930
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 407,315 $ 5,697,410 $ 5,834,795 $ 269,930
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Page 6
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
Irmo/Chapin Recreation Bond Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 258,839 $ 3,413,550 $ 3,505,984 $ 166,405
Investments 557,552 844,159 557,552 844,159
Property taxes receivable - 422,135 272,864 149,271
$ 816,391 3 4,679,844 $ 4,336,400 $ 1,159,835
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 816,391 $ 4,679,844 $ 4,336,400 $ 1,159,835
Fire Department Premium Tax Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 64,384 $ 2,279,543 $ 2,297,485 $ 46,442
Due from other agencies 835,427 1,671,364 1,581,726 925,065
$ 899,811 $ 3,950,907 $ 3,879,211 $ 971,507
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 899,811 $ 3,950,907 $ 3,879,211 $ 971,507
Midlands Technical Support Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ (269,465) $ 6,402,882 $ 6,778,686 $ (645,269)
Investments 1,284,948 1,025,670 1,284,948 1,025,670
Property taxes receivable 258,196 471,253 487,573 241,876
$ 1,273,679 $ 7,899,805 $ 8,551,207 $ 622,277
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 1,273,679 $ 7,899,805 $ 8,551,207 $ 622,277
$ 1,273,679 $ 7,899,805 $ 8,551,207 $ 622,277
Midlands Technical Capital Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 93,728 $ 5435,194 $ 5,421,015 $ 107,907
Investments 1,161,209 1,331,111 1,161,209 1,331,111
Property taxes receivable 122,060 222,782 230,495 114,347
$ 1,376,997 $ 6,989,087 $ 6,812,719 $ 1,553,365
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 1,376,997 $ 6,989,087 $ 6,812,719 $ 1,553,365
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Page 7
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
Riverbanks Park Support Fund
ASSETS
Property taxes receivable $ 33,078 $ 65,683 $ 69,466 $ 29,295
3$ 33,078 $ 65,683 $ 69,466 $ 29,295
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 33,078 3 65,683 $ 69,466 $ 29,295
Riverbanks Park Bond Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 1,438,372 $ 1,438,372  $ -
Property taxes receivable 81,624 154,380 159,903 76,101
$ 81,624 $ 1,592,752 $ 1,598,275 $ 76,101
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 81,624 $ 1,592,752 $ 1,598,275 $ 76,101
Irmo Fire District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 2,936,215 $ 2,936,215 $ -
Property taxes receivable 170,139 328,061 331,752 166,448
$ 170,139 $ 3,264,276  $ 3,267,967 $ 166,448
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 170,139 $ 3,264,276  $ 3,267,967 $ 166,448
Town of Irmo Fire District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 8 - 3 - $ -
Property taxes receivable - 72 72 -
$ - $ 72 $ 72 $ -
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ - 3 72 $ 72 $ -
$ - $ 72 $ 72 $ -
City of Columbia Fire District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 577,557 $ 577,557 $ -
Property taxes receivable 22,436 44,249 43,987 22,698
$ 22,436 $ 621,806 $ 621,544 $ 22,698
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 22,436 $ 621,806 $ 621,544 $ 22,698
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Page 8
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
Vehicle Tax Clearing Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 41,712 - - 41,712
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 41,712 - - 41,712
Hollow Creek Watershed
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 9,855 9,855 -
Property taxes receivable 631 1,092 915 808
631 10,947 10,770 808
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 631 10,947 10,770 808
1% School Property Tax Relief
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,702,868 49,161,279 50,751,765 26,112,382
Investments 1,052,842 11,445,859 1,052,842 11,445,859
3 28,755,710 60,607,138 51,804,607 37,558,241
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 28,755,710 60,607,138 51,804,607 37,558,241
City of Cayce TIF District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 2,942,154 2,942,154 -
Property tax receivable 545 - 545 -
3 545 2,942,154 2,942,699 -
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 545 2,942,154 2,942,699 -
West Columbia TIF District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 1,937,537 1,937,537 -
Property tax receivable 51,194 78,785 95,950 34,029
3 51,194 2,016,322 2,033,487 34,029
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 51,194 2,016,322 2,033,487 34,029
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
Town of Lexington TIF District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 293,633 293,633 -
Property tax receivable 2,648 6,919 2,648 6,919
$ 2,648 300,552 296,281 6,919
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 2,648 300,552 296,281 6,919
Tax Installment Pay. Prog.
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 141,755 321,510 290,831 172,434
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 141,755 321,510 290,831 172,434
Irmo Fire District Bond Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 40,736 517,425 538,343 19,818
Investments 65,702 32,587 65,702 32,587
Property taxes receivable 26,350 51,037 52,772 24,615
3 132,788 601,049 656,817 77,020
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing unit $ 132,788 601,049 656,817 77,020
Total Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 36,735,713 2,380,410,105 2,394,472,469 22,673,348
Investments 256,672,499 286,802,099 256,672,498 286,802,100
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Property taxes 31,840,989 57,971,061 59,802,854 30,009,196
Due from other agencies 835,427 1,671,364 1,581,726 925,065
Total assets $ 326,084,628 2,726,854,629 2,712,529,547 340,409,709
LIABILITIES
Due to taxing units $ 326,084,628 2,726,854,629 2,712,529,547 340,409,709
Total liabilities $ 326,084,628 2,726,854,629 2,712,529,547 340,409,709
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Capital Assets Used In The Operation
Of Governmental Funds
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Exhibit H-1
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF CAPITAL ASSETS - BY SOURCE
JUNE 30, 2023

310

2023 2022
Governmental funds capital assets:
General fund & other special revenue funds
Land $ 37,728,028 $ 38,088,874
Buildings 113,830,542 113,733,123
Improvements other than buildings 3,472,539 3,284,877
Machinery and equipment 30,712,397 27,804,010
Office furniture and equipment 17,175,846 16,197,788
Vehicles 58,379,841 51,019,083
Books 3,150,202 2,799,312
Construction in progress 10,503,578 11,625,376
Infrastructure 304,978,040 298,192,279
Right of use lease 278,170 0
Total general & other special revenue funds capital assets 580,209,183 562,744,722
Internal service funds
Vehicles 279,764 279,763
Total internal service funds capital assets 279,764 279,763
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 580,488,947 $ 563,024,485
Investment in capital assets by source:
General fund $ 106,284,753 $ 95,780,659
Special revenue funds 343,540,232 337,385,868
Capital projects funds 124,475,725 123,768,832
Internal service funds 279,764 279,763
Donations 5,897,473 5,798,363
Confiscated 11,000 11,000
Total investment in capital assets 580,488,947 $ 563,024,485
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Exhibit H-3
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS - BY FUNCTION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Capital Capital
Assets Assets
July 1, 2022  Adjustments Additions Deductions Transfers June 30, 2023

General Administrative $ 32,475,408 $ 278,170 653,233 $ (39,410) $ 19,257 $ 33,386,658
General Services 9,047,318 57,231 (18,458) 9,086,091
Public Works 317,746,417 9,791,770 (1,286,940) (22,442) 326,228,805
Public Safety 69,938,173 7,397,394 (1,322,776) 39,555 76,052,346
Judicial 20,924,660 244,637 (87,215) 21,082,082
Law Enforcement 43,954,456 3,571,295 (702,937) (36,370) 46,786,444
Boards and Commissions 3,527,174 107,937 3,635,111
Health and Human Services 10,199,854 10,199,854
Economic Development 25,822,260 (360,846) 25,461,414
Library 17,763,391 1,154,304 (851,130) 18,066,565
Construction in Progress 5,523,555 2,246,494 (1,145,753) 6,624,296
Construction in Progress - Infrastructure 6,101,819 1,605,740 (3,828,278) 3,879,281

Total Capital Assets $ 563,024,485 $ (82,676) 26,830,035 $ (9,282,897) $ - $ 580,488,947
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Supplementary

Lexington County
Public Works District
Maintenance Headquarters

A Main Headquarters

@ District Maintenance
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Supplementary

The supplementary section includes information on enterprise capital assets and schedules of
principal and interest payments to maturity. The enterprise fund capital assets schedules include: a
comparison schedule of each enterprise fund capital asset for this fiscal year and the previous fiscal
year and a schedule of changes in enterprise fund capital assets for this fiscal year. The schedules of
principal and interest payments to maturity include all Lexington County issued bonds and enterprise

fund revenue bonds, long-term notes, and capital leases.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF ENTERPRISE FUND CAPITAL ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2023
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022)

Schedule 1

Land

Buildings

Improvements

Machinery and Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles

Construction in Progress

TOTAL

Total Totals
Basis of Accumulated Year Ended June 30,
Capital Assets Depreciation 2023 2022

$ 2,818,745 $ - $ 2,818,745 $ 2,349,460
11,013,903 2,748,298 8,265,605 8,523,467
11,858,473 6,468,964 5,389,509 5,951,630
9,374,983 6,145,544 3,229,439 4,595,180
20,227 17,920 2,307 5,360
2,290,590 1,507,051 783,539 322,351
811,177 - 811,177 574,256
$ 38,188,098 $ 16,887,777 § 21,300,321 § 22,321,704
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ENTERPRISE FUND CAPITAL ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Schedule 2

Land
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles
Construction in Progress
Total Cost or Basis

Accumulated Depreciation

NET CAPITAL ASSETS

Balance Balance
at Beginning at End
of Year Adjustment Additions Deductions of Year
$ 2,349,460 - $ 469,285 $ - $ 2,818,745
10,963,203 - 50,700 - 11,013,903
11,731,973 - 126,500 - 11,858,473
10,416,705 - 511,748 (1,553,470) 9,374,983
20,227 - - - 20,227
1,612,197 - 713,882 (35,489) 2,290,590
574,256 - 269,198 (32,277) 811,177
37,668,021 - 2,141,313 (1,621,236) 38,188,098
(15,346,317) - (2,242,145) 700,685 (16,887,777)
$ 22,321,704 - $ (100,832)  § (920,551)  § 21,300,321
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM AD VALOREM TAXES

JUNE 30, 2023

Schedule 3-A

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 3,680,000 541,992 4,221,992
2025 3,935,000 391,487 4,326,487
2026 3,400,000 227,188 3,627,188
2027 1,370,000 88,950 1,458,950
2028 1,415,000 45,250 1,460,250
$ 13,800,000 $ 1,294,867 $ 15,094,867
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
PAYMENTS ON PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
7,500,000
7,000,000
6,500,000
6,000,000
5,500,000
5,000,000
4,500,000
4,000,000 ¥ \
3,500,000
3,000,000
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000 \I |
1,000,000
500,000
0
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
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Schedule 3-Al

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST PAYMENTS TO MATURITY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ISSUE: County of Lexington, South Carolina
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013, $24,885,000

PROCEEDS: Saxe Gotha (Refunding portion of 12-01-2006 series $2,005,000), 911 Communications Center,
County Industrial Parks

DATED: February 13, 2013

PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR: U.S. Bank National Association

DATE DUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
8/1/2023 77,496.25 0.00 77,496.25
2/1/2024 77,496.25 1,155,000.00 1,232,496.25
8/1/2024 65,368.75 0.00 65,368.75
2/1/2025 65,368.75 1,180,000.00 1,245,368.75
8/1/2025 52,093.75 0.00 52,093.75
2/1/2026 52,093.75 1,210,000.00 1,262,093.75
8/1/2026 37,725.00 0.00 37,725.00
2/1/2027 37,725.00 1,240,000.00 1,277,725.00
8/1/2027 19,125.00 0.00 19,125.00
2/1/2028 19,125.00 1,275,000.00 1,294,125.00
TOTALS 503,617.50 6,060,000.00 6,563,617.50
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST PAYMENTS TO MATURITY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Schedule 3-A2

ISSUE: County of Lexington, South Carolina

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A, $12,200,000

PROCEEDS: Courthouse & Campus Plan Construction (Refunding of 10-07-2010 series $25,748,176)

DATED: March 26, 2020

PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR: U.S. Bank National Association

DATE DUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
8/1/2023 193,500.00 0.00 193,500.00
2/1/2024 193,500.00 2,525,000.00 2,718,500.00
8/1/2024 130,375.00 0.00 130,375.00
2/1/2025 130,375.00 2,755,000.00 2,885,375.00
8/1/2025 61,500.00 0.00 61,500.00
2/1/2026 61,500.00 2,190,000.00 2,251,500.00
8/1/2026 6,750.00 0.00 6,750.00
2/1/2027 6,750.00 130,000.00 136,750.00
8/1/2027 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00
2/1/2028 3,500.00 140,000.00 143,500.00
TOTALS $ 791,250.00 7,740,000.00 8,531,250.00
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
SCHEDULE OF COURT FINES, FEES, ASSESSMENTS AND SURCHARGES
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Schedule 4

Total Court Fines and Assessments
Court Fines and Assessments Collected
Court Fines and Assessments Remitted to State Treasurer

Total Court Fines and Assessments Retained by County

Surcharges and Assessments retained for Victims Services
Surcharges Collected and Retained
Assessments Retained

Total Surcharges and Assessments Retained for Victims Services

Victims Services Collected
Carryforward from Previous Year, Beginning Balance

Victims Service Revenue
Victims Service Fines Retained by County
Victims Service Assessments Retained by County
Victims Service Surcharges Retained by County
General Funds Allocated to Victims
Total Funds Allocated to Victims Service Fund + Beginning Balance (A)

Expenditures for Victims Service Program

Operating Expenditures

General Funds Received from Victims Service Fund
Total Expenditures from Victims Service Fund/Program (B)

Total Victims Service Funds Retained by County (A-B)

Carryforward Funds, Ending Balance

322

$ 2,200,082

(1,034,108)
$ 1,165,974
$§ 120,827
$§ 120,827
$ 175,944
136,428
120,827
433,199
$ 310,707
310,707
122,492
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

Schedule 5

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - E-911 Fund

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Revenues:

Fees, Permits and Sales
Investment Interest

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Public Safety Communications:
Personnel
Operating

Capital

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

YTD ACTUAL
E-911 FUND

2,152,538
255,800

2,408,338

514,262
1,226,796
358,508

2,099,566

308,772

7,007,561

7,316,333

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (APPLICABLE TO E-911 FUND):

NONE

RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION (APPLICABLE TO E-911 FUND):

NONE
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Statistical Section

Lexington County
Magistrate Districts
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Statistical

The statistical section includes information on the last ten years of revenues and expenditures,
millage rates, assessments, and other information. This information can be useful in assessing the
County’s overall financial position.

Financial Trends — These tables show how the County’s overall financial position has changed
over time.

Revenue Capacity — These tables help the reader understand and assess the County’s major
revenue source, property tax.

Debt Capacity — These tables help the reader understand the County’s current level of
outstanding debt and the ability to issue additional debt.

Demographic and Economic Information — These tables offer information that will help the
reader understand the environment within which the County’s financial activities occur.

Operating Information — These tables provide information about the county’s operations and
help the reader realize how the financial reports relate to the services and activities performed by
the County.

Sources:
Unless otherwise noted, the information for these tables is taken from the annual comprehensive financial
reports for the relevant years.

327



€2¢0¢

[4dv4 3

[4v4 0¢0c¢ 610¢C 8lL0¢ L10C

910¢

xG10C

10¢

saIAnoe
|eluswuIon0D @

saljAnoe

adA)-ssauisngm

-$

- 000°000°05$

- 000°000°001$

- 000°000°0S1$

- 000°000°002$

- 000°000°05¢$

000°000°00€$

juauodwon Aq uonisod 39N

000°000°0S€$

‘uonesiqo uorsuad papunjun oY) pI0oa1 0} JudwLIINbaI oY) pue 89 SV Jo uoneuowdwI oY) 0) NP ST UONISOd JOU PAOLNSAIU() ‘SINIATIOR [BIUSWIUIIAOLD) ) 0} G (T Ul 9SLAIOOP YL, 4

610 19 1€E §  6ISSISSOE §  TSTEVTELT §  88ISSLYIT §  006°€06'6ST $§  099°10€°1ST $  S88LOTHST §  ISI'H08°0ST §  8TO9PL'STT §  TE6'6TL'BIE § uonsod 1ou JuewtIdA03 Arewtid [ejo,
TEL'T6V68 (966°€0L"+T) 68€°TT8'SY €7L°698° ¢y 07°599°6% $86°018°ct €6L°LY0°6S 90T ¥E'6S L8L'886°1S 790 %SESH1 pajrnsaiun
L60°STLYT 696°879°811 0CTI'8SL'L $€5°6L89 901°6S6°L TESPTS 11 TTE9TH T #88%L9°0T £90°88C°1¢C P $99°6T paoLnsay
061%STLIT $  9¥S068°11T §  €PLTOL6IT §  116°9F0VIT $  +SE6LTTOT §  €71°996°S61 §  OLL'EEL'TI $ 190°68L°0LT $  8LI'69¥TST $  9THFOIL'Erl § 199p PaJe[al JO JaU ‘SIOSSE [e)ded Ul PajSAU]
JUOWIUIIA0T ATewLid
IPL'8E6°LT  §  SLETEY8E §  0SH80v9€ §  L6098TSE  §  SIBSEI0E §  S8YI0F'8C §  90THCT'er  §  I0L'FITST $  00S'H98°CC $§  LETLISIT $ uonisod jou sonIANOE adA)-ssoursnq [ej0,
(L0S°05t°€) 60L°€18°ST ¥88°1ELTI 9€8°9TE° 11 S08°68€C1 881°LETEL 0S6°TELTI 80€°CTSF1 18S7TS Tl 617811 pajrnsaiun
LT6°88 69€76T 0 19¢ ¥06°L8€ 876°€LE 18%°52¢ S6£9T¢ S81°05¢€ 876767 788°TLT PaLlsay
12€°00€° 1T $  00€°€TECC $§  vTs'sIe’cT §  LSEILS'ET $ S90TLELL $  9ISSE’HFI $  198F91°0L $ 809 IFEOL $  IL6FFOOL §  9€1TL86  $ 199p paje|al JO 10U ‘Sjosse [e3ided ul pajsaAu]
:san1Anoe adA)-ssoursng
8LTTTS'EIE §  II'P8EL9T §  TOS'PL8'9ET $  160°T0S6TC $  TB0'8IL'6TT $  SLIT006TTT $  6L9°€86°0EC $  0S0°06S'STT §  8TSI88°T0OT §  S69°T0OTL6T $ uonIsod 10U SAIIATIOE [EJUOWITIDA0S [EJ0],
6£TTY6'T6 (SOLLTS OF) S0S°060°€E L06°8ESTE SE€9°SLTLE L6L'ELS 0E P8 LE9Y 868°128 v 90T 7916 EP81L6EET pajrnsaiun
0L1°929%C 009vEESTT 8LO°LOE L 0€9°L8Y°9 8S1°68S°L 1S0°661°T1 LT6%660°CT 669vTE0T ST1°€66°0T 795°T6£°6T paLnsay
698°€S6°S61 § 9VT'LIS681 §  61TL8E96L §  PSSSLY061 §  68TLO6YST $  LTELTI'IST $  606°89STLL §  €SYERF091 §  LOTWYTFTHL S 06T°8€8°¢El § 199p paje[al JO 10U ‘Ssjosse [e3ided ul pajsaAU]
ISONIATIOR [EJUSTUUIOAOD)
€20T eot 120T 020T 610C 810C L10T 910T *S10C 10T
Ted X [e0SI]
SAVHA TVOSIA NHL LSV

I 2198l

LINANOJINOD Ad NOILISOd LIN
VNITOIVD HLNOS ‘NOIONIXAT A0 ALNNOD

328



19082596 €9.'608'L6 GZ¥'976'89 TS0'€L¥'99 G80'TST'¥9 198'656'09 6£9'7£0'09 6L0'€ET'TL 9€T'8T¥'0S 888'2SY'LY $anuanal weiBoid senIANIe [ejuswiLIenob [ejoL

LTG°12v'eT 6£9°298°C 0LV°16L'9 992°€59'Y 182°90L°L 18€'88¢Z 000°002 000'T9 108506 18€'eSY'C SuoINQLIU0Y pue sjuelb [ended
G9Z'vET'TT eYS'Y2L've eIT'2LL'T 968'970'9 966'2€9'S 196'6/G'TT 182'€69'9 G9G'5K9'YT €0Z'TLL'S 8£0'€98'9 suonNqLIU0d pue sjuelB Bunessdo
975'90T TT9%ET 00L'0¥T 86€'2LT 0Tv'zre ¥£8'092 Y75'6L2 vre'L08 890'87€ 208'21E Aselqu) onand
0v6'6.LY 000'00€ 607689 0.0°'/52 668'669 296'GEL 20T'2S1'T T0S7E0'T €16'L79 £00'8SY 1usWdo|aAsp 1WOU003
0ST'VES'S - 68£'660'C 9T¥'22.L'9 e Lr8'T - - - - - (a@nH) wiswdojansp Aunwwod
926'T90'T v28'116 682'€0L 661'G8S 060'559 0£6'859 8TH'90. 2€8'869 115'825 9TT'0Ck S9OIAISS UBWNY pue y)|esH
88112 900'G€Z 15€'792 188'65C GE8'06T ¥£5'702 86T'T6C ZET'rT 928'592 - SUOISSIWILLIOD pue spreoq
GST'S19'9 L0€'26L'9 ££8'668'9 606'0SL'C 9€7'1€8'9 eY9'rrS'9 50.'950'9 016'202'S v’ 19v'e 99/'Sh1'C JUBISDIOMUS MET
£61'80€'L 65e'8.G'e 02€'616'S £80'608'9 ¥18'969'9 66T'6VT'L 896'SEL'9 ¥15°75€°9 €TL'06'S 9TE'T6L'S [en1pne
210'22Y'vT 68026502 29€'205°2T 16€'886'CT 0£0'T0E'2T 7€8'T00'€T 958'€2Y'T 662'L6T'C GeT'SYL'T GT8'GOT'TT fiayes ongnd
£51'STG'8T 869'0/£'8 92.'910'8 128'T06'S G£9'790'9 616'T26'S 299'75¢e'8 20¥' 1987 T 865'T9L'S 818'TS8'Y syiom o11gnd
855'c 965'6 71602 £8T'TY ¥60'TS 9SY' T 989'/Y 655'9G ¥56'9¢C 80IAIBS [BIOUBD
788'G9G'/T $  LET'8ET'6T ¢  198'0/0'Tc $ TYL'veE'sT $  vE8'WIT'ST $  0.5'G9SYT $ Evr'66.'9c $  ¥68'8/G'Gc $  6¥Y'CTOVWZ $  €/8'€99'CT $ BAIRJISIUILIPE [RJ8UBD)

:S891AI8S 10y sabieyD
SAINAIDR [BIUSWIUISA0D)
sanuanay weubold

G8G'TIV'Ove $ 092'16E'2¢¢ $ €22'809'¢Tc $  22S'T/8'90¢ $ 0¢2'€/9'/6T $  T6E'G0C'88T $  6G8'GYS'98T $  ¢cL'/62'TLT$  8S9EvE'vWT$  ¥0.'G06'LPT$ sasuadxa JusuuIanob Arewnd fejo
895'GE0'0F 99.°29%'ST ¥88°'050'GT 262'98€' VT TEE'E6T VT 6ES'T6T'CT 990°/€5'GT 5G8'v6.°0T 027'090'6 162'520'6 uonisod 3au saIHAIRde adA)-ssauisng [ejoL m
160°€SS 6v€'GL9 GT0'€SS GG EEE T2C'vse T29°€0€ v8T'vEE G99'€62 T2S'LS€ 88¢£'0TC Hodure uoljad
6v6'v0v'6€ Y76'8v9vT 7580V VT 02.'GOT'ET /GT'08.'€T 788'GE8'TT YSY'TST'GT T08'€V¥'0T 262'679'8 6G€'92.'8 9]sem pljos
8¢G'LL €LV'8ET ST0'V6 LT1T°/68 €56'8S 9€0'2S 8cy'1s 68€°LS L09'€S 055'88 BuissoiD sjueg pay

sanIAloe adA)-ssauisng
/T0'9/£'90C ¥61'826'90C 6EE'LGS'L6T 0€2'GES'26T 68€'087'€8T 2G8'€T0'9.T €6.'800'T.T 198205'09T 8E€C'€8C'GET L0¥'088'8ET SaI1IAIJO® [eJUSIUIBA0D [210 1
T/2'CES T€6'699 282'€69 €12'08L 902'sv6 ¥66'G60'T 982'¢ee'T 229'8G€'T 659'CIS'T G66'€99'T sabey [easiy pue Jsasem|
€EE'8YT'6 62v'1VC'6 G8E'€95'8 807°0.8'8 €51'8LL'8 8TL'€TL'8 €Y1',85'6 T02'950'8 ¥€G'GE09 G60'8TY'9 Aresqu a110nd
1268, TI8'TTI8'T L9¥'T0S'9 £v5'80¢'C L0C'VS6'E 9G8‘TTT'T 6890909 ¥G6°'LES'T ¥56'GTZ'E 989'860°C usWdo|aAsp 1LLIOU0DT
¥89'¥1G'G €22'985'8 G¥9'6G8°C 185'62.'9 T.S'€L6'8 €0.'G6¢'L YSE'YYS'T 10V7'€S6'T 9/£'066 659'966'T swdojansp Anunwwo)
289'0€5'e LES'9EE'E G26'6TT'E €89'626'C 26£'G80'€ 86.'T96'C T20'6ST'E v.2'992'e ZTL20v'E 6v9'vCz'e S$30IAIBS UBWINY pUe YieaH
991'6€9'T 192'2.€T L06CTE'T 0v8'C16 GT.908 T9€'v68 0LE'TLL 200'668 8GT°9T6 ¥21'859 SUOISSILLWIOD pue spleog
¥€029E'vS €/8'956'67 8ET'ETS 6V €8L'€L6'8Y 7588629 0LV'E8Y'Sy 962'TVS' TV 0GE'8ET'6E 908'9¥€'GE 16€'98T°L€ JUBWSDIO0US MeT
9€6'G6 VT LGE'ETL'ST 8..°888VT 986'€6¢'ST 068'v9T'vT ¥T6'€96°€T T8G'v€9°CT TLE'G6L'TT OvY'eee’oT ¥T1'808°0T !
TTT'86E'SY 16G'22S'9Y 1v8'6vL ey G26'G85°Ch 9y /88'EY 987°205'8¢€ 0€T'GSL'EE €92'€89°0¢ ov1'8v9'9¢ 8L6'€ES'LC Kayes o11gnd
TOV'165'vC T.v'076'0¢C TEV'06E0C G26°,S0°6T 282'69¢'LT 9€G'€TL 8T cr9'1ee'TC GZ6'S€6'GC 96G'TOV'ET 06.'SSE'ET SYI0M 21j1gnd
T0S0S6°€ 9S8 LTV'Y 18Y'€eS'y 258809y 960'€T8'E 905°€6.L'E §/.'810'€ 8G2'99.°C 200'vel'e 6VC'¥SLC 80IAJBS |eJBUsD
LT0'v89'2y $ viV'¥8E'YY $  Lv6'OvY'Ty $ GBL'€8G'6E $  LLC'EOV'TE ¢  0T8'E8Y'EE $ 90S'TEE'GE $  OPC'CcI8CcE ¢ T198'GGL0€ $  LL9'T8TOE $ dAljelIsIuIWpPe [elsu’D

'S3IIAIIO® [BJUBLLIUIBAOD)

sasuadx3y
€20¢ (4404 T¢0C 0¢0¢ 67T0C 8T0¢C LT0C 9T0¢ ST0C ¥10C

SUVIA TvOSId NIL 1SV
NOILISOd 13N NI S3IONVHO
VNIT0dVO HLNOS ‘NOLONIX3T40 ALNNOD
T abed
Z?o|qel



005'SY9'6z ¢ 19Z'7€S'c€ $  ¥90'S6Y'8  $  88Z¥B8Y $  Ove'209'8 $ 199898 $ vEL'EOF'E $ 22T850'SZ $  0T0'966'9¢ $  6ZFOTTIT $
(1£9°26¥°02) 826'220'C €58°22T'T 6/2°0ST'S €EEVELT 6.2°LLT'S (568°686'T) T09°6VEC v19'9T€'e TrZv1e'e
LET'8ET'OY $  6£€'60S5'0¢ $ TT2'2.82 ¢ (166'S92) ¢ 1062989 $ GEE'60S'E $ 629'€6E'S ¢ T2S'80L'7C2 $  9€£'6.9'€z $  88T'T08'ET $
956'892'89T $ 2SC'CE0'TST $ 6TCCS0LYT $  T166'62S0VT $  vrTveT'ZET $  Teh'8ST6¢T $  O0SEZEV'9ZT $  LEY'PT0CZT$S  ¢TS62€8TT$S  ¥8C/89VITS
698°2€€CT 2810V TT ¥65'8€0°TT £08'€EL YT ££6'926'0T 560'G65'0T 1%5°690°0T 821'9£6'6 ¥/0'58.'6 115°15V'6
000°52 000'G2 000°52 786'905°€ 000°52 000°0S 000°00T 000°00T 000°00T 000°00T

- - - - - 0S6'€YT - - - -
(¥20's0¢g) 62.'19 (gev'L6) 126'18€ 85€'se 000'09T - - - -

- - - - - - €8T'YTT - - -
9%5'268 620'€8 GET'88 066'€0Y 802'129 809°26¢ 042'9.T 602°0T 258'65 L12'09
L¥€'SSL'TT ¥Zy'8ez Tl ¥68'220'TT ¥06'vEY 0T 19€'652'0T 1£5'€86'6 ¥60'6.9'6 6765696 222's29'6 09€°262'6
180'9€6'SST 0/0'829'6€T GZ9'€T0'9ET 88196/ 'GZT T12°/6T°92T 92€'€95'8TT €8/'/9€°9TT 60€'8.0°ZTT 8EY' 775 80T 101°622°S0T
(000'52) (000°52) (000°s2) (286'905°€) (000's2) (000°09) (000°00T) (000°007) (000°00T) (000°007)
228'029'CT GEV'ZE0'CT ¥9.'86T'TT 296'€L0'TT G22'285'0T 159'08%'0T 608'609'0T 626'822'0T 86£'780'0T £79'020°0T
£22'9/6'0T 692'T6€'T 29€'795 erT'SY0'e 088'TL0'Y 227'010°'C 996'L0%'T 82.'680'T GET'TSE v1G'16€
eVl £€0'YTY ¥10'€62 vS8'ove LSv'0zy TST'v6€ ety 12£'86¢ 6€G'CLE 9ve'282
0T9'/88'TET $  €EE'GTB'SZT $  G8Y'S86'€2T $  TIZ'LE8'WIT $  6V'LPT'TIT $  960'822'GOT $  98G'0£0'V0T $  TEC'TOV'00T$S  99£'6€8'L6 $  ¥VI'VZ9've $

Juswuianoh Arewnd e1o
sa1lIAoe adAl-ssauisng
SAINAIIIR [BJUSWUIBA0D)
uonisod 18u ui abuey)d

Juswuianoh Arewnd e1o1

sallIAIloe adAl-ssaulsng [e101
slajsuel |
J8y10
S19SSe Pax1y JO 8Jes WOy SSoT/ures
anuanaJ paJeys alel1s
3W0oUI JUBWISBAUI pUe 1Salalu|
xe1 Auadoud

sa1lIAIIoe 8dAl-ssauisng

S311IAII0€ [RIUBILISAOB 8101
slajsuel]
9NUdA3I paleys a1els
3L0IUI JUBWISAAUI pUR 1S8J91U]
Xe] SUOIEPOWIWI0IY
xe) Aladoud

S311IAIIOR [RIUBWIUISAOD)

uonisod 18U ui saBueyd 48410 pUR SBNUBASI [e43US)

(osv'ecoerT)$  (a86'66v'8TT)$  (G5T°265'8eT)$  (€0.°Sv9'seT)$  (v06'T2G'82T)$  (L08T/v'0z)$  (965'ce0'ecT)$  (572'956'96) $  (205'€eeT6) §  (G58°0/G°L6) $  onuanal/(ssusdxa) 1au Jusuuienob Arewnd ejoL
(905'528°2€) (¥52'18€'6) (T¥2'916°6) (725'€85°6) (009°Z61°6) (918°21%°9) (zvv'650°2T) (225'9851) (007'89%°9) (CEA) salnIAnde adAl-ssauisng
(056'262'60T)$  (TEL'STT'60T)$ (V16'0¥9'82T)$  (6L1'290'92T)$  (vO€'62E'6TT)$ (T66'€S0'STT)S  (VST'VL6'0TT)$  (88L'69€'68) $  (201'G98'%8) $  (6TG'Leh'16) $ SBIMAIOR |BJUSLUUIBNOD)
anuanay/(asuadx3) 18N
6¢T'88L'€0T $ G/Z'TA8'E0T $ 890'TSOV. $  618'GZZ'TL $ 9T8TST69 $ ¥8G'€EL/9 $  €92'C16€9 $ LOV'TVE'W. $ 9ST'OTOES $  6V8'VEE'0S $ senuanal weiboud Juswuienob Arewnd [elo)
290°0T2'L 2151809 EVOVET'S 89225y 1€2°000'S €2L'eLL'9 v29'L1Y'E 82€'802'€ 020'265'2 196'188°C sanuanal weiboud seniAnae adA-ssauisng [ejoL
G85'66 166802 GST'vZT 165'75S 609°/78 261°296'C €5T'€T 12€ST 72Ty €€2'e8Y suonngIu0d pue syelh jended
- - 80G'28 210°'LS 158Gy 196'79 20L'1€ 126'2€ 66€'SZ €1%'0S suonnqLIued pue swelb Bunessdo
€62'9T €52'7T2 76G'2TT GTL'6TT 996'7ST 1€1'98 126'76 1¥9'LL 79€'6.L €0T'V6 Modite uoljad
667'T78'9 €€8'05G'S 9TLYTL'Y 186'8T6'E G96'/78'E 9TE'G5G'E 120°0€2'e 90€'9%8'2 770'T9'Z LEV'66T'C alsem p1jos
G89'€0T GE6'90T 0£9'00T 1S%'20T 0v€'70T LTS'70T G18'/6 12126 216'78 STL'YS BuissolD ueg pay
:S9JIAISS 10 mm.m‘_cso
sallIAoe adAl-ssauisng
("3u09) senuanay weuboad
€202 2202 1202 0202 6102 8102 1102 9102 GT0Z 102
SHUVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV
NOILISOd 13N NI SIONVHO
VNIT08VO HLNOS ‘NOLONIXIT40 ALNNOD
2 abed

¢3lqeL

330



8L0°080°88 §  T60VEF9S §  8S8BSIIS $  9IY'SS6IS $  TILP9STIS $  THT'STEIY $  6LEF90'1¥ $§  617°686°0S $  STITEEDS $ 60T LS $ SpUNJ [BJUSUIIAOS IS0 [[€ [EJOL,
908°C 0t6°rS 885 Y01 (L11°011) OrI°15¢) (861°TLS) (S96°618) (216°980°1) (820°0LT°T) spuny sjoafoxd rende)
(190°0L1) (cz6°€81) (Lsv'en) (PL6'ET) (0s7°9) (299°651) (LgT'oL) (966°07) (zz9°0¢) (L9T'ce) Spuny anudAdI [eroadg
paugisseun)
6TS°SH8°€T spuny spafoxd fende)
LS0°8EE0E spunj anuaAl [e1oadg
ﬁEﬁEEOU
78T°L89°9 £00°6€S°9 608°009°S 667°658°9 TH0°0TS 01 9L6765°01 LLT'6L8°61 8E€TYL6°0T SPE868°LT spuny sjoafoxd rende)
T16°S8T°¢E 120°1¥1°6Y LETST16°EY 09L 18+'SY £08°S86°¢H £68°68T°s¢ L88°T19°6T 915°689°0¢ T€9°69€°6C TH0'ELE 6T Spuny onuoAdI [eroadg
paugissy
1¥9°08L $  S06'98L $  SEr°c08 $ €€TT8L $  9LL'6E8 $  SST0E0T $  IS6'FOS'T §  L8FSITT §  68L°SOT'T $  LITH6V'T § spuny 91A10s 1q9(
ﬁouotamow—
mﬁﬁﬂd ~§G®EE®>OM Huﬁzo =<
YLETYSPELS  80TH06°TELS  ¥T6'8TOTOIS  S68°€90°06 §  SSO'0V6'68 §  €81°8€6°68 $§  FB6°LEL'EC6 §  661°T6S88 §  SOL6LS'S8 §  €LE9IISL § pun, [eI10USD) [€I0],
[€1°6SE'8L STH978°69 ¥€°999°69 S6E°€9E P SIT6¥°LE 69S°8LY ¥ 0L8°0LE b 0TS 078 ¢ 910°550°€S 0ST°$80°SY paugisseuf)
SE0'LE]S panIwwo)
861°TTL 19 79€°6SY 7€ SII'SE6 vy 8£9°05S°1S 0S€1TEYS 69T°€80°8Y CEV'6ET TS SLL'S6V°0€ 679°161°8C pousIssy
80TOVET §  S8SSSET $ 8ITE06 $ S8ES9L  $ S98'868  § YOTBEIT $  SHRE8TT §  9PTTEST $  YLE6'STOT §  vov6EET s[qepuadsuoN
U::n— _m\_o:o@
€20¢ 70T 120T 020T 610T 810C L10T 910T S10¢ ¥10T
Je3 X e0SI
SYVHA TVOSIA NAL LSV

€ 9lqeL

SANNA TVINFANIIAOD 40 SHONVIVE ANNA
VNITO¥VD HLNOS ‘NOLONIXHT 40 ALNNOD

331



Revenues
Property taxes
State shared revenue
Fees, permits, and sales
County fines
Intergovernmental revenue
Interest (net of increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments)
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General administrative
General services
Public works
Public safety
Judicial
Law enforcement
Boards and commissions
Health and human services
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer in
Transfer out

Total other sources

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS OF GENERAL FUND

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Table 3-A

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
$ 95867736 $ 99,350,060 $ 107,675,538 $ 111,194,474 116,986,839
10,146,075 10,590,273 10,712,383 11,486,376 12,006,699
20,050,413 21,336,759 24,296,423 31,959,492 25,132,422
2,117,343 1,749,019 1,378,612 1,684,444 1,664,587
5,052,469 3,397,305 5,694,548 3,255,743 4,049,057
2,049,971 1,504,400 316,894 523,957 5,829,186
332,996 4,090,061 715,283 416,120 607,425
135,617,003 142,017,877 150,789,681 160,520,606 166,276,215
12,332,387 15,231,114 15,370,185 15,518,161 15,936,635
3,398,866 3,468,820 3,531,373 3,704,884 3,739,896
8,052,271 7,569,568 8,497,478 10,042,999 9,773,890
36,877,688 38,075,443 38,300,053 40,112,556 44,322,881
10,174,077 10,660,905 10,647,482 11,335,849 11,836,469
42,189,153 42,697,560 43,057,937 42,636,871 49,134,940
808,154 876,999 986,117 1,023,052 1,336,091
1,568,339 1,549,331 1,580,781 1,606,183 1,735,868
10,504,155 16,128,686 10,382,401 11,667,464 17,228,683
125,905,090 136,258,426 132,353,807 137,648,019 155,045,353
9,711,913 5,759,451 18,435,874 22,872,587 11,230,862
144,921 1,111,475 11,240 14,797,016 17,708,204
(9,854,362) (6,747,686) (7,482,085) (5,794,319) (27,300,900)
(9,709,441) (5,636,211) (7,470,845) 9,002,697 (9,592,696)
2,472 123,240 10,965,029 31,875,284 1,638,166
89,938,183 89,940,655 90,063,895 101,028,924 132,904,208
$ 89,940,655 $ 90,063,895 $ 101,028,924 §  132,904208 $ 134,542,374

Source: Years ended June 30, 2019 through 2023, County audited financial statements.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Table 8

Assessed Real Property (1) Personal Property (1) FILOT Property (1) Ratio of Total
Property Values Total Taxable Total Estimated Assessed to

Fiscal Tax as of Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated ~ Assessed Estimated Assessed Direct Actual Total Estimated
Year Year Dec 31 Value Value Value Value Value Value Value (2) Tax Rate Value Actual Value
2014 2013 2012 794,557 17,724,411 291,663 3,489,648 63,230 1,160,142 1,149,450 93.796 22,374,201 5.14%
2015 2014 2013 804,629 18,413,448 302,897 3,649,279 75,801 1,431,139 1,183,327 94246 23,493,866 5.04%
2016 2015 (3) 2014 810,156 18,715,408 320,757 3,867,663 83,124 1,617,636 1,214,037 94.441 24,200,707 5.02%
2017 2016 2015 828,366 19,137,850 336,071 4,039,880 86,812 1,686,797 1,251,249 94973 24,864,527 5.03%
2018 2017 2016 856,377 20,443,094 344,420 4,102,891 85,998 1,647,057 1,286,795 94.689 26,193,042 4.91%
2019 2018 2017 882,855 21,077,009 352,286 4,157,915 86,345 1,641,073 1,321,486 97.160 26,875,997 4.92%
2020 2019 2018 911,882 20,988,461 352,419 4,185,856 85,717 1,615,253 1,350,018 98.348 26,789,570 5.04%
2021 2020 (3) 2019 1,014,546 26,325,342 369,760 4,376,098 86,491 1,630,123 1,470,797 96.661 32,331,563 4.55%
2022 2021 2020 1,051,119 27,248,507 380,808 4,546,121 74,925 1,427,891 1,506,852 96.217 33,222,519 4.54%
2023 2022 2021 1,103,978 38,142,641 409,379 4,873,426 73,498 1,405,600 1,586,855 96.217 44,421,667 3.57%

(1) Source: Compiled from County Auditor's and County Assessor's data.
(2) The assessed value does not include merchants inventory with an assessed value totaling $8,897,130.
The merchant's inventory assessed value is used, however, in the computation of the legal debt margin. (See Table 16).

The South Carolina State Constitution requires equal and uniform assessments of property throughout
the state using ratios of fair market value from 10.5% for manufacturers real property down to 4% for
legal residences. Further information is available in Note 4.

(3) Year of reassessment of real property
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TAX RATES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE)

Table 9-A

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SPECIAL
GENERAL FUND REVENUE
Total Total
Fiscal Tax County Law Fire Indigent General County County
Year Year Ordinary Enforcement Service Capital Care Fund Library Operations
2014 2013 24.541 32.872  17.068  0.000 0.887 75.368 6.211 81.579
2015 2014 24.541 32.872  17.068  0.000 0.887 75.368 6.211 81.579
2016 2015 (1) 24918 (2) 32.710  17.473  0.000 0.883 75.984 6.180 82.164
2017 2016 25.218 33.040 17.675  0.000 0.883 76.816 6.180 82.996
2018 2017 24.186 33.503  19.043  0.000 0.500 77.232 6.180 83.412
2019 2018 24.186 34354  20.363  0.000 0.500 79.403 6.180 85.583
2020 2019 25.274 34354  20.363  0.000 0.500 80.491 6.180 86.671
2021 2020 (1) 24.557 33.593  21.069  0.000 0.479 79.698 5919 85.617
2022 2021 24.557 33.593  21.625  0.000 0.479 80.254 5919 86.173
2023 2022 24.557 33.593  21.625  0.000 0.479 80.254 5919 86.173
ENTERPRISE
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS FUND

County Total Total Total All
Fiscal Tax Notes & Fire Hospital Library Debt Governmental Solid County
Year Year Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Service Funds Waste Funds
2014 2013 3.300 0.000 0.000  0.700 4.000 85.579 8.217 93.796
2015 2014 3.850 0.000 0.000  0.600 4.450 86.029 8.217 94.246
2016 2015 (1) 4.100 0.000 0.000  0.000 4.100 86.264 8.177 94.441
2017 2016 4.100 0.000 0.000  0.000 4.100 87.096 7.877 94.973
2018 2017 3.400 0.000 0.000  0.000 3.400 86.812 7.877 94.689
2019 2018 3.700 0.000 0.000  0.000 3.700 89.283 7.877 97.160
2020 2019 3.800 0.000 0.000  0.000 3.800 90.471 7.877 98.348
2021 2020 (1) 3.500 0.000 0.000  0.000 3.500 89.117 7.544 96.661
2022 2021 2.500 0.000 0.000  0.000 2.500 88.673 7.544 96.217
2023 2022 2.500 0.000 0.000  0.000 2.500 88.673 7.544 96.217

(1) Year of reassessment of real property.
(2) .5 mills was moved from Mental Health to County Ordinary.

Source: Auditor's office millage schedules.
Note : The above schedule does not include taxes levied by other autonomous entities within the County
(such as School Districts, Municipalities, etc.).
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 9-B

Fiscal Year

2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Tax Year 2013 2014 2015* 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 2021 2022
County Direct:
General Fund:
County Ordinary 24.541 24.541 24918 25.218 24.186 24.186 25.274 24.557 24.557 24.557
Law Enforcement 32.872 32.872 32.710 33.040 33.503 34.354 34.354 33.593 33.593 33.593
Fire Service 17.068 17.068 17.473 17.675 19.043 20.363 20.363 21.069 21.625 21.625
Capital Escrow 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Indigent Care 0.887 0.887 0.883 0.883 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.479 0.479 0.479
Library 6.211 6.211 6.180 6.180 6.180 6.180 6.180 5919 5919 5919
Debt Service Funds:
County Notes & Bonds 3.300 3.850 4.100 4.100 3.400 3.700 3.800 3.500 2.500 2.500
Fire Bonds 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Library Bonds 0.700 0.600 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Solid Waste 8.217 8.217 8.177 7.877 7.877 7.877 7.877 7.544 7.544 7.544
Municipalities:
Cayce 44.170 44.170 45.360 45.36 47.69 49.69 53.73 53.73 53.73 58.1
Gilbert 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000
Lexington 35.140 35.140 35.140 34.290 34.290 34.290 34.290 26.056 26.056 26.056
Pelion 18.000 18.000 18.000 18.000 18.000 18.300 18.300 17.000 17.000 18.300
Summit 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100
West Columbia 55.279 55.279 55.279 55.279 55.279 58.797 58.797 58.797 58.797 66.241
Springdale 57.700 57.700 57.700 57.700 57.700 57.700 57.700 57.700 57.700 57.700
Batesburg-Leesville 90.051 99.500 99.500 99.500 99.500 99.500 99.500 99.500 99.500 99.500
Swansea 96.940 106.940 100.200 102.100 106.280 106.280 106.280 106.280 106.280 121.690
Chapin 11.505 11.505 11.505 11.505 11.505 12.884 12.884 13.070 13.070 13.070
Irmo 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Columbia 98.100 98.100 96.100 96.100 98.100 98.100 93.800 93.800 93.800 93.800
School District Operations:
District 1 271.460 278.210 298.070 305.990 317.950 322.400 322.400  308.860 308.860 308.860
District 2 146.460 146.460 146.460 146.460 146.460 146.460 150.720 150.720 154.900 162.900
District 3 261.750 267.540 271.790 271.790 271.790 272.380 272.880  263.670 263.670 263.670
District 4 306.200 306.200 315.470 315.470 315.470 315.470 319.690  319.690 319.690 319.690
District 5 229.270 235.800 251.500 251.500 256.900 256.900 256.900  246.100 246.100 246.100
School District Bonds
District 1 71.300 71.300 71.300 78.300 85.300 85.300 90.000 90.000 90.000 90.000
District 2 29.750 29.750 79.500 79.500 79.500 79.500 79.500 79.500 79.500 79.500
District 3 35.100 38.900 37.100 39.300 70.800 77.600 84.600 76.900 76.900 94.800
District 4 69.900 69.100 62.200 62.800 112.000 112.000 112.000 112.000 112.000 112.000
District 5 52.500 52.500 52.500 54.800 54.800 54.800 75.400 75.400 69.500 69.500
Special Districts:
Lexington County Recreation 12.315 12.315 12.202 12.202 12.202 12.202 12.202 11.728 11.728 11.728
Irmo-Chapin Recreation 13.354 13.354 13.354 13.354 13.354 13.354 13.354 12.682 12.682 12.682
Midlands Tech 2.970 2.970 2.956 2.956 2.956 2.956 2.956 2.833 2.833 2.833
Midlands Tech Capital 1.404 1.404 1.397 1.397 1.397 1.397 1.397 1.339 1.339 1.339
Irmo Fire District 17.068 17.068 17.473 17.675 17.675 18.945 19.682 19.325 19.325 21.275
Riverbanks Park 1.093 1.093 1.088 1.088 1.088 1.088 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Mental Health 0.500 0.500 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Special District Bonds:
Lexington Co. Recreation Bonds 3.420 4.420 3.800 4.020 3.900 3.700 3.600 3.200 3.330 3.330
Irmo-Chapin Recreation Bonds 5.250 7.250 7.250 7.250 7.250 7.250 7.250 7.250 7.250 7.250
Irmo Fire Bonds 2.900 2.900 2.500 1.460 2.350 2.580 2.410 3.000 2.420 2.420
Riverbanks Park Bonds 0.800 1.300 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 0.800 0.800
Isle of Pines 48.000 48.000 46.000 46.000 40.900 20.400 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Hollow Creek Watershed 1.600 1.600 1.599 1.599 1.599 1.599 1.599 1.529 1.529 1.529

*Year of Reassessment of Real Property
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Table 11

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy Collection Total Collections to date
Percentage  in Subsequent Percentage

Fiscal Year Tax Year Total Tax Levy Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2014 2013 472,381,930 458,065,733 96.97% 13,030,408 471,096,141 99.73%
2015 2014 493,781,567 480,338,582 97.28% 11,812,493 492,151,075 99.67%
2016 2015 530,371,105 515,328,314 97.16% 13,063,016 528,391,330 99.63%
2017 2016 554,316,225 540,141,192 97.44% 11,827,316 551,968,508 99.58%
2018 2017 587,674,433 572,666,842 97.45% 12,239,347 584,906,189 99.53%
2019 2018 611,849,646 595,680,821 97.36% 12,969,773 608,650,594 99.48%
2020 2019 636,789,556 618,923,373 97.19% 14,123,664 633,047,037 99.41%
2021 2020 682,550,237 665,765,789 97.54% 10,767,302 676,533,091 99.12%
2022 2021 705,028,451 683,343,203 96.92% 14,588,573 697,931,776 98.99%
2023 2022 748,600,611 723,475,155 96.64% N/A 723,475,155 96.64%

N/A - Not applicable

This schedule contains all property tax levies and receipts for the Lexington County General Government and other
County taxing agencies.

Source: Lexington County Treasurer's Office tax records
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY WIDE ASSESSMENT TABLE

Table12

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Final Final Final Final Final Final Final Final Final Final

Type A 1t A 1t A 1t A 1t A 1t A 1t A 1t A 1t A nt A 1t

Acres $112,494,847 $109,644,242 $112,464,690 $113,382,570 $114,846,050 $115,923,650 $117,050,930 $124,883,640 $128,296,480 $132,950,710
Lots 127,386,143 131,976,954 131,436,110 132,333,650 134,186,110 136,079,010 138,317,990 161,499,530 164,362,180 168,341,740
Improvements 528,382,910 539,498,564 542,258,490 558,318,020 581,355,380 604,748,910 629,978,310 702,660,930 731,065,970 778,054,880
Mobile Homes 12,440,390 12,665,950 10,385,090 10,571,550 11,097,840 11,471,680 11,907,100 11,050,380 11,904,500 100,280
Boat Real 1,930 2,460 2,720 1,870 6,400 1,290 1,210 - - -
Vehicle Real 49,990 58,670 35,430 44,850 52,750 54,390 75,520 70,760 114,690 12,788,810
Subtotal 780,756,210 793,846,840 796,582,530 814,652,510 841,544,530 868,278,930 897,331,060 1,000,165,240  1,035,743,820  1,092,236,420
MFG Acres/Lots 3,432,150 3,173,170 3,594,580 3,533,250 3,570,380 3,711,870 3,344,720 3,302,730 3,097,950 2,177,070
MFG Improvements 9,566,930 7,149,570 9,436,390 9,661,380 10,228,120 9,939,400 9,762,760 9,573,800 8,369,650 7,105,620
MFG Personal 9,594,580 7,251,460 9,656,970 9,299,370 9,800,660 8,490,090 9,037,350 10,565,250 10,678,840 9,127,910
Utilties 96,890,090 101,113,270 104,523,950 111,521,040 117,288,450 122,917,340 119,772,020 121,906,730 122,323,160 125,669,880
Manufact Exempt 3,977,290 3,994,910 3,992,530 4,085,540 4,166,730 7,219,680 7,128,500 8,027,790 8,233,410 8,451,430
MFG Reimbursement (PME) - - - - - 510,730 383,240 636,070 924,870 3,741,650
MFG Reimbursement (RME) - - - - - - 609,270 917,900 1,123,610 5,321,200
X MFG Acres/Lots 192,790 100,090 173,110 212,870 239,520 239,890 482,790 801,560 578,870 312,140
X MFG Improvements 608,630 358,920 369,330 306,030 794,340 684,540 960,940 702,210 3,328,810 2,146,830
X MFG Personal 7,825,920 6,180,790 6,186,360 7,750,340 7,946,670 10,003,710 11,325,640 12,332,850 13,470,340 10,724,090
X Utilities 3,224,300 3,312,760 2,303,470 2,342,130 1,927,930 1,520,500 1,458,800 1,510,430 2,090,400 2,450,230
X MFG Reimbursement (PXE) - - - - - 264,580 562,030 941,490 1,403,950 6,880,580
X MFG Reimbursement (RXE) - - - - - - 73,040 83,530 350,600 1,601,250
Aircraft 2,681,860 2,462,890 2,379,760 3,504,870 3,246,240 3,042,700 3,001,440 2,075,130 2,381,500 2,455,340
Furniture 4,281,270 4,434,480 4,461,790 4,426,000 4,637,820 4,778,460 4,502,760 4,305,080 0 0
SCTC 30,960,090 32,340,860 34,716,760 37,007,690 38,786,360 40,557,600 39,479,990 43,580,670 43,863,621 41,463,610
Boats 7,999,090 8,554,940 9,469,630 10,106,250 10,895,160 11,608,170 9,641,560 8,115,410 635,020 447,790
Subtotal 181,234,990 180,428,110 191,264,630 203,756,760 213,528,380 225,489,260 221,526,850 229,378,630 222,854,601 230,076,620
Total without Vehicles 961,991,200 974,274,950 987,847,160  1,018,409,270  1,055,072,910  1,093,768,190  1,118,857,910  1,229,543,870  1,258,598,421  1,322,313,040
Vehicles - Net Of Unpaids 124,228,810 133,250,860 143,066,400 146,028,100 145,724,250 141,372,080 145,443,580 154,761,670 173,329,140 191,043,902

1. Total Property Tax
Assessments (Unabated)

Non-Negotiated FILOT
Negotiated FILOT

Total FILOT A 1t

1,086,220,010

1,107,525.810

1,130,913.560

1,164,437,370

1,200,797,160

1,235,140,270

1,264,301,490

1,384,305,540

1,431,927,561

1,513,356,942

5,146,440 5,286,750 5,341,900 5,434,120 5,759,340 5,915,690 5,910,970 4,378,480 4,348,110 3,796,120
58,084,110 70,514,710 77,781,970 81,377,890 80,238,990 80,429,280 86,014,440 80,042,580 70,576,440 69,702,000
63,230,550 75,801,460 83,123,870 86,812,010 85,998,330 86,344,970 91,925,410 84,421,060 74,924,550 73,498,120

II. Combined
Total Assessment

1,149,450,560

1,183,327,270

1,214,037,430

1,251,249,380

1,286,795,490

1,321,485,240

1,356,226,900

1,468,726,600

1,506,852,111

1,586,855,062

A. X Industrial Abatements
Total Property Tax Assessment

Less Abatements (I. - A.)

Combined Total Assessments
Less Abatements (II. -A.)

11,851,640

1,074,368,370

9,952,560

1,097,573,250

9,032,270

1,121,881,290

10,611,370

1,153,826,000

10,908,460

1,189,888,700

12,713,220

1,222,427,050

14,863,240

1,249,438,250

16,372,070

1,367,933,470

21,222,970

1,410,704,591

24,115,120

1,489,241,822

1,137,598,920

1,173,374,710

1,205,005,160

1,240,638,010

1,275,887,030

1,308,772,020

1,341,363,660

1,452,354,530

1,485,629,141

1,562,739,942
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Table 13

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
General Percentage

Fiscal Obligation Total Primary Personal of Personal ~ Population Per

Year Bonds Leases Government Income (2) Income 2) Capita
2014 49,595,965 49,595,965 11,399,767,000 0.44% 274,035 181
2015 45,590,380 45,590,380 12,215,444,000 0.37% 277,437 164
2016 (1) 42,193,795 42,193,795 12,728,604,000 0.33% 281,187 150
2017 38,631,159 38,631,159 13,371,355,000 0.29% 284,254 136
2018 34,834,905 34,834,905 13,714,917,000 0.25% 287,552 121
2019 30,793,372 30,793,372 14,524,516,000 0.21% 291,223 106
2020 24,810,000 24,810,000 15,304,925,000 0.16% 294,891 84
2021 (1) 20,415,000 20,415,000 16,598,785,000 0.12% 300,137 68
2022 17,225,000 241,718 17,466,718 N/A N/A 304,078 * 57
2023 13,800,000 188,539 13,988,539 N/A N/A 308,071 * 45

(1) Year of reassessment of real property.
(2) US Dept of Commerce - Bureau of Economic Analysis and the US Census Bureau

*2022 & 2023 Population Estimate based on average increase over prior 5 years.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO
ASSESSED VALUE AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

Table 14

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Ratio

Debt of Net Net
Assessed Gross Service Bonded Bonded

Value in Bonded Monies Net Debt to Debt

Fiscal = Tax Population 1000's Debt Available Bonded Assessed per
Year  Year 2) 3) 4) (5) Debt Value Capita
2014 2013 274,035 1,149,450 49,595,965 1,494,217 48,101,748 4.18% 175.53
2015 2014 277,437 1,183,327 45,590,380 1,105,789 44,484,591 3.76% 160.34
2016 2015 (1) 281,187 1,214,037 42,193,795 1,265,487 40,928,308 3.37% 145.56
2017 2016 284,254 1,251,249 38,631,159 1,504,951 37,126,208 2.97% 130.61
2018 2017 287,552 1,286,795 34,834,905 1,030,155 33,804,750 2.63% 117.56
2019 2018 291,223 1,321,485 30,793,372 835,776 29,957,596 2.27% 102.87
2020 2019 294,891 1,356,227 24,810,000 782,233 24,027,767 1.77% 81.48
2021 2020 (1) 300,137 1,468,727 20,415,000 803,135 19,611,865 1.34% 65.34
2022 2021 304,078 1,506,852 17,225,000 786,905 16,438,095 1.09% 54.06
2023 2022 308,071 1,586,855 13,800,000 780,641 13,019,359 0.82% 42.26

(1) Year of reassessment of real property.
(2) From Table 13.
(3) From Table 8.

(4) From Schedule 3.

(5) Cash and other assets available for the retirement of debt. Exhibit C-2
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Table 15
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES DEBT
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
JUNE 30, 2023

Gross General

Assessed Value Obligation Bonded Debt Outstanding

Assessed Percentage
Value Gross Applicable County's
Within the General to the Share of
Political Subdivision Total County Debt County * Debt
Direct:
County of Lexington 1,586,855,062 $ 1,586,855,062 $ 17,225,000 100.00% $ 17,225,000
Overlapping:
Lexington County School Districts:
One 739,707,392 739,707,392 582,318,100 100.00% 582,318,100
Two 368,253,540 368,253,540 202,510,000 100.00% 202,510,000
Three (1) 59,152,743 53,770,200 63,330,000 90.90% 57,566,970
Four 44,331,550 44,331,550 42,560,000 100.00% 42,560,000
Five (2) 630,914,336 380,792,380 170,640,000 60.36% 102,998,304
Recreation Districts:
Lexington 1,205,862,262 1,205,862,262 16,460,000 100.00% 16,460,000
Irmo/Chapin 380,792,380 380,792,380 13,490,000 100.00% 13,490,000
Columbia Metropolitan Airport (3) 3,475,316,832 1,586,855,062 1,945,000 45.66% 888,087
Richland/Lexington Riverbanks (3) 3,475,316,832 1,586,855,062 25,225,000 45.66% 11,517,735
Irmo Fire District 158,411,830 158,411,830 2,745,000 100.00% 2,745,000
City of Cayce 100,378,460 100,378,460 - 100.00% -
City of Columbia (4) 676,902,691 26,716,590 137,502,614 3.95% 5,431,353
Town of Lexington 150,920,880 150,920,880 7,700,000 100.00% 7,700,000
City of West Columbia 101,150,480 101,150,480 3,763,000 100.00% 3,763,000

Total Overlapping 1,270,188,714 1,049,948,549
Total $ 1,287,413,714 $ 1,067,173,549

(1) A portion of School District No. 3 is located in Saluda County with the assessed value of: $ 5,382,543
(2) A portion of School District No. 5 is located in Richland County with the assessed value of: $ 250,121,956
(3) Includes assessed value for Richland County of: $ 1,888,461,770
(4) A portion of the City of Columbia is located in Richland County with the assessed value of: $ 650,186,101

Source: Lexington County Treasurer, Auditor, and Finance officers of above-mentioned entities.

* Overlapping debt is calculated by dividing the assessed value within the County by the total assessed value of the governing body. This
percentage is then applied to the outstanding debt for each governing body.

Taxing Authorities Bonded Debt Percentages B County of Lexington
3 1.54% OSchool Districts
1.26%
\ 1.08% Lexington Recreation
4 1.58% @ Irmo/Chapin Recreation
V)
92.57% 0.08% B Riverbanks Zoo
4 0.26%
4 ] B Municipalities
p 1.61% . .
O Columbia Metro Airport
> O Irmo Fire District
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Table 16-A
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

JUNE 30, 2023
Assessed value $ 1,513,356,942
Assessed value - fee in lieu of taxes property 73,498,120
1,586,855,062
Abated industrial property -24,115,120
1,562,739,942
Plus assessed value - merchants inventory 8,897,130
Total assessed value for computation of legal debt margin $ 1,571,637,072
Debt limit - 8% of assessed value $ 125,730,966
Amount of debt applicable to debt limit:
Total bonded debt $ 13,800,000
Total amount of debt applicable to debt limit 13,800,000
Legal debt margin $ 111,930,966

Legal Debt Limit of the County

Article X, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as amended, provides that counties shall
have the power to incur bonded indebtedness in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the General
Assembly shall prescribe by general law. General obligation debt may be incurred only for public and corporate
purposes in an amount not exceeding 8% of the assessed value of all taxable property of the county. The County
Bond Act provides that the governing bodies of the several counties of the State may issue general obligation bonds

to defray the cost of any authorized purpose and for any amount not exceeding its applicable constitutional debt limit.

Under Article X, Section 14 of the Constitution, bonded indebtedness of the County existing on November 30, 1977,

is not considered in determining the County's 8% debt limitations. General obligation debt authorized by a majority
vote of the qualified electors of the County voting in a referendum may be incurred without limitation as to amount and
is not considered in determining the County's 8% limitation.

In addition, Article X, Section 14 of the Constitution provides that general obligation debt may be incurred by counties
on such terms and conditions as the General Assembly may, by general law, prescribe for sewage disposal or treatment,
fire protection, street lighting, garbage collection and disposal, water service, or any other service facility benefiting
only a particular geographical section of the county, without an election and without limitations as to amount, provided
a special charge, in an amount designed to provide debt service on bonded indebtedness incurred for such purposes,
shall be imposed upon the areas or persons receiving the benefit therefrom; and general obligation debt so incurred
shall not be considered in computing the bonded indebtedness under the 8% limitations.

Debt Ratios (Gross Bonded Debt)

Outstanding General Obligation DEbt...........cccoeiiiiiiiiiiieriet ettt e eneesseesseeseenseas $ 13,800,000
Estimated Fair Market Value ($44,421,607,603)........cccceoierrieiiieieiieiiesieeete ettt esreeteeseeenessae e snas 0.03%
AsSeSSEd ValUe ($1,586,855,002)....cccuiiiieirieiiieieiieieienieereeteeseestessessessessessesssassessessessessessesssassessassessessens 0.87%
General Bonded Debt Per Capita (308,071 ESt. POP.)ccuviiiiieiiieiieet et ettt $44.79
Statutory 8% Debt Limit - Adjusted Assessed Value ($1,571,637,072).....cccviiiiiirinininiiiniinannnns. 0.88%
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 17

Fiscal Estimated Total Personal Per Capita School Unemployment
Year Population (1) Income (2) Personal Income Enrollment (3) Rate (4)
2014 274,035 11,399,767,000 41,600 53,315 5.1%
2015 277,437 12,215,444,000 44,030 54,053 5.4%
2016 281,187 12,728,604,000 45,267 54,712 4.5%
2017 284,254 13,371,355,000 47,040 55,551 3.6%
2018 287,552 13,714,917,000 47,695 55,969 3.5%
2019 291,223 14,524,516,000 49,874 56,594 2.8%
2020 294,891 15,304,925,000 51,900 57,224 3.3%
2021 300,137 16,598,785,000 55,304 56,096 3.9%
2022 304,078 N/A N/A 57,148 2.8%
2023 308,071 N/A N/A 57,615 2.7%
Sources:

(1) - US Department of Commerce - Bureau of Economic Analysis

2022 & 2023 - Estimate based on average growth over last 5 years.

(2) - US Department of Commerce - Bureau of Economic Analysis

(3) - S.C. Department of Education (Based on 135-Day Enrollment of 180 Day Period)

(4) - Bureau of Labor Statistics (Average for Fiscal Year)

N/A - Not Available
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
JUNE 30, 2023

Table 18

Fiscal Year 2023

Fiscal Year 2014

Percentage of
Total County

Percentage of
Total County

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Lexington Medical Ctr 8,368 1 5.55% 6,000 1 4.43%
Lexington School District 1 4,033 2 2.67% 3,695 2 2.73%
Amazon 3,707 3 2.46% 1,500 9 1.11%
Michelin Tire 2,642 4 1.75% 2,225 4 1.64%
State Government 2,515 5 1.67% 2,071 6 1.53%
Wal-mart 2,363 6 1.57% 2,105 5 1.56%
County of Lexington 1,882 7 1.25% 1,560 8 1.15%
Dominion (fka SCANA) 1,492 8 0.99% 1,952 7 1.44%
Lexington School District 2 1,165 9 0.77% 1,118 10 0.83%
Spectrum 1,100 10 0.73%
Lexington School District 5 2,400 3 1.77%
19.41% 18.19%

Source: SC Department of Employment & Workforce, Central SC Alliance, and Company Representatives
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

Table 19

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

General Administrative 181 181 182 182 183 186 195 195 199 199
General Services 46 46 46 46 47 50 51 52 54 54
Public Works 88 89 89 96 101 102 109 109 109 109
Public Safety

Administrative 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Emergency Preparedness 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3

Animal Control 13 13 13 14 15 15 16 16 19 19

Communications 53 53 61 63 63 72 73 76 76 76

Emergency Medical Service 140 140 150 151 171 181 181 183 183 187

Fire Service 199 199 217 220 248 270 270 266 274 281
Judicial 170 169 171 172 182 181 187 182 186 194
Law Enforcement

Administrative 37 37 50 53 56 59 60 60 61 63

Operations 298 293 262 269 279 280 281 302 305 305

Detention 139 139 120 132 134 134 134 133 126 128

Judicial Services 34 40 42 43 42 42 43 43

Community Services 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 4
Boards and Commissions 15 15 14 15 15 16 17 17 17 17
Health and Human Services 16 16 16 17 13 13 13 13 14 15
Community & Economic Development 8 8 9 8 9 9 9 9 10 10
Public Library 101 103 104 106 106 107 111 121 122 125
Solid Waste 33 35 35 37 40 42 46 47 49 49
Total Full-time Equivalents 1541 1540 1583 1631 1713 1769 1805 1833 1857 1883

Source: County of Lexington Fiscal Year Annual Budgets 2014-2023
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Table 20
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

General Administrative
Community Development

Total Permits Issued 3,505 4,011 4,509 5910 7304 6819 6369 6709 4963 4408
New Construction 1,383 1,606 2,269 1771 1584 1717 1830 2092 1851 1535
Auditor
*  Tax Notices Processed 461,865 470,704 481,052 489,034 494,834 496,229 509,248 515,769 532,407 N/A

Assessment & Equalization
*  Number of Parcels and Mobile Homes 146,705 147,305 148,142 149,649 151,029 152,853 154,863 156,250 157,785 N/A

*  Deeds Processed 11,762 12,493 15,241 14,841 13,786 14,169 14,079 15,903 14,580 N/A
Register of Deeds
Documents Recorded 58,226 63,031 58,351 63,914 59,180 56,530 53,966 70,369 60,469 48,513
Public Safety
Communications
* Emergency 911 Calls 419,250 448,272 447,107 448,670 444,689 481,829 457,748 424,760 377,907 N/A
Emergency Medical Services
Number of Total EMS Calls 36,327 39,963 41,795 43,437 46,950 52,431 50,778 60,506 62,569 65,879
Number of Billable EMS Calls 27,810 30,131 30,540 31,438 31,836 31,679 31,265 34,145 36,484 37,146
Fire Service
* Total Fire Calls 11,079 11,820 12,997 14,175 15,092 15,691 17,267 18,878 19,419 N/A
Judicial
Probate Court
Marriage License Applications 1,710 1,883 1,934 1864 1786 1657 1754 1713 1803 1775
Magistrate Court
Cases disposed 43908 53,469 51,589 55,711 59,116 61,235 51,777 50,409 53,454 57,382
Law Enforcement
Operations
* Total Incident Reports Written 23,118 25,558 26,065 26,031 26,723 25,558 25,853 25,639 25,329 N/A
* Traffic Stops 13,537 16,633 15,906 13,769 12,998 10,904 11,832 10,147 11,286 N/A
Jail Operations
* Average Jail Population 667 728 771 750 716 637 467 523 540 N/A

Boards and Commissions
Registration & Elections
Total Registered Voters 160,676 162,741 171,336 182,049 191,686 188,395 189,887 202,192 193,921 182,905

Health and Human Services
Veteran's Affairs

Veterans' Claims 1,614 2,349 2,537 2866 3907 4806 4510 3301 2819 5185
Museum

Museum Visits 13,206 13,986 15,571 17,469 16,134 16,872 9,041 2,930 8,611 10,946
- Decreases in FY20 and FY21 are due to the pandemic.

Public Library
Total Registered Borrowers 145,842 141,796 153,853 152,492 160,336 156,483 164,307 126,116 112,546 101,267
- Decreases are due to the purge of the database.

Solid Waste
Total tons recycled 17,720 19,071 22,694 28,021 25,202 24,750 28,389 32,039 30,098 28,868

N/A - Not Available
* Figures are maintained on a calendar year basis.
Source: County of Lexington Department Managers
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

Table 21

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Public Works

Total Public Roads (Miles) 2,719 2,716 2,742 2750 2761 2767 2777 2785 2789 2799

County Maintained Roads (Miles) 1,214 1,211 1,232 1240 1240 1257 1267 1274 1278 1288

County Unpaved Roads (Miles) 668 661 648 629 627 624 621 614 609 606
Public Safety

Emergency Medical Service
Number of Ambulances 24 24 24 25 28 28 28 29 29 29
Fire Service

Number of Stations 24 24 24 24 24 24 25 25 25 25

Number of Ladder Trucks 3 3 3 3 3 4 5 4 4 6

Number of Pumper Trucks 29 27 27 26 26 26 28 28 28 30

Number of Tanker Trucks 22 21 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20

Number of Tower Trucks 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Public Library

Number of Public Libraries 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Solid Waste

Number of Landfills 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Number of Collection & Recycling Centers 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11
Airport 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Source: County of Lexington Fixed Asset Records and Department Managers
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THE BRITTINGHAM GROUP.LLP.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
501 STATE STREET
POST OFFICE BOX 5949
WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29171

PHONE: (803) 739-3090
FAX: (803) 791-0834

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Chairman and Members of
Lexington County Council
Lexington, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the County of Lexington, Lexington South Carolina, (hereafter referred to as the County) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 16,
2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

m 61 ﬁz‘ - ?“‘" ) é‘-’Mcﬁﬁ) J--J-—P

West Columbia, South Carolina
January 16, 2024
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THE BRITTINGHAM GROUP,LLP.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
501 STATE STREET
POST OFFICE BOX 5949
WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29171

PHONE: (803) 739-3090
FAX: (803) 791-0834

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Honorable Chairman and Members
Of the County Council for County of
Lexington, South Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the County of Lexington, South Carolina’s (hereafter referred to as the County) compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.
The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the County’s
federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on County’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or
in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance
about County’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding County’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of County’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of County’s internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as items. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with
respect to these matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on County’s response to
the noncompliance findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. County’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit
of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

The Prittsghan Casup 11-F

West Columbia, South Carolina
January 16, 2024

363



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

SECTION 1—SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements

1. Type of Auditors’ report issued. Unmodified
2. Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

A. Material weaknesses Identified None

B. Significant deficiency identified not considered being material weakness None

C. Noncompliance that is material to the financial statements identified None
Federal Awards

1. Internal control over major programs:

A. Material weaknesses identified None
B. Significant deficiency identified not considered being material weakness None
2. Type of Auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified

3. Any Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) None

4. Identification of Major Program:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program
21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds

14.231 Emergency Solutions Grant Program

14.218 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement
5. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A & B programs. $750,000
6. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee. Yes
SECTION 2 -- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS None

SECTION 3 -- FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS No matters reported.
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

County Federal Pass Through Program
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor Fund CFDA Grantor's or Award Total
Program Title No. Number Number Amount Expenditures
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 2400 14.218 B-19-UC-45-0004 1,790,054 * 395,227
(CDBG Expenditures by Subgrantees - $395,227)
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 2400 14.218 B-20-UC-45-0004 1,846,440 * 339,222
(CDBG Expenditures by Subgrantees - $337,747)
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 2400 14.218 B-21-UC-45-0004 1,893,405 * 1,075,003
(CDBG Expenditures by Subgrantees - $884,602)
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 2400 14.218 B-22-UC-45-0004 1,862,133 * 453,060
(CDBG Expenditures by Subgrantees - $381,354)
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 2400 14.218 B-23-UC-45-0004 1,862,177 * 12,217
(CDBG Expenditures by Subgrantees - $12,217)
COVID-19 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 2408 14.218 B-20-UW-45-0004 2,501,688 * 536,735
Community Development Block Grants/Disaster Recovery 2405 14.218 B-16-UH-45-0001 21,370,000 * 221,094
Community Development Block Grants/Mitigation 2406 14.218 B-18-UP-45-0001 15,185,000 * 1,074,766
Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 4,107,324
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 2402 14.231 E-20-UC-45-0004 157,288 * 1,631
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 2402 14.231 E-21-UC-45-0004 157,470 * 74,838
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 2402 14.231 E-22-UC-45-0004 159,160 * 123,817
COVID-19 Emergency Solutions Grants Program 2407 14.231 E-20-UW-45-0004 1,494,664 * 550,028
Total Emergency Solutions Grants Program 750,314
HOME Investment Partnership Program 2401 14.239 M-21-UC-45-0213 722,712 301,148
HOME Investment Partnership Program 2401 14.239 M-22-UC-45-0213 840,327 64,928
HOME-ARP Program 2403 14.239 M-21-UP-45-0213 2,619,353 205,531
Total HOME Investment Partnership Program 571,607
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 5,429,245
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG) 2495 16.738 2020-DJ-BX-0354 36,805 193
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG) 2496 16.738 15PBJA-21-GG-01814-JAGX 44,227 34,568
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG) 2497 16.738 15PBJA-22-GG-02412-JAGX 47,563 39,931
Equitable Sharing Program 2637 16.922 44271 44,271
Passed Through S.C. Department of Public Safety:
Edward Byrme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG)
School Resource Officer 2437 16.738 5G000421 83,025 21,060
Edward Byrme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG)
Crime Reduction Gang Investigators 2443 16.738 5G000321 87,580 19,218
Crime Reduction Gang Investigators 2443 16.738 5G000922 87,580 76,734
Edward Byrme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG)
Multi-Jurisdictional Forensic Drug Lab Additional Chemist 2445 16.738 5G003421 217,434 152,765
Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program
Coronavirus Prevention 2471 16.034 1CF20133 167,200 161,000
Coronavirus Prevention 2471 16.034 1CF20173 190,130 182,817
Passed Through S.C. Office of Attorney General:
Violence Against Women Formula Grants
LE/Violence Against Women Act 2456 16.588 1K19025/1K20020 133,063 15,952
LE/Violence Against Women Act 2456 16.588 1K20030 133,063 128,438
Crime Victim Assistance Formula Grants
LE/Victims of Crime Act 2448 16.575 1V19111 196,963 26,275
LE/Victims of Crime Act 2448 16.575 1V22054 196,963 166,929
Total U.S. Department of Justice 1,070,151
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

County Federal Pass Through Program
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor Fund CFDA Grantor's or Award Total
Program Title No. Number Number Amount Expenditures
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Capital Projects 5801 20.106 3-45-0067-021-2021 184,778 77,568
CARES Act Airport Grant 5800 20.106 3-45-0067-023-2022 32,000 32,000
Passed Through S.C. Department of Public Safety (Highway Safety):
Highway Safety Cluster
State and Community Highway Safety
11th Circuit Law Enforcement Network 2416 20.600 2JC22011 10,000 1,538
11th Circuit Law Enforcement Network 2416 20.600 2JC21011 10,000 4,761
Impaired Driving Countermeasures Project 2426 20.608 164AL-2022-HS-40-22 61,433 15,724
Impaired Driving Countermeasures Project 2426 20.616 MS5HVE-2023-HS-40-23 89,653 44,705
Total Highway Safety Cluster 66,728
Passed Through S.C. Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
Federal-Aid Highway Program, Federal Lands Highway Program
S-48/Columbia Avenue Project 2900 20.205 SU32(019) 2,725,000 305,187
Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 305,187
Passed Through S.C. Office of Adjutant General:
Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and Planning
Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness Planning and Training Grant 1000 20.703 HMEP22-PL-6000379 5,000 5,000
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 486,483
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed Through S.C. Law Enforcement Division
Homeland Security Grant Program
Midlands Regional Medical Assistance Team (RMAT) 2477 97.067 19SHSP35 40,000 39,300
Midlands Regional Medical Assistance Team (RMAT) 2477 97.067 21SHSP36 40,000 34,271
Midlands Regional Medical Assistance Team (RMAT) 2477 97.067 22SHSP37 40,000 -
Passed Through S.C. Office of Adjutant General:
Emergency Management Performance Grants
FEMA Grant thru Adjutant General's Office 2480 97.042 21EMPGO1 79,234 35,068
FEMA Grant thru Adjutant General's Office 2480 97.042 22EMPGO1 84,902 38,975
FEMA Grant thru Adjutant General's Office 2480 97.042 21EMPG-ARPAO1 29,328 29,326
Total U. S. Department of Homeland Security 176,940
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed Through S.C. Department of Social Services:
Child Support Enforcement
General Fund 1000 93.563 G2001SC1401 20,750 15,884
Clk of Crt/Title IV-D Child Support 2410 93.563 G2001SC1401 500,000 313,126
LE/Title IV-D Process Server 2411 93.563 G2001SC1401 14,304 14,058
Total U. S. Department of Health and Human Services 343,068
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COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

County Federal Pass Through Program
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor Fund CFDA Grantor's or Award Total
Program Title No. Number Number Amount Expenditures
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
Passed Through S.C. Department of Administration:
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 2488 21.027 58,028,685 * 6,796,875
Total U. S. Department of Treasury 6,796,875
INSTITUTE OF MUSEUM AND LIBRARY SERVICES
Passed Through S.C. State Library:
Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) 2340 45.310 1ID-22-602 1,050 1,050
Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) 2340 45.310 1ID-ARPA-002 30,000 6,022
Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) 2340 45.310 1ID-ARPA-803 5,000 4,901
Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) 2340 45310 1ID-22-104 1,134 1,134
Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) 2340 45310 1ID-22-105 1,039 1,039
Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) 2340 45310 1ID-22-333 2,000 1,727
Total Institute of Museum and Library Services 15,873
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDED

* The major programs of the County included in the audit were:

US Department of Housing and Urban Development (CFDA # 14.218)
Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grant
COVID-19 Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grant
Community Development Block Grant/Disaster Recovery
Community Development Block Grant/Mitigation

US Department of Housing and Urban Development (CFDA # 14.231)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 Emergency Solutions Grant Program

US Department of Treasury (CFDA # 21.027)

American Rescue Plan (ARPA)
COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

NOTE A--BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the County of Lexington and is

presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements

of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements

for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in,

or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE B--INDIRECT COST RATE

The County of Lexington did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.
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